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Barclays 1s the exclusive sponsor of Barclays Cycle Hire which
was launched on 30th July 2010 in London It already sees
more than 5,000 cycles available in centrat London, with
neariy 3 millon journeys completed The scherne makes a
posttve contrbution to society 1n London and partners
Barclays with a sustainable and environmentally friendly
maode of transport

Fhe term Bardays PLC Group mieans Bardays PLC together with its
subsidianes and the term Bardlays Bank PLC Group' or ‘Croup’ means
Barclays Bank PLC together with Its subsidianes Barclays 1s used to
refer to elther of the preceding groups when the sublect matter 15
dentical The term Parent Compary or Parent sefers to Barclays PLC
and the term Bank or ‘Company’ refers to Barclays Bank PLC The term
Absa Group Limited 15 used to refer to Absa Group Lirmited and its
subsidiarles and the term Absa 5 used to refer 1o the Bardays segrment
represented by this business as descnbed on page 160 In this report
the abbreviations £m and *tbn represent millions and thousands of
millions of pounds sterling respectively, the abbreviations ‘US$m and
USs$bn' represent mdions and thausands of mellians of US Dollars
respectively and €m and €bn epresent millons and thousands of
mullions of euros respectively Information relates to the Group unless
otherwise stated

Unless ctherwise stated the income statement analyses compare the
twelve months to 31 st December 2030 to the corresponding twebve
months of 2009 and bafance sheet compansons relate to the
corresponding pesition at 31st Decermber 2009 Unless otherwise
stated all disclosed figures relate to continuing cperations

Relevant tenms that are used in this document but are not defined
under apphcable regulatory guidance or International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS}) are explained in the glossary i the Barclays
PLC 2010 Annual Report.

Forward-looking staterments
This document contains certan forward-oaking statements within
the meaning of Section 21E of the US Securities Exchange Act of 1934
as amended and Section 27A of the US Securities Act of 1933 as
amended with raspect to certann of the Croups plans and its current
goals and expectations retatng to 1s future financal conditon and
performance Barclays cautions readers that no forward-tooking
staternent Is 3 guarantee of future performance and that actual results
coutd differ materially from those contained in the forward-tooking
statements These forward-looking staternents can be identfied by
the fact that they do not relate only to hustoncal or current facts
Forward-looking staternents sometimes use words such as may’ will
seek conbtnue ‘am anticpate ‘target expect, estmate intend
plar, goal believe or ather words of similar meaning Exarmples of
forward-locking staternents indude among others statements
regarding the Groups future financial position income growth assets
impasrment charges business strategy capital ratios leverage payment
of dnvidends peojected levels of growth in the banking and financial
markets projected costs estrrates of capital expenditures and plans
and objectives for future operations and other statements that are not
historical fact By ther nature forward-logking statements imvolve risk
and uncertainty because they refate to future events and crcumstances
induding butnot lmited to UK domestic and global economuc and
business conditions the effects of continued volatility in aredit markets
market related nsks such as changes n interest rates ard exchange
ates effects of changes m valuation of credit market exposures
changes in valuation of issued notes the pehaes and actions of
governmental and regulatary 2uthorities icluding capstal requrments,
changes in tegisiation the further developmer of standards and
witerpretations urder IFRS apphcable to past, current and future
penods evohang practices with regard to the mterpretation and
apphcation of standands undes IFRS the outcome of pending and future
litrgation the success of future acquisibons and other strategic
transactons and the impact of competibion - a number of such factors
being beyond the Groups controd As a result, the Groups actual future
results may differ materially from the plans goals and expeciations set
forth 1n the Croups forward-looking statements

Any forward-locking statements made herein speak only as of the date
they are made Except as requred by the UK Finandial Senvices Authority
(FSA} the London Stock Exchange or applicable law Bardays expressly
disclairns ary obligation or undertaking to release publicly any updates
of rewisions {o any forward-looking staternents contamed in this
announcernent to reflect any change in Barclays expectations with
regard thereto or any change in évents, condibons or arcurmstances on
wiuch any such statement ts based The reader shoudd however consult
any addibonal disclasures that Barclays has made or may make in
documents it has filed or may file with the SEC
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Key performance indicators

Capital KPIs
Defintion Why it's important to the business and management
Core Tier 1 ratio
10-109%
Caprtal requirernents are part of the regulatory The Group’s capital management acimties seek to maximise 09-101%
framework governing how banks and depository  shareholders’ value by prudentiy optimising the level and mix of its 08 - 5 6%
institutions are ranaged Capital ratios expressa  capital resources The Group s capital management objectives are - °
bank’s capital as a percentage of its nsk weighted  to maintain sufficient capital resources to ensure the financial
assets Both Core Trer 1 and Trer 1 capital holding company 1s well capitalised relative to the minimum
resources are defined by the UK FSA. Core Trer 1 regulatary capital requirements set by the UK FSA and US Federal
is broadly tangible shareholders' funds less Reserve ensure locally regulated subsidiaries can meet therr
certain caprtal deductions from Tier 1 minimum requlatory capital requirements, support the Group's nsk
appetite and economic caprtal requrements, and support the
Group and the Bank's credit ratings
Dunng 2010, the Bank's Core Tier 1 mtio improved 0 8% to 10 9%
largely through £4 2bn of attnibutable profits, demonstrating the
Croup's ability to generate capital organically
Adjusted gross leverage
10-20x
Adjusted gross leverage 15 defined as the multiple  Barclays believes that there will be more capital and less leverage In 09—-19x
of adjusted total tangible assets over total the banking systemn and that lower levels of leverage are regarded 08— 28
gualifying Tter 1 Capital Adjusted total tangible as a key measure of stability going forward This is consistent with — 08X
assets are total assets less denvative the views of our requlators and investors
counterparty netting, assets under management
on the balance sheet settiernent balances, In 2010, adjusted gross leverage was broadly flat at 20 times
goodwill and intangible assets Tier 1 Capitalis principally as a result of a £4 billion increase in Tier 1 Capital 10
defined by the UK FSA £53 7 billion offset by the impact of a £84 6 billion increase in
adjusted total tangible assets
Returns KPls
Definitron Why it's important to the business and management
Profit before tax
Profit before tax
Profit before tax and adjusted profit before tax Profit before tax is a key indicator of financial performance to many 10— £6,079m
are the two pnmary profitability measures used of our stakeholders 09— 4' 559
to assess performance Profit before tax - m
represents total mcome less impairment charges  Adjusted profit before tax increased 119% to £5 478m from 08 — £5,094m
and operating expenses Adjusted profit before £4,916m
tax represents profit before tax adjusted for Adjusted profit
movements on own credit, gains on acquisitions bef:
and disposals, and gains on debt buy-backs, for €tore tax
comparatve purpcses 10-£5,478m
09 - £4916m
08 - £674m
Cost income ratio
10-63%
Cost ngome ratio 1s defined as operating Thus 15 a measure management uses to assess the productvity of 09-57%
expenses compared to total income net of the business operations Restructunng the cost base 1s a key 08 —63%

insurance cfaims

execution pricnty for management and includes a review of all
categortes of discretionary spending and an analysis of how we can
run the business to ensure that costs Increase at a slower rate than
ncome We have set a target to take £1bn off our run-rate cost
base on a full year basis by 2013
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Returns KPIs continued

Definition Why it's important to the business and management

Loan loss rate

The loan loss rate represents the impairment The granting of credit is one of Barclays major sources of income 10-118bps

charge on loans and advances as a proportion and its most significant nsk The loan loss rate is an indicator of 09 - 156 bps

of the penod end balances the cost of granting credit p
08 -55bps

During 2010 impairment continued to iImprove across all our
businesses with one exception, the corperate portfolio in Spam,
resulting n a Joan loss rate of 118bps compared to 156bps
reported In 2009

Income growth KPls
Definttion Why it's important to the business and management
Total ncome
10-£31,450m
Defined as total income net of insurance clarms Total ncome 1s a key indicator of financial performance to maty of 09 — £29,094m
our stakeholders and income growth a key execution prionty for 08 —£21.153m
Barctays management. :
Group total incorme increased 8% to £31 5 tullion
Income by geography
Defined as total income net of iInsurance The goal of increasing the internaitonal diversification of our
claims generated in distinct geographic incorme helps to reduce nsk by providing exposure to different
segments Geographic segmental analysis Is economic cytes and and 15 demonstrated by our ratio of non-UK
based on customer location and the definiton to UK business income
of the countnes within each region are
provided in the glossary Geographic split of income
2010 2009 2008
% % %
UK & Ireland 40 45 57
European Region 15 15 19
Amencas 25 22 0
Afnca 15 14 17

Asia 5 4 7
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Key performance indicators

continued

Citizenship KPIs

Definition

Why it's important to the busihess and management

Gross new lending to UK households and
bustnesses

We have remained ‘open for business' dunng the econorric 10-£43bn
Defined as lending to UK households and those downturn, and are focused on lending responsibly to our customers 09 — £35bn
businesses with UK-based activities and clrents around the warld In 2009, we committed ta make an 08 -n/a
additional £11 bilion of credit available to the UK econormy, and by
the end of 2009, we had lent an additonal £35 billion to UK
househelds and businesses Supporting customers m difficulty has
never been more crtical, but providing access to credit must be
based on the ability to repay We increased our lending across the
UK to £43 bidhon in 2010, including £75 bilion ansing from the
acquisition of Standard Life Bank
We see this as an important performance metric and have formally
measured UK gross lending since 2009
Clobal investment in our communities
10-£553m
Defined as Barclays total contnbution to The success and competitiveness of a business and the extent to 09—-£549m
supporting the communities where we operate which It contributes to and is integrated In the commuruties in 08—£522
which it operates are closely related We are commutted to - m
maintaining nvestment in our communities for the long-term both
In good times and in bad This performance metric demonstrates
the consistency of our commitrnent over time
Colleagues involved in volunteenng, regular
gnng and fundraising iniiatives 10-62,000
Bardlays community investment programme aims to engage and 09 -58.000
Defined as the total number of Barclays support colleagues around the world to get involved with our main 08 57'00 0 i
employees taking part in volunieering, gring or partnerships, as well as the local causes they care about 0
fundratsing activities Harnessing their energy, time and skills delivers real benefit to local
cornriunites, to ther own personal development and to therr
engagement with Barclays
Group Employee Opinion Survey (ECS) - Proud
to be Barclays 10-83%
Understanding levels of employee engagerment and sense of 09-81%
Employee opirions surveys are used across the commitment to Bardays 1s important as there 1s a strong 08— 81%
organisatron to understand our employees' views  correlation between these factors and our employees’ commitment - o
and priortise management actions 1n order to to serving the needs of our customers and chents
meet employea needs This KP1is a calibration of
different survey scores across Barclays for a
question measurng sense of pride in being
associated with or working for Barclays The
average scores for each year are given
Percentage of senior managers who are female ,
10-24% ‘
The number of female colleagues who are Drversity IS iImportant to Barclays as we believe that only through 09— 24%,
working across all Barclays businesses at the access t0 the most diverse pool of talent will we recruit and retain 08 — 25%,

senior management level as a percentage of the
total senior manager population

the most talented individuals to serve our customers and clients

The number of females at the senior management level has
remained flat demanstrating that there is still work to be done to
increase the number of women reaching and retaining roles at this
level of management
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Previously reported KPls:
KPIs are updated periodically as our strategy and execution prionties evolve Measures no longer identified as KPIs that were reported in the prior year
are as follows

Measures 2010 2009 2008

Tier 1 ratio 13 5% 130% 8 6%

Average term of unsecured habilities 30 months 26 months 14 months

UK Retad Banking customer satisfaction &4 0% 62 5% n/a

Barclaycard International — number of customers 105m 108m 11 8m

Number of distnbution outlets outside the UK 2,906 3603 3158

Propartion of Global Retail and Cormmercial Banking international income

Replaced by Income by geography following Group reargarisation

Net lending in Barclays Commercial Bank

Replaced by Gross new lending to UK households and businesses
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Financial review

Income statement commentary

Barclays delivered profit before tax of £6,079m in 2010, an increase of 33%
{2009 £4,559m) Excluding movements on own credit, gains on debt
buy-backs and gains on acquisitions and disposals Group profit before tax
increased 11% to £5,478m (2009 £4,916m)

Income ncreased 8% to £31,450m (2009 £29 034m) Barclays Capital
reported 2 17% increase in total income to £13 600m (2009 £11 625m)
This reflected a substantial reduction in losses taken through income
relating to credit market exposures which fell to £124m (2009 £4.417m)
and a gan relating to own credit of £391m (2009 loss of £1,820m)
Top-iine Income at Barclays Capital, which excludes these tems, declined
25% to £13,333m relative to the exceptionally strong levels seenin 2009
Overall actvity levels improved towards the end of the year, with top-hne
income In the fourth quarter of 2010 increasing 20% on the third quarter
to £3,380m Global Retail Banking income increased 1% to £10,507m, with
good growth in UK Retail Banking and Barclays Africa, with income flat 1n
Barclaycard, and a decline in Western Europe Retail Banking Income was
up 4% in Absa Barclays Corporate reported a decrease in ncome of 7%
and income was up 18% in Barclays Wealth

Irmpairment charges and other credit provisions improved 30% to
£5,672m (2009 £8,071m) This was after an increase of £630rn in
impairment on the Sparish loan book in Barclays Corporate - Continental
Europe Allother businesses reperted iImprovements in impairment
charges Overall impairment charges as a proportion of Group loans and
advances as at 31st Decernber 2010 was 118bps, compared to 156bps for
2009

As aresult netincome for the Croup after impairment charges increased
23% to £25 778m (2009 £21,023m)

Operating expenses increased £3 255m to £19,967m, a 19% nse
compared to the 23% growth In net incorme Costs at Barclays Capital
ncreased £1,703m, largely reflecting investment in the business across
sales, ongination, trading and research functions, Investment in technology
and infrastructure, and increased charges relatng to pnor year deferrals
Across the Group restructunng charges totalled £330m (2009 £87m)
particularly in Barclays Corporate {£119m} and Barclays Capital (£90m)
focusing on delivertrig future cost and business efficiencies Goodwill of
£243m was wnitten off n Barclays Corporate — New Markets to reflect
impayment to the carrying value of Barclays Bank Russia business as our
actwities there are refocused As a result, the Groups cost income ratio
increased to 63% {2009 57%) The cost net income ratio improved from
79% to 77%, reflecting the reduced imparment charges compared with
2009

Staff costs increased 20% to £11 9bn (2009 £9 9bn), of which
performance costs amounted to £3 5bn (2009 £2 8bn) Within this total,
2010 charges relating to pror year deferrals increased by £0 7bn relative to
2009 The Group 2010 performance awards {which exclude charges
relating to prior year deferrals but include current year awards vesting in
future years) were down 7% on 2009 at £3 4bn Within this, the Barclays
Capital 2010 performance awards were down 12% at £2 6bn, compared to
anncrease in headcount of 7%
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Financial review
Balance sheet commentary

Total assets
Total assets increased £111bn to £1,490bn

Cash, balances at central banks and iterns in the course of collechon have
increased £15 9bn coninbuting to the increase i the Group liquidity pool
Trading portfolio assets increased £17 5bn and reverse repurchase lending
increased £62 3bn reflecting business growth while keeping our adjusted
gross leverage at 20x (2009 19x) Financial assets designated at farr value
have decreased by £1 1bn pnmanly due to a decrease in debt secunties

Denvative financial assets increased £3 5bn reflecting increases m the
rmark to market positions in interest rate and foreign exchange denvatives
due to movements In forward interest rate curves and volatility in the
foreign exchange market This was partially offset by decreases in credit,
equity and commodities denvatives due to reduced volatility

Leans and advances to banks and customers increased £4 4bn due to an
increase in lending to retail customers including the effect of the
acquisition of Standard Life Bank offset by a reduction in borrowings by
wholesale customers and banks

Avallable for sale financial nvestments mcreased £8 8bn prirnanily drven
by purchase of government bonds increasing the Group's hiquid assets and
the transfer frorm loans and advances to avarlable for sale assets of the
recenvables arsing as part of the acquisiion of the North American
business of Lehman Brothers This was partially offset by a £0 8bn
reduction in the far value of the Group’s investment in BlackRock, Inc

Total Habilities
Total iabilities increased £107bn to £1,427bn

Deposits from banks, and items in the course of collection from banks and
customer accounts increased £24 7bn reflecting the acquisition of
Standard Life Bank and customer deposit growth across the Group
Financial habilities designiated at farr value increased £9 8bn primanly due
o increased debt secunttes and debt issuances strengthening the Groups
liquidity positron Debt securities inissue increased £20 7bn phimarily due
to increases in bonds, medium term notes, certificates of deposit and
commercial paper This growth was primanly to fund the increased
liquidity pool and business growth

Trading portfolio iabdities increased £21 4bn and repurchase agreements
and other similar secured borrowing mcreased £26 8bn reflecting business
growth Derwvative financiat liabiliies increased £2 1bn broadly in line with
the increase in gross denvative assets Subordinated liabilities increased
£2 7bn pnmaniy reflecting 1ssuances and acquisitions partially offset by
redemptions Other liabilities decreased £1 3bn reflecting reduced
retirement benefit labilities, current tax habihties and other credrtors

Shareholders’ Equity

Total shareholders’ equity increased £3 9bn to £62 6bn {2009 £58 7bn)
Retamed eamings increased £4 4bn to £41 5bn (2009 £371bn) Profit
attnbutable to the equity holders of the Parent of £4 2bn and proceeds
from capital iInjection by Barclays PLC were partially offset by dividends
paid to shareholders of £0 2bn

Significant movements in other reserves compnse the redemption of

£0 5bn reserve capital instruments, avalable for sale reserve moverment of
£1 3bn, pnmanly due to the decrease in the farr value of the Croup's
irvestment in BlackRock Inc of £0 8bn, partially offset by increases in the
fair value of cther available for sale assets Currency transtation reserve
movement of £0 8bn s largely due to the apprectation in the Rand and US
Dollar, offset by the depreciation in the Euro

Non-controlling interests increased £0 7bn to £3 5bn (2009 £2 8bn) The
mcrease pnmanly reflects profit for the year attnbutable to non-controfiing
mnterests of £0 4bn and cumrency translation differences of £0 4bn, offset by
distnbutions of £0 2bn

Adjusted Gross Leverage
Barclays continues to operate within the lirmits and targets for balance
sheet usage as part of its balance sheet management activities !

The adjusted gross leverage was 20x as at 31 st December 2010

{2003 19x) principally as a result of a £4 0bn increase in Tier 1 Capital to |
£53 7bn offset by the impact of a £873bn increase in adpsted total

tangible assets At month ends during 2010 the ratio moved in a range

from 20x to 24x, with fluctuations arising as a result of normal trading

actvities, pnimanly due to Increases in reverse repurchase trading and

changes in holdings of trading portiolio assets

The ratio of total assets to total shareholders equity was 24x as at 31st
Decemnber 2010 (2009 24x) The ratio moved within a month end range
of 24x to 29x, driven by trading activity fluctuations noted above, as well
as changes in gross nterest rate denvatives and settiement balances

The Basel Commttee of Banking Supervisors (BCBS) issuied final
guidelines for ‘Basel Il a global regulatory framework for more resilient
banks and banking systems’ in December 2010 The guidelines nclude a
proposed leverage metnc, to be implermented by national superasors in
parallel run from 1st January 2013 (rmigrating to a Pillar 1 measure by
2018) Based on our mterpretation of the current BCBS proposals the
Croup's Basel it leverage ratio as at 31st December 2010 wouid be within
the proposed limit of 33x
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Financial review

Balance sheet commentary continued

Capital Management

At 31st December 2010 on a Basel li basis, the Group’s Core Tier 1 ratio

was 10 9% (2009 101%) and the Tier 1 ratio was 13 5% (2009 13 0%)
representing a strengthening of our capital ratios ahead of the effects of
expected regulatory capital changes

Risk weighted assets increased 4% from £383bn to £398bn n 2010 Year
on year there was a £22bn reduction i underlying nsk weighted assets
(predommantly in Barclays Capital) as a result of capital management
efficiencies and reduced levels of risk and inverttory This was offset by
both methodology and model changes, which increased nisk weighted
assets by approximately £28bn Foreign exchange and other movements
accounted for a further increase of £9bn

The Basel Commuttee of Banking Supervisors 1ssued finai Baset lit
gurdelines in December 2010 and January 2011 The new standards
wnctude changes to risk werghts applied to our assets and to the defininon
of capital resources and are applicable from 1st January 2013 with some
transitional rufes to 2018 The Basel Ill guidelines have yet to be
imptemented into European and UK law and therefore remain subject to
refinement and change Recognising the new rules are not complete
based on our current assessment of the guidelines, we expect that we will
continue to have a strong capital position post implementation

Liquidity

The liquidity pool held by the Group increased £27bn to £154bn at 31st
December 2010 {2009 £127bn) of which £140bn was in FSA-el:gible poo!
assets

The Basel lll guidelines propose two new hquidity metncs the Liquidity
Coverage Ratio, which measures short term liquidity stress and 15 broadly
consistent with the FSA framework, and the Net Stable Funding Ratio
which measures the stability of long term structural funding Applying the
metrics to the Croup balance sheet as at 31st December 2010, the
LigLndity Coverage Ratio was estimated at 80% and the Net Stable
Funding Ratio was estimated at 94%

The Croup continues to attract deposits In unsecured money markets and
to rarse additonal secured and unsecured term funding in a variety of
markets As at 31st December 2009, the Group had £15bn of publicly
ssued term debt matunng dunng 2010 The corresponding figure for 2011
s £25bn Dunng 2010 the Group ssued approximately £35bn of term
funding, which refinanced the 2010 requirement compnsing both
matunues and early repayments, as well as pre-financed some of the 2011
and 2012 matunties Additional term funding raised m 2017 walf support
balance sheet growth, further extension of hability maturities and
strengthening of our lquidity position
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Financial review
Analysis of results by business

Business performance

Global Retail Banking

Global Retail Banking {GRB) performance exhibited encouraging signs of
growing momentum against a challenging backdrop Overall profit before
taxwas £1 829m (2009 £1 821 m) with strong profit growth in UK Retail
Banking and Barclays Afnca, goed growth in Barclaycard and a loss in
Western Europe Retall Barking Total GRB income increased 1% to
£10,507m (2008 £10,374m) reflecting business growth, increased net
interest margins in Barclaycard and Barclays Afnica, a stable margin in UK
Retatl Banking and a lower margin in Western Europe Retad Barking Risk
appetite rernained consistent with iImproved collections and better
economic conditions leading to lower impairment which drove an
improved risk adjusted net interest margin Operating expenses increased
10% to £6,020m (2009 £5,430m) primanily due to higher pension costs
the impact of acquistions and higher regulatory-related costs Overall GRB
return on average nsk weighted assets wnproved to 1 7% (2009 1 5%)
and GRBs loan to deposit ratio improved to 140% {2009 144%) The
performance of the businesses within GRB 1s surnmarised below

UK Retail Banking

UK Retail Banking {(UKRB) profit before tax increased 39% to £989m
{2009 £710m), including a £100m gain on the acquisition of Standard Life
Bank with good income growth and lower impairment charges more than
offsetting an increase n operatng expenses Income increased 6% to
£4,518m (2009 £4,276m) Impairment charges decreased 21% to £81Sm
(2009 £1,031m), reflecting good nsk management and tmproving
economic conditions As a result, net income grew 14% to £3,699m (2009
£3,245m) Operating expenses increased 11% to £2,809m (2009
£2,538m), reflecting hugher pension costs, the impact of the acquisition of
Standard Life Bank and increased regulatory-related costs Excluding these
iterns, operating expenses were In line with prior year

Barclaycard

Barclaycard profit before tax ncreased 3% to £791m (2009 £727m)
largely as a result of lower imparment charges lncome was £4,024m
{2009 £4,041 m) with the impact of requlation offset by business growth
Impairment charges reduced 6% to £1,688m (2009 £1,798m) as a result
of focused nsk management and improving econormuc conditions
Delinguency trends were lower in all major areas of the Barclaycard
business Operating expenses increased 3% to £1,570m (2008 £3,527m)

Western Eurcpe Retail Banking

Western Europe Retail Banking incurred a loss before tax of £139m (2009
profit of £280m} The detenoration was driven by the challenging
economic environment, continued nvestment in the franchise and £157m
of profit on disposal recognised in 2009 Income fell 12% to £1 164m
(2009 £1,318m) pnncipally due to margin compression and the deciine in
the average value of the Eurg against Sterling, partially offset by higher fees
and commussions and the growth in credu cards Impairment charges
improved by 7% to £314m (2009 £338m)} Operating expenses increased
16% to £1,033m (2009 £887m) mainly due to continued svestment in
developing the franchase In Portugal and Italy, notably the expansion of the
credit card businesses in these countres

Barclays Africa

Barclays Africa profit before tax increased 81% to £188m (2009 £104m)
2010 included a one-off gain of £77m from the sale of the custody
business to Standard Chartered Bank which was partially offset by £40m
of restructunng costs 2009 included a one-off gain of £24m from the sale
of shares in Barclays Bank of BotswanaUmited Income grew 8% to
£801m (2009 £73%m) as a result of mproved net interest margins and
income from treasury management. tmpairment charges decreased 32%
to £82m (2009 £121m) as a result of a better economic ermvironment and
improved collections Operating expenses increased 13% to £608m (2009
£538m) reflecting £40m of restructunng costs, iInvestrment 11
infrastructure and an increase in staff-related costs

Absa

Absa Group Limited reported profit before tax of R11,851m (2009
RS,842m), an Increase of 20% In Barclays segmental reporting the results
of the Absa credit card business are included in Barclaycard, the
investment banking aperatiens in Bardays Capital and wealth operations in
Barclays Wealth The other operations of Absa Group Limuted are reported
in the Absa segment

Absa profit before tax increased 17% to £616m (2009 £528m), drven by
the appreciation in the average value of the Rand against Stering The
impact of exchange rate movernents also impacted income, which
increased 14%, operatmg expenses which increased 25% and
irpairment charges, which decreased 15% Imparrment charges in Rand
terms improved 26% reflecting an improvernent in economic condrtions

Barclays Capital

Barclays Capital profit before tax increased to £4,780m (2009 £2,464m)
Excluding own credit profit before tax grew 2% to £4.389m (2009
£4284m) Total income increased 17% to £13 600m (2009 £11,625m)
Thus reflected a signrficant reduction in losses taken through income
relating to credit market exposures which fell to £124m (2009 £4.417m)
and a gain relating to own credit of £391m (2009 loss of £1 820m)
Top-line income, which excludes these tems, was £13,333m, down 25%
on the very strong prior year performance Fixed income, Currency and
Commeodites {(FICC} top-line income of £8,811m declined 35%, reflecting
{ower contributions from Rates and Commodities Equities and Pnme
Services top-line income of £2,040m declined 6%, as growth in cash
equrties and equity financing was mare than offset by subdued market
activity in European equity denvatives Investrment Banking top-line mcome
of £2,243m increased 3%

Top-line income in the fourth quarter of 2010 was £3,380m, up 20% on
the third quarter of 2010 reflecting higher actmty levels and contributions
from Equities and Pnme Services up 74% and Investment Banking up
45% FICC top-ine income was broadly in line with the pnor quarter

Impairment charges, including impairment of £532m relating to the
Protum loan which follows a reassessment of the expetted realisation
period 1mproved significantly to £543m (2009 £2,591m) resulting ina
45% increase In net income to £13,057m Operating expenses increased
26% which fargely reflected the continuing investrent in our sales,
onigination, trading and research activities, increased charges relabing to
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Financial review

Analysis of results by business continued

prior year deferrals and restructuning costs Excluding the impact of own
credit, the cost net income ratio was 65% (2009 61%) and compensation
costs represented 43% of mcome (2009 33%)

Barclays Corporate

Barclays Corporate recorded a loss before tax of £631m (2009 profit of
£157m) An improvement in the results of the profitable UK & Ireland
business was more than offset by increased losses in New Markets and
Continental Europe notably Spain Total incorne decreased 7% to
£2,.974m (2005 £3181), reflecting lower treasury management income
and reduced nsk appetite outside the UK. Impairment charges increased
£138m to £1,636m wath significant improvernents in UK & reland and
New Markets more than offset by an increase of £630m in Spain to £898m
due to depressed market conditions in the property and construction
secior Operating expenses increased to £1,907m, principally reflecting the
write down of the £243m of goodwill relating to Barclays Bank Russia and
associated restructunng costs of £25m, as well as previously announced
restructuring costs of £34m in other geographies within New Markets
{predomunantiy relating to Indonesia)

Barclays Wealth

Barclays Wealth profit before tax increased 14% to £163m (2009 £143m)
as very strong growth in income was partially offset by costs of the
strategic investment in growing the business [ncome increased 18% to
£1,560m pnncipally from strong growth in the High Net Worth businesses
and higher attnbutable net interest income from the revised internal funds
pricing mechanism Impairment charges reduced slightly to £48m (2009
£51m) Operating expenses increased 19% to £1,349m (2009 £1,129m),

principally due to the start of Barclays Wealth's strategic investment
programme which accounted for £112m of additional costs, as well as the
impact of growth in High Net Worth business revenues on staff and
Infrastructure costs

Investment Management

investment Management profit before tax of £67m (2009 £22m)
pnncipally reflected dwvidend income from the 19 9% helding in BlackRock,
Inc Total assets decreased to £4 6bn (2009 £54bn) reflecting the farr
value of the 37567m shares held in BlackRock Inc

Head Office Functions and Other Operations

Head Office Functions and Other Operations lass before tax increased by
£169m to £745m (2009 loss of £576m) The results for 2009 reflected a
net gain on debt buy-backs of £1 164m while 2010 benefited from a
significant decrease in the costs of the central funding actmty as money
market dislocations eased and a reclassification of profit from the currency
translation reserve to the Income statement
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Risk management
Risk factors

Risk Factors

The following information describes the nsk factors which the

Group beleves could cause 1ts future results to differ matenally from
expectations However other factors could also adversely affect the
Groups results and so the factors discussed m this report should not be
considered to be a complete set of all potential risks and uncertamties

The Groups approach to dentifying, assessing, managing and reparting
nsks 1s formalised in its Pnncipal Rsks framework and supporting
processes Definitions of the thirteen Principal Risks are provided in the
table below The nsk categories relevant to operational risk are  People,
Legal, Regulatory Operations, Financial Cnime, Technology, Financial
Reporting and Taxation This summary also inctudes discussions of the
impact of business conditions and the general economy and regulatory
changes which can impact risk factors and so mnfluence the Group's
results The Pnncipal Risks described below can potertially impact the
Group’s reputation and brand

Business conditions and general econony

Barclays operates a universal banking business model and its services
range from current accounts for personal customers to inflation-rsk
hedging for governments and institutions The Group also has significant
activities in a large number of countries Consequently there are many
ways In which changes in business conditions and the general econonny
can adversely impact profitability, whether at the Jevel of the Croup, the
indmvdual business units or speaific courtrnes of operation

The Groups stress testing framewark helps it to understand the impact of
changes in business conditions and the general econory, as well as the
sensitivity of its business goals to such changes and the scope of
management actions to mitigate their impact.

The general recovery in the global economy resulted in an improvement in
credit conditions m our main markets during 2010 In the UK the economy
recovered shightly dunng 2010 reflecting the lower than expected growth in
unemployment rates, the sustained low interest rate emaronment and
mederate GDP growth However a slowdown in growth was evident in the
fourth quarter which 1s hikely to lead to uncertainty in the near term In
addition, persistent unemployment and inflation, fiscal tightening, the
possibility of weakening house prices, and possible nsing oil pnces may
have an adverse impact an the strength of the recovery which could
increase the nsk that a ugher proportion of the Group’s customers and
counterparties may be unable to meet their obligations Economic credit
condittons have also continued to show signs of Improvement In many
other key geographies afthough in Spamn the housing sector remains
depressed which led to sigrificantly increased impairment in our Spam
wholesale portfoles in 2010 Unemployment rates rermain hugh in the US

The business condrtions facing the Group in 2011 are subject to significant
uncertainties, most notably

— the extent and sustainabiity of economig recovery particularly in the UK,

US, Spain and South Afnca,

- the dynamics of unemployment particularly in the UK, US, Spain and
South Afnica and the impact on delinquency and charge-off rates,

— the speed and extent of possible nses in interest rates m the UK, US,
Seuth Afnca and the Eurozone

— the possibility of anty further falls inresidential property pnces m the UK,
South Afnca and Western Europe

= the impact of potentially deteriorating sovereign credit quality,

— the potental for single name losses in different sectors and geographies
where credit positions are sensitive to econarmc downturn,

— the potential impact of increasing inflation en economic growth and
corparate profitabiiity,

— possible deteroration in our remaining credit market exposures,
including commercial real estate, leveraged finance and a loan to
Protium Finance LP {Protium).

— changes in the value of Sterling relative to other currencies, which could
increase sk weighted assets and therefore raise the capital
requirernents of the Group,

— continued turmoil in the Middle East and North Africa region could
result i loss of business in the affected countnes, increased ol pnces,
increased volatility and nsk aversion to this regron, and

- the hquidity and volatiity of capstal markets and investors appetite for
nsk, which could lead to a decline in the iIncome that the Group receves
from fees and comimissions

Regulatory changes

2010 has seen significant regulatory change This has been and remains
the subject of close management attention Where regulatory change has
strategic implications this will tend to affect more than one Principal Risk
factor Such issues are dealt with on a Group wide basis by cross-
disoplinary teamms workmg under an accountable executive reporting to
senior management Issues dealt with in this manner in 2010 included

- The Independent Commission on Banking (ICB} The ICB has been
charged by the UK Covernment with reviewing the UK banking system
Its findings are expected by September 2011 Although the ICB has yet
to make recommendations, and 1t 1s not possible to predict what the
Covernment’s respanse to any recommendations that are made will be
there 15 a possibility that the ICB could recommend change to the
structure of UK banks which may require Barclays to make major
changes 1o Its structure and business

- Recovery and Resolution Plans there has been a strong regulatory focus
on resolvabiiity 1n 2010 both from UK and international regulators The
Group has been engaged, and continues to be engaged, with the
authonties on taking forward recovery planning and identifying
information that would be required in the event of a resolution

- The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reforrnand Consumer Protection Act
{DFA) the DFA will have an impact on the Group and its business The
full scale of this impact remains undear as many of the provisions of the
Act reguire rules to be made to give them effect and this process is sill
under way Barclays has taken a centralised approach to monitoning this
process and to ensuning compliance with the rules that are developed
as aresult
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'Risk management
Risk factors continued

A summary of the Group's 13 principat risks is as follows

Principal Risk Factor Principal Risk Management

1 Wholesale Credit Risk
and
2 Retail Credst Risk

Credit Risk 15 the nsk of the The Board and management have established a
Croup suffering financial loss f  number of key committees to review credit nsk
any of its customers, clentsor ~ managernent, approve overafl Croup credit policy
market counterparties fails to and resolve all significant credt policy 1ssues

fulfil thew contractual These comprise the Board Risk Committee, the

obligations to the Group Risk Oversight Commuttee, the Wholesale Credit
Risk Management Committee and the Retall Credit

This can also arise when an Risk Management Committee

entity’s credit rating is

downgraded, leading to a fall Barclays constantly reviews its concentration in a

in the value of Barclays number of areas including, for example, portfolio

Investment in 1ts 1ssued segments, geography maturity industry and

financal instruments Investrent grade

Diversificatson is achieved through setting
maximum exposure guilelines to indwidual
counterparties sectors and countries, with
excesses reported to the Risk Oversight
Committee and the Board Risk Committee
For further mformation, see page 21

Key Spectfic Risks and Mitigation

Specific areas and scenarios where credit nsk could lead to
higher impaiment charges m future years include

Credit Market Exposures

Barclays Capital holds certain exposures to credit markets
that became lliquid dunng 2007 These exposures pnmanly
relate to commercial real estate, leveraged hnance and a
loan to Protium The Group actively managed down some
of these exposures in 2010 For further informatton, see
pages 43 to 45

Sovereign Risk

EU deficits approached very high levels during 2010
leading to a loss of rmarket confidence in certan countries
to which the Group s exposed The Group has put certam
countnes on watch list status with detaled monthly
reporting to the Whotesale Credit Risk Management
Committee For further information, see page 46

Economic Uncertainty

Condrtions have continued to show signs of wmprovement

in many key markets, although the UK has expenenced a

slowdown i growth 1n the fourth quarter US

unempleyment rates remain high and the Spanish housing

sector continues to be depressed, impacting our wholesale

and retall ¢redit nsk exposures :

In particular, n Spain, the Group has expenenced elevated
imparrment across its operations, following a marked
reduction in construction actrty and shrinking consumer
spending The Group has reduced its credst nsk appetite to
the most severely affected segments of the economy In
particular, new lending to the property and construction
sector ceased and workout team resources have been
increased sigruficantly
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Prncipal Risk Factor Principal Risk Management Key Specific Risks and Mitigation 1
3 Market Resk ‘
Market Risk 1s the nsk that the  The Board approves market nsk appetrte for Traded Market Risk Exposures :

Croups earnings of capital, or
its abiity to meet business
abjectives, will be adversely
affected by changes in the
level or volatility of market
rates or pnces such as interest
rates credit spreads,
commodity prices, equity
prices and foreign exchange
rates The Group 1s exposed to
market risk through traded
market nsk non-traded interest
rate risk and the pensien fund

trading and non-trading activities, with limits set
within this context by the Group Market Risk
Divector

The head of each business market sk team 1s
responsible for implementing the Barclays Market
Risk Control Framework which sets out how
market nsk should be identrfied, measured,
controlled, reported and reviewed Qversight and
challenge 1s provided by business commuittees,
Group committees and the central Group market
nsk team

Non-traded interest rate nsk 1s hedged with the
external market by a business Treasury operation
or Group Treasury For further information, see
pages 47 to 52

While the Group 1s exposed to continued market volatility,
Barctays Caputal's trading activities are prncipally a
consequence of supparting customer activity

Primary stress testing applies stress moves to each of the
major asset classes Most asset class stress imits were, at
some point dunng 2010, near to therr it There was one
instance of an excess to hmit in relation to equity nsk in
March 2010 This was appropriately escalated and
remediated promptly

Barclays Capital's 2010 market nisk exposure, as measured
by average total DVaR, decreased to £53m (2009 £77m)
for further information, see pages 47 to 49

Non-traded Interest Rate Risk

The Group 15 exposed to three main types of non-traded
interest rate risk

- fixed rate loans and deposits that are not hedged or
matched,

— structural nsk due to vanability of earmngs on structural
product and equity balances which have no contractual
matunty and an interest rate which does not move in ine
with the base rate, and

— mmargin compression

Fixed rate loan sk 1s mitigated by hedging the sk with the
external market either via Group Treasury, or a business
treasury operation Structural nsk and margin compression
are hedged by equity and structural hedges managed by
Croup Treasury The matunities of these hedges were
extended dunng 2010

Due to economic concems In the thid quarter gilis
purchased as part of the equity structural hedge extension
were sold The duration extension process was resumed
towards the end of 2610 and is expected to be completed by
the end of 2011 For further mformation see pages 47 to 52

Pension Fund Risk
Barclays could be required or might choose to make extra

contnbutons to the pension fund Financial details of the
pension fund are in Note 27
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Risk management
Risk factors continued

Pnincipal Risk Factor
4 Capital Risk

Capital Risk is the nsk that the
Group has insufficent capital
resources to ensure the
financial holding company 1s
well capitalised relative to the
rmirnmum regulatory capitat
requirements set out by the
UK FSA and US Federal
Reserve, ensure locally
regulated subsidiaries can
meet thelr mirkmum
regulatory requirements,
support the Group's Risk
Appetite and economic capital
requirements, and support the
Group's credit rating

Principal Risk Management

Primary responsibility for managing Capital Risk
rests with the Group Treasury Comnuttee, which
has defined and implemented a Caprtal Risk
governance framework

The Committee momtors the Groups actual and
forecast capital positions on both a pre and post
stress basis Stress testing considers the impact to
capital resources and requirements as a result of
macroecenomic stresses The Commuittee also
considers major risks to the capital forecast such
as changes to the regulatory requirements

The Group has a number of requlated legal entities
within the UK and overseas Local management has
primary responsibility for ensunng these entities
cornply with therr local capital requirements

Where necessary, Injections of capital may be made
Such injections are appraved by Group Treasury
Committee

Key Specific Risks and Mitigation

Increasing Caprital Requirements

There have been a number of recent developments in
regulatory capital requirements which are bkely to have a
significant impact on the Group Most significantly, dunng
2010, the Capital Requirement Directives 2 and 3 and the
guidehnes from the Basel Commuttee for strengthening
rapital requirements (Basel lll) have been finalised

Aligned to this, markets and credit rating agencies now
expect equity capitai levels signficantly in excess of the
current regulatory minimurm

As a result, and in anticipation of the future requlatory
changes, the Group contmues to build its caprtal base and
actively manage 11s nsk weighted assets As at

31st December 2010, the Croup's Core Tier 1 Capital ratio
was 10 9% (2009 101%) For further information, see
page 53

5 Liquidity Risk

Liquichty Risk is the risk that
the Group Is unable to meet its
obligations as they fall due
resulting i an inability to
support normal business
activity failltng to meet hquidity
regulatory requirements, or
rating agency CoNCcerns

The Group maintains a substantial hquidity buffer
cormpnsed of deposits with central banks and
investments in highly iquid securities or deposits

Stress reporting for a number of hguidity scenarios
1s runon a daily basis These tests measure the
survival periods under Barclays defined stress
scenanos Semilar stresses ate run for key entities
within the Group as well as at the Group level

Since June 2010 the Group has alse reported its
Iquidety position against backstop Indvidual
Liquidity Guidance provided by the FSA
Calibration of the Groups lquidity framework
anticipated final FSA rules and is therefore broadly
consistent with current FSA standards

Darly reporting monitors a number of indicators or
stress as weill as daily cash actvity

Inabslity To Meet Obligations As They Fall Due, At
Reaschable Cost

As a result of sudden, large and potentially protracted
ncreases In cash outflows the cash resources of the group
could be severely depleted These outflows could be
pncipally through custorner withdrawals wholesale
counterparties removing financing, ratings downgrades or
loan drawdowns This could result in

- lmited ability to support client lending, trading activities
and investments,

~ forced reduction in balance sheet and sales of assets

- nabiity to fulfil tending obligations, and

- regulatory breaches under the liquidity standards
introduced by the FSA on 15t December 2009

These outflows could be the result of general market
dislocations or specific concems about Barclays For further
information, see pages 54 to 62




Barclays Bank PLC Annual Report 2010

www barclays com/annualreport10 15

Principal Risk Factor
6. Peopie Risk

People Risk anses from failures
of the Group to manage 1ts key
nsks as an employer, Including
lack of appropnate people
resource, failure to manage
performance and reward,
unauthorised or Inappropriate

Pnncipal Risk Management

People Risk s mitigated through the operation of
the People Risk Framework (PRF) The PRF
consists of Group wide policies which mandate the
minimum controls that all businesses globally need
t0 operate to mitigate thewr people risks and covers
the following areas

Key Specific Risks and Mitigation

Compensation and People Retention Risk

Dunng 2010, external regulatory developments i relaton
to remuneration cortinued to impact the People Principal
Risk

On 17th December 2010, the FSA published its finat

employee actwity and failureto - Recruitment, Remuneration code following the July 2010 Consultation
comply with employment ~ Paper The code was updated in order to implemnert the
refated requirements Pre-employment screening, remuneration rules required by the Capital Requirements
- Employment agreernents, Directive (CRD 3} and the Financial Service Act 2010 The
_ cade applies to remuneration paid from 1st January 2011,
Performance management, including remuneration inrespect of 2010 performance
- Reward,
Barclays remuneration approach has been reviewed in
- Discipine, Capabiity and Cnevance, detail and enhancements made as appropniate to ensure
~ Health and Safety, continued compliance with the FSA Code
— Bat management, During 2010, Barclays developed 2 Group wide policy
- Employee feedback, and formabsing the role of nsk functions in remuneration
activittes and ensurning regulatory requirements are fulfilled
- ;i:lr;:t%:ormer employees of the statutory An independent review of Barclays approach was
conducted on behalf of the Board Risk Cornmittee by a third
The review concluded Barclays approach 1s market
Conformance with the pelicies 1s monitored by the party
HR Risk Commuttee through regular conformance leading and satisfies reguiatory requirements
reviews and quarterly key indicators Further
oversight of the management of Pegple Risk 15
provided by the Board Remuneration Cormmittee
and the Group Operating Comrmuittee
7 Legal Risk

The Group is subject to a
comprehensive range of legal
obligations in all countries in
which it operates As a result,
the Group 1s exposed to many
forms of legal nsk which may
arise tn a number

of ways

~ Business may not be
conducted in accordance
wth applicable laws around
the world

- Contractual obligations may
either not be enforceable as
intended or may be
enforced in an adverse way

~ Intellectual property may
not be adequately
protected

— Liabity for damages may
be incurred to third parties
hammed by the conduct of
its business

Legal Risk s owned and managed by the Legal
Function both at a Group levet and by the business
urit legal teams

The General Counsel for each business unit 1s
responsible for management and reporting of
Legal Risk  The adequacy and effectiveness of the
controls operated in the business units 1s overseen
by the Group Legal Executive Commuttee

Specific nsks relating to Legal Risk are reported on
a quarterly basis to the Executve Committee and
the Board

Key Legal Risks to which the Group was exposed during
2010 have included

— Letigation in relation to Lehrman Brothers Holdings Inc

- Letigation in relation to Amencan Depository Shares

- Developments in relation to Payment Protection
Insurance {see Regulatary Risk below}

- Compliance with US economic sanctions
{see Regulatory nsk}

Further details of these matters and other Legal Risks are
set out in the Legal Proceedings Note {see page 117)
and the Competition and Regulatory Matters Note {see
page 118)
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Risk management
Risk factors continued

Principal Risk Factor
8 Regulatory Risk

Regulatory Risk arises from a
fallure or inability to comply
fully with the laws, regulations
or codes applicable specifically
to the financial services
industry Non-compliance
could lead to fines, public
reprimands, damage to
reputation ncreased
prudential requirements,
enforced suspension of
operations or in extreme
cases withdrawal of
authonsations to operate

Principal Risk Managesment

Regulatory Risk 1s owned and managed by the
Compliance Function Business Unit compliance
functions morutor and control compliance nsks,
applying a range of Compliance policies under the
co-ordination and oversight of Croup Compliance
The pnmary focus 15 on adherence to the
requiatory framework currently in place

Specific reports on regulatory compliance are
prepared on a regular basis for the Group
Operatng Committee the Group Covernance and
Control Commuttee and the Board Audit
Committee

Compliance nisk and control 1ssues are atso
included in quarterly reporting by the Legal and
Complhance functions to the Executive Committee
and the Board

Not all nsks that might be considered to be
regulatory 1 origin falt under the Regulatory
Prncipal Risk Most notably, prudential regulatory
risks are managed and ritigated in the manner
outlined in the sections on Wholesale and Retall
Credit Risk, Market Risk, Operational Risk Capital
Risk and Liquidity Risk

Key Specific Risks and Mitigation

Regulatory Change

The regulatory response to the financial cnsis has led 1o
very substantial regulatory change in the UK, €U and US
and in the other countnes in which the Group operates It
has also led to a change in the style of supervisionin a
number of temitones with a more assertive approach being
demonstrated by the authonties

Anti-bribery and Corruption

Among other things, the Bribery Act 2010 which applies to
UK companies worldwide has created an offence of failure
by a commercial organisation to prevent a bnbe being paid
onits behalf However, it will be a defence if the organisation
has adequate procedures in place to prevent bribery In
anticipation of the entry mto force of the Bnbery Act later in
2011 the Croup has been enhancing its framework of
controls to comply with the provisions of the Act

Payment Protection Insurance (PPI)

PPl has been under scrutmy by the UK competition
authonties and financial services requlators The UK
Competition Comnmisston {CC) has undertaken an in-depth
enquiry into the PPI market which has resulted in the CC
introducing a number of remedies including a prohibition
on sale of PPl at the point of sale in addition a judicial
review has been launched regarding the treatment of PPl
complaints by the FSA and Financial Ombudsman Services

US Economic Sanctions

As announced on 18th August 2010 Barclays reached
settlements with the US Authorities in refation to the
investigation by those agencies into compliance with US
sanctions and US dollar payrment practices

Inaddition, an Order to Cease and Desist has been issued
upon consent by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York and
the New York State Banking Department. Barclays has
taken significant steps to enhance further its complance
pregrammes including the further developrment and
implementation of its Sanctions Policy, substantial
investment i advanced payment and customer screening
technology, and the delivery of mandatory sanctions
traning for more than 100,000 staff 2around the world For
further information see pages 63-65 and 118

9, Operations Risk

Operations Risk has a broad
scope and, for that reason, it1s
defined at a more granular
level The nisks are

— Transaction operations,

— New product developrment,
— Premises,

External suppliers,

— Payments process, and

— Information, data quality
and records management

These nsks are managed by Business Units in
accordance with control requirernents articulated
via mandated Group Policies and/or Risk Control
Frarmeworks The adequacy and effectiveness of
the controls operated in the Business Units 1s
overseen by the Group Principal Risk Owner teams
in the Group Centre wia reguiar management
information, conformange reviews and quarterly
Risk Review meetings (attended by Business Unit
representatives) The Group Operating Committee
15 responsible for oversight of these risks

Buring 2010 there were enhancements to the
management of external suppliers and transaction
operations rsks
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Principal Risk Factor
10 financial Cnime Risk

Financial Cnme Risk s the risk
that the Group suffers losses
as a result of intemal and
external fraud or intertional
damage loss or harmto
people, prermses or moveable
assets

Principal Risk Management

The Group Financial Cnme Team, Fraud Oversight
Commuttee and Secunty Risk Management
Commuttee provide oversight of the
implementation of the Fraud Risk Control
Framework and the Group Secunty Risk Control
Framework Oversight is achweved via conformance
reviews and other review activity undertaken by
Group Financial Cnre and within business units

Monthly reports on fraud losses across the Group
are produced for the Fraud Oversight Committee
which monitors these events and considers the
actions to be taken on a case by case basis Where
relevant, the Fraud Oversight Cormmittee takes
actions to drive remediation of the root cause of
such events

Quarterly Financial Cnme reports are submitted to
the Group Risk Oversight Committee and Board
Risk Commuttee

Key Specific Risks and Mitigation

As a major financial Institution, Barclays continues to be a
target for financial cnme The group has frameworis and
systems in place to enable it to respond to threats to both
the orgamisation and s customers as they emerge

11 Technology Risk

Technology Risk includes the
non-avadability of IT systems
inadeguate design and testing
of new and changed IT
solutions and madequate IT
systern securnty Data privacy
1ssues are coverad under
Regulatory Risk and external
suppler 1ssues relating to
technology are covered under
Operations Risk

Technology 1s a key business enabler and requires
an appropriate level of control to ensure that the
most significant technology nsks are effectively
managed Technology Risk s managed through a
farmal nsk governance framework A set of Key
Risk Indicators (KRis), consistent across Business
Units, 1s periodically collated and reviewed by
management Each KRI has a specific target state,
defining the Group's attitude to nsk Any areas
falling short of thus standard are highlighted to
management for action

Regular technology nsk reporting 1s provided to the
Group Operating Committee, the Governance and
Control Cornmittee and the Board Audit
Commuttee

Swmular to many large organsations, Bardlays 1s exposed to

the nsk that systerns may not be continuatly available This
nsk is monitored closely and enhancements to certain key

systems are being undertaken
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Risk management
Risk factors continued

Principal Risk Factor
12 Financial Reporting Risk

Financial Reporting Risk arises
from a faillure or inability to
comply fully with the faws,
regulations or codes in relation
to the disclosure of financral
information Non-comphance
couild lead to fines, public
repnimiands, damage to
reputanon, enferced
suspension of operations or, in
extreme cases, withdrawal of
authonsations to operate

Principal Risk Management

Croup wide requirernents and any matenal
external requirements are set out in the Financal
Repaorting Risk Controd Framework

Dunng 2010 a review of the Financral Reporting
Risk was undertaken, resulting in a broadering of
1ts scope The Group monitonng process was also
strengthened to provide the Group Financiat
Controller with a more effective oversight

All business units and Group centre functions are
required to comply with the Risk Control
Framework requirements and retain evidence to
support this accordingly Cormphance with the
Financral Reporting Risk policies 1s reported at
Croup level through core key indicators on at least
a quarterly basis Group oversight 1s undertaken via
conformance review, other ongoing moritonng
activities and quarterly review meetings are held
between the Group Financial Controlter and
Business Unit Finance Directaors to review and
challenge the Business Unit Financial Reporting
Risk status and assessment

Quarterly Financial Reporting Risk reports are
subrmitted to the Group Operating Commuttee for
oversight andd monitonng Additionally, specific
reports are submitied to the Group Governance &
Control Cornrruttee and to the Board Audit
Commuittee around the Group compliance with
Sarbanes Oxley requirements

Key Specific Risks and Mitigation

Changes in accounting standards

As set out in Future Accounting Developments on page 91,
the Intemational Accounting Standards Board 15
undertaking a significant programme of revision 1o IFRS
which it ams to complete by 30th june 2011 The final form
of IFRS requiremenits, the time penod over which new
regquirements will need to be applied and the impact on the
results and financial posttions 1s net yet known  The Group
s taking steps to ensure that it 1s able to appropriately
respond to the changes as they emerge however the
situatton 15 evolving rapdly

Increased scrutiny

Following the financial crisis the financial reporting of
banks has been subject to greater scrutiny by regulators
This has inchuded consideration of accounting policies
accounting for particular transactions and financial
staternent disclosures

For Barclays this has included the accounting treatment
of Protium Finance LP Further details are prowided on
page 44

The Group continues to mantain an effective system of
ntermnal control over financal reperting and to enhance its
disclosures In response to feedback receved and the Bntish
Bankers Association (BBA) Disclosure Code Further details
onnternal control over financial reporting can be found on
page 73 and on the BBA code and improvernents to Annual
Report disclosures on page 71
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Principal Risk Factor
13 Taxation Risk

Tax Risk 1s the nisk that the
Group suffers losses
associated with changes in tax
law or in the interpretation of
tax law 1t also includes the nsk
of failure to comply with
procedures required by tax
authorties Failure to manage
tax nsks could lead to an
addtional tax charge It could
also lead to reputational
damage or a financial penalty
for fadure to comply with
required tax procedures or
other aspects of tax law

Principal Risk Management

The Group's strategy 15 to maximise returns for
shareholders whilst complying with relevant tax
laws, disclosure requirements and regulations
under an appropnate nsk control framework

The Group takes a responsible and transparent
approach to the management and control of its
tax affairs and related tax nsk, specifically tax nsks
are assessed as part of the Group s formal
govemnance processes and are reviewed by the
Executive Committee, Group Finance Director and
the Board Risk Commuttee The tax chargeis
reviewed by the Board Audit Comrmittee Barclays
has adopted the Code of Practice for Taxation of
Banks {The Code) and has corfirmed to HMRC
that it will have regard to the spint of the law and
the intent of Parkament in managing its tax affars

The Group employs tigh-quality tax professionals
and takes appropnate advice from reputable
professional firms Effective, well-documented and
controlled processes are in place to ensure
comphance with tax disclosure and filing
obhgations

Where disputes arise with tax authonties with
regard to the interpretation and application of tax
law, the Group Is commuitted to addressing the
matter promptly and resciving the matter with the
tax authonty in an open and constructive manner

Key Spectfic Risks and Mitigation

During 2010 the Group settled open issues in a number of
tunsdictions, pncipally the UK and South Africa, including
agreernent of the UK bank payroll tax hiability with HMRC

Governance and controls have been put in place to ensure
compliance with the UK government's Code of Practice for
Taxation of Banks

The profit forecasts that support the Croup's deferred tax
assets, princpally n the UK, US and Spain, have been
subject to close scrutiny by management

The Group continues to monitor the potental impact of
propased taxes armed at banks such as the UK bank levy
(see also pages 93 to 95}
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Risk management
Financial risk management

All disclosures in this section (page 20) are unaudited unless otherwise indicated

Overview (audited)

There are no differences in the manner in which financial nisks are managed and measured between the Barclays Bank PLC Group and the Barclays PLC
Group Therefere, the explanations of the management, the control responsibilities and the measurement described in this section and the following
sections on credit risk, market nsk, capital and hquidity sk managerment are those for the Barclays PLC Group which includes the Barclays Bank PLC
Croup The amounts ncluded in these sections are those for Barclays Bank PLC

The Group 1s a major global financial services provider engaged in retall and commercial banking, credit cards investment banking wealth managernent
and nvestment management services Financial instruments are fundamental to the Group's business and managing financial nsks, especially credit
risk, 1s a fundamental part of its business activity

The Groups nsk management policies and processes are designed to identfy and analyse sk, to set appropnate nisk appetite, bmits and contrels and
to monutor the nsks and adherence to imits by means of reliable and up-to-date data Risk management policies, models and systems are regularly
reviewed to reflect changes to markets products and best market practice

Risk responsibilities (audited}
The Board approves nsk appetite and the Board Risk Commuttee {BRC) monttors the Groups nsk profile against this appetite

The Chief Risk Officer under delegated authonty from the Group Chief Executive and Group Finance Director, has responsibility for ensuring effective
nsk management and control

I

Business Heads are responsible for the identification and management of risk In their businesses,

Bustness risk teams, each under the management of a Business Risk Director, are responsible for assisting Business Heads in the identification and
management of therr business risk profiles for Implementing appropnate controls These nsk management teams also assist Group Risk in the
formulation of Group Risk policy and the implementation of it across the businesses,

— Within Group Risk, Risk-Type Heads and their tearns are responsible for establishing a nisk control framework and risk oversight, and

- Internal Audit 15 responsible for the independent review of nsk management and the control environment

Oversight of nsk management 1s exercised by the Croup Risk Oversight Commuttee which s chaired by the Chief Risk Officer under authonty delegated
by the Group Finance Director The Group Risk Oversight Committee oversees management of the Group's nsk profile exercised through the setting,
review and challenge of the size and constitution of the profile when viewed against the Croup nsk appetite

The Executive Committee monitors and manages nsk-adjusted performance of businesses and recerves a reqular update on forward nsk trends

The BRC reviews the Group nisk profile, approves the Group Control Framework and approves mirimum control requirements for pnncipal nsks

The Board Audit Committee (BAC) considers the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group Control Framework and receives quartery reports on control
1ssues of significance and half-yearly reports on impairment allowances and regulatory reports

Both BRC and BAC alsa receive reports dealing in more depth with specific 1ssues relevant at the time The proceedings of both Commuittees are reported
to the full Board The Board approves the averall Group risk appetite

The Group Risk Oversight Commuttee 1s chaired by the Chief Risk Officer and oversees the management of the Groups nsk profile and all of its significant
risks Oversight 1s exercised through the setting, review and challenge of the size and constituion of the profile when viewed against the Group'’s nsk
appetite It has delegated and apportioned responsibility for credrt nsk management to the Retall and Wholesale Credit Risk Management Commitiees

The main financial nsks affecting the Group are discussed on pages 21 to 62
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Risk management
Credit risk management

All disclosures in this section (pages 21 10 46) are unaudited unless otherwise indicated

Overview {(audited)
Credit nsk 1s the nisk of suffering financial loss should any of the Croup’s customers clients or market counterparties fal to fulfil their contractual
obligations to the Group

The credit risk that the Group faces arises mainfy from wholesale and retail loans and advances together with the counterparty credrt nsk ansing from
denvative contracts entered into with clents Other sources of credit nsk anse from trading activies including debt secunties, settlement balances with
market counterparties available for sale assets and reverse repurchase agreements

Losses ansing from exposures held for trading {dervatives, debt secunties) are accounted for as trading losses, rather than impairment charges, even
though the fall in vatue causing the loss may be attnbutable to credit detenoration

Maximum exposure to credit risk before colfateral held or other credst enhancements (audried)

The following tables present the maximum exposure at 315t December 2010 and 2009 to credit nsk of balance sheet and off-balance sheet financial
instrurments, before taking account of any collateral held or cther credit enhancements and after allowance for imparment and netting where
appropnate

For financial assets recognised on the balance sheet, the exposure to credit nsk equals their camying amount For financial guarantees granted, the
maximum exposure to credit risk 15 the maximurm amount that Barclays would have to pay if the guarantees were t6 be called upon For loan
commitments and other credit related commuitments that are irrevocable over the Iife of the respective faclities, the maximum exposure to credit nsk is
the full amount of the commutted facilites

Thus analysis and all subsequent analyses of credit risk include only financiat assets subject to credit nsk They exclude other financial assets, manly
equity securrties held in the trading portfolio or as avallable for sale assets as well as non-financial assets The nomina! value of off-balance sheet credit
related instruments 15 also shown, where appropnate

Fmancial assets designated at fair value held n respect of Inked habilities to custorners under mvestrment coniracts have not been included as the Group
is not exposed to credit nsk on these assets Credit losses in these portfolios, if any, would lead to a reduction in the linked habifities and result in no direct
foss to the Group

Whilst the Group’s maximum exposure to credit nsk 15 the carrying value of the assets or, in the case of off-balance sheet tems, the amount guaranteed,
committed, accepted or endorsed, in most cases the likely exposure 1s far less due to collateral, credit enhancements and other actions taken to mitigate
the Group’s exposure
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Risk management

Credit risk management continued

Maximum exposure to cred: nsk (audrted) Asset class
Debt
securities Reverse

Loans and and other repurchase Total

advances® bills®  Derivatrves®  agreements? Cther assets
As at 31st December 2010 £m £m £m £m £m £m
The Group
On-balance sheet.
Cash and balances at central banks - — — - 97,630 97,630
ltemns n the course of collecton from other banks - - - - 1,384 1,384
Trading portfolic assets
Debt securities - 139240 - - - 133,240
Traded loans 2,170 - - - - 2,170
Total trading portfolio assets 2,170 139,240 - - - 141410
Ftnancial assets designated at fair value
Loans and advances 22,352 - - - - 22352
Debt secuniies - 1,918 - - - 1,918
COther financial assets - - - 7,559 2,542 10,101
Total financial assets designated at fair value 22,352 1,918 - 7,559 2,542 34,371
Derwative financial instruments - ~ 420219 — — 420,319
Loans and advances to banks 37,799 - — — — 37,799
Loans and advances to customers
Home loans 168,055 - - - - 168,055
Credit card recevables 22,658 - - - - 22,658
Other personal lending 26,608 - - - - 26,608
Wholesale and corporate 200,618 - - - - 200618
Ftnance lease receivables 10,003 - - - - 10,003
Total loans and advances to customers 427,942 - - - — 427942
Reverse repurchase agreements and other similar secured lending - -~ - 205,772 - 205,772
Avatlable for sale debt securties - 59,629 -~ - — 59,629
Other assets — = - - 2,824 2,824
Total on-balance sheet 490,263 200,787 420319 213,331 104,380 1,429,080
Off-balance sheet.
Securities lending arrangements 27,672
Guarantees and letters of credst pledged as collateral security 13,783
Acceptances and endorsements 331
Documentary credits and other short-term trade related transactions 1,194
Standby facilities credit ines and other commitments 222,963
Total off-balance sheet 265,943
Total maximum exposure to credit nsk 1,695023

Notes

a Further analysis of lsans and advances 1s on pages 32 to 40

b Further anatysis of debt securities and other bills 1s on page 40

¢ Further znafysis of dermitives 1s on page 41

d Further analysis of reverse repurchase agreements 15 on page 42
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Maximurn exposure to credit risk {audited) Asset class
Debt
securities Reverse
Loans and and other repurchase Total
advantes bils  Dervatives  agreemems Other assels

As at 31st December 2010 £m £m £m £m £m £m
The Bank
On-balance sheet.
Cash and balances at central banks - - — - 92,686 92,686
ltems in the course of collection from other banks - - - - 1,268 1,268
Trading postfoho assets
Debt secunitres - 86,328 - - - 86,328
Traded loans 2,500 - - - - 2,500
Total trading portfolio assets 2,500 86,328 - - - 88,828
Financial assets designated at fair value
Loans and advances 25,093 - - - - 25093
Debt secunities - 783 - - - 783
Other financial assets - ~ - 2,489 805 3,294
Total financial assets designated at fair value 25,093 783 - 2,489 805 29,170
Dervative financial instruments - - 441,145 - - 441,145
Loans and advances to bartks 40,390 - - - - 40,390
Loans and advances to customers
Home loans 123,995 - - - - 123,995
Credit card recevables 12,184 - - - - 12,184
Other personal lending 14,230 - - - - 14,230
Wholesale and corporate 372,301 - - - — 372301
Finance legse recevables 226 - - - - 226
Total loans and advances to customers 522,936 — - - ~ 522936
Reverse repurchase agreements and other similar secured lending - - - 227343 - 227343
Available for sale debt securities - 45,076 - — - 45,076
Other agsets - - - o 1,054 1,054
Total on-balance sheet 590919 132,187 441,145 229,832 95813 1438989
Off-balance sheet.
Secuntes lending arrangements 27672
Guarantees and letters of credrt pledged as collateral secunty 11,823
Acceptances and endorsemnents 302
Documentary credits and other short-term trade related transactions 924
Standby facilities, credit hnes and other commitments 173,795
Total off-balance sheet 214,516
Total maximum exposure to credit nsk 1,704,412
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Risk management
Credit risk management continued

Maximum exposure to credi nsk {audited) Asset class
Debt
securibies Reverse

Loans and and ather repurchase Total

advances bills  Denvatives  pgreements Other assets
As at 31st December 2009 £m £m £m £m £m fm
The Group
On-balance sheet
Cash and balances at central banks - - - - 81,483 81,483
Items in the course of collection from other banks — — — — 1,593 1,593
Tradmg porifolio assets
Debt secunties - 126520 - - - 126520
Traded loans 2,962 - - - - 2962
Total trading portfofio assets 2962 126520 - - - 129482
Financial assets designated at fair value
Loans and advances 22390 - - - - 22,350
Debt secunties - 4,007 - - - 4,007
Other financral assets 557 - — 7,757 344 8,658
Total financial assets designated at fair value 22947 4007 - 7757 344 35055
Denvative financial instruments - — 416815 — - 416815
Loans and advances to banks 41,135 - - - -~ 41,135
Loans and advances to customers
Home leans 149099 - - - - 149099
Credit card recevables 21,889 - - - - 21,889
Cther personal lending 25,435 - - - - 25,435
Wholesale and corporate 212928 - - - - 212928
Finance lease recevables 10873 - - - - 10,873
Total loans and advances to customers 420 224 - - - — 420,224
Reverse repurchase agreements and other similar secured tending - - - 143431 ~ 14343
Available for sale debt securities - 45807 - - - 49 807
QOther assets - - - - 3476 3476
Total on-balance sheet 437268 180334 416815 151,188 86,896 1,322,501
Off-balance sheet
Securnities lending arrangerments 27,406
Guarantees and letters of credit pledged as collateral secunty 15406
Acceptances and endgrsements 375
Docurnentary credits and other short-term trade related transactions 762
Standby facilities, credit ines and other commitments 206,513
Total off-balance sheet 250,462

Total maximum exposure to credit risk 1,572,963
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Maximum exposure to credit nsk (audded) Asset dass
Debt
securities Reverse

Loans and and other repurchase Total

advances bulis Demvatives  agreements Other assets
As at 31st December 2009 £m £€m Em £m £m im
The Bank
On-balance sheet:
Cash and balances at central banks - - — = 78,447 78447
Itemns in the course of collection from other banks - - — - 1373 1,373

Trading portfolio assets

Debt securrties - 83,680 - - - 83680
Traded loans 2945 - — - - 2945
Total trading portfolio assets 2,945 83 680 - — - 86,625
Financial assets designated at fair value

Loans and advances 21636 - - - - 21636
Debt securiies - 3,338 - - - 3338
Other financial assets 423 - - 2,083 99 2505
Total financial assets designated at fair value 22059 3,338 — 2083 99 27,579
Derrvative financial instruments - - 429,895 - - 429895
Loans and advances to banks 42,963 - - - - 42,963
Loans and advances to customers.

Home loans 110605 - - - - 110605
Credit card recevables 11523 - - - - 11,523
Other personal lending 14,125 - - - - 14,125
Wholesale and corporate 375513 - - - - 375513
Finance lease recenvables 362 - - - - 362
Total loans and advances to customers 512128 - — - - 512128
Reverse repurchase agreements and other similas secured lending - - ~ 145433 — 145433
Available for sale debt secunties - 35,984 — - - 35,984
Other assets -~ - - - 1,198 1,198
Total on-balance sheet 580,095 123002 429,895 147516 81,117 1361625
Off-balance sheet.

Securities lending arrangements 27 406
Cuarantees and letters of credit pledged as collateral secunty 13350
Acceptances and endorsements 350
Documentary credits and other short-term trade related transactions 535
Standby facidities, credit lines and other commtments 159 281
Total off-balance sheet 200,722

Total maximum exposure to credit risk 1562,347
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Risk management

Credit nsk management continued

Credst sk concentrations (audited)

A concentration of credit nsk exists when a number of counterparties are located in a geographical region or are engaged in simidar activities and have
sumilar economic charactenstics that would cause therr ability to meet contractual abligations to be similarly affected by changes in economnic or gther
conditions The analyses of credit nisk concentrations presented below are based on the focation of the counterparty or customer or the industry n

which they are engaged

Credst risk concentrations by geographical sector (audited)

Other
United Eprppean United Rest of the

Kingdom Union States Africa world Total
As at 31st December 2010 £m £m £m £m Em £m
The Group
On-balance sheet
Cash and balances at central banks 18,535 13,558 41,288 2,293 21,956 97,630
Iterns in the course of collection from other banks 1,169 114 - 100 1 1,384
Trading portfolio assets 16,063 30,066 66,148 1,516 27617 141,410
Financial assets designated at far value 14,800 3,613 9,001 2,918 4,039 34371
Derivative financial instruments 129,183 129,497 110,467 4,234 46,938 420319
Loans and advances to banks 5,233 10,375 12,559 1,475 8,157 37,799
Loans and advances to customers 209,995 83,269 53,297 52,938 28443 427942
Reverse repurchase agreerments and other similar secured lending 50,044 45,265 77,430 23 33010 205772
Available for sale financial iInvestments 25,466 14,839 5,399 7,281 5,644 59,629
Other assets 1,612 235 314 537 126 2,824
Total on-balance sheet 472,100 330,831 376,903 73315 175,931 1,429,080
Off-balance sheet
Secunties lending arrangements - - 27672 - - 27,672
Guarantees and letters of credit pledged as collateral secunty 3,803 2,273 4,266 2,179 1,262 13,783
Acceptances and endorsements 125 4 6 29 167 331
Documentary credits and other short-term trade related transactions 476 156 143 183 236 1,194
Standby facilities, credit nes and other commitments 94,676 29,985 64,812 24,522 8,968 222,963
Total off-balance sheet 99,080 32,418 96,899 26,913 10,633 265,943
Total 571,180 363,249 473,802 100,228 186,564 1,695,023
The Bank
On-balance sheet.
Cash and balances at central banks 18,425 12,805 40,160 83 21,213 92,686
Items in the course of collection from other banks 1,169 93 - 5 1 1,268
Trading portfolio assets 15,269 28383 24,873 168 20,135 88,828
Financial assets designated at fair value 20,554 3,424 1,290 208 3,694 29,170
Dernvative financial instruments 158,106 128,684 107,005 947 46,403 441,145
Loans and advances to banks 4,473 11,175 15,356 678 8,708 40,390
Loans and advances to customers 390,007 64,225 38,924 3,277 26,503 522,936
Reverse repurchase agreements and other similar secured lending 53,665 50,170 97,375 10 26,123 227,343
Available for sale financial investments 24,716 9,353 5,184 202 5,621 45,076
Other assets 919 66 20 1 48 1,054
Total on-balance sheet 687,303 308,378 330,187 5,579 158,449 1,489,896
Off-balance sheet.
Secunties lending arrangements - - 27672 - - 27672
Guarantees and letters of credit pledged as collateral security 3,744 1,916 4,755 147 1,261 11,823
Acceptances and endorsemnents 125 3 6 1 167 302
Documentary credits and ather short-term trade related transactions 476 43 143 27 235 924
Standby faciities, credit ines and cther commitments 87,208 25,599 31,390 397 9,201 173,795
Total off-balance sheet 91,553 27,561 83,966 572 10,864 214,516
Total 778,856 335,939 414,153 6,151 169,313 1,704,412
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Credit nsk concentrations by geographical sector (audited)

Other

United European Unrted Rest of the

Kingdomn Union States Africa World Total
As at 31st December 2009 £m £m £m £m £m fm
The Greup
On-balance sheet.
Cash and balances at central banks 37,697 5,584 32279 1,742 4181 81483
{temns in the course of collection from other banks 1340 56 - 196 1 1593
Trading portfolic assets 12,232 35088 52 229 1,414 28519 129482
Financial assets designated at fair value 13,945 3.986 10,300 2352 3972 35,055
Dervative financral instruments 133713 128,881 111,269 2,51 40 441 416815
Loans and advances to banks 5117 12,697 13137 2,388 7,796 41135
Loans and advances to customers 203,582 84,343 58,355 47,495 26449 420,224
Reverse repurchase agreements and other similar secured lending 22,222 44014 60,759 527 15909 143431
Availlable for sale financial Investrents 16752 14,028 7175 4993 6,859 49,807
Other assets 1,565 417 651 661 182 3476
Total on-balance sheet 448,165 329 094 346,654 64,279 134,306 1322501
Off-balance sheet.
Securnittes lending amangerments - - 27,406 - - 27406
Cuarantees and letters of credit pledged as collateral secunty 3,337 2,783 5,443 1,795 2048 15,406
Acceptances and endorsements 134 5 - 26 210 375
Documentary credits and other short-term trade related transactions 357 94 - 174 137 762
Standby facilities, credit lines and other commitments 94,763 26 250 57,598 19306 8,596 206513
Total off-balance sheet 98 591 29,132 90,447 21 301 10,991 250,462
Total 546,756 358,226 437,101 85,580 145300 1,572,963
The Bank
On-balance sheet:
Cash and balances at central banks 37,619 4983 31650 54 4,101 78,447
Items 1n the course of collection from other banks 1,339 25 - 8 1 1,373
Trading portfolio assets 11808 34614 17,687 161 22 355 86,625
Financial assets designated at far value 17,208 3,931 2,939 151 3,350 27,579
Derivative inancial instruments 151,461 130,841 107,394 908 39,291 429,895
Loans and advances to banks 7927 12,828 14109 789 7310 42963
Loans and advances to custormers 375,761 61,909 47520 3654 23284 512128
Reverse repurchase agreements and other similar secured lending 26,661 44778 60,993 9 12992 145433
Available for sale financial iInvestmenits 17,085 9,738 4,505 254 4402 35,984
Qther assets 1,036 1 72 1 78 1,198
Total on-balance sheet 647,905 303,658 286 909 5,989 117,164 1361625
Off-balance sheet:
Securnties lending arrangements - - 27 406 - - 27,406
Guarantees and letters of credit pledged as collateral secunty 3,271 2380 5,445 7 2,047 13,150
Acceptances and endorsernents 134 5 - 1 210 350
Documentary credits and other short-term trade related transactions 356 14 - 26 139 535
Standby faciltes, credit ines and other commitments 87410 21876 41,773 391 7831 159,281
Total off-balance sheet 91,171 24275 74,624 425 10,227 200,722

Total 739076 327933 361533 6414 127,391 1,562,347
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Risk management
Credit risk management continued

Credit Risk concentrations by industrial sector {audited)

Cards,
unsecured
Construc- Wholesale loans
tion Energy andretail Business and other
Financial Manufac- and  Govern- and distrbution and other Home  personal
institutions turing  property ment water andlelsure  services loans tending Other Total
As at 31st December 2010 £m fm £m £m £m £m £m £m Em £m £m
The Group
On-balance sheet.
Cash and balances at
central banks - - - 97,630 - - - o - - 97,630
Iterns 1n the course of collection
from other banks 1,378 - - [ - - - - - - 1,384
Trading portfolio assets 51,337 2222 986 79,055 3,408 873 2,209 - 17 1,303 141,410
Financial assets designated at
fair value 11,507 71 11,746 5328 1,389 683 2944 - 109 594 343N
Derwvative financial nstruments 382,038 4,810 2,953 7.637 11,265 3,193 2,622 - 61 5,740 420,319
Loans and advances to banks 36,606 1,193 - - 37,799

Loans and advances 1o customers 87,405 14,766 28,670 5,108 9231 17357 26228 168,055 46,668 24454 427,942
Reverse repurchase agreements

and other similar secured lending 197,808 50 7 7,247 - 279 339 - - 42 205,772
Avallable for sale financial

Investments 23,585 154 336 33402 37 117 1,359 410 72 157 59,629
Other assets 1,267 4 47 436 9 9 383 4 615 50 2,824
Total on-balance sheet 792,931 22,077 44,745 237,042 25339 22511 36,084 168469 47,542 32340 1,429,080
Off-balance sheet.

Secunities fending arrangements 27,672 - - - - - - - - - 27,672
Guarantees and letters of credit

pledged as collateral securtty 5213 1,445 752 358 1,256 686 2,196 439 477 961 13,783
Acceptances and endorsements 28 i 38 - 4 48 92 - 8 2 331
Documentary credits and other

short-term trade refated activities 396 35 103 - 3 124 477 - 56 - 1,194
Standby faciliies, credit hnes and

ather commitments 47,784 20999 9,860 2,307 15671 9220 10664 16,789 79341 10328 222963
Total off-balance sheet 81,093 22590 10,753 2,665 16,934 10078 13429 17,228 79,882 11,291 265943

Total 874,024 44,667 55,498 239,707 42,273 32589 49,513 185697 127,424 43631 1,695,023
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Credit Risk concentrations by industnal sector {audited)

Cards,
unsecitred
Construc- Wholesale loans
tion Energy andretail Business and other
Financial Manufac- and  Govern- and distribution and other Home personal
instinntions turlng  property ment water and leisure  services loans  lending Cther Total
As at 31st Decemnber 2010 £m Em £m £m £m £m £m im £m £m £m
The Bank
On-balance sheet:
Cash and balances at
central banks - - - 92,686 - - - - - - 92,686
Items In the course of collection
from other banks 1,263 - - 5 - - - - - - 1,268
Trading portfolio assets 22,985 1,040 669 58317 2,740 656 1,714 - - 707 88,828
Financia! assets designated at
fair value 9,861 51 10654 4816 398 447 2,79 - - 152 29,170
Denvative financial instruments 402,702 4,824 2950 7637 10994 3415 2936 - 36 5651 441,145
Loans and advances to banks 39,486 904 - 40,390

Loans and advances to customers 273,376 12,785 20413 3969 8378 15424 26556 123995 27383 10,657 522936
Reverse repurchase agreements

and other similar secured lending 219,560 50 7  T.066 - 279 339 - - 42 227343
Availlable for sale financial

Investrments 20,466 154 337 23,498 3 52 187 - 23 156 45,076
QOther assets 296 4 15 40 - 2 238 1 457 1 1,054
Total on-balance sheet 989,995 18,908 35045 198938 22513 20,275 34961 1239% 27,899 17,366 1,489,896
QOff-balance sheet:

Secunties lending arrangements 27,672 - - - - - - - - - 27,672
Guarantees and letters of credit

pledged as collateral secunty 4878 1,321 619 358 1,196 591 1,822 - 196 842 11,823
Acceptances and endorsements 27 m 38 - 4 48 64 - 8 2 302
Documentary credits and other

short-term trade related

transactions 395 35 - - 3 124 311 - 56 - 924
Standby facilries, credit fines and

ather commitments 36,982 20509 8825 2,307 15,246 9,024 12956 14570 43219 10,157 173,795
Total off-balance sheet 69,954 21976 9482 2665 16449 9,787 15,153 14570 43479 11,001 214516

Total 1059949 40,884 44,527 201,603 38962 30,062 50114 138566 71,378 28,367 1,704412
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Risk management

Credit risk management continued

Credit Risk concentrations by industnal sector (audrted)

Cards
unsecured
Construc Wholesale leans
tign Energy andretal  Business and other
Financial  Manufac and Govemn- and distnbution  and other Home  personal
nstitutions tunng  property ment water andleisure  services loans lending Cther Total
As at 31st Decernber 2009 fm £m £m £m im £m £m £m £m £m £m
The Group
On-balance sheet
Cash and balances at
central banks - - - 81483 - - - - - - 81,483
Itemns in the course of collection
from other banks 1,586 - - 7 - - - - - - 1,593
Trading portfolio assets 47 482 3 RG99 1,063 76,454 3136 608 1569 - - 1271 129,482
Financial assets designated at
fair value 13,366 78 11929 5435 330 775 2569 150 4 419 35,055
Dervative financial instruments 379,901 4230 2416 6,119 12081 3472 5627 - 69 2900 416815
Loans and advances to banks 36,710 - - 4425 - - - - - - 41,135
Loans and advances to customers 93,113 18197 29175 4801 10723 19156 29603 149,099 40575 25782 420224
Reverse repurchase agreements
and other similar secured lending 136,184 87 926 5,347 - 279 608 - - - 14343
Avallable for sale financial
Investments 30398 285 269 16320 57 82 1,896 4116 - 84 49,807
Qther assets 1,588 23 60 414 13 38 478 106 682 74 3476
Total on-balance sheet 734328 26,799 45838 200805 26340 74410 42350 149,771 41,330 30,530 1,322501
Off-balance sheet
Securries lending arrangements 27 406 - - - — - - - - - 27,406
Guarantees and letters of credit
pledged as collateral secunty 5711 1266 715 - 2872 955 264 584 41 728 15,406
Acceptances and endorsements 85 108 2 - 33 45 -] -~ 5 89 375
Documentary credits and other
short-termn trade related
transactions 242 33 80 - - 171 233 - 3 - 762
Standby facilities, credit ines and
gther commitments 39,564 19530 10,567 1,687 13502 7949 9243 15356 79052 10063 206513
Total off-balance sheet 73008 20937 11364 1,687 16407 9120 11648 15940 79471 10880 250462
Total B07336 47736 57,202 202492 42747 33530 53998 165711 120,801 41410 1,572,963
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Credit Risk concentrations by industrial sector {audred)

Cards
unsecured
Lonstruc- Whoiesale toans
tion Energy andretal  Business and other
Financial  Manufac- and Cavern- and distnbution  and other Home  personal
Instustions turing  property ment water and lesure  senaces toans lending Other Total
As at 31st December 2009 im £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m Em £Em
The Bank
On-balance sheet:
Cash and balances at
central banks - - - 78447 - - - - - - 78,447
ltems 1n the course of collection
from other banks 1,373 - - - - - - - - - 1,373
Trading portfolio assets 20065 2,552 605 58375 2650 307 1223 - - 808 86,625
Financral assets designated at
fasr value 9611 41 10077 4806 113 474 2353 24 - 20 27,579
Dervative financial Instruments 393237 4199 2415 5983 11925 3,456 5,845 - 16 2819 429895
Loans and advances to banks 40187 - - 2776 - - - - - - 42,963
Loans and advances to customers 272970 16,457 20683 4748 9706 17961 23710 110605 25297 9991 512,128
Reverse repurchase agreements
and other similar secured lending 139,505 B7 7 5,009 - 279 546 - - — 145433
Avallable for sale financial
nvestments 25,688 285 167 8928 3 82 330 469 - 32 35,984
Other assets 414 13 13 EX - 7 233 - 487 - 1198
Total on-balance sheet 903050 23634 33967 169103 24437 22566 34240 111098 25800 13730 1,361,625
Off-balance sheet.
Securities lending arrangements 27,406 - - - - - - - - - 27,406
Guarantees and letters of credit
pledged as colfateral secunty 5064 1125 596 - 2822 886 1,899 - 129 629 13,150
Acceptances and endorsements 63 108 2 - 33 45 7 - 5 87 350
Documentary credits and other
short-term trade related
transactions 176 33 - - - 171 152 - 1 2 535
Standby facities, credit ines and
other commitments 29986 19025 9311 1687 13115 7402 11051 13377 44549 9778 159,281
Total off-balance sheet 62695 20,291 9909 1687 15970 8504 13709 13377 44684 1049 200,722
Total 965745 43,925 43876 170790 40407 31070 47349 124475 70484 24226 1,562,347
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Risk management
Credit nsk management continued

Loans and advances (audited)

Governance and responsibilities

The credit nsk management tearms in each business are accountable to the business risk directors in those businesses who (0 turn, report to the heads
of their businesses and also to the Chief Risk Officer

The credit nsk function provides Group wide direction of credit nisk-taking The teams withm this function manage the resolution of afl significant credit
policy 1ssues and run the Credit Commitiee which approves major credit decisions Each business segment has an embedded credit nsk management
team These teams assist Group Risk in the formulation of Croup Risk policy and its implementation across the businesses

The pnincipal committees that review credit nsk management, formulate overall Group credit policy and resobve all significant credit policy 1ssues are the
Board Risk Committee, the Group Risk Oversight Committee, the Wholesale Credit Risk Management Committee and the Retail Credit Risk
Management Commuttee

On a semt-annual basis, the Credrt Risk Impairment Commuttee (CRIC) obtains assurance onbehalf of the Group that all businesses are recogrising
impairment n therr portfolios accurately promptly and in accordance with policy, accounting standards and established governance

CRIC 15 chared by the Credit Risk Director and reviews the movernents in impasmment, including those already agreed at Credit Committee as well as
potential credit nsk loans, loan loss rates, asset quality metrics and impairment coverage ratios

CRIC makes twice-yearly recommendations to the Board Aud:t Commuttee on the adequacy of Group impairment allowances Imparment allowances
are reviewed relative to the nsk in the portfolio, business and economic trends, current polices and methodologies, and the Croups position relative to
peer banks

Credit monitoring

Wholesale and corporate loans which are deemed to contain heightened levels of risk are recorded on early-warnung or watch Iists These lists are graded
inline with the perceved seventy of the nsk attached io the lending and 1ts probability of default The lists are updated ors a manthly basis and are
closely monitored

Regardless of whether they are recorded on early-warning or watch lists, alt Wholesale and corporate loans are subject to a full review of all facilities on,
at least, an annual basrs More frequent Interim reviews may be undertaken should arcumstances dictate

Retatl loans (which tend to compnse homogeneous assets) are moritored on a portfolio bass

Credst risk measurernent

Barclays uses statistical modelling techniques throughout its business in its credit rating systems  They enable a coherent approach to nsk measurement
across all credit exposures, Retal and Wholesale The key building blocks i the measurement syster are the probability of custarer default (PD),
exposure in the event of default (EAD) and seventy of loss-given-default (LGD) The models are reviewed regularly to monitor therr robustriess relative
to actual performance and amended as necessary to optimise therr effectiveness

For Whelesale and corporate lending, Barclays assesses the credit guality of borrowers and other counterparties and assigns them an internal risk rating
Barclays credit rating contains 21 grades representing the Group's best estimate of credit risk for a counterparty based on current econormic conditions
Retail custorners are not all assigned internal risk ratings in this way for account management purposes, therefore therr probability of default s
considered

The Group considers credit risk loans (defined as all customers overdue by 90 days or more, and/or iIndvidually impaired or restructured) and loan loss
rates when assessing the credit performance of its loan portfolios, other than those held at far value For the purposes of historical and business unit
companson, ioan loss rates are defined as total annualised credit impatrment charge {excluding avarlable for sale assets and reverse repurchase
agreements) divided by gross loans and advances to customers and banks (at amortised cost)

Credit risk mitigation
Where appropriate, the Group takes action to mitigate credit nsk such as reducing amounts outstanding {ir discussion with the custermers, cients or
counterparties if appropnate), using credit denvatives secuntising assets and disposals

Diversification to avoid unwanted credit sk concentrations (s achreved through setting maxmizm exposure guidelines to indvidual counterparties
Excesses are reported to the Board Risk Committee and the Group Risk Oversight Committee Mandate and scale lirmits are used to limit the stock of
current exposures in a loan portfolio and the flow of new exposures nto a loan portfolio Limits are typically based on the term and nature of the lending
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Collateral and secunty

The Croup routinely obtains collateral and secunty to mutigate credit risk

The Croup ensures that any collateral held is sufficiently hiquid, legafiy effective, enforceable and regularly reassessed Before attaching value to coltateral,
businesses holding specific, agreed classes of collateral must ensure that they are holding a correctly perfected charge

Before reliance 1s placed on third party protection in the form of bank, government or corporate guarantees or credit denvative protection from financial

ntermediary counterparties, a credit assessment 1s ungertaken

Security structures and legal covenants are subject to regular review, at least annually to ensure that they rernain fit for purpose and remarn consistent

with accepted local market practice

Credit quality of loans and advances (audited)
All loans and advances are categonised as either

— neither past due nor indvidually impatred,

— past due but not indvidually impaired, or

— indwidually impaired, which includes restructured loans

A loan 1s considered past due when the borrower has faded to make a payment when due under the terms of the loan contract

The impairment alfowance includes alfowances against financial assets that have been indvidually impasred and those subject to collective imparment
Loans subject to collective imparrment allowances are included in either Neither past due but not irmparred or Past due but not impaired

Credit nsk loans compnse loans and advances to banks and custormers 90 days overdue or more and those subject to individual imparment The
coverage ratio Is calculated by reference to the total impairment allowance and the carrying value (before impairment} of credit risk loans

Credit quahity of loans and advances (audited)

Neither

past due Past due
nor but not Total
indrvidually  individually  Indeddually Impairment carrying Credit Coverage
impaired® impaired® impaired Total allowance value sk loans® ratio
As at 31st December 2010 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m %
The Group
Trading portfolio
Traded loans 2,170 - - 2,170 - 2,170 - -
Financial assets designated at fair value
Loans and advances 22,273 79 - 22,352 - 22,352 - -
QOther financial assets - - - - - - - -
Loans and advances to banks 37,149 663 35 37,847 (48) 37,799 35 1000
Loans and advances to customers
Home loans 156,908 9,488 2513 168,909 (854) 168,055 4,294 199
Credit card recevables 20,734 1,253 3,112 25,099 (2,441) 22,658 3,642 670
Cther personal lending 24,363 1,975 3,397 29,735 (3,127) 26,608 3,886 B80S
Wholesale and corporate 181473 6,746 18,010 206229 (5.611) 200618 19,331 290
Finance lease recevables 9,338 589 427 10,354 {351) 10,003 694 506
Total 454,408 20,793 27,494 502,695 (12,432) 490,263 31,882 390
The Bank
Trading portfolio
Traded loans 2,500 - - 2,500 - 2,500 - -
Financial assets designated at far value
Loans and advances 25,022 Fa| - 25,093 - 25,093 - -
Other financial assets - - - - - - - -
Loans and advances to banks 39,794 609 35 40,438 (48) 40,390 35 100.0
Loans and advances to customers
Home loans 116,983 6,296 931 124,210 (215) 123995 1,461 147
Credit card recewables 11,097 645 1,831 13,573 (1,389) 12,184 2,044 680
Other personal lending 13,012 1,293 1,986 16,291 (2,061) 14,230 2,262 911
Wholesale and corparate 358,760 2311 15,641 376,712 (4.411) 372,301 16,196 272
Finance fease recevables 226 - - 226 - 226 - —
Total 567,394 11,225 20,424 599,043 {8,124) 590,919 21,998 369
Notes

a Financial assets subject to collective impairment allowance are ncluded in this column if

they are not past due

b Financiai assets subject to collective mpament allowance are included in this columin f

they are past due

c Credt Risk Loans include the loan to Protium of £7 560m against which an impairment of

£532m s held
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Risk management
Credit risk management continued

Credit quality of loans and advances (audited)

Neither

past due Past due
nor but not Total
indwidually  indwiduatly  Indmdualty Impairment carmying Credit Coverage
Impaired? rnpared® mparred Total allowance value nsk loans fang
As at 31st December 2009 £m £m Em Em £m £m Em %
The Group
Trading portfolio
Traded loans 2962 - - 2962 - 2962 - -
Financlal assets designated at fair value
Loans and advances 22210 180 - 22,350 - 22390 - -
QOther financral assets 557 - - 557 - 557 - -
Loans and advances to banks 38,859 2280 57 41,196 (61) 41,135 57 1000
Loans and advances to customers
Home loans® 139,045 8839 1,854 149,738 {639} 149,099 3,758 170
Credit card recevables 20195 1,544 2459 24,198 (2,309} 21,889 3068 753
Other personal fending 23,796 2175 2,372 28343 (2,908) 25435 3,466 839
Wholesale and corporate 199,800 7598 10,088 217486 (4,558) 212,928 11,497 386
Finance lease recervables 10128 664 402 11,194 {321) 10873 656 461
Total 457,552 23,280 17,232 498,064 {10,796) 487,268 22 542 479
The Bank
Trading portfalio
Traded loans 2945 - - 2945 - 2,945 - -
Financial assets designated at far value
Loans and advances 21,467 169 - 21636 - 21636 - -
Other financial assets 423 - - 423 - 423 - -
Loans and advances to banks 40 784 2,183 57 43,024 (61) 42963 57 1000
Loans and advances to customers
Home loans® 103883 5,893 977 10,753 (148) 110605 1686 88
Credit card recenvables 10920 582 1,363 12865 {1,342} 11523 1578 850
Other personal lending 13,0643 1030 1,955 16,032 (1907) 14,125 2,485 767
Wholesale and corporate 365778 3,854 9825 379457 (3.944) 375513 10584 373
Finance lease recervables 362 - - 362 - 362 - -
Total 559 605 13,711 14181 587 497 (7402) 580095 16,390 452
Notes
a Finanaal assets subject to collectve imparment allowance are included tn this column i
they are not past due
b Financial assets subject to collective impairment allowarice are induded in thus column if
they are past due

¢ Comparative figures for home loans have been restated to align with externally disdosed
arears defirution
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Loans and advances netther past due nor ndwidually impaired {audited)

2010 2009
Strong  Satisfactory  Higher risk Totat Stong  Satsfactory Higher nsk Total
As at 31st December £m £m £m fm fm £m £m £m
The Group
Trading portfolio
Traded loans 352 1,203 615 2,170 1,366 1250 306 2,962
Financial assets designated at fair value
Loans and advances 17,496 2,100 2,677 22,273 15,909 3,809 2,492 22210
Qther financial assets - - - - 261 - 296 557
Loans and advances to barnks 35,666 1,360 123 37,149 35825 2,492 542 38,859
Loans and advances to customers
Home loans 85,351 69,784 1,773 156,908 66831 69,890 2324 139045
Credit card recevables - 20,538 196 20,734 - 20,038 157 20195
Other personal lending 5,555 16,130 2,678 24363 3417 18,108 2,27 23,7%
Wholesale and corporate 115,783 59,921 5769 181473 119764 70,132 9904 199800
Finance lease recervables 3,634 5,228 426 9,338 2,664 7,082 382 10,128
Total 263,887 176,264 14,257 454,408 246037 192,841 18674 457,552
The Bank
Trading portfohio
Traded loans 337 1,203 960 2,500 1,366 1,273 306 2,945
Financial assets designated at fair value
Loans and advances 21,808 1,342 1,872 25,022 17,657 2,892 518 21,467
Other financial assets - - - - 423 - - 423
Loans and advances to banks 35,607 3,403 784 39,794 37160 1,851 1,773 40 784
Loans and advances to customers
Home loans 75,658 41,131 194 116,983 59,900 42935 1,048 103,883
Credit card recevables - 11,097 - 11,097 - 10,920 - 10,920
Other personal lending 5,088 5,780 2,144 13,012 2911 2178 1,954 13,043
Wholesale and corporate 309,533 45,146 4,081 358,760 303545 54510 7723 365,778
Finance lease recevables - 226 - 226 = 362 - 362
Total 448,031 109,328 10,035 567,394 422962 12292 13,722 559,605
For the purposes of the analysis of credit quality the following internal measures of credit quality have been used
Strong 00-060% 00-005% 1-3
005-015% 4-5
015-030% 6-8
030-0 60% S-11
Satisfactary 060-1000% 060-215% 12-14
21511 35% 15-19
Higher risk 10 00%+ 11 35%+ 20-21

Financal statement descriptions can be surmmarised as follows
Strong — there 15 a very high likelhood of the asset being recovered in full

Sausfactory — whilst there 15 a high likebhood that the asset will be recovered and therefore of no cause for concern to the Group, the asset may not be
collateralised, or may refate to retall faclities such as credit card balances and unsecured loans which have been classified as satisfactory, regardless of
the fact that the output of internal grading models may have indicated a higher cdlassification At the lower end of this grade there are customers that are
beng more carefully monitored, for example, corperate customers which are indicating some evidence of some detenoration, mortgages with a high
loan to value ratio, and unsecured retadl loans operating outside normal product guidelines

Higher rsk — there Is concern over the abligor’s ability to make payments when due However these have not yet converted to actual delinquency There
may also be doubts over value of collateral or secunty provided However, the borrower or counterparty is continumng to make payments when due and s
expected to settle all outstanding amounts of prinapal and interest
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Risk management
Credit risk management continued

Loans and advances that are past due but not ndvidually impaired (audited)
An age analysss of loans and advances that are past due but not indmidually impatred 15 set out below

For the purposes of this analysis an asset 1s considered past due and inciuded below when any payment due under strict contraciual terms is received
late or missed The amount included is the entire financial asset not just the payment, of prncipal or interest or both averdue

The table below provides a breakdown of total financial assets past due but not indmdually mpasred In general, retall and wholesale loans fall into this
category for two separate reasons Retall loans and advances to custorners may come under this Category because the impairment allowance on such
loans is calcufated on a collectve — not indwidual — basis This reflects the homogenous nature of the assets, which allows statistical technigues to be
used, rather than indimvdual assessmernt

In contrast, some loans 1o Wholesale custormners and banks may come under this category because of instances where a paymenit on a loan s past due
without requiring an ndmidual :impairment allowance For example an individual impatrmertt allowance will not be required when a loss 1s not expected
due to a corporate loan being fully secured or collateralised As a result, it 1s past due but not ndnadually mpaired

Loans and advances past due but not individually impaired {audited)

Past due Past due Past due Past due Past due Of which
upto 1 1-2 2-3 3-6 6 months credit risk

As at 315t December 2010 moth  morths  monfhs  months  andcver Total loans
The Group
Financial assets designated at fair value:
Loans and advances - - 70 1 8 79 -
Loans and advances to banks 663 - - - - 663 —
Loans and advances to custorners
Home loans 4,915 1,875 9217 1,381 400 9,488 1,781
Credst card recevables 214 156 353 441 89 1,253 530
Gther personal lending 422 672 392 362 127 1,975 489
Wholesale and corporate 4,104 788 533 620 701 6,746 1,321
Finance lease recenvables 175 80 67 266 1 589 267
Total financial assets past due but not indwvidually
imparred 10,493 3,571 2,332 3,071 1,326 20,793 4,388
The Bank
Financial assets designated at fair value
Loans and advances - - 70 1 - 71 -
Loans and advances to banks 609 - - - - 609 —
Loans and advances to customers
Home loans 3,445 1,561 760 342 188 6,296 530
Credit card recewables 78 77 277 202 1 645 213
Other persenal lending 107 581 329 186 90 1,293 276
Wholesale and corporate 1,220 269 267 260 295 2,311 555

Total financial assets past due but not indwvidually
impaired 5,459 2,488 1,703 99 584 11,225 1,574
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Loans and advances past due but not individually impaired (audited)

Past due Past due Past due Past due Past due Ofwhich
uptel 12 23 3-6 & months creditnsk
As at 315t December 2009 ™ Mg monpe mone andowr i e
The Group
Financial assets designated at fair value
Loans and advances 170 - 1 — 9 180 -
Loans and advances to banks 2280 — - - - 2,280 -
Loans and advances te customers
Home loans 4,849 1,453 633 1,403 501 8,839 1,504
Credit card recevables 501 214 220 459 150 1,544 609
Other personal lending 369 295 417 a3 681 2175 1,094
Wholesale and corporate 5403 292 494 866 543 7,598 1,409
Finance lease recevables 186 86 98 282 12 664 254
Total financial assets past due but not mdividually
impaired 13,758 2,340 1863 3423 1,896 23,280 5310
The Bank
Financial assets designated at farr value
Loans and advances 169 - - - - 169 -
Loans and advances to banks 2183 - - - - 2,183 -
Loans and advances to customers.
Home loans 3,648 1,183 353 539 170 5,893 705
Credhit card recevables 209 67 91 207 8 582 215
Other personal lending 87 185 232 250 236 1,030 526
Wholesale and comporate 2629 161 305 377 382 3,854 759
Total financial assets past due but not sndividually
impaired 8925 1,596 981 1413 796 13,711 2,209
Loans and advances indsdually assessed as impaired (audited) 2010 2009
Original Revised Onginal Revised
carrying  Impairment carrying carmying  lmpairment carmying
amount allowance amourt amount aliowance amount
As at 31st December £m £m £m £m £m £m
The Group
Total loans and advances to banks indvidually imparred 35 (31) 4 57 (49) 8
l.oans and advances to customers
Horme loans 2,513 (627) 1,886 1,854 (317} 1537
Credit card recevables 3,112 (2,025} 1,087 2,459 (1 690) 765
Other personal lending 3,397 (2,075) 1,322 2,372 (1,531) 841
Wholesale and corperate 18,010 (4,986} 13,024 10,083 (3.837) 6,251
Finance lease recervables 427 (265} 162 402 (233) 169
Total loans and advances indvidually impasred 27,494 (10,009) 17,485 17,232 (7.657) 9575
Collectrve smpairment allowance (2,423) (3.139)
Total impawrment allowance {12,432) {10,796)
The Bank
Total loans and advances to banks ndvidually impaired 35 (31 4 57 (49} 8
Loans and advances to customers
Home loans 931 (116) 815 977 (92} 885
Credit card recevables 1,831 {1,048) 783 1,363 (826) 537
Cther personal lending 1,986 {1,432) 554 1,959 (1,231) 628
Wholesale and corporate 15,641 {3.841) 11,800 9,825 {3323} 6,502
Tota! loans and advances individually impaired 20,424 {6,468) 13,956 14,181 {5621) 8560
Coftectrve impairment allowance (1,656) (1781

Total impairment allowance (8,124) (7.402)
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Risk management

Credit risk management continued

The movements on the impairment allowance durning the year were as follows

Movernents in aliowance for impairment by asset class {audited)

Amounts
Acquisitions Exchange charged to Balance at
At beginning and  Unwind of and other Amaounts Income s
of year disposals discount  adustments written off  Recoverles statement December
2010 £m Em £m £m £m £m Em £m
The Group
Loans and advances to banks 61 - - (1) {11) 17 (18} 48
Loans and advances to customers
Home loans 639 18 {54) 63 {134) 6 316 854
Credst card recevables 2,309 74 (100) 50 (1,374) 77 1,405 2441
Other personal lending 2,908 - (47) 45 (1,059) 37 1,243 3,127
Wholesale and corporate 4,558 (14) (6) 148 {1,547) 40 2432 5611
Finance lease recevables 321 - (6) 26 {185) 24 171 351
Total loans and advances to customers 10,735 78 {213) 332 {4,299) 184 5,567 12,384
Total impairment allowance 10,796 78 {213) 331 {4310) 201 5,549 12,432
The Bank
Loans and advances to banks 61 - - (1) {11} 12 (13) 48
Loans and advances to customers
Home loans 148 18 3) (1) (22} 1 74 215
Credit card recevables 1,342 63 (89) (17) (811} 78 823 1,389
Other personal lending 1,907 - (23) 8 (715} 14 870 2,061
Wholesale and corporate 3,944 - - 124 (1,417} 32 1,728 4411
Finance lease recevables - - = - = - - -
Total loans and advances to customers 7,341 81 {115) 114 (2,965) 125 3,495 8,076
Total impairment allowance 7,402 81 (115) 113 (2,976} 137 3,482 8,124
Movements in allowance for mpawment by asset class {audited)
Amounts
Atquisitions Exchange charged to Balance at
At beginning and Urwind of and other AMOunts ncome st
of year disposals discount  adustments written off Recoveries staternent December
2009 £m Em £ £m £m £m £m £m
The Group
Loans and advances to banks 51 - - 11 - 10 11 8
Loans and advances to customers
Home loans 321 19 (59) 46 (82) 3 391 639
Credit card receivables 1,445 415 79) (28) (1,609) 78 1,487 2,309
QOther personal lending 1,869 - (26) {89) {633) 21 1,766 2,508
Whaolesale 2,699 - (15) {48) {1538) 28 3432 4558
Finance Jease recenvables 189 — (6) 3 {118) 10 243 32t
Total loans and advances to customers 6,523 434 (185) (116) {3,380 140 7319 10735
Total impairment allowance 6,574 434 (185) (127) {3380) 150 7,330 107596
The Bank
Loans and advances to banks 51 - - [URD)] - 7 14 61
Loans and advances to customers
Home loans AN 19 2) [ (18) - 52 148
Credit card receivables 901 115 (79} 5 (336) 38 698 1342
Other personal lending 1,232 14 (28) (103) {397) 10 1,179 1.907
Wholesale 2,999 - - (867) {1,393) 25 3180 3944
Finance lease recevables = - - = - - - -
Totat loans and advances to customers 5223 148 (109} (859} {21443 73 5,109 734
Total impairment allowance 5274 148 {109) (970} (2144) 80 5123 7402
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Loan loss rates (audited)
Loans and
Gross advances
loansand  impatrment netof Impairment Loznioss
advances allowance  impairment charge rate
As at 31st December £m £m £m £m bps
The Group
2010 478,173 (12,432) 465,741 5,625 118
2009 472155 {10,796} 461,359 7,358 156
The Bank
2010 571,450 (8,124) 563,326 3,476 61
2009 562 493 (7.402) 555091 5,195 92

Renegotiated loans and advances (audited)}

Loans and advances are generally reneggtiated either as part of an ongoing customer relationship or in response to an adverse change in the
arcumstances of the borrower In the latter case renegotiation can result in an extension of the due date of payment or repayment plans under which
the Group offers a concessionary rate of interest to genumnely distressed borrowers This will result in the asset continuing to be overdue and will be
indmidually impaired where the renegotiated payments of interest and principal will not recover the onginal carrying amount of the asset In other cases,
renegotiation will lead to a new agreement, which 1s treated as a new loan

Collateral and other credit enhancements held {audited)
Financial assets that are past due or Indvidually assessed as impaired may be partially or fully collaterahised or subject to other forms of credit
enhancerment

Assets In these categones subject to collateralisation are mainly corporate loans, Home Loans and finance lease recevables Credit card recevables and
other personal lending are generally unsecured (although in some instances a charge over the borrower’s property or other assets may be sought)

Corporate loans (audited)

Secunity 1s usually taken in the form of a fixed charge over the borrower’s property or a floating charge over the assets of the borrower Loan covenants
may be put in place to safeguard the Group's financial position If the exposure is sufficiently large, erther ndmdually or at the portfolio level, cradit
protection in the form of guarantees, credit dervatives or insurance may be taken out For these and other reasons coltateral given 1s only accurately
valued on ongination of the loan or in the course of enforcement actions and as a result it is not practicabie to estimate the far value of the colfateral
held

Home loans (audited)
Home Loans are secured by a fixed charge over the property

A descnption and the estimated fair value of collateral held in respect of Home Loans that are past due or ndwvidually assessed as impaired 1s as follows

Nature of assets (audited) The Group The Bank
2010 Fair 2008 Farr 2010 Fair 2005 Farr
value value value value
As at 31st December £m £m Em £m
Residentral property 10,057 9,628 6,132 6,255

Collateral included in the above table reflects the Groups interest in the property in the event of default That held in the form of charges agamst
resdential property m the UK s restricted to the outstanding loan balance In other terrtones, where the Grotp 1s not obliged to return any sale proceeds
to the mortgagee, the full estimated fair value has been inctuded

Finance lease recevables (audited)
The net tnvestment in the lease s secured through retention of legal title to the leased assets
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Risk management
Credit risk management continued

Collateral and other credit enhancements obtained {audited)

The carrying value of assets held by the Group as at 315t December 2010 as a result of the enforcernent of collateral was as follows

Assets recerved (audited) The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
Carrying Carrying Carrying Carrying
amount amount amount amoum
As at 31st December £m fm £m £m
Residential property 71 7 19 22
Commercial and industnal property 14 66 - -
Qther credit enhancements 210 248 177 209
Total 295 335 196 231

Any properties repossessed are made avaifable for sale in an orderly and timely fashion, with any proceeds realised being used to reduce or repay the
outstanding loan For business customers, In some arcumstances, where excess funds are available after repayment in full of the outstanding loan, they
are offered to any other, lower ranked, secured fenders Any addional funds are returned to the customer Barclays does not, as a rule, occupy

repossessed properties for its business use

The Croup does not use assets obtained in Its operations Assets obtained are normally sold, generally at auction, or realised in an orderly manner for the
rmaximum benefit of the Group, the borrower and the borrower's other creditors in accordance with the relevant isolvency regulations

Debt Secunties (audrted)
Credit Quality of Debt Secunties

Trading portfolio assets, financial assets designated at fair value and available for sale assets are measured on a fair value basis The fair vatue will reflect

among other things, the credit nsk of the issuer

Most listed and some unlisted securities are rated by external rating agencies The Group mainly uses external credit ratings provided by Standard &
Poors or Moody's Where such ratings are not available or are not current, the Group will use its own internal ratings for the secunties

Secunties rated as investrment grade amounted to 93 0% of the portfolio {2003 91 8%) An analysis of the credit quality of the Group’s debt secunities 15

set out below

Debt securhses (audied) 2010 2009

AAA to BBB- AAA to BBE-

{investment B- and {Irvestment B- and

grade) BE+to B below Total grade) BB+ toB below Total

As at 31st Decernber £m Em £m £m £m £m fm £m
The Group
Trading portfolio 130,744 6,663 1,833 139240 115,138 5,346 2036 126520
Financial assets designated at farr value 942 644 332 1918 2,200 1,791 16 4,007
Avatlable for sale financial investments 55,107 2,022 2,500 59,629 44,233 5,055 519 49,3807
Total debt securities 186,793 9,329 4,665 200,787 165,571 12,192 2,571 180,334
% of total 93 0% 4 7% 23% 100 0% 91 8% 6 8% 14% 100 0%

Included In the table above are impaired available for sale debt securrties with a carrying value at 31st December 2010 of £358m (200G £265m), after a

wirite down of £583m (2009 £692m}

Debt securities (audited) 2010 2009
AAA to BBB- AAA to BBB-
{investment B- and {ivestment B-and

grade} BB+toB below Total grade) BB+to B below Total
As at 31st December £m £m £m Em £m £m £m £m
The Bank
Trading portfolio 80,732 3,774 1,822 86,328 79,144 3,568 968 83,680
Financial assets designated at fair value 244 252 287 783 1,901 1,422 15 3338
Avallable for sale financial investments 42,656 287 2,133 45,076 33,893 1,942 149 35,984
Total debt securities 123,632 4,313 4,242 132,187 114,938 6932 1132 123,002
% of total 93 5% 33% 32% 100 0% 93 5% 56% 09% 100 0%

Collaterat 1s not generally obtained directly §rom the issuers of debt securities Certain debt secunties may be collateralised by specifically identified

assets that would be abtainable in the event of default
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Derrvatives (audited)
Denvatives are measured on a farr value basis

The credit quality of the Groups denvative assets according 10 the credit quality of the counterparty at 31st December 2010 and 2009 was as follows

Credit quality (audited) 2010 2009
AAA to BBB- AAA to BBB-
{investment B- and {Investment 8-and
grade) BB+to B below Total grade) BB+ to B below Total
£m £m £m £m £m £fm £m £m
The Group
Demvatives 401,242 15,598 3,479 420319 399 534 15 565 1716 416,815
95 5% 37% 0 8% 100 0% 95 9% 37% 04% 100 0%
The Bank
Derivatives 423,625 14,046 3,474 441,145 413,816 14,366 1,713 429,855
96 0% 3.2% 0.8% 100 0% 96 3% 33% 04% 100 0%

Credrt nsk from dervatives 1s miigated where possible through netting agreements whereby derivative assets and liabiities with the same counterparty
can be offset Group policy requires all netting arrangerents to be legally documented The ISDA Master Agreernent is the Group's preferred agreement
for documenting OTC dervatives it provides the contractual framework within which dealing actvities across a full mnge of OTC products are
conducted and contractually binds both parties to apply close-out netting across all outstanding transactions covered by an agreement if either party
defaults or other predetermined events occur

Collateral 1s obtained against denvative assets depending on the creditworthiness of the counterparty and/or nature of the transactton Any collateral
taken in respect of OTC trading exposures will be subject to a ‘haircut’ whichis negotiated at the time of signing the collateral agreerment A haircut s the
valuation percentage applicable to each type of collateral and wilt be largely based on liquidity and price volatility of the underlying secunty The collateral
abtained for denvatives 1s either cash, direct debt obligation government (G14+) bonds denominated in the dormestic currency of the Issuing country,
debt 1ssued by supranationals or letters of credit issued by an institution with a long-term unsecured debt rating of A+/A3 or better Where the Group
has ISDA master agreements, the collateral document will be the ISDA Credit Support Annex {CSA) The collateral document must give Barclays the
power to realise any collateral placed with it In the event of the failure of the counterparty, and to place further collateral when requested or in the event
of nsolvency, admimistration or similar processes, as welt as in the case of early termination

Denvative assets and habilities would be £378bn (2009 £374bn) lower than reported if netting were permitted for assets and liabihties with the same
counterparty or for which the Group holds cash collateral
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Risk management
Credit nsk management continued

Reverse Repurchase Agreements and Other Financial Assets {audited)
Reverse repurchase agreements and securities borrowing arrangements are collateralised loans typically of short matunties

The loans are fully collateralised with highly hquid secunties legally transferred to the Group The level of collateral is monitored daily and further collateral
called when required

Credit quality (audited) 2010 2009
AAAtD AAA to
86B- 8gg8-
{investment B- and {investment B- and
grade} BB+1cB below Total grade) BB taB below Total
£m £m £m £m fm fm £m )]
The Group
Financial assets designated at fair value
Other financial assets 7,285 271 3 7,559 4,749 1,955 1053 7,757
Reverse repurchase agreements 179,625 24,801 1,346 205,772 136366 6,674 3N 143431
Total reverse repurchase agreements 186,910 25,072 1,349 213,331 141 115 8629 1,444 151,188
87 6% 118% 06% 100 0% 93 3% 57% 1 0% 100 0%
The Bank
Financial assets designated at fair value
Other financia! assets 2,324 165 - 2,489 1,890 73 120 2,083
Reverse repurchase agreements 208,120 17,920 1,303 227,343 140,739 4391 303 145433
Total reverse repurchase agreements 210,444 18,085 1,303 229,832 142 629 4464 423 147 516
91 5% 79% 06% 100 0% 96 7% 30% 03% 100 0%

No reverse repurchase agreements held by the Group at 31st December 2010 or 2009 were individually impaired, however duning the year, the Group
wrote back £4m of impairment on reverse repurchase agreements (2009 £43m charge)

Other Credrt Risk Assets (audited)
Cash and balances at central banks
Cash and balances with central banks were £97630m {2009 £81,483m) There 15 a reduced leve! of credit nsk in relation to balances at central banks

Items in the course of collection from other banks
Items 1n the course of collection from other banks were £1,384m (2009 £1,593m), of which there 1s reduced credit nisk in ight of the banking industry
clearing system

Other financial assets
Other financiat assets compnse £2 824m (2009 £3,476m) of other assets and £2,542m {2009 £344m) of assets held at fair value

Off-bzlance sheet

The Group apphes fundamentally the same nsk management policies for off-balance sheet nsks as t does for its on-balance sheet risks tn the case of
commitments to lend customers and counterparties will be subject to the same credit management policies as for loans and advances Collateral may
be sought depending on the strength of the counterparty and the nature of the transaction
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Credit market exposures
Bardlays Capitat s credit market exposures pimarly relate to commercial real estate leveraged finance and a loan to Protium Finance LP These include
positions subject to farr value movernents i the income statement and positions that are classified as loans and advances and as available for sale

The balances and wnte downs presented below represent credit market exposures held at the time of the market dislocation in rmid-2007 Similar assets
acquired subsequent to the market dislocation are actively traded in secondary markets and are therefore excluded from the disclosure

The balances and wnte downs to 31st December 2010 are set out by asset class befow

Barclays Capital credit market exposures (audited) As at 31t December Year ended 315t December 2010
Falr value  Impaiment Yotal
(losses)/ (charge)/ (losses)/
2010 2009 2010 2009 gains release gains
$m sm £m £m £m £m £m
US Residential Mortgages
ABS CDO Super Senor 3,085 3,127 1,992 1931 - 137 137
Other US sub-pnme and Alt-A? 1,025 1447 662 894 (43) (1) (54)
Monoline protection on US RMBS - 9 - 6 (1)) - (1)
Commercial Mortgages
Commercial real estate loans and properties owned 11,006 12,525 7,106 7.734 (110) - (110)
Commercial mortgage-backed secunties® 184 352 119 218 {5} - (5}
Monolme protection on CMBS 18 49 12 30 40 - 40
Other Credit Market
Leveraged Finance® 7,636 8919 4,930 5,507 - (242) (242)
SiVs, SiV-Lites and CDPCs 618 896 399 553 50 27 77
Monoline protection on CLO and other 2,541 3,443 1.641 2126 {55) - {55)
Loan to Protium 10,884 12,727 7,028 7 859 - (532} (532)
Total 36,997 43,454 23,889 26,858 (124) {621) (745)

Dunng the year ended 315t December 2010 these credit market exposures decreased £2,965m to £23,889m (2009 £26,858m) The decrease
reflected net sales and paydowns and other movernents of £3,000m and total write downs of £745m, offset by foreign exchange rate movements of
£776m, pnimanly relating to the appreciation of the US Dollar against Sterling

In the year ended 31st December 2010 wnite downs comprised £621m (2009 £1,669m) of impairment charges and £124m (2009 £4,417m) of net farr
value losses through income Total write downs included an impairment charge of £532m (2009 £nil) relating to the Protiurn loan, losses of £75m
(2009 £3,007m) aganst commercial mortgage positions and losses of £220m (2009 £997m) against other credit market posittons partially offset by a
ganof £82m (2009 loss of £2 082m) against US residential mortgage positions

Loan to Protum
On 15th September 2009, Barclays Capital sold assets of £7,454m ($12,285m), including £5,087m ($8,384m) in credit market assets, to Protum
Finance LP (Protium) a newly established fund As part of the transaction Barclays extended a $12 641m 10 year loan to Protium

The table below Includes all assets held by Protium as collateral for the loan At 31st December 2010 there were assets wrapped by a monoline insurer
with a fair value of $4,806m (2009 $4 095m) Following the commutation of contracts with one monoling iInsurer in January 2071 there are no longer
any assets wrapped by meonohine insurers Cash and cash equivalents at 31st Decermber 2010 were $1,364m (2009 $688m) including cash realised
from sales and paydowns and funds available to purchase third party assets Other assets at 31st December 2010 were $811m (2009 $567m) including
residential mortgage-backed secunties purchased by Protrum post inception and other asset-backed secuntes

Principal and interest payments have been recetved in accordance with contractual terms. However, following a reassessment of the expected realsation
penod, the loan s carned at an amount equivalent to the far value of the underlying collateral This has resuited in an impairment charge of $824m (£532m;)

Notes

a As the majonty of exposure s held n US Dollars the exposures above are shown in bath
US Dollars and Stering

b 315t December 2009 comparatives have been adiusted to exclude actvely traded
pasitons relaung 1o other US sub-pnme and Alt-A of £498m and commerdal
rmortgage-backed secunties of £253m.

¢ Indudes undrawn comenitments of £264m (2009 £257m)
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Risk management
Credit risk management continued

Protium assets
The ongoing review of Barclays financial statements by regulators includes consideration of the non-consalidation of Protium Barclays continues to

conclude that 1t 1s appropriate not to consolidate Protium within the Group financial statements It shoutd be noted that the Groups results would not be
matenally different if Protium were to be consolidated

Fair value disclosures equivalent to those made for Barclays own financial assets have been provided below in respect of Protiums financial assets
totalling £7.028m (2009 £7,644m) which are used to collateralise the loan from Barclays The analysis below excludes cash and cash equivalents of
E881m (2009 £425m) that are also used to collateralise the loan The valuation technigques that would be used to measure these assets are descnbed
on pages 153 to 156 The valuations have been subject to Barclays valuation control frarmewark, which 1s descnbed on page 158

The following table shows Protium s financial assets measured at fair vafue disaggregated by valuation technigue within the fair value hierarchy and by
product type

Financial assets measured at fair value 2010 2009
CQuoted Significam Quoted Senificant
market  Observable unobservable market  Observable unobservable
prices Inputs nputs pnces nputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Leve! 3) Total (Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3} Total
As at 315t December £m £m fm £m £m £m £m £m
Trading portfolio assets
Other US sub-prime whole loans and real
estate - - 528 528 - - 641 641
Other US sub-prime secunties - 35 a7z 407 - 51 306 357
Alt-A - 41 1,399 1,440 - 70 1,234 1,304
Other trading portfolio assets 106 110 308 524 8 220 122 350
Fair value of underlying assets wrapped
by manoline insurers - 323 2,780 3,103 - 316 2,213 2529
Derrvative financial assets
Monoline protection - 145 - 145 - - 2,038 2038
Total 106 654 5,387 6,147 8 657 6554 7219
The following table shows movements in the Level 3 balances duning the year
Analysis of movements in Level 3 financial assets Trading Dervative
portfchio financial
assets  nstruments Total
£m £m £m
As at 1st January 2010 4,516 2,038 6,554
Purchases - - -
Sales {(14) - {14)
Settlements {415) (87) {502)
Total gains and losses in the period recognised in the Income statement 1,225 {1,805) {580)
Transfers in/(transfers out) 75 (146) [ta)}

As at 31st December 2010 5,387 - 5,387
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The significant movements in the Level 3 positions during the year ended 31 st Decemnber 2010 are explained below
— Settlernents represent assets that were paid i full, amortisation of principal, and payments frorn moncline insurers
- Total gains and losses represent changes tn the fair value of the assets, and losses due to commutation of contracts with monoline insurers
Sensitivity analysis of valuations using unobservable inputs 2010 2009
Favourable Unfavourable Favourable  Unfavourable
Total assets changes changes  Total assets changes changes
As at 31st December £m £m £m fm £m Im
Trading portfolio assets
Other US sub-prime whcle loans and real estate 528 75 (43) 641 1Mz (92)
Other US sub-prime secunties 372 53 (31) 306 54 (44)
Alt-A 1,399 198 (115) 1,234 216 {178)
Other trading portfolio assets 308 5 4) 122 6 {3)
Fair value of underlying assets wrapped by monoline insurers 2,780 166 {162) 2213 227 (446)
Derwvative financial assets
Mongline protection - - - 2038 209 (411)
Total 5,387 497 (355) 6,554 824 {(1.174)

The effect of stressing the unobservable assumptions to a range of reasonably possible alternatives would be to increase the far values by up to £0 5bn

(2009 £0 8bn) or to decrease the fair values by up to £04bn (2009 £1 2bn) with all the poteniral effect impacting profit and lass

The stresses appled take account of the nature of valuation techniques used, as well as the avatlability and reliabity of observable proxy and histonic data

In all cases, an assessment is made to determine the suitability of available data The sensitivity methadologies that are used to assess the Protium
assets are descnbed on pages 157 to 158 and are consistent with that of Barclays valuation control framework

Analysis of Barclays Capital credit market exposures by asset class

Financial  Financial

assets assets
Trading designated designated  Financial
portfolio at fair at fair assets Available
assets — value - value— designated Derivative for sale
debt equity debt at fair financial L&A to debt Other 2010 2009
securities  securities  securities value-LBA instruments customers  securiles assets Total Total
As at 31st December £m £m £m im £m £m £m £m £m £m
ABS CDO Super Sentor - - - - - 1,992 - - 1,992 1931
Other US Sub-prime and Alt-A - - - - 250 5 407 - 662 854
Monohne Protection on US RMBS - - - - - - - - - &
Commercial Real Estate Loans
and Property - 743 - 4,712 - - - 1,651 7,106 7734
CMBS 154 - - - (35) - - - 119 218
Monoline Protection on CMBS - - - - 12 - - - 12 30
Leveraged Finance? - - - - - 4,666 - - 4,666 5250
SIVs, SiV-ites and CDPCs - - 345 - 54 - - - 399 353
Monoline Protection on CLO and
Other - - - - 1,641 - - - 1,641 2126
Loan to Protium Finance LP - - — - — 7,028 - - 7,028 7.859
Total exposures 154 743 345 4,712 1,922 13,691 407 1,651 23,625 26,601
Note

a Undrawn commitments of £264m (2009 £257m) are off-balance sheet and therefore not
included in the table above




46 | Barclays Bank PLC Annual Report 2010 www barclays com/annualreport1G

Risk management
Credit risk management continued

Exposures to Selected Eurozone and Other Countnes
The tables below show the Group's exposures to selected countries {Spain, italy Portugal and Ireland), representing Eurozone countries that have a
credit rating of AA or below from Standard and Poor's and where the CGroup has an exposure of aver £0 5bn

The Groups exposure to Greece, which has a sovereign credit rating of BB+, was below £0 5bn The Group's balance sheet exposure to Egypt was
approximately £2bn, a significant proportion of which represented available for sale assets held in Treasury bills with a matunity less than one year In
addition, contingent liabuites and commitrnents included less than £1bn relating to Barclays Afica trade finance business in Egypt

The balances included in the tables below represent the Groups exposure 1o retail customers and wholesale customers {compnsing corporates and
soveretgns) in each of the respective countries

Assets are stated gross of any trading hability positions and before any nsk mitigation but net of impairment allowances and of dervative counterparty
netting and collateral held

Retal exposures As at 31st December 2010 As at 30th June 2010
Loans and Loans and

advancesat  Contingent  advancesat  Contngent
. arortised liabilities and amortised  habiibes and
cast commitments cast  commitments
£m £m £m Em
Spatn 19,053 1,306 18,124 1,805
Italy 16,324 1,004 14 239 945
Portugal 5813 1,384 4978 1162
Ireland 77 9 142 19

Retail exposures mainly related to our domestic tending in Spain, ltaly and Portugal, principally residentiat mortgages The credit quality of our mortgage
lending In Spatn and Italy reflects low LTV tending, with average mark to market LTVs at 31st December 2010 in Spain of 58% and in ltaly of 45% Credit
rnsk loan balances in Spain and Italy increased by 22% to £832m and 15% to £553m, respectively

Wholesale exposures Loans and advances at
amortised cost Assets held at falr value
Contingent
Of which Ofwhich  liabilities and
Total Government Total Government commitments
£m £m £m £m £m
As at 31st December 2010
Spain 6,574 86 8,625 6,665 2,550
Italy 3,180 - 9,258 7,382 2,622
Portugal 2,706 7 2,495 1,207 1,739
Ireland 3,069 - 3,320 452 1,422
As at 30th June 2010
Span 7167 133 8,731 6,403 3,182
italy 3,159 - 10,466 8,606 1,546
Portugal 2405 19 2408 Y177 1,543
Jreland 3324 - 3,160 328 1482

Whalesale exposures relating to Barclays Capital and Barclays Corporate activities in Spain, Italy, Portugal and ireland cover a broad range of SME
corporate and investment banking actvities as well as Western Europe treasury operations holdings of sovereign and corporate bonds in those
countries 1.oans and advances include exposures at 31st December 2010 to the property and construction industry in Spain of £2 951m, n Portugal of
£937m, in Ireland of £195m and in Italy of £71m

Assets held at fair value pnmanly comprise trading portfolio assets, which are highly iquid in nature, available for sale positions in investment grade debt
securities and denvatives
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Risk management
Market risk management

All disclosures 1n this section (pages 47 to 52) are unaudited unless otherwise indicated

Market Risk 1s the nsk that Barclays earnings or capital, or its ability to meet business objectives, will be adversely affected by changes in the level or
volatility of market rates or prices such as interest rates, credit spreads, commaodity prices, equity prices and foreign exchange rates

Overvew (audited)

The main sources of risk are traded market nsk, non-traded interest rate nisk, transtational foreign exchange nsk and pension nsk Traded risk resides
primanly in Barclays Capital while non-traded market nisk resides mainly in Global Retail Banking, Barclays Corporate, Barclays Wealth and Group
Treasury Translational foreign exchange nsk 1s managed by Group Treasury Pension nsk 1s managed centrally with the cost borne by respective
businesses

Barclays market risk objectives are (o

- understand and control market nsk by robust measurement and the setting of hmits,

- facihitate business growth within a controlled and transparent nsk management framework,
- ensure traded market nsk resides pnmarly in Barclays Capital, and

- minirnise non-traded market risk

Orgamsation and structure

The Board approves market nsk appetite for trading and non-trading actvities The Group Market Risk Director 1s responsible for the Barclays Market Risk
Control Framework and under delegated authonty from the Chief Risk Officer, sets a limit framework within the context of the approved market nisk
appetite A daily market nsk report summarises Barclays market nsk exposures against agreed lirmits This daily report s sent to the Chuef Risk Officer, the
Group Market Risk Director, the Group Finance Director and the appropnate Business Risk Directors

Market Risk Commuttee approves, and makes recommendations concerning the market risk profile across Barctays This inctudes approving Barclays
Market Risk Control Framework and Group Policies, reviewing current and forward issues, limits and utiisation, and proposing nsk appetrte levels for the
Board The Committee 1s chaired by the Group Market Risk Director and attendees include the Chief Risk Officer, respective business risk managers and
senior managers from Group Market Risk

The head of each business, assisted by the business market nsk managerment tearn, s accountable for all market nisks associated with its actviies The
head of each busmness market nsk team is responsible for iImplementing the Barclays Market Risk Control Framework which sets out how market nsk
should be identified, measured, controlled, reparted and reviewed The Frarmework also outlines and references Gioup market nsk policies

Market nsk oversight and chaflenge is provided by business commttees, Group Committees including Market Risk Comrmittee and the Group Market
Risk team

Traded market nsk {audited)

Traded market nsk 15 predominantly the result of client facilitation in wholesale markets This involves market making, offering hedge salutions
pre-hedging and assisting clients to execute large trades Not all client trades are hedged completely, giving nse to market sk In Barclays Capital,
trading nsk 1s measured for the trading boak, as defined for regulatory purposes, and certain banking beoks Barclays policy s 1o concentrate trading
actvities In Barctays Capital

Risk Measurernent
Barclays uses a range of complementary technical approaches to measure and control traded market sisk including Dally Value at Risk (DVaR), Expected
Shartfalt 3W, Pnmary and Secondary nsk factor stress testing and Cormbined scenano stress testing

DVaR 15 an estimate of the potential loss ansing fram unfavourable market movements, If the current positions were to be held unchanged for one
business day Barclays Capital uses the historical smulation methodology with a two-year equally weighted histoncal pertod at the 95% confidence
level

The historical simulation methodology can be spht into three parts

- Calcutate hypothetical daily profit or loss for each positon over the most recent two years, using observed daily market moves,

- Sum all hypothetical profits or losses for day one across all positions, giving one total profit or loss Repeat for all ather days in the two-year history,
and

- DVaR s the 95th percentrle selected from the two-year history of daily hypothetical total profit of loss

Market volatility in 2010 was impacted by concerns over future economic growth and the sovereign debt cnsis, but remained below the high levels
observed in 2008 Dunng 2010, the hugh volatility observations of 2008 rolled out of the two year DVaR histonical data set and were replaced in the data
time seres by Jess volatile 2010 observations

Barciays Capitals DVaR model has been approved by the FSA to calculate regulatory capital for certain trading book portfolios The approval covers
general market risk in interest rate, forergn exchange, commodities and equity products, and issuer spechic nsk for the majonty of single narme and
portfolio traded credit products For internal managerment purposes DVaR is also calculated for certain banking books as well as trading book portfolios
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Risk management
Market risk management continued

Traded market risk continued (audited}

The FSA categonses a DVaR model as green, amber or red A green model is consistent with a good working DVaR model and 15 achieved for models
that have four or less back-testing exceptions in a 12-month penod Back-testing counts the number of days when a loss (as defined by the FSA)
exceeds the corresponding DVaR estimate, measured at the 99% confidence level For Barclays Capitals DVaR model, green model status was
maintained for 2010 and 2009

The DVaR model 1s regularly assessed and reviewed internally by the Group Executive Models Cornmittee and the Barclays Capital Model Commitiee

When reviewing DVaR estimates, a number of considerations should be taken into account These are

- Historical simulation uses the most recent two years of past data to generate possible future rmarket moves but the past may not be a good ndicator
of the future

The one-day time horizon does not fully capture the market nsk of positions that cannot be closed out or hedged within one day,

— DVaR 15 based on positions as at close of business ang consequently intra-day nsk the risk frorn a position bought and sold on the same day, 1s not
captured, and

- DWVaR does not indicate the potential loss beyond the 95th percentile

In part due to the pomts above and in part due to the desire to measure risk beyond DvaR, Barclays uses additional metnics These include Expected
Shortfall, 3W, Primary sk factor stress testing, Secondary risk factor stress testing and Combined scenaro stress testing

Both Expected Shortfall and 3W metrics use the same two-year tistoncal simulation data set as used to calculate DVaR  Expected Shortfallis the
average of all one day hypothetical losses beyond the 95% confidence level DVaR while 3W is the average of the three largest one day estimated losses

Stress testing provides an estimate of potential significant future losses that might anse from extreme market moves or scenarios Primary stress testing
applies stress moves to key liquid nsk factors for each of the major trading asset classes including miterest rate, credit spread, commodity, equity and
foreign exchange Secondary stress testing applies stress moves to less iquid nsks such as optron volatility skew Combined scenario stress testing
applies simultaneous shocks to several risk factors feflecting a defined extraordinary, but plausible scenano e g what ts the estimated impact on profits
of a fixed exchange rate becoming floating This 1s assessed by applying respective changes on foreign exchange rates, interest rates credit spreads and
equities to the portfolio

Risk Control

Market Risk is controlled through the use of imits where appropriate, on the above nsk measures Limits are set at the total Barclays Capital level, nisk
factor level e g nterest rate sk and business line level e g Emerging Markets Stress lirnits and many book imits, such as foreign exchange and interest
rate sensitivity imits, are also i place

The total DVaR limit nsk factor DVaR fimits and 3W limit are approved by the Board Risk Comnuttee Primary stress limmits are approved by the Chief Risk
Officer and are tabled for noting by the Board Risk Committee Compliance with imits 1s monrtored by Barclays Capital's Market Risk team with oversight
provided by Group Market Risk

In 2010, to further improve the applhcation of the market nsk control framework, Group Market Risk initrated an ongoing programme of conformance
visits to Barclays Capital business areas These wisits review both the current market nsk profile and potential market nisk developmenits, as well as
venifying conformance with Barclays Market Risk Control Framework

The oversight and governance of Barclays Capital's market nisk models was also improved in 2010 This included making the model cormittee more
granular by having two distinct commutiegs, one specfically for model methodology and the other specifically for data integnty and infrastructure
Croup Market Risk 1s a member of both these commitiees

Risk Reporting

Barclays Capital Market Risk team produce a number of detalled and summary market nsk reports daily, weekly fortrightly and monthly These include
new for 2010, the Executive Key Risk Report (daily) and the Seror Management Significant Risk Pack (monthly) These reports summanse the positions,
nsks and top stresses covenng interest rate, credit spread, commodity equity and foreign exchange Barclays Capital market risk reports are sent to
Croup Market Risk for review and incluston m the Group Daity Market Risk Report

Analysis of traded market risk exposures (audited)

The trading environment in 2010 was charactenised by weak underying economic growih as well as unclear market direction resulting i lower elient
actmvity In this environment, Barclays Capital’'s market nsk exposure, as measured by average total DVaR, decreased by 31% to £53m (2009 £77m) The
reduction was due to a fall in exposures reflecting the lower client activity increased dwersification, and the rolling off of the 2008 highly volatile histoncal
data points

The two man nsk factors with matenal DVaR were credit spread and interest rate The average DVaR for each of these decreased by £10m (17%) and
£11m (25%) respectively Total DVaR as at 315t December 2010 was £48m {2009 £55m)

Expected Shortfall and 3W in 2010 averaged £78m and £144m respectively representing decreases of £43m (36%) and £65m {319} compared to
2009

As we enter 2011 the pninaipal uncertainttes which may impact Barclays market risk relate to volatiity in interest rates, commodsties, credit spreads,
equity pnices and foreign exchange rates Pnce instability and higher volatility may anse as government policy targets future economic growth against a
background of fiscal pressures, accommeodatory monetary policy and exogenous economic events
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The daily average, maximum and mmimum values of DVaR Expected Shortfall and 3W were calculated as below

The daily average, maximum and mimmum values of DVaR,

Expected Shortfall and 3W {audited) Year ended 315t December 2010 Year ended 315t December 2009

Average High® Low? Average High? Low?®
DVaR (95%) £m £€m £m £m £m £m
Interest rate risk 33 50 21 44 83 23
Credit Spread nsk 48 62 30 58 102 35
Commodity risk 16 25 9 14 20 11
Equity nisk 14 29 6 13 27 S
Foreign exchange nisk 6 15 2 8 15 3
Dwversrfication effect (64) n/a n/a (60) n/a n/a
Total BVaR 53 75 36 77 119 50
Expected Shortfall 78 147 47 121 188 38
3w 144 n 72 209 301 148

The Bank

Barclays Capital's market risk exposure, as measured by average total DVaR of 95%, decreased by 32% to £52m (2009 £76m) The high for the year
was £74m (2009 £118m) and the low for the year was £35m (2009 £49m)

Non-traded interest rate risk (audited)

Nen-traded interest rate risk anses frorn the prowsion of retail and wholesale {non-traded) banking products and services, when the interest rate
repncing date for loans {assets) 1s different to the repricing date for deposits (habities) This includes current accounts and equity balances which do not
have a defined matunty date and an interest rate that does change when the base rate changes The nsk resides mainly 1n Global Retal Banking Barclays
Corporate, Barclays Wealth and Group Treasury

Barciays objective 1s to minimise non-traded interest rate nsk and this is achieved by transfernng mterest rate nsk from the business to a local treasury or
Group Treasury which in turn hedges the net exposure with the external market Limits exist to ensure no matental ngk 1s retained within any business or
product area

Risk measurement
The nsk in each business 1s measured and controlfed using both an income metnc (Annual Earnings 2t Risk) and a present value metric (Economic Value
of Equity, Econormic Capital, Dadly Value at Risk, nsk factor stress testing scenario stress testing)

Annual Earnings at Risk (AEaR) measures the sensitivity of net interest income over the next 12 months Itis calculated as the difference between the
estimated income using the current yield curve and the lowest estimated income following a 100 basis pornts increase or decrease in interest rates,
subject to a minimum interest rate of 0%

The mam model assumptions are
- The balance sheet s kept at the current level 1 e no growth 1s assumed, and

- Balances are adjusted for an assumed behavioural profile This includes the treatment of fixed rate loans including mortgages

Economic Value of Equity (EVE}) calculates the change in the present value of the banking book for a 100 basis point upward and downward rate shock
This calculation 1s equivalent to that of AEaR except Economic Value of Equity 1s a present value sensitivity while AEaR is an incorne sensitmity

Economic Capital (EC) consistent models are used to measure recruitment nisk, the esk from customers not taking up therr fixed rate loan offer and
prepayrment risk, the risk of a custorner deciding not to carry on with therr fixed rate loan Behavioural profiles are also used when modelling the balance
sheet

Daily Value at Risk {DVaR) and nsk factor stress testing methodologies are consistent with those used by Barclays Capital DVaR and stress are used by
Treasunes that operate withi hgquid currencies such as Sterling US Dollar and £uros while for Treasuries that operate in less iquid currencies stress risk
15 the only present value metnc used

Risk Control

Market Risk 1s controlled through the use of imits on the above nsk measures Limits are set at the total business level and then cascaded down The
total business level imits for AEaR, EVE, EC, DVaR and stress are agreed by Market Risk Commuttee In 2010, a range of formal present value limits was
extended to inciude stress and EVE hrits Compliance with imits s monitored by the respective business market nisk tearm with oversight provided by
Croup Market Risk

Market Risk 15 also controlled through an ongoing programme of conformance visits by both the business market nsk departments and Group Market
Risk These visits review both the current market nisk profile and potential market nisk developrments as well as venfying conformance with Barclays
palicies and standards as detalled in the Barclays Market Risk Control Framework

Note

a The high {and low) OVaR figures reported for each category did not necessanly occur on
the same day as the high {and low) DvaR reported as a whole Consequently a
diversification effect number for the kigh (and low) DVaR figures would not be meaningful
and it 15 therefare outted from the above table
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Risk management
Market risk management continued

The interest rate risk for balances with no defined maturity date and an interest rate that Is not knked to the base rate 1s managed by Group Treasury A
senes of continuous equity and product structural hedges is used to mitigate the interest rate nsk

Risk Reporting {audited)

Each business area Is respansible for their respective market nisk reports A combination of daily and monthly nsk reports are produced and used by the
business These are alsa sent to Group Market Risk for review and inclusion in the Group dally market nsk report A nsk summary is also presented at
Market Risk Committee and respective Asset and Liability Committees

Analysis of Net Interest Income sensitivity

The table below shows the pre-tax net interest income for the non-trading financial assets and fnancial abilities held at 31st December 2010 and 31st
December 2009 The sensitvity has been measured using the AEaR methodology as descrbed above The benchmark interest rate for each currency is
set as at 315t December 2010 The figures include the effect of hedging instruments but exclude banking book exposures held or Issued by Barclays
Capital as these are measured and managed using DVaR

Net Interest Income Sensrtivity (AEaR) by currency {(audited) 3151 December 2010 315t December 2009
+100 basis <100 basis +100 basis -100 basis
points points paints [alellated
The Group £m £m £m fm
GBP 297 (377) 30 {360)
usp {12) (8) (43) 14
EUR (16} 12 (34) -
ZAR 13 (10) 29 (27)
Others ~ - (1) 4
Total 282 (383) (19) (369)
As percentage of net interest income 225% {(306%) (016%) (316%)

Non-traded interest rate nsk as measured by AEaR, was £383m as at 31st December 2010 an increase of of £14m compared to 31 st December 2009
The 2010 and 2009 AEaR estimates both reflect the reduced spread generated on retall and commercial banking habilities associated with a lower
interest rate environment If the interest rate hedges had not been in place then the AEzR for 2010 would have been £601m (2009 £704m)

DVaR 1s also used to control market nsk in Western Europe Retad Banking and in Croup Treasury The indicative average 2010 DVaRs were £1 6m (2009
£1 4m) for Western Europe and £0 7m (2009 £1 Om) for Graup Treasury

Net Interest Income Sensrtivity (AEaR) by currency (audited) 315t Decemnber 2010 315t December 2009
+100 b?sts -100 hiasis +100 basis -100 basis
oints ints gl
The Bank P £m poEm poErt: pmg:
CBP 172 (219) 16 (186)
uso (¥] {5) (22) 7
EUR {9 7 (18) -
ZAR 8 {6) 15 (14)
Others - - (1) 2
Total 164 (223) {10) (191)
As percentage of net interest iIncome 225% {3 06%) (016%)  (310%)

Note This table excludes exposures held or 1ssued by Barclays Capital as these are measured and managed using DVaR
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Analysis of Equity sensitivity (audited)

Analysis of equity sensstivity (audited) 315t December 2010 315t December 2009
+100 basis  -140 basis +100 basis -100 bases
polnts points ponts points
The Group £m £m £m fm
Net Interest lncome 282 (383) (19} (369}
Taxation effects on the above {70} 96 4 85
Effect on profit for the year 212 {287) {15) (284)
As percentage of net profit after tax 465% (629%) (015%) (276%)
Effect on profit for the vear (per above) 212 (287) (15) (284)
Avallable for sale reserve (2,051) 2,051 (527) 527
Cash flow hedge reserve (1,298) 1,288 {929) 357
Taxation effects on the above 835 (833) 335 (341)
Effect on equity {2,302) 2,219 (1,136) 859
As percentage of equity {367%) 354% {1 94%) 146%
Analysis of equity sensitivity {(audited) 31st December 2010 31 st December 2009
+100 basis 100 basis +100 basis <100 basis
points paints points pants
The Bank £m £m m £m
Net Interest Income 164 (223) (10} (191)
Taxatton effects on the above 19 (26) - (4)
Effect on profit for the year 183 (249) Q0) (195}
As percentage of net profit after tax 727% (9 89%) {0 10%) {1 91%)
Effect on profit for the year {per above)} 183 (249) (a0 (195}
Available for sale reserve (1,865) 1,865 (334) 334
Cash flow hedge reserve (1.136) 1,126 (798) 826
Taxation effects on the above {356) 355 {24) 25
Effect on equity (3,174) 3,097 (1,166) 990
As percentage of equity {(634%) 6.19% (244%) 207%

Foreign exchange risk (audited)
The Group 1s exposed to two sources of foreign exchange nsk

a) Transactional foreign currency exposure
Transactional foreign exchange exposures represent exposure on banking assets and abilities, denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the transacting entity

The Group's nsk management policies prevent the holding of significant open positions in foreign currencies outside the trading portfolio ranaged by
Barclays Capital which 1s monitored through DVaR

There were no matenal net transactional foreign currency exposures outside the trading portfolio at erther 31st December 2010 or 2009 Due to the low level
of non-trading exposwures no reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates would have a matenal effect on erther the Group's profit or movements in
equity for the year ended 31 st December 2010 or 2009

b) Translational foreign exchange exposure

The Croup’s translational foreign currency exposure anses frorn both its capital resources {including investments in subsidiaries and branches, intangible
assets, non-controlling interests, deductions from capital and debt capital instruments) and nsk weighted assets (RWAs) being denorminated n foreign
currencies Changes in foreign exchange rates result in changes in the Stering equivalent value of foreign currency denorminated capital resources and
nsk weighted assets As a result, the Group's regulatory capital ratios are sensitive to foreign exchange rate movements

The Groups capital ratio hedge strategy 1s to miremise the volatility of the caprtal ratios caused by foreign exchange rate movements To achieve this the
Group aims to maintain the ratto of foreign currency Core Tier 1 Tier 1 and Total Capital resources to foreign currency RWAs the same as the Groups
capital ratios
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Risk management
Market risk management continued

The Group s Investments in foreign currency subsidiaries and branches create capitat resources denominated n foreign currencies Changes in the
Sterling value of the investments due to foreign currency movements are captused in the currency transiation reserve, resulting in a movernent in Core
Tier 1 capital

Dunng 2010, structural currency exposures net of hedging instruments increased from £12 5bn to £15 3bn as a result of hedging decisions taken in
accordance with the Group's capital ratio managerment strategy for foreign exchange rate movernents

To create foreign currency Tier 1 and Total Caprtal resources addiional to the Core Tier 1 capital resources the Group issues where possible, debt
capntal iIn non-Sterling currencles This 1s pimaniy achieved by the 1ssuance of debt capital from Barclays Bank PLC, but can also be achieved by
subsidiartes 1ssuing capital in local currencies

The carrying value of the Group’s forergn currency netinvestments in subsidianes and branches and the foreign currency borrowings and dervatives
used to hedge them as at 31st December 2010 were as follows

Functional currency of the operation mvolved (audited) Structurat
Foregn  Boriowings  Derivatives currency Remaining
currency whichhedge whichhedge  exposures structural
net the net the net pre economic Economic currency
Investments  investments  investments hedges hedges exposures
£m £m £m £m £m £m
As at 31st December 2010
US Dollar 22,646 71,406 - 15,240 6,330 8,910
Euro 7,327 3,072 1,294 2,961 2,069 B892
Rand 4,826 - 1,626 3,200 - 3,200
Japanese Yen 5,304 3,603 1,683 18 - 18
Swiss Franc 152 - 157 () - (5)
Qther 3,139 — 824 2,315 - 2,315
Total 43,394 14,081 5,584 23,729 8,399 15,330
As at 315t December 2009
US Doltar 16,677 3205 - 13,472 6,056 7416
Euro 6,772 3418 - 3354 2,902 452
Rand 4,055 - 1,542 2513 189 2324
japanese Yen 4,436 3,484 940 12 - 12
Swiss Franc 2,840 2734 92 14 - 14
Other 2983 - 677 2,306 - 2,306
Total 37763 12,841 3251 21,671 9,147 12,524

The economic hedges primanly represent the US Dollar and Euro Preference Shares and Reserve Capital Instruments in 1ssue that are treated as equity
under IFRS, and do not qualify as hedges for accounting purposes Duning the year €850m Reserves Capital instruments were redeemed
The mpact of a change in the exchange rate between Sterling and any of the major currencies would be

- ahigher or lower Sterling equivalent value of non-Sterling denominated capital resources and nsk weighted assets This includes a higher or lower
currency translation reserve within equity, representing the retranslation of non-Sterling subsidianes, branches and assoctated undertakings net of the
impact of forergn exchange rate changes on dervatives and borrowings designated as hedges of net investments,

— @ higher or lower profit after tax, ansing from changes in the exchange rates used to translate items in the consolidated income statement and
— ahugher or lower value of avallable for sale Investments denominated in foreign currencies, Impacting the available for sale reserve
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Risk management
Capital management

All disclosures in this section (page 53) are unaudited unless otherwise indicated

Overview (audited)
Barclays operates a centrabised caprtal managerment model, considening both regulatory and econommic capital The Group's capital management
objectives are to maintain sufficient capital resources o

— ensure the financial holding compary 1s well capitalised relative to the minimum regulatory capital requirements set by the UK FSA and the US Federal
Reserve,

ensure locally regulated subsidiaries can meet their rinimum regulatory caprtal requirements,

support the Group’s Risk Appetite and Econormic Capital requirernents, and

|

support the Group’s credrt rating
Capital 1s allocated to businesses to support the Group's strategic objectives, Including opttmising returns on regulatery and economic capital

The Group Treasury Commuttee manages comphance with the Croup’s capital managermnent objectives The Committee reviews actual and forecast
capital demand and resources on a monthly basis The processes in place for delivering the Groups capital management objectives are to

~ establishment of internal targets for capital demand and ratios,
- manage capital ratio sensitivity to foreign exchange movernenit, and
- manage local entity regulatory capital adequacy

External regulatory capital requirements (audited)
The Group 1s subject ta rmimimum capital requirements imposed by the Financial Services Authonity (FSA), following guidelines developed by the Basel
Committee on Banking Supervision (the Basel Committee) and implemented in the UK via European Union Directives

Under Basel Il effectsve from 1st January 2008 the Group has approval by the FSA to use the advanced approaches to credit and operational nsk
managemnent Pillar 1 caprtal requiremnents are generated usting the Group's nsk models

Under Pillar 2 of Basel Il the Group I1s subject to an overall regulatory capital requiremertt based on individual capital guidance { ICG'} receved from the
FSA TheICG imposes addruonal capital requirernents in excess of Pillar 1 minimum capital

QOutside the UK, the Group has operations {(and main requlators) located in continental Europe, in particular France, Germany, Spamn, Portugal and Italy
{local central banks and other regulatory authonties), Asia Pacific (vanous regulatory authonties mcluding the Hong Kong Monetary Authority, the
japanese FSA and the Monetary Authonity of Singapore), Afnica, where the Groups operations are headquartered injohannesburg, South Afnca (The
South Afnican Reserve Bank and the Financial Services Board (FSB)) and the United States of America {the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve
Systern (FRB) and the Securrties and Exchange Commusston)

Local entity regulatory caprtal adequacy

The Group mariages its capital resources to ensure that those Group entities that are subject to local capital adequacy regulation i individual countries
meet their minimum capital requirernents The current policy of the Group s that the local capital requirements are met, to the greatest possible extent
through the retention of profit Certain cauntries also operate exchange control reguiations which imit the amount of dividends that can be remitted to
non-resident shareholders Local management manages compliance with subsidiary entity minimum regulatory capttal requirements with reporting to
{ocal Asset and Liability Committees and to Treasury Commuttee, as required

Injections of capital resources into Group entities are centrally controlled by the Group Treasury Comrttee, under authonties detegated from the Croup
Executive Commuttee The Group's policy I1s for surplus capital held in Group entittes to be repatnated to Barclays Bank PLC in the form of dvidends and/
or capital repatriation, subject to local regulatory requirements, exchange controls and tax imphcations

QOther than as indicated above, the Group is nat aware of any matenal impediments to the prompt transfer of capital resources or repayment of intra-
group liabilities when due

Regulatory capital
The table below provides details of the regulatory capital resources managed by the Group
Basel Il
Regulatory caprtal summary (audited) a;gm B;soe(l)g
Em fm

Total qualifying Tier 1 capital 53,729 49,722
Total qualifying Tier 2 capial 15,823 14,620
Total deductions (2,250) {880)

Total net caprtal resources 67,302 63462
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Risk management
Liguidity risk management

All disclosures in this section (pages 54 to 62) are unaudited unless otherwise indicated

Liquickty nsk 1s the nsk that the Group 1s unable to meetits abligations wihen they fall due as a result of a sudden, and potentially protracted, increase n
net cash outflows Such outflows would deplete available cash resources for client lending trading actvities, investments and deposits In extreme
circumstances lack of iquidity could result in reductions in balance sheet and sales of assets, or potentially an inability to fulfil lending commitments
The nisk that it will be unable to do so 15 1nherent in afl banking operations and can be affected by a range of institution-specrfic and market-wide events

Orgamsation and structure (audited)
Barclays Treasury operates a centrahsed governance and control process that covers all of the Group's iquidity nsk management actvities Businesses
assist Barclays Treasury i pohicy formation and firmit setting by providing relevant and expert input for their local markets and customers

Execution of the Group's iquidity nisk management strategy 15 carned out at country fevel within agreed policies, controls and imits, wath the Country
Treasurer providing reports directly to Barclays Treasury to evidence conformance with the agreed nsk profile Liquidity risk 1s a standtng agenda item at
Country and Cluster Asset and Liability Committees and on a consoflidated basis 1s reported to the Groups Treasury Committee

The objective of the Group’s liquichty sk management strategy 1s to ensure that the funding profile of ndividual businesses and the Group as a whoale 1s
appropriate to undertying market conditrions and the profile of our business in each given country Liquidity nsk imits and controls are flexed to achieve
that profile and are based on regular qualitative and quantitative assessments of conditions under both normal and stressed condittons Businesses are
only allowed to have funding exposure to wholesale markets where they can demonistrate that their market 15 sufficiently deep and hquid and then onty
relative to the size and complexity of ther business

Liquidity imits reflect both local regulatory requirements as well as the behavioural charactenstics of therr balance sheets Breaches of limits are reported
to Treasury Committee together with details of the requirements to return to compliance

Liquidity nsk framework (audited)

Barclays has a comprehensive Liquidity Risk Management Framework (the Liquidity Framework) for managing the Group's liquidity nisk The objective of
the Liquidity Framewark s for the Group to have sufficient iquidity to contmue to operate for at least the mintmum penod specified by the FSA in the
event that the whelesale funding markets are neither open to Barclays nor to the market as a whole Stress tests apphed under the Liquidity Framework
consider a range of possible wholesale and retall factors leading to loss of financing including

- Maturing of wholesale labilities,
— Loss of secured financing and widened haircuts on remaining book

Retad and cormmercial outflows from savings and deposit accounts,
— Drawdown of loans and commitments

- Potential impact of a 2 notch ratings downgrade, and

- Withdrawal of imitiat margin amounts by counterparties

These stressed scenartos are used to assess the appropnate level for the Groups kgquidity pool which comprises unencumbered assets and central bank
deposits Barclays regularly uses these assets to access secured funding markets, thereby testing the iquidity assumptions underying paol composition
The Group does not presume the availability of central bank borrowing facilities to monetise the iquidity pool in any of the stress scenarios under the
Liguidity Framework

Liguidity pool (audited)

The Group hquidity pool as at 31st December 2010 was £154bn gross (2009 £127bn) and compnised the followsng cash and unencumbered assets {of
which £140bn are FSA eligible) The Group maintans addinonal lquid assets to support ongeing business requirements such as payment services The
cost of the Group liguidity pool for 2010 has been allocated on the basis of the projected stress outflows ansing in each relevant business

Composition of the Group liquidity pool Governments
Cashand  Government and Other
deposits with  guaranteed supranational avallable
central banks bonds bonds liquiciity Total
£bn £bn £bn £bn £bn
As at 31st December 2010 96 1 46 n 154

As at 31st December 2009 81 3 31 12 127
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Liquidnty regulation
Since June 2010 the Group has reported its iquidity position against backstop Indvidual Liquidity Guidance (ILG) provided by the FSA Calibration of the
Croup’s Liquidsty Framework anticipated final FSA rules and 15 therefore broadly consistent with current FSA standards

The Basel Commuttee of Banking Supervisars {BCBS) issued rts final guidelines for iquidity nsk management, standards and monitonng in Decernber
2010 These guidelines include a short term hiquidity stress metric (the Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR)) and a longer term liquidity metnc (the Net Stable
Funding Ratic (NSFR)) The BCBS guidelines have yet to be implemented into European and UK law and therefore remain subject to refinement and
change

However, the Group menitors comgpliance against these BCBS metnics and the FSA 15 expected to bang its ILG metrics mto iine with the Basel LCR over
time Applying the expected BCBS guidelines to the Group's iquidity position as at 31st Decernber 2010, the relevant ratios were estimated at 80% of
the LCR requirernent and 94% of the NSFR requirement

Term financing {(audited)

The Group continues to attract deposits in unsecured money markets and to rase additional secured and unsecured term funding In a vanety of
markets As at 31st Decemnber 2009, the Group had £15bn of publicly issued term debt maturing dunng 2010 The corresponding figure for 2011 15
£25bn Durmg 2070 the Group 1ssued approximately £35bn of term funding comprsing

- £8bn equivalent of public semar term funding,

— f4bn equivalent of public covered bonds/ABS,

= £2bn equivalent of public subordtnated debt, and
- £21bn equivalent of structured notes

This £35bn of term funding refinanced the 2070 requirernent, both maturities and early repayments as well as pre-financed some of the 2011 and 2012
matunties Additional term funding raised in 2011 will support balance sheet growth, further extension of liabiity maturities and strengthering of our
liquidety position

The Group liquidity pool is sufficient to cover more than one year of wholesale matunties

Funding structure (audited)

Clobal Retad Banking, Barclays Corporate Barclays Wealth and Head Office Functions are structured to be seff-funded through custorer deposits,
Barclays equity and other long term funding Barclays Capital and, i part, Absa are funded through the wholesale secured and unsecured funding
markets

The loan to deposit and long term funding ratio improved to 77% at 31st Decernber 2010 (2009 81%) The loan io depostt ratic also improved to 124%
at 31st December 2010 (2009 130%)

Global Retaif Banking, Barclays Corporate, Barclays Wealth and Head Office functions (audited)

Animportart source of structural hquidity 1s provided by our core retail deposits in the UK Europe and Africa manly current accounts and savings
accounts Although, contractually cument accounts are repayable on demand and savings accounts at short notice, the Groups broad base of customers
- numencally and by depositor type - helps to protect against unexpected fiuctuations Such accounts form a stable funcing base for the Groups
operatons and liguidity needs

The Global Retail Banking, Barclays Corporate, Barclays Wealth busmnesses, together with Head Office functiorss, do not rely on short term wholesale
funding Rather, these businesses are funded through a combnation of customer deposits and long term debt and equity

in order to assess the funding requirement for these busnesses, the balance sheet 1s modelled to reflect behavioural expenence in both assets and
hiabilites The maturity profile, excluding Absa, resufting from this behavioural modeling 1s set out below As at 31 st December 2010 behavioural
modelling showed that expected repayments on assets are larger than the roll off of liabilities resulting in cash inflows for each of the first five years
Matunties of net liabilives are, therefore behaviourally expected to occur after 5 years
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Risk management
Liguidity nsk management continued

Behavioural matunty profile of assets and habilities (audited)

Cash inflow/ {cutflow)

Over Over Over Over
1yr but 2 yrs but Iyrsbut 4 yrs but
Not not more not more not more not more
Funding more than than than than Gver
surplus than 1yr* 2yrs 3yrs 4yrs Sy Syrs
£bn £bn £bn £bn £bn £bn fbn
As at 31st December 2010 859 47 177 301 104 22 {1550)
As at 31st December 2009 94 5 (102) 178 212 78 18 (1329)

included within the ‘Not More Than 1 yr' time bucket in the above analysis are £18 9bn of Group hquidity pool assets These assets have a contractual
matunty of greater than 1 year However they could be used to generate short-term cash flows, either through the sale or secured funding and so the
balance has been classified as generating cash flow inflows within 1 year

Barclays Capital {(audited)

Barclays Capital manages its iquidity to be pnmanily funded through wholesale markets, generating sufficient liquidity to ensure that potential cash
outflows in a stressed environment are cavered Much of the short term funding s mvested in highly liquid assets and central bank cash and therefore
contnbutes towards the Group hquidity pool

Barclays Capital undertakes secured funding in the repo markets based on liquidity charactenstics 66% (2009 73%] of the nventary 1s funded on a
secured basis Limits are in place for each secunty asset class reflecting iquidity in the cash and financing markets for these assets The percentage of
secured funding using each asset class as collateral 1s set out below

Secured funiding by asset class (audited) Govt Agency MBS ABS  Corporate Equity Other

% % % % % % %
As at 31st December 2010 64 7 9 3 7 7 3
As at 31st December 2009 59 7 7 6 10 8 3

Unsecured wholesale funding for the Group (excluding Absa} 1s managed by Barclays Capital within specific term limits Excluding short term deposits
that are placed within the Group liguidity pool the term of unsecured habilittes has been extended, with average life improving from at least 26 months
at 31st December 2009 to at least 30 months at 31st December 2010

Absa (audited}

Absa operates in a market with structural dependence on wholesale funding sources This dependence 1s a function of customer behaviours m relation
to savings in South Africa as a whole, where there is a higher cancentration of cash in investment funds thanin the bank savings This structural shortfall
relating to bank savings 1s transparent and carefully monitored

Note

a Includes £18 9bn of Croup iquidity pool assets that have a contractual matunty of greater
than one year but can be used to generate short-term cash flows erther through sale or
secured lending
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Contractual maturity of financial assets and habilities (audited)
Details of contractual matunties for assets and liabilities form an important source of information for the management of hiquidity nsk Such information
15 used (amongst other things) as the basis for modelling a behavioural balance sheet for input into the kquidity framework, as discussed above

The table below provides detait on the contractual matunty of all financial Instruments and other assets and liabriies Dervatives (other than those
designated in a hedging relationship) and trading portfolio assets and habiities are inciuded in the on demand column at therr fair value Liquidity nsk on
these items 15 not managed on the basis of contractual matunty since they are not held for settlement according to such matunty and will frequently be
settled before cortractual maturity at far value Denvatives designated i a hedging refationship are included according to their contractual maturty

Financial assets designated at far value in respect of linked habilities to customers under investrment comiracts have been included in other assets and
other habilites as the Group 15 not exposed to hquidity risk ansing from them any request for funds from creditors would be met by simultaneously

liquidating or transferning the related investment

Contractual maturity of financeal assets and liabilties (audited)

Qver three Over six Over one Over three Over five
months bt months bt year years but years but
Not more not more not more but not not more not more
Cn than three than six than one more than than five thanten Over ten
At 315t December 2010 demand mmonths manths year  three years years years years Total
The Group £m £m £m £Em £m £m €m £m £m
Assets
Cash and balances at central
banks 96,842 788 - - - - - - 97,630
Items in the course of collection
from other banks 1,168 216 - - - - - - 1,384
Trading portfalio assets 168,930 - - - - - - - 168,930
Financial assets designated at fair
value 789 5,678 1,110 2,773 7411 3,745 2,461 16,089 40,056
Dervatrve financial instruments 418,587 114 20 96 488 444 396 174 420,319
Loans and advances to banks 5,698 26,462 1,858 946 2,260 5 111 459 37,799
Loans and advances to customers 48,222 60,908 9,553 16,079 53,374 44,324 65,809 129673 427542
Reverse repurchase agreements
and other sirmilar secured lending 114 192,423 7,366 5,089 390 124 238 28 205,772
Available for sale financiat
investments 297 71,589 2,979 5,851 15,053 10,007 12,127 11,537 65,440
Qther financial assets - 2,040 - - 784 - - ~ 2,824
Total financial assets 740,647 296,218 22,886 30,834 79,760 58,649 81,742 157,960 1,468,096
Other assets 21,942
Total assets 1,490,038
Liabilhies
Depostts from banks 5,754 65,755 2,161 2,247 739 790 249 280 77,975
Iterns in the course of collection
due to other banks 1,312 9 - - - - - - 1,321
Customer accounts 230,895 77,607 13,958 11,423 5211 3,539 2,263 906 345,802
Repurchase agreements and
other similar secured borrowing Q07 216,454 4,358 2,755 739 256 59 6 225,534
Trading portfolio habilibes 72,693 - - - - - - - 72,693
Fmancial iabiities designated at
fair value 1,237 17,866 6,19 6,963 21,453 18,446 13,553 10,073 95,782
Denvatrve financal instruments 403,163 303 72 101 390 927 286 274 405,516
Debt secunities in issue 17 50,735 17,982 33172 23,130 13,032 12,028 6,527 156,623
Subordinated liabihties - 835 - 218 2,094 475 9,499 15,378 28,499
Other financral habiiives - 4,295 - - 990 - - - 5,285
Total financial liabgties 715,978 433,859 44,722 56,879 54,746 37,465 37,937 33,444 1,415,030
QOther liabilities 12,367
Total hatnlities 1.427,397
Curnulative hquidity gap 24,669 (112,972} (134,808) (160,853} (135,839) (114,655) (71,450} 53,066 62,641
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Risk management
Liquidity risk management continued

Contractual maturity of financial assets and habilities {(audited)

Over three Over six Over one Over three Over five
monthsbut  months but year years but years but
Not more not more not mere but not not more not moie
on than three than six than one more than than five thanten Qver ten
At 31st December 2010 demand menths menths year  three years years years years Tota
The Bank £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Assets
Cash and balances at central
banks 92,041 645 - - - - - - 92,686
Items in the course of collection
from other banks 1,165 103 - - - - - - 1,268
Trading portfolio assets 95,034 - - - - - - - 95,034
Financial assets designated at far
value 77 3,496 346 1,824 4,202 1,991 2,295 14,950 29,181
Dervative financial instruments 439,278 108 12 61 286 293 344 763 441,145
Loans and advances to banks 5,303 20,929 1,900 3,978 5274 134 1,933 939 40,390

Loans and advances to customers 51,708 230,225 5,774 12,711 39,694 35,288 53,752 93,784 522936
Reverse repurchase agreements

and other similar secured fending 531 210915 6,671 4,085 390 401 238 4,112 227,343
Avallable for sale financial

investments 7 3,750 1,289 2,003 10,338 7616 12,141 8,077 45,221
Other financial assets - 1,263 - — 241 - - - 1,504
Total financial assets 685,144 471,434 15,992 24,662 60,425 45,723 70,703 122,625 1,496,708
Other assets 39,582
Total assets 1,536,290
Liabilities

Deposits from banks 23,008 67,112 231 2,418 1,348 637 250 442 97,526
Items in the course of colfection .

due to other banks 1,261 9 - — - - - - 1,270
Customer accounts 182,657 223,697 19,040 8,741 9,374 5313 4,346 1,258 453826
Repurchase agreements and

other similar secured borrowing BB4 205,814 5,326 1,123 739 256 59 5 214,207
Trading portfolio habiltties 44,352 - - - - - - - 44 352
Financial habilities designated at

far value 1,225 17,463 6,771 7.124 22,293 18,920 13,705 9,541 97,042
Derwative financial instruments 423,980 303 72 82 345 903 286 272 426,243
Debt secunttes in 1ssue - 29,045 13,097 27,541 12,971 10,073 10,782 2,758 106,267
Subordinated habilites - 833 - 218 760 155 9,499 15,529 26,994
Other financial liabilities - 14,926 - - 29 - - - 15,217
Total financial habitties 676,767 559,202 46,617 47,247 48,121 36,257 38,927 29,806 1,482,944
Qther habilities 3,301
Total iabilities 1,486,245

Cumulative iquidity gap 8377  (79391) (110,016) (132,601} (120,297} (110,831) (79,055} 13,764 50,045




Rarclays Bank PLC Annual Report 2010 www barclays com/annualrepert10 59
Contractual maturity of financial assets ancd liabilities (audited)
Over three Over six Over ane Over three Over frve
monthsbut  manths but year years but years but
Not more net more not mare but not not more not M
On than three than s thanone mare than than five than ten Over ten
At 31st Decemnber 2009 demand months manths year  threeyears years years years Totat
The Group £m £Em fm £m £m £m £m £m fm
Assets
Cash and balances at central
banks 80,592 891 - - - - - - 81,483
Items in the course of collection
from other barks 1,243 350 - - - - - - 1,533
Trading portfolo assets 151,395 - - - - - - - 151,335
Financial assets designated at far
value 679 10,795 1,679 2456 5514 3,998 2,293 13,897 471,31
Dervative financral nstrurments 415,633 216 115 89 236 101 334 86 416815
Loarts and advances to banks 5,114 30,385 314 1,787 2,396 %44 98 497 41,135
Loans and advances to customers 44,826 68,876 8987 17,848 51,886 38357 63,180 126,264 420,224
Reverse repurchase agreaments
and other similar secured lending 248 129,095 3,558 5604 4,680 N 210 5 143431
Avallable for sale financial
Ivestments 1157 6999 8356 3434 20,530 6,039 6802 3334 56,651
Other financial assets — 2816 - — 660 — — - 3476
Total financial assets 700892 250,423 23,000 31,218 85902 45,070 72917 144083 1,357514
Other assets 21,634
Total assets 1,379148
Liabtlities
Deposits from banks 3,861 50,020 4,850 15558 1325 200 420 212 76,446
items 1n the course of collection
due to other banks 1,373 93 - - - - - - 1,466
Customer accournts 205854 B6,481 8226 11,940 2,954 3049 2,864 1,047 322455
Repurchase agreements and
other similar secured borrowing 502 189843 5446 2525 326 108 28 2 198,781
Tradmg portfolio habilites 51,252 - - - - - - - - 51252
Financial labiities designated at
farr value 1,219 17,599 5,755 7,145 18,780 14,701 14,647 6356 86,202
Dernvative inancial instrnuments 402,019 186 68 37 M1 433 394 168 403416
Debt securities n issue 64 43,390 17,761 13408 29,904 11,607 7,838 5,930 135,902
Subordinated kabilities - 173 1 27 1,234 1375 89871 13135 25816
Other financial liabthities - 4959 - - 1135 - - - 6094
Total financial habilties 666,184 352,744 42,107 56,640 55,769 31,473 36,063 26 850 1,307,830
Other liabilties 12,619
Total liabilites 1,320449
Cumulatve iquidity gap 34708 (107,613) (126711) (152133) (122000} (104403) (67.549) 49684 58699
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Risk management
Liquidity risk management continued

Contractual maturity of financial assets and habilities (audited}

Cver three Qiver six Over ane Over three Over five
months but  months but year years but years but
Not more ngt more nat more but not Aot morg ngt more
on than three than sec than one more than than five than ten Qver ten
At 3ist December 2009 demand months manths year  tweeyears years years years Total
The Bank £m Em Em £m £m £fm £m fm £m
Assets
Cash and balances at central
banks 77674 773 - - - - - - 78447
[terns in the course of callection
from other banks 1,248 125 - - - - - - 1,373
Trading portfolio assets 93,806 - - - - - - - 93,806
Financial assats designated at fair
value - 3838 840 1,564 2841 2,635 2,263 13 664 27645
Denvative financial nstrurnents 428976 194 72 42 158 73 272 108 429,895
Loans and advances to banks 2818 24,456 548 4,201 5746 620 2,331 2,243 42,963
Loans and advances to custorners 39,694 226,426 6472 10977 44 604 35,637 57177 91,141 512128
Reverse repurchase agreements
and other similar secured lending 17 135,677 2.144 3179 4,184 29 198 5 145433
Avallable for sale financial
Investments 24 3194 5879 2124 13,218 3353 5392 3390 36,574
Other financial assets - 1090 - - 108 - - - 1,198
Total financial assets 644 257 395773 15,955 22087 70859 42,347 67,633 110,551 1,369462
Other assets 29,966
Total assets 1,395428
Liabilties
Deposits from banks 14251 52,537 5,143 14,700 2,575 125 497 425 90,253
Itemns In the course of coflection
due to other banks 1,374 10 - - - - - - 1384
Customer accounts 162,323 245996 6,036 12223 10,874 3,139 2,183 1,745 444519
Repurchase agreements and
other simtlar secured borrowing - 156450 5,550 2435 326 108 324 2 165195
Trading portfolio habilities 33534 - - - - - - - 33,534
Financiat iablities designated at
far value 1,146 16,805 5,692 6757 18071 14,454 14,341 6,270 83546
Dervative financial instruments 417,055 170 63 31 90 413 381 151 418354
Debt securities in issue - 21,775 12,059 12,287 20,608 8043 6,378 991 82,141
Subordinated habilities - - - 27 1,100 792 9,693 13,281 24,893
Other finangial liabilities — 1,292 — — 277 - - - 1,569
Total financial habilities 629683 495035 34 543 48,470 53,921 27074 33797 22865 1,345388
Other liabidities 6,209
Total lsiabilities 1,351,567
Cumulative iquidity gap 14,574 (84688) (103276) (129659) (112721) (97448) (63612} 24,074 47 831

Expected matunty dates do not differ signficantly from the contract dates except for

— trading portfolio assets and liabifities and derwative financial instruments which may not be held to maturity as part of the Croup's trading strategies
For these instruments, which are mostly held by Barclays Capital, Iquidity and repricing risk 15 managed through the Daily Value at Risk (DVaR)

methodology,

- retal deposits which are included withun customer accounts, are repayable on demand or at short notice on a contractual basis In practice, these
instruments form a stable base for the Group's operations and kquidity needs because of the broad base of customers — both numencally and by

depositor type, and

— financial assets designated at fair value hekd in respect of linked liabilities, which are managed with the associated liabilities
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Contractual maturity of financial flabiittes on an undiscounted basis (audited)

The table below presents the cash fiows payable by the Group under financial liabiities by remaining contractual matunties at the balance sheet date

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows of all financia!l iabilities (te norminal values) whereas the Group

manages the inherent hquidity nsk based on discounted expected cash inflows
Contractual matunty of financial liabilities - undiscounted {(audited) Over one year

Within one but not more Over five

At 315t December 2010 On demand veu tnfveyms e T
The Group
Deposits from banks 5,754 70,197 1,636 613 78,200
Iterns in the course of collection due to other banks 1,312 9 - - 1,321
Customer accounts 230,895 103,119 9,169 3,446 346,629
Repurchase agreements and other similar secured borrowing 907 223,589 1,099 71 225666
Trading portfolio liabilities 72,693 - - - 72,693
Financia! iabilites designated at fair value 1,237 32,408 45,573 34,745 113,963
Dervative finanoal nstruments 403,163 509 1,478 1,131 406,281
Debt secunttes inissue 17 103,437 39,519 26,304 169,277
Subordinated kabilties - 1,934 5,645 26,785 34,364
Other financial habilities - 4,295 990 - 5,285
Total financial habiries 715978 539,497 105,109 93,095 1,453,679
Off-balance sheet items
Loan commitments 188,958 17,755 5912 10416 223,041
Other commitments 227 806 183 - 1,216
Total off-balance sheet items 189,185 18,561 6,095 10,416 224,257
Total financial liabilties and off-balance sheet items 905,163 558,058 111,204 103,511 1,677,936
The Bank
Deposits frorm banks 23,008 71,893 2,114 766 97,781
Items in the course of collection due to other banks 1,261 9 - - 1,270
Customer accourts 182,057 251,514 15,060 6,064 454695
Repurchase agreements and other similar secured borrowing 884 212,285 1,099 71 214339
Trading portfalio labilities 44,352 - - - 44352
Financial liabilies designated at farr value 1,225 32,831 46,971 34,504 115,531
Derwvative financial instruments 423,980 488 1,437 1,117 427,022
Debt securities in ssue - 71,119 26,429 19,364 116,912
Subardinaied liabilities - 1,932 4,008 26,918 32,858
QOther financial labilities - 14,926 291 - 15,217
Total financial liabilities 676,767 656,997 97,409 88,804 1,519,977
Off-balance sheet tems
Loan commutments 160,266 11,650 2,129 227 174,272
Other commitments i56 599 169 - 924
Tota! off-balance sheet items 160,422 12,249 2,298 227 175,196
Total financial labilities and off-balance sheet tems 837,189 669,246 99,707 89,031 1,695,173
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Risk management
Liquidity risk management continued

Contractual maturity of financial habilities - undiscounted (audited) Over one year

within one  but not more Over five
At 315t December 2009 Ondemand year than fve years years ol
The Group
Deposits from banks 3,861 70,645 1,607 773 76886
Items 1n the course of collection due to other banks 1,373 93 - - 1466
Custormer accounts 205894 106,991 6 899 5488 325,272
Repurchase agreements and other similar secured berrowing 502 197,864 450 37 198853
Trading portfolio habilities 51,252 - - - 51,252
Financial kabilities designated at fair value 1219 31 030 35733 34206 102188
Dervative financizl instrurments 402,019 311 627 998 403,855
Debt securities in Issue 64 82215 46,055 22243 150577
Subordinated habilities - 2,01 6,295 26,342 35,238
Other financial habiities - 4,959 1,135 - 6094
Total financial liabilities 666,184 496 209 98,801 90,587 1,351 781
Off-balance sheet items
Loan commitments 127,540 74,111 4181 861 206,693
QOther commitments 386 384 19 - 789
Total off-balance sheet tems 127,926 74,495 4,200 861 207,482
Total financial liabilities and off-balance sheet items 794,110 570 704 103 001 91 448 1,559,263
The Bank
Deposits frorm banks 14,251 72587 2876 1,054 90,768
Iterms tn the course of collection due to other banks 1374 10 - - 1,384
Customer accounts 162,323 263,207 15,340 73N 448,181
Repurchase agreements and other simifar secured borrowing - 164483 450 430 165363
Trading portfolic liabilities 33,534 - - - 33,534
Financial habhies designated at farr value 1146 29 668 34 897 33,450 99,201
Derwative financial nstrurments 417 055 264 644 889 418852
Debt securities In 1ssue - 47 324 32,274 12,485 92083
Subordinated habilities - 1.785 5,242 26535 33,562
Other financial liabilities - 1,292 277 - 1,569
Total financial liabilites 629683 580 620 92,000 82,194 1,384497
Off-balance sheet tems
Loan commitments 117879 38,581 2815 440 159,715
Qther commitments 319 250 1 - 570
Totat off-balance sheet tems 118,198 38,831 2816 440 160,285
Total financial liabilities and off-balance sheet iterns 747 881 619 451 94 816 82634 1544782

The balances in the above table do not agree directly to the balances in the consclidated balance sheet as the table ncorporates all cash flows on an
undiscounted basis, related to both pnncipal as well as those associated with all future coupon payments

Dervative financial instruments held for trading and trading portfolio habiliies are included in the on demand column at their far value

Financial liabilittes designated at fair value In respect of inked habiities under iInvestment contracts have been excluded from this analysis as the Group 1s
not exposed to hquidity nisk anstng from them
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Risk management
Supervision and regulation

All disclosures in this section {(pages 63 to 65) are unaudited

The Group's operations, including tts overseas offices, subsichanes and
associates are subject to a signrficant body of rules and regulations that
are a condition for authonsation to conduct banking and financial services
business, constrain business aperations and affect financial retums These
nclude reserve and reparting reguirements and conduct of business
regulations These requuements are imposed by the relevant centrat banks
and regulatory authonties that supervise the Group in the junsdictions mn
which it operates The requirements reflect global standards developed by,
amang others, the Basel Commuttee on Banking Supervision and the
International Organisation of Secunties Commuissions They also reflect
requirernents derived from EU directives

In the UK, the Financlal Services Authority {FSA) remains, pending the
reorganisation of the UK regulatory regime (see below), the independent
body responsible for the regulation and supervision of deposit taking Iife
insurance home mortgages, general insurance and investment business
Barclays Bank PLC 15 authonised by the FSA under the Financial Services
and Markets Act 2000 to carry on a renge of regulated activities within the
UK and 1s subject to consolidated supenvsion by the FSA. In its role as
supervisor, the FSA seeks to maintain the safety and soundness of
financial institutions with the aim of strengthering, but not guaranteeing
the protection of customers and the financial system The FSAs continumg
supervision of financial nstitutions 1s conducted through a variety of
regulatory tools including the collection of information from statistical and
prudential returns reports obtained from skilled persons, visits to firms
and regular meetings with management to discuss issues such as
performance nsk management and strategy

The FSA adopts a nsk-based approach to supervision The starting point
for supervision of all financial institutions 1s a systematic analysis of the nsk
profile for each authorsed firm The FSA has adopted a homogeneous risk,
processes and resourcing model 1a its approach to its supenvisory
responsibihties (known as the ARROW model) and the results of the sk
assessment are used by the FSA to develop a nsk mitgatron programme
for afirm This 1s supplemented with a rolling prograrmme of continuous
engagement on prudential and conduct matters with high impact firms
such as Barclays The FSA also promulgates requirements that banks and
other financial institutions are required to meet on matters such as capital
adequacy, hmits on large exposures to indndual entibes and groups of
closely connected entrties liquidity and rules of business conduct

The Banking Act 2009 (the Banking Act) provides a permanent regime to
allow the FSA, the UK Treasury and the Bank of England to resolve failing
banks in the UK. Under the Banking Act, these authonties are given
powers including (a) the power to issue share transfer orders pursuant to
which all or sorme of the secunities issued by a bank may be transferred to
a commercial purchaser or Bank of England entity and (b} the power to
transfer all or some of the property, nghts and liabilities of the UK bank to a
purchaser or Bank of England entity A share transfer order can extend to a
wide range of secunties including shares and bonds issued by a UK bank
(including Barclays Bank PLC) or its holding comparny (Barclays PLC) and
warrants for such shares and bonds The Banking Act powers apply
regardless of any contractual restrictions and compensation may be
payable in the context of both share transfer orders and property
appropnation

The Banking Act also gives the Bark of England the power to overnde, vary
or impose contractual obligations between a UK bank or its holding
company and rts forrmer group undertakings for reasonable consideration,
inorder to enable any transferee or successor bank of the UK bank to
operate effectively There is also power for the Treasury to amend the law
(excluding provisions made by or under the Banking Act) for the purpose
of enabling 1t to use the regime powers effectively potentially with
retrospective effect In addition, the Banking Act gives the Bank of England
statutory responsibility for financial stability in the UK and for the oversight
of payment systems

The Financial Services Act 2010, among other things requires the FSA to
make rules about remuneration and to require regulated firms to have a
rernuneration policy that 1s consistent with both effective risk management
and the standards ssued by the Finanoial Stability Board The FSA s
mandated to make rules that require authonised firms (or a subset of
authonsed firms) to draw up recovery and resalution plans and to consult
with the Treasury and the Bank of England on the adequacy of firms’
plans This Act also allows the FSA to make rules requinng firms to operate
a collective consumer redress scherme to deal with cases of widespread
failure by regulated firms to meet reguiatory requirements that may have
created consumer detnment.

Banks, insurance companies and other financial nstitutions in the UK are
subject to a single financtal services compensation scheme (the Financial
Services Compensation Scheme — FSCS) where an authonsed firm is
unable or is likety to be unable to meet claims made agamnst it because of
its financial arcumstances Most deposits made with branches of Barclays
Bank PLC within the Eurapean Econormic Area (EEA) which are
denominated in Sterling or other EEA currencies (Including the Euro) are
covered by the FSCS Most dlaims made in respect of investrment business
will also be protected claims if the business was carned on from the UK or
from abranch of the bank or investment firm in another EEA member
state The FSCS1s funded by levies on authonsed UK firms such as
Barclays Bank PLC In the event that the FSCS raises those funds more
frequently or significantly increases the levies to be paid by firms, the
associated costs to the Group may have a matenal impact on the Groups
results Further details can be found in Note 24 (Contingent hiabilires and
commitments) on pages 117 and 118

Qutside the UK, the Group has operations {and main regulators) located in
continental Europe in particular France, Germany Spain Switzertand,
Portugal and Italy (local central banks and other regulatory authorities)
Asia Pacific (vanous regulatory authonties including the Hong Kong
Monetary Authonty, the Financial Senices Agency of Japan, the Australian
Secunties and Investments Commission the Monetary Authonty of
Singapore, the China Banking Regulatory Cormrmussion and the Reserve
Bank of India}, Afnica and the Middle East (vanous regulatory authorities
including the South Afncan Reserve Bank and the Financial Services Board
and the regulatory authorities of the United Arab Ermirates) and the United
States of Amenca (including the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve
System (FRB) the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (OCC) and the
Secunties and Exchange Comrmussion (SEC))

The UK regulatory agenda is considerably shaped and influenced by the
directves emanating from the EU These form part of the European Single
Market programme animiportant feature of which 15 the framework for
the requlation of authansed firms This framework 15 designed to enable a
credit institution or INvestment firm authonsed m one EU member state to
conduct banking or mvestment business through the establishment of
branches or by the provision of services on a cross-border basis in other
mernber states without the need for locat authonsation Barclays
operations in Europe are authorrsed and regulated by a combmation of
both home (the FSA) and host regulators

Barclays operations in South Afnca, including Absa Group Limited, are
supenvised and regulated by the South Afncan Reserve Bank (SARB) and
the Fmnanaal Services Board (FSB) SARB oversees the banking industry
and follows a nsk-based approach to supervision whilst the FSB oversees
the nen-banking financial services industry and focuses on enhancing
consumer protection and requlating market conduct.
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Risk management

Supervision and regulation continued

In the United States, Barclays PLC, Barclays Bank PLC and Barclays US
banking subsidiaries are subject to a comprehensive regulatory structure
ivolving numerous statutes rules and reguiations, including the
International Banking Act of 1978 the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956
as amended (BHC Act) the Foreign Bank Supervision Enhancement Act of
1991, the Financial Services Modermization Act of 1999 and the USA
PATRIOT Act of 2001 Such laws impose restrictions on the activities of
Barclays, including its US banking subsidianes and the Bank's US branches,
as well as prudential restrictions, such as limits on extensions of credit by
the Bank's US branches and the US bankmng subsidearies to affibates The
New York and Florida branches of Barciays Bank PLC are subject to
extensive federal and state supervision and regulation by the FRB and the
New York and Flonda banking supervisors Barclays Bank PLC also operates
a federal agency in California that 1s hcensed by and subject to regulation
and exarmunation by the OCC Barclays Bank Delaware a Delaware-
chartered commercial bank s subject to supervision and regulation by the
Delaware banking supervisor and the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC) Only the deposits of Barclays Bank Delaware are
mnsured by the FDIC

Barclays PLC and Barclays Bank PLC are bank holding compares registered
with the FRB Following the transfer of ownership of Barclays Bank
Delaware from Barclays Group US Inc to Barclays Bank PLC, Barclays
Group US Inc 15 no longer a bank helding company Barclays PLC and
Barclays Bank PLC have each elected to be treated as a financial holding
company under the BHC Act Financial halding companies may engage in
a broader range of financial and related activities than are permitted to
registered bank holding companies that do not maintain financial holdng
company status, including underwnting and dealing in all types of
securties To mantain financial holding company status, each of Barclays
PLC and Barclays Bank PLC 1s required to meet or exceed certain capital
ratios and to be deemed to be ‘well managed, and Barclays Bank Delaware
must meet certain capital requirements, be deemed to be ‘well managed’
and must have at least a 'satisfactory’ rating under the Community
Resnvestment Act of 1977

Barclays US secunties broker/dealer, snvestment adwvisory and Investment
banking operations are subject to ongoing supervision and regulation by
the SEC the Financiai industry Regulatory Authonty (FINRA) and other
government agencies and seif-requlatory organisations as part of a
comprehensive scheme of regulation of all aspects of the secunties
business under the US federal and state secunties laws

The credit card-related activities of the Croup n the US are subject to the
Credit Card Accountability, Responsibiity and Disclosure Act of 2009
(Credit CARD Act) which was enacted by Congress tn May 2009 to prohibit
certain credit card pricing and marketing practices for consurmer credit
card accounts Among the numerous provisions, which carpe inte effect at
vanous times through August 2010, are those that prohibit increasing
rates on existing balances and aver mit fees m most instances restrict
increasing fees and rates prospectively restrict what penalty fees can be
assessed, regulate how payments are to be allocated te different balances
and how the biling process is to work and revises all communications to
cardholders

Regulatory Developments

In the wake of the financial crisis there has been regulatory change that,
when fully implemented, will have a substantial impact on all financial
institutions, including the Group Regulatory change 1s being pursued at a
number of levels, globally notably through the G20, Financial Stabiiity
Board (FSB) and Basel Committee on Banking Supervision, regionally
through the European Urion and nationally, especially in the UK and US 1t
15 of importance to the Group and to the banking industry generally that
the vanous badies work harmeniously and that a globally consistent
approach 15 taken to banking regulatron

Global

While some of the uncertanty surrounding the nature of the future
regulation of banks has been resobvec, the full extent of the impact of
regulatory change is not yet fully clear Nevertheless, the pragrammae of
reform of the global regulatory framework that was agreed by G20 Heads
of Government in April 2009 has advanced substantially duning 2010,
notably through the 1ssue of final guidetines on Basel ill caprtal and hquidity
standards in December 2010 The requirements of Basel Ill will be
applicable from 1st January 2013 with a number of transitional provisions
that run to the end of 2018 An Imuial assessment of the bkely impact of
the Basel lll capital, leverage and liquidity requirements can be found on
page 8 and 55

The FSB has been designated by the G20 as the body responsible for
co-ordinating the delivery of the glabal reform programme It 1s continuing
to work on developing additional regulation as well as guidelnes for the
supervision of systermcally signsficant institutions A key element of the
global reform programme 15 that systemic institutions, including globally
systermnic financeal institutions (G-SIFIs) should be capable of being
resclved without recourse to taxpayer support The details of the future
regime far systemic banks remans one of the areas of uncertainty,
although the FSB has made It clear that systemically significant institutions
will be required to maintain loss absorbency that 1s greater than the
standards that are impiied by Basel Il This additional ioss absorbency may
take the form of some combination of capital surcharge, requirements to
hold contingent capital nstruments and bail-n debt Systermic banks will
be subject to enhanced supervision and a comprehensive crisis
management framewaork within supervisory colleges The concept of
batl-in debt may, if pursued, affect the nghts of senior unsecured creditors
subject to any bail-in in the event of a resolution of a falling bank Further
proposals including the identification of G-SiFls will be developed dunng
the first half of 2011 Barclays 1s likely to be considered a systemically
sigreficant mstitution

The FSB1s also working on approaches to the resolution of systermicatly
significant institutions that will include the preparation of Recovery and
Resoluticn Plans, sornetimes called ‘lving wills' Further detail 1s awaited
from the FSB and from national regulatory bodies including the FSA,
although the FSA has undertaken a pilot project wath a group of large UK
barks including Barclays

While the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision has largely completed
the process of setting new standards for capital and liquidity, a number of
workstreams remain active that will affect the Group These include a
fundamental review of the trading book in addition to the enhanced
capital requirements for trading book exposures that were implemented
on 1stJanuary 2011 The Basel Committee 15 also understood to be
exarrining a regine for large exposures

European Union

The Basel Committee’s proposals will be implemented in the EU by
amendment to the Capital Reguirements Directive (CRD} Formal
proposals to amend the CRD are expected In the summer of 2011 which
will help address some of the remaining uncertainties In addition, other
amendments are being made to the EU framewaork of directives, including
to the Directive on Deposit Cuarantee Schemes This may affect the
amounts to which the Group may be liable to fund the compensation of
depositors of faled banks The proposal also envisages that national
schemes should be pre-funded This would be a significart change for
UK banks where levies are currently raised as needed after falure The
financial impact on the Group 1s not yet clear
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Further amendments to EU regulatory requirernents are likely as the EU
develops its response to the financial crgis, including the structure of the
regulatory systern in the EU On 1st January 2011, a number of new bodies
came into being, including a European Systernic Risk Board to monitar the
financial systern and advise on macroprudential actions and a European
Banking Authority charged with the development of a single rulebook for
banks in the EU and with enhancing co-operation between nationat
supervisory authonties, especially in the context of the supension of
banks that operate across borders within the EU The European Banking
Authonty will have the power to mediate between and overnde national
authonties under certain circumstances National authonties however,
remain responsible for the day-to-day supervision of financial iInstitutions

Other EU developments include consideration of European arrangements
in respect of cnisis management and the resolution of financial institutions
The European Comrussion tssued a discussion paper in January 2011, and
proposals for legislation are expected In 2011 These are ikely to have an
impact on the nghts of shareholders and credstors of faiing institutions
Proposals are also expected in relation to corporate governance and to
amend the Markets in Financial Instruments Directive which wall affect
marny of the investment markets in which the Group operates and the
nstuments in which it trades

United Kingdom

The Government 1s reforming the structure of regulation to replace the
FSA and the tnpartite system that also involved the Bank of England and
HM Treasury It proposes that a Financial Policy Committee should be
established in the Bank of England with responsibility for the moritonng
and control of systernic nisk, incfuding the deployment of macro-prudental
tools of supervision Responsibility for prudential regulation will pass to a
Prudental Regulation Authonty to be established as a subsidiary of the
Bank of England, while a Financial Conduct Authonty (FCA) will be
responsible for issues of business and market conduct and market
regulation The FCA will also be the UK listing authonty These reforems will
requure pnmary legislation to be passed by Parkament This process 1s not
expected to be complete before late 2012 in anticipation of the new
regulatory structure an intenm Financial Policy Committee has been
created and the FSA will reorganise itself into separate Prudential and
Consumer and Markets business urits on 4th Apnl 2011 The Government
15 also considering the creation of an Economic Crime Agency to deal with
senous finanoial cnme

On 16th fune 2010, the Chancellor of the Exchequer announced the
creation of the Independent Comrmuss:on on Banking (ICB} The ICB has
been asked to consider structural and related non-structural reforms to the
UK banking sector to promote financial stability and competition, and to
make recornmendations to the Government by the end of Septernber

2011 The ICB intends to publish an intenm report in Apn!, to be followed
by a further round of consultation Although the ICB has yet to make
recommendations and it is not possible to predict what the Covernment’s
dispositron to any recommendations that are made will be, therets a
possibility that the Commussion could recomimend change to the structure
of UK banks

The FSA continues to develop its more inirusive and assertive approach to
supervision and its policy of credible deterrence m refation to enforcerment
that has seen significant growth in the size of regulatory fines In
anticipation of international agreement, the FSA has established and
implemented capital and higwdity requirernents that are substantally
increased from pre-cnsis ievels The Retail Distnbution Review and the
Maortgage Market Review will affect the economics of investment advice
and home finance provision respectively The FSA has also launched a
consultation on iis ntention to adopt a more interventionist approach to
the design of financial products and to the governance processes around
the de<ign of new products The Government has stated that these
increasingly interventionist regudatary and superwvisory policies wali be
camed through into the FCA when it is established

United States

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consurner Protection Act {DFA)
was signed into law in july 2010 The Act provides for a new Financial
Stability Oversight Counal {FSOC), governmental resolution authonty for
failing non-depository financial institutions (including bank holding
companies) under the aegis of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corparation,
reorganisation of severa! of the bank supervisory agencies, a new
Consumer Fmancial Protection Bureau {CPFB) and a federal Insurance
Office It alsoimposes harsher capita, lquidity and leverage requirements,
as well as wide-ranging new requirements including for denvatives, hedge
funds, private equity funds credit rating agencies, debit card interchange
fees and corporate governance The full scale of the DFAs impact on the
Group remains unclear because the rules required to implement many of
the provisions of DFA have, in most cases not been implemented and, in
severalimportant areas, have yet to be proposed by the responsible
agencies Nonetheless, certain provisions of the DFA are particularly Iikely
to have an effect on the Group These nclude

- The ability of the FSOC to make recommendations to the Federal
Reserve regarding the estabhshriert of heightened supenvisary
requirements and prudenitial standards applicable to ‘systematically
impartant’ entities and actvities and work wath all pnmary financial
regulatory agencies to establish regulations, as necessary, to address
financial stability concems It 1s not yet clear what regard the FSOC or
the other agencies will have to the home country prudential regulators
of non-US orgamisations such as the FSA, in the case of the Group,

— The so-cafled ‘Volcker Rule," which will once effective, significantly
restact the abity of US bank holding comparues and their affitates and
the US branches of foreign banks, to conduct propnetary trading in
secunties and denvatives as well as certan activities related to hedge
funds and private equity funds The Volcker Rule 1$ likely to have a
sigrificant impact on some of the Group’s US operations The DFA
states that the Rule does not affect activities conducted ‘entirely’ outside
the United States by non-US organisations, but the Federa! Reserve has
not indicated how 1t intends to interpret this exclusion i practice,

- Sgnificant changes to the trading and regutation of dervatives and
participants in the denvatives markets Among the changes mandated
by the DFA are that many types of denvatves now traded in the
over-the-counter markets be traded on an exchange or swap execution
faciity and centrally cleared In addition, many participants in these
markets wil be required to register with the US Commodity Futures
Trading Commussion (CFTC) as ‘swap dealers or ‘major swap
participants’ and/ar with the US SEC as “secunties swap dealers or
major secunties swap dealers’ and be subject to CFTC and SEC
regulation and oversight Barclays Bank PLC and one or more of its US
subsidiaries may be subjected to these requirements

In addstion to the ability of the FSOC to recommend heightened
prudential standards for specific institutions the DFA, separate and
apart from Basel lll, also rmposes higher capital, iquidity and leverage
requirements on US barks and bank holding comparues generally, and

— The ability of the CPFB to regulate the credit card industry, including the
terms of credit card agreements with consumers, disclosures, and fees
Actions by the CPFB In this area are lkely to impact the Group's US
credit card business
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Citizenship

ee Our role 1s to help iImprove the lives
of our customers. We must provide
mortgages, allow businesses to invest
and create jobs, protect savings, pay
tax, be a good neighbour in the
community while also generating
positive economic returns for our
Investors 99

Bob Diamond, Chief Executive

Qur key areas of focus are contnbuting to growth and supporting our
communities Underpinning these i1s a foundation of sound business
principles and practice that ensures integrity in the way we do
business

Our Group Executive Commuttee 1s responsible for our overall citizenship
strategy, and supports the Chief Executive in its implementation This
Committee along with the Board, uses a robust reporting framework to
review progress

Contnbuting to growth

We employ nearly 150,000 people around the world In 2010, 2,000 new
tobs were created and 1,200 graduates were hired in the UK, bringing the
total employed in the UK to 65,000 Our global tax contributions amounted
to £6 1bn, including £2 8bn paid on behalf of our emplayees (n addition,
we paid more than £8 7bn to suppliers i 37 countnes

in 2010, Barclays provided £43bn of gross new lending in the UK including
£7 5bn from the acquisition of Standard Life Bank and assisted maore than
106,000 business start-ups, an icrease of 12% over 2009 |n South Africa,
Absa’s Enterprise Development Centres helped almost 5000 new
businesses to start up 1n 2010

In the last five years, Barclays employees have volunteered
over one rmilion hours in their local communities and raised
more than £75m through our matched fundraising scheme

Barclays Chmate Action Programme 2011-2015 1s our direct respense to
1ssues concerning the enviconment and chimate change We are focusing
on the areas where we have the greatest potential to make a difference
ncluding

- Managing our carbon footprint — including a commitment to reduce
absolute carbon ermssions by 4% by 2013 and creating an Afnican
Carbon Fund to supply seed capital to carbon mitigation projects
1n Africa

- Developing products and services to help enable the transition to
a low-carben economy —including financing and nsk-management
solutions to enable capital to flow to lower carbon opportunities

- Managing chmate change nsks — including collaborating with cther
stakeholders to manage the nsks of climate change to our operations
our clients and to society at large

in 2010 four out of five Barclays UK business lending
applications were approved

We're helping our custormers, clients and other stakeholders invest in ways
that coninbute to growth tomorrow We are prowiding financing solutions
to private and public sector chents, facilitating investment in infrastructure,
development and the low carbon economy

Supporting our communities

In 2010 we committed over £55m to community programmes across 37
countries Our programmes are diriven by the passion and energy of 62,118
colleagues around the world, who volunteered their time or took part in
fundraising and regular gmng These efforts benefitted 15 million people
and supported more than 8 000 organisations

Citizenshrp
Contributing to growth Supporting our communities
— Drrect contnbution — Supporting social
employment and economic infrastructure
value added
~ Increasing access to financial
— Supporting growth today services

customers and clients
- Investing in the community

- |nvesting intomorrow

9 tomarro - Building a diverse workforce

- Managing our environmental
footpnnt

The way we do business
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Our People

Global mimmum standards

To maintain balance between overall control and effective local decision
making we have established global governance frameworks and rmimum
standards to regulate how we manage and treat our employees around
the world The key areas covered are summansed below

Performance management and compensation

The performance and development process provides employees with the
opportunity to have regular discussions with their hne managers about
therr performance and to receive coaching for their personal development
This 1s typically assessed twice a year and a performance rating agreed
We believe in pay for performance based on the performance of ndviduals
and therr businesses

Diversity and inclusion

Barctays operates across the globe and engages with employees across a
wealth of dverse and rich cultures Cur mission 1s to create a truly inclusive
environment through ensunng that we treat people farrly and value dversity

Health and safety

Qur commutment I1s to ensure the health, safety and welfare of our
employees and to provide and maintain safe working conditions Good
working climates will help our employees to better serve aur custormers
and create value for all our stakeholders

Training

Developing both existing and new employees is key to our future prosperity
We undertake this through formal classroom-based training and informal
on-the-job traning, education and coaching Minemum mandatory training
15 prowded o all employees on policies and regulatory responsibiities
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Directors’ report

Business Review
The Company I1s reguired to set out in this report a fair review of the
business of the Group duning the financial year ended 31st December

2610 and of the position of the Group at the end of the financial year and a

description of the pnncipal nsks and uncertainties facing the Group
{known as a ‘Business Review') The purpose of the Business Review s to
enable shareholders to assess how the Directors have performed their
duty under Section 172 of the Comparves Act 2006 (duty to promote the
success of the Compary)

The information that fulfils the requirements of the Business Review can

be found on pages 2 to 67 and 1s incorporated mto this report by reference

From the perspective of the Bank, the review of the business and the
principal nisks and uncertamnties facing the Company are integrated with
those of Barclays PLC, the Banks ultimate parent Therefore additional
inferrnation may be found in the 2010 Annual Report of Barclays PLC,
which does not form part of this report

Barclays 1s a major global financial services provider engaged in retail
banking, credit cards, corporate and investment banking and wealth

management Barclays operates through branches, offices and subsidianes

in the UK and overseas

The results of the Group show a pre-tax profit of £6,079m (2009
contruing operations £4,559m) for the year and profit after tax of
£4 563m (2009 continuing operatrons £3 512m) The Group had net
assets of £62 641m at 31st December 2010 (2005 £58,669m)

Profit Attributable

The profit attnbuiable to the equity holders of the parent for the year
amounted to £4,172m compared with £3 228m from continuing
operations and £6,765m from discontinued operabions in 2009

Dwvidends

Total dividends on erdinary shares paid during 2010 are set out i Note 10
to the accounts Disdends paid on preference shares for the year ended
315t December 2010 amounted to £485rm (2009 £477m)

Share Capirtal
There was no increase i ordinary share capital during the year Barclays
PLC owns 100% of the 1ssued ordinary shares

Directors

The Directors of the Bank are listed on page 70 The Directors’ interests in
shares are set out in Note 40 of Barclays P1L.C's Annual Report and
Accounts The membership of the Boards of the Bank and of Barclays PLC
15 identical

Board Membership

The membership of the Boards of Directors of Barclays PLC and Barclays
Bank PLC 15 1dentical Dambisa Moyo and Alison Camwath were appointed
as non-executive Directors with effect from 1st May 2010 and 1st August
2010 respectively Lexgh Clifford and tohn Varley left the Board on 30th
September 2010 and 31st December 201C respectively

Directors' Indemnities

Qualifying third party indemnity provisions (as defined by section 234 of
the Companies Act 2006) were in force duning the course of the financial
year ended 31st December 2010 for the benefit of the then Directors and,
at the date of this report, are In force for the benefit of the Directors in
relation ta certain losses and liabilities which they may incur (or have
incurred) in connection with thew duties, powers or office

Community Involvement

Barclays has an extensive community investment programme Covering
many countnes around the warld The Croup provides funding and
support to over 8 000 chanties and voluntary organisations, ranging from
small, lacal chariues like The Passage, supporting homeless people in
London, to international organisations ike Unicef We also have a very
successful employee programme which in 2010 saw more than 62,000
employees and penrsioners worldwide taking part in Barclays-supported
volunteering, gving and fundratstng activities Further information on our
community Ivolvernent is given on pages 4 and 66 The total
commutment for 2010 was £55 3m {2009 £54 9m) The Croup
committed £28 6m in support of the commurity in the UK {2009 £274m)
and £26 7m was cormrmutted i internatienal support {2009 £275m) The
UK comrmutment inchudes £22 9m of chantable donations (2009 £193m)

Employee Involvemnent

Barclays 1s committed {o ensunng that employees share in the success of
the Group Staff are encouraged to participate in share option and share
purchase schemes and have a substantial sum invested in barclays shares
Employees are kept informed of matters of concern to them in a vanety of
ways, including the business unit news magazines, intranets, briefings and
rmabile phone SMS messaging These cormmunications help achieve a
commeon awareness among employees of the financial and economic
factors affecting the performance of Barclays Barclays is also committed to
providing employees with opportunities to share their views and provide
feedback on ssues that are impartant to them Employee Opinion Surveys
are undertaken penodicatly across the Group with results being reported ta
the Board all employees and to our European Works Council Africa Forum
Untte (Armicus section), our recagrised urion in the UK and other
recognised unions worldwide Roadshows and employee forums alsc take
place In addtion, Barclays undertakes regular and formal consultations
with our recognised trade unions and work councils internaticnally
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Diversity and Inclusion

The diversity agenda at Barclays seeks to include custarners, colleagues
and suppliers Qur objectve 1s to recruit and retain the best people
regardless of {but not limited to) race, religion, age, gender, sexual
onentation or disability We stnve to ensure our workforce reflects the
communities n which we operate and the intemational nature of the
organisation We recognise that diversity 1s a key part of responsible
business strategy in support of our increasingly global business In the UK,
Barclays 15 committed to providing additional support to employees with
disabilities and making 1t easler for them to inform us of their specific
requirernents, including the introduction of a dedicated intranet site and
disability helpline Through our UK Reasonable Adjustments Scheme,
appropnate assistance can be given, incdluding physical workplace
adjustments, and relevant traimng and access to trained mentors 1s also
provided for disabled empioyees A wide range of recruitment inttiatives
have been taken 10 increase the number of people with disabilities werking
n Barclays

Creditors’ Payment Pollcy

Barclays vatues 1ts suppliers and acknowledges the importance of paying
ivoices, especially those of small businesses 1na timely manner Barclays
policy follows the Department for Business Innovation & Skills’ Prompt
Payment Code, copres of which can be obtaned from the Prompt Payment
Code website at www promptpaymentcode org uk,

The trade credrtor payment days for Barclays Bank PLC for 2010 were 27
days (2009 27 days) This 1s an anthmeucal calculation based on the
Compames Act Regulations and does not necessanly reflect our practice,
whuch s described above, nor the experience of any mdividual creditor

Essential business contracts
There are no persons with whom the Group has contractual or other
arrangements that are considered essential to the business of the Group

Contracts of Significance

Under the terms of a stack purchase agreement dated 16th June 2009
which was entered into by and among Barclays Bank PLC, Barclays PLC
and BlackRack, Inc (BlackRock), Barclays agreed to sell Barclays Global
Investars (BGI) to BlackRock The sale completed on 15t December 2002
following the receipt of all necessary shareholder and regulatory approvals
and satisfaction of other closing conditions The consideration at
completion was US$15 2bn (£3 5bn), including 37 567 million new
BlackRock shares giving Barclays an economic interest of 19 9% of the
enlarged BlackRock group Barclays has provided BlackRock with
customary warranties and indemnities in connection with the sale
Barclays Bank will also continue to provide support in respect of certain BCI
cash funds untl December 2013 and indermnities in respect of certam of
BCils fully collateralised secunities lending activities until 30th Novemnber
2012

Research and Development
In the ordinary course of business the Group develops new products and
services in each of its business units

financial Instruments

Barclays financial nsk management objectives and policies, iIncluding the
policy for hedging each major type of forecasted transaction for which
hedge accounting 15 used, and the exposure to market risk, credit nsk and
iquidity risk are set out on pages 20 to 62

Events after the Batance Sheet Date
Events after the balance sheet date are noted on page 166

The Auditors

The Board Audit Commuttee reviews the appointment of the externat
auditors, as well as therr refationstup with the Croup, including monitonng
the Group's use of the auditors for non-audrt services and the balance of
audit and non-audit fees paid to the auditors More details on this can be
found in Note 8 to the accounts

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP have been the Cormpany's auditors for many
years Having reviewed the independerce and effectiveness of the external
auditors, the Commuittee has not considered 1t necessary to date to require
them to tender for the audit work but wif keep this Issue under review
The external auditors are required to rotate the audit partners responsible
for the Group and subsidiary audits every five years Our previous lead
audit partner, who had been 1n place for five years, was replaced for the
2010 year end There are no contractual obligations restncting the
Company's choice of external auditor The Commutiee has recommended
to the Board that the existing auditors PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP be
reappointed PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP have signified therr willingness
to continue In office and ordinary resolutions reappointing them as
auditors and authonsing the Directors to set their remuneration will be
proposed at the 2011 AGM So far as each of the Directors are aware, there
13 rio relevant audst information of which the Company’s auditors are
unaware Each of the Directors has taken all the steps that he or she ought
to have taken as a Director in order to make himself or herself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Compary's auditors are
aware of that informaticn For these purposes, ‘relevant audit formation’
means information needed by the Company s audrtars in connection with
prepanng their report

By order of the Board

A e _:'*'-"—T“-—-...,N___w

Lawrence Dickinson C?'Z’ < .
Joint Secretary AN

10th March 201
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Directors and Officers and Statement of
Directors’ responsibilities for accounts

Current Directors and Officers
Marcus Agius - Group Chairman

Executive Directors
Bob Diamond - Chief Executive
Chris Lucas — Group Finance Birector

Non-executive Directors

Sir Richard Broadbent — Deputy Chairman
David Booth

Alison Carnwath

Fulvio Conti

Simon Fraser

Reuben jeffery I

Sir Andrew Likierman

Dambisa Moyo

Sir Michael Rake
Sir John Sunderland
Appainted to Executive
Current Executive Committee members Committee
Bob Diamond Chief Executive 1997
Chris Lucas Group Finance Directar 2007
Jerry ded Missier Co-Chief Executive of Barclays 2009

Capitat and Co-Chief Executive of
Corporate and Irvestment

Banking
Mark Harding Group General Counsel 2009
Antony Jenkins Chief Executive, Globat Retall 2009
Banking
Tom Kalans Chief Executive Barclays Wealth 2008
Robert Le Blanc Chief Risk Officer 2009
Maria Ramos Chief Executive, Absa 2009
Rich Rice Co-Chief Executive of Barclays 2009
Capital and Co-Chief Executive of
Corporate and Investment
Banking
Cathy Turner® Barclays Human Resources 2008
Director
Other Officers Apponted to position
Lawrence Dickinson  Joint Secretary 2002
Patrick Gonsalves Joint Secretary 2002
John Worthb Croup Financial Controller 20

Going concern

The Group's business actvities and financial position the factors likely to
affect 1ts future development and performance and its abjectives and
pobcies in managing the financial risks to which it is exposed and 1ts
capital are discussed in the Business Review

The Directors have assessed, In the light of current and anticipated
economic conditions, the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
The Directors confirm they are satisfied that the Company and the Group
have adequate resources to continue in business for the forseeable future
For this reason, they continue to adopt the ‘going concern basis for
prepanng accounts )

Notes
a Cathy Turner will leave the Group at the end of March 2011
b fohnWorth held the position of Intenm Group Financial Controller dunng 2010

Statemnent of Directors’ responsibiliies for accounts

The following statement, which should be read 1n conjunction with the
Auditors’ report set out on page 72, 1s made with a view to distinguishing
for shareholders the respective responsibilities of the Directors and of the
auditors i relation to the accounts

The Directors are required by the Companies Act 2006 to prepare accounts
for each financial year and, with regards to Group accounts, in accordance
with Article 4 of the IAS Regulation The Direciors have prepared indvidual
accounts in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Unton The
accounts are required by law and IFRS to present farly the financial
position of the Company and the Group and the perforrmance for that
penod The Companies Act 2006 provides, in relation to such accounts
that references 1o accounts gving a true and fair view are references to fair
presentation

The Directors consider that n preparing the accounts on pages 74 to 79,
and the additional information contained on pages 80 to 166, the Group
has used appropriate accounting policies, supported by reascnable
Judgements and estimates, and that all accounting standards which they
consider to be applicable have been fallowed

The Directors have responsibility for ensunng that the Company and the
Group keep accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy
the financial position of the Company and the Group and which enable

them to ensure that the accounts comply with the Companies Act 2006

The Directors have general responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to
prevent and detect fraud and cther sregulanties

Disclosure controls and procedures

The Chief Executive, Bob Diamond and the Group Finance Director, Chns
Lucas, conducted with Group Management an evaluation of the
effectiveness of the design and operation of the Groups disclosure controls
and procedures as at 31st Decemnber 2010 which are defined as those
controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to
be disclosed in reports filed or submitted under the US Secunties
Exchange Act of 1934 1s recorded, processed summansed and reported
withun the time penods specified in the US Secunities and Exchange
Commussions rules and forms As of the date of the evaluation, the Chief
Executive and Group Finance Dhrector concluded that the design and
operation of these disclosure controls and procedures were effective

The Directors confirm to the best of thewr knowledge that

{a) The financal statements, prepared in accordance with the applicable
set of accounting standards, give a true and fair view of the assets,
habilities, financial position and profit or loss of Barclays Bank PLC and the
undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, and

{b} The management repcrt which is incorporated into the Directors
Report on pages 68 to 63 includes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of Barclays Bank PLC and
the undertakings ncluded i the consolidation taken as a whole together
with a descnption of the principal nisks and uncertainties that they face

Signed on behalf of the Board

W .
Marcus Aglus
Group Charman

10th March 2011

Registered inEngland Company No 1026167
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Presentation of information

Barclays Bank PLC 15 a public imrted compariy registered in England under
company number 1026167 The Bank was mcorporated on 7th August
1925 under the Colomial Bank Act 1925 and on 4th October 1971 was
registered as a company hmited by shares under the Companies Acts 1948
to 1967 Pursuant to The Bardlays Bank Act 1984, on 1st January 1985 the
Bank was reregistered as a public mited compary and its name was
changed from Barclays Bank International Lirnited to Barclays Bank PLC

All of the issued ordinary share capital of Barclays Bank PLC 1s owned by
Barclays PLC

BBA Code for Financial Reporting Disclosure

In September 2010, the Bntish Bankers' Association published a Code for
Financial Reporting Drsclosure The Code sets out five disclosure principles
together with supporting guidance The principles are that UK banks will

- provide high quahty, mearingful and decision-useful disclosures,

review and enhance therr financial Instrument disclosures for key areas
of interest,

— assess the apphicability and relevance of good practice
recomimendations to their disclosures acknowledging the importance of
such guidance,

- seek to enhance the comparability of financial statement disclosures
across the UK banking sector, and

— clearly differentiate in their anrwual reports between information that i1s
audited and information that i1s unaudited

Barclays PLC, the Parent Company of Barclays Bank PLC has adopted the
BBA Code for Financial Reporting Disclosure and has prepared the 2010
Annual Report and Accounts in compliance with the Cade

The Group aims to continually enhance 185 disclosures and their usefulness
to the readers of the financial statements in the light of developing market
practice and areas of focus

In particular, 1n 2010 we have refacused our financial staterment disclosures
to concentrate on matenal items and to reduce disclosures of immatenal
items

Please refer to the Barclays PLC Annual Report for the additional disclosure
rtermns ansing from the adoption of the Code Most significantly, additional
iformation regarding the business model, more information on strategy
on cntical accounting estimates nisk refated information and a glossary of
terms

Differences between Barclays Bank PLC and the Parent Company —
Barclays PLC

Barclays Bank PLC 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of Barclays PLC, which 1s
the Group’s ultimate parent company The consolidated results and
financial position of Barclays Bank PLC Croup and Barclays PLC Group are
matenally the same, with the key differences being that, in accordance
with IFRS

- Barclays PLC shares held by the Group in employee share schemes and
for trading purposes are deducted from reserves in Barclays PLC but
recogrused as avallable for sale and trading portfolio assets within Barclays
Bank PLC, and

- Preference shares 1ssued by Barclays Bank PLC are included within share
capwal and share premium in the Barclays Bank PLC Group but represent
non-controlling interests in the Barclays PLC Croup, and

- Certain 1ssuances of reserve capital instruments and capital notes by
Barclays Bank PLC are included within cther shareholders equity in the
Barclays Bank PLC Group, but represent non-controlling mterests in
Barclays PLC

More extensive disclosures are contaned in the Barclays PLC Annual
Report for the year ended 315t December 2010 including risk exposures
and business perfarmance, which are mateniaily the same as those in
Barclays Bank PLC
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Independent Auditors’ report

Independent Auditors’ report to the members of Barclays Bank PLC
We have audited the finanaal staternents of Barclays Bank PLC for the year
ended 31 December 2010 which compnise the Consoitdated income
statement and the related Consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, Consohdated and Bank balance sheets, Consolidated and Bank
Statements of changes in equity and Consolidated and Bank cash flow
statements, the related notes and the parts of the Risk management
section that are referenced as audited The financal reporting framework
that has been applied in their preparation is apphicable law and
Internatronal Financiat Reporbing Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
Furopean Union and, as regards the parent company financial statements,
as applied In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explamed more fully in the Directors’ Responsibiities Statement, the
directors are respansible for the preparation of the financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and far view Our responsibility
1s to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements In
accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing
(UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Audiing
Practices Board s Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the
company’s members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Compantes Act 2006 and for nc other purpose We do not, in giving
these opinons, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to
any other persan to whom this report 1s shown or Into whose hands 1t may
come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent In wnting

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused
by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting
polictes are appropnate tc the groups and the parent company s
circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately
disclosed the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
the directors and the overall presentation of the financial staterments

Opinion on financial statements
In our opnion

— the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the
groups and of the parent company's affairs as at 31 December 2010 and
of the group’s prcfit and groups and parent companys cash flows for
the year then ended,

— the group financial statements have been propetly prepared in
accordance with [FRSs as adopted by the European Union,

— the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared
in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the Eurgpean Union and as
apphed in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006,
and

- the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
requiremnents of the Companes Act 2006

Notes

a The mantenance and integnty of the Barclays website 1s the responsibility of the Directors
the work carred out by the Auditors does not invaive consideration of these matters and
accordingly the Auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred
to the financial statements since they were nitally presented on the website

b Legisiation in the United Kingdorn governing the preparation and dissernination of
financial statements may differ from leqislation in other junsdictions

Opimon on other matters prescribed by the Comparies Act 2006

In our opirvon the information given in the Directors’ Repart for the
financial year for which the financial statements are prepared Is cansistent
with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the
Companies Act 2006 reguires us 1o report to you if in our opinion

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent
company or returns adequate for our audit have not been recewved from
branches not visited by us or

- the parent ccempany financial statements are not 1 agreement with the
accounting recerds and returns, or

— certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not,
made or

— we have not recewved all the infoprgation and explanations we require for

our audit
don Ly U

Andrew Ratclife (Serior Statutary Auditor)

for and on behalf of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London United Kingdom

10th March 201
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Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm's report

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm To the Board
of Directors and Shareholders of Barclays Bank PLC

In our opinion, the accompanying Consodidaied income statement and the
retated Consolidated statement of comprehensive Income, Consolidated
balance sheets Consolidated statements of changes in equity and
Consalidated cash flow staterments present fairly, in all material respects
the financial pesition of Barclays Bank PLC and its subsidianes at 31
December 20010 and 31 December 2009 and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the penod
ended 31 December 2010 in conformity with International Financial
Reporting Standards as 1ssued by the Intemationat Accounting Standards
Board These financial statements are the responsibility of the Compary’s
management Our responsibility 15 to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits We conducted our audits of
these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Cormpany
Accouniing Oversight Board {(Uruted States) Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of matenal misstatement An
audit includes exarnining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures i the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP Pﬂ \‘ {r !l 3 @JQ f\& L\,p

London, Urated Kingdom
10th March 201
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Consolidated accounts Barclays Bank PLC
Consolidated income statement

For the year ended 31st December The Group
2010 2009

Notes £m £m
Conitinuing operations
Interest income 2 20,035 21236
Interest expense 2 (7,517} {9,567)
Net interest income 12,518 11 669
Fee and commussicn income 3 10,368 9,946
Fee and commissicn expense 3 (1,497) (1,528)
Net fee and commission income 8871 8418
Net trading income 4 8,080 6994
Net irvestment income 5 1,490 283
Net prermaums from insurance contracts 1137 1172
Gains on debt buy backs and extinguishments - 1,249
QOther income 118 140
Total iIncome 32,214 29,925
Net claims and benefits incurred on insurance contracts (764) {831)
Total income net of insurance clams 31,450 29,094
Impairment charges and other credit provisions 6 {5,672) (8071)
Net income 25,778 21,023
Staff costs 7 {11,916) (9.948)
Admunistration and general expenses 8 {6,581) (5,557}
Deprecration of property, plant and equipment 19 {790) (759}
Amortisation of mtangible assets 18 {437) (447)
impairment of goodwil 18 {243) {1}
Operating expenses (19,967) (16 12}
Share of post-tax results of associates and joint ventures 58 34
Profit on disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures 33 81 188
Catn on Acquisitions 35 129 26
Profit before tax from continuing operations 6,079 4559
Tax 9 (1.516) {1047}
Profit after tax from continuing operations 4,563 3512
Profit for the year from discontinued cperations, including gain on disposal 34 - 6777
Profit after tax 4,563 10,289
Profit attributabie to equity holders of the Parent from
Continuing operations 4,172 3228
Discontinued opetations - 6,765
Tota! 4,172 9993
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests 31 391 296

The Board of Directors approved the accounts set out on pages 74 to 166 on 10th March 201

Note
As permitted by section 408(3) of the Companies Act 2006 an sncome staternent for the
parent company has not been presented
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Consolidated accounts Barclays BankPLC
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31st December The Croup
2010 2009
fm £m
Profit after tax 4,563 16289
Other comprehensive income from continuing operations
Currency transiation reserve
- Currency translation differences 1177 (853)
- Tax - {2)
Available for sale reserve
- Net {losses)/gains from changes i fair value {152) 1,487
- Net gains transferred to Net profit on disposal (1,020) (649)
- Net losses transferred to net profit due to impawrment 53 672
- Changes in insurance habilities EX| (67)
- Net gains transferred to net profit due to fair value hedging (308) {123)
- Tax 141 {(177)
Cash flow hedging reserve
- Net gains from changes in fair value &0 285
- Net gains transferred to net profit (684) {120}
~Tax 39 (65}
Other 59 217
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax, from continuing operations (62) 605
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax, from discontinued operations - (58)
Total comprehensive income for the year 4,500 10836
Attributable to
Equity holders of the Parent 3,609 10,286
Non-controlling interests 891 550
4,500 10,836
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Consolidated accounts Barclays Bank PLC

Balance sheet

As at 31st December The Croup The Bank
2010 2008 2010 2009

Notes £m £m fm £m [
Assets |
Cash and balances at central banks 97,630 81483 92,686 73447 !
Iterms in the course of collection from other banks 1,384 1,593 1,268 1373
Trading portfoilo assets 1 168,930 151,395 95,034 93,806
Financial assets designated at farr value 12 41,485 42,568 29,181 27,645
Dervative financial instruments 13 420,319 416,815 441,145 479,895
Loans and advances to banks 14 37,799 41,135 40,390 42,963
Loans and advances o customers 4 427,942 420224 522936 512128
Reverse repurchase agreements and other sirmilar secured lending 16 205,772 143431 227343 145433
Avallable for sale financial investments 15 65,440 56 651 45221 36,574
Current tax assets ] 196 348 161 221
Prepayments, accrued income and other assets 5,269 6358 14,495 5197
Investments In associates and joint ventures 17 518 422 181 164
Investments In subsidiaries 32 - - 19,033 18,796
Goadwill and intangible dssets 18 8,697 8,795 4,110 4,181
Property, plant and equipment 19 6,140 5,626 1,878 1,832
Deferred tax assets ] 2,517 2,303 1,228 773
Total assets 1,490,038 1,379,148 1,536,290 1,395428
Liabilities
Deposits fram banks 77,975 76,446 97,526 90,253
fterns i the course of collection due to other banks 1,321 1,466 1,270 1,384
Customer accounts 345,802 322,455 453,826 444519
Repurchase agreements and other similar secured borrowing 16 225,534 198,781 214207 165195
Trading portfolio llabilities n 72,693 51,252 44,352 33534
Finanoial habilites designated at fair value 20 97,729 87,881 97,042 83,546
Derwvative financal instruments 13 405516 403416 426243 418354
Debt secunties in issue 156,623 135902 106,267 82,141
Accruals, deferred income and other habilities 21 13,233 14,241 17,570 6,423
Current tax habiities 3 646 964 126 277
Subordinated habitities 22 28,499 25816 26,994 24 893
Deferred tax habilities 9 514 470 3 38
Provisions 3 947 530 651 464
Retirement benefit lriatilities 27 365 769 168 576
Total habilitzes 1,427,397 1,320,443 1,486,245 1351597 }
Shareholders’ equity
Shareholders’ equity excluding non-contralling interests 59,174 55925 50,045 472831
Non-controlling interests k1l 3,467 2,774 - -
Total shareholders’ equity 62,641 58 69% 50,045 47,831
Total iabihies and shareholders’ equity 1,490,038 1379148 1,536,290 1399428

Chns Lucas
Group Finance Director

-

/

Marcus Aguus /LW
Group Chatrman

Bob Diamond

Croup Chief Executive v, wl m
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Consolidated accounts Barclays Bank PLC
Consolidated statement of changes In equity
The Group Called up
share Other
capital and Available Cash flow Currency share- Non-
share for sale hedgln% translation nolders Retzined controlling Total
premmum? reserved reserve reserve equity” earmngs Total nierests equity
im £m tm fm £m £m £m £m £m
Balance as at 1st fanuary 2010 14,494 {84) 252 1,615 2,559 37,089 55,925 2,774 58,699
Profit after tax - - - - - 4,172 1172 3N 4 563
Other comprehensive Income net
of tax
Currency translation movernents - - - 742 - - 742 435 1,177
Available for sale investrments - (1,264) - - - - {1,264) 9 {1,255}
Cash flow hedges - - (100) - - - {100} 56 (44)
Other - - - - 45 14 59 - 59
Total comprehensive income for
_the year - (1,264) (100) 742 45 4,186 3,609 891 4,500
Fquity settled share schemes - - - - - 830 830 - 830
Vesiing of Barclays PLC shares
undier share-based payment
schemes - - - - - (718) (718) - (718)
Capital injection from Barclays
PLC - - - - - 1,214 1,214 - 1,214
Dividends paid - - - - - (235) (235) (158) (393)
Dividends on preference shares
and other shareholders' equity - - - - - (645) {645) - (645)
Net decrease in other
shareholders equity 2nsing on
acquisitions disposals and capital
1S5LANCES - - - - (487) - {487) - (487)
Qther reserve moverments - - - - (48 (3 (319)_ {40} (358)
Balance as at 315t December
2010 14,494 (1&) i52 2357 2,069 41,450 59,174 3,467 62,641
Balance as at st January 2009 14458 {1249) 132 2840 2 564 22457 41 202 2372 43574
Profit after tax - - - - - 5993 9993 296 10289
Other comprehensive income net
of tax fiom continuing operations
Currency translation movements - - - (1 140) - - (1 140) 285 (855)
Available for sale investments - 1155 - - - - 1155 {12) 1143
Cash flow hedges - - 119 - - - 119 (19) 100
Other - - - - 47 170 217 - 217
Other comprehensive Incorme net
of tax from discontinued
_Operalions - R L B =), - 17 (58)_ _ - _{58)
Total comprehensive income for
the year - 1165 19 (1 225 47 10180 10286 S50 10838
Issue of new ordinary shares 25 - - - - - 75 - 25
Equity settled share schermes - - - - - 298 298 - 268
Vestng of Barclays PLC shares
under share-based payment
schemes - - - - - [£:0)] (80} - {80)
Capital njection from Barclays
PLC - - - - - 4 850 4 850 - 4,850
Dividends paid - - - - (103} (103} {(132) (735)
Dividends on preference shares
and other shareholders’ equity - - - - - {599) (599) - {599)
Net increase/decrease in
non-controlling interests ansing
on acqusiions disposals and
capital 1ssuances - - - - - - - {82) (82)
Otherreservemovements 11 L - 52y 886 46 o 66 12
Balance as at 31st December
2009 14494 (84) 2527 1615 7559 37089 55925 2774 58 H99
Aotes

aFor further detans refer to Note 28
b For further details refer to Note 29
¢ For further details refer to Note 30
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The Bank Called up
share Other
capital and Available Cash flow Currency share-
share for sale hedging translation holders' Retained Total
premlum" r:servcb reserve reserve" Eqully‘ earmngs equity
m £m fm £m £m £m £m
Balance as at 1st January 2010 14,494 {6) 209 (309) 2,623 30,820 47,831
Proft after tax - - - - - 2,518 2518
Other cornprehensive Income net of tax
Currency translatton movements - - - 435 - - 435
Available for sale investments - {259) - - - - {259)
Cash flow hedges - - (170) - - - (170)
_Other S - - - - 45 4 45
Total comprehensive income fortheyear - (259) (170) 435 45 2,522 2,573
Equity settled share schemes - - - - 174 174
Vesting of Barclays PLC shares under share-based payment
schemes - - - - . (99) {99)
Capital injection from Barclays PLC - - - - - 1,214 1,214
Dividends pard - - - - - (235) (235)
Dividends on preference shares and other shareholders
cquily - - - - - {645) (645)
Net decrease In other shareholders' equity atising on
acquisitions disposals and capital 1ssuances - - - - (487) - (487)
Other _ o o - - - o (48) {233) (281)
Balance as at 315t December2010 14,494 __(265) 39 128 2,133 33,518 50,045
Balance as at 1 fanuary 2009 14 458 (233} 312 292 2628 16422 33879
Profit after tax - - - - - 10219 10219
Other comprehensive ncome net of tax from continuing
operatons
Curtency translalion moverments - - - (601} - - {601)
Available for sale investments - 227 - - - - 227
Cash flow hedges - - {103) - - - (103)
Other i N - - - - 47 9 __ _.56
Total comprehensive incomne for the year __ o -2 (103) {601) 47 10228 9798
Issue of new ordinary shares 25 - - - - - 25
Equity settled share schemes - - - - - 9B 98
Vesting of Barclays PLC shares under share-based payment
schermes - - - - - (59) (59)
Capital injection frorm Bardlays PLC - - - - - 4 850 4,850
Dwidends paid - - - - - (103) (103)
Dividends on preference shares and other shareholders
equity - - - - - (599) (599)
Other _ _ __ _ _ __ N Lo - < - (52) (17) ____(s8)
_Balance as at 315t December 2009 . 14494 ) 209 (309), 2623 30820 47 831

Notes

2 bor turther details refer to hote 28
b For further aetals refer to Note 29
¢ For further details reter 1o Note 30
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Consolidated accounts Barclays Bank PLC
Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended 31st December The Group The Bank
010 2009 2010 2009
£tm £m £m £m
Continuing operations
Reconcihiation of profit before tax to net cash flows from operating actiities
Profit before tax 6,079 4,559 2,251 3,158
Adjustment for non-cash items
Altowarnice for imparment 5,672 8,071 3512 5,707
Depreciation amortisation and impairment of property, plant, equipment and intangibles 1,346 1,196 590 523
Other provisions, including pensions 914 428 678 254
Net profit on disposal of investments and property plart and equipment (1,057} (810} (958} (314)
Net profit from disposal of subsichianes 77 (191) (365} 71
Net gains on acquisitions (129) (26) (118) (26)

Other non-cash movements?

Changes in Operating assets and Liabilites

Net {increase}/decrease in loans and advances 10 banks and customers
Net increase/{decrease) in deposits and debt secunties in issue
Net (increase)/decrease in denvative financial Instruments

Net (increase)/decrease in trading assets

Net increase/(decrease} in trading habilities

Net decrease in financiat investments

Net decrease/ (increase) i other assets

Net (decrease)/increase in other habiities

Corporate income tax paid

(6680) 4224  (5817) (1,375

(63212) 25482 (95403} 10574
63,609 (49.014) 89,718  {20,086)
(1,298) 3321 (3361) 3047
(17.517) 34292  (1,211) 22757
21441 {8222) 10818  (5894)
11,126 20459 11,960 19341
1,366 (465)  (9,193) {675)
(2.521) {(507) 10,064 (5 867)
(1.430)  (1178) {90) {99)

Net Cash from Operating activities

17,722 41 421 13,075 26,953

Purchase of avallable for sale Investrments

Proceeds from sale ar redemption of avalable for sale investments
Met additign of intangible assets

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Acquisitions of subsidianies net of cash acquired

Disposal of subsidiaries net of cash disposed

Disposal of discanunued eperation net of cash disposed

Other cash flows asseciated with investing actevities

Investment in subsidiaries

(76,018} (78420} (69,792) (62829)
71,251 88931 64587 81518

(217) (226) (125) (235)
(1767}  (1,150) (732) (514)
556 372 293 119
886 (28) - @)
81 339 - 92
- 2469 . 8246
1 (27) a7 (49)

364 (2053)

Net Cash from investing activities

{5.627) 12260 __ (5422) 24287

Dividends paid

Proceeds of borrewsngs and issuance of debt secunties
Repayments of borrowings and redermption of debt secunues
Net issue of shares and other equity Instruments

(1,011) (590) (235) (103)
2,131 3,549 2,038 2,882
(211 (4383) (1075)  {4137)

14

1,214 800 1.214 800

Capital iyection from Barclays PLC

MNet Cash from financing activities 1,123 (610) 1,942 (533}
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents 3,842 (2,864) 3,057 {2,394)
Net cash from discontinued operations - (376} - -

Net increase n cash and cash equivalents

17,060 49,831 12,652 48,313

Cash and cash equwalents at beginning of year

114,340 64,509 96,357 48,044

Cash and cash equnalents at end of year

131,400 114,340 109,009 96,357

Cash and cash equivalents compnse-
Cash and balances at central banks
Loans and advances to banks with onginal matunty less than three mombs

Avallable for sale treasury and other eligible bills with onginal matunity less than three months

Trading portfolio assets with onginal matunty less than three months

97.630 81483 92,686 78,447
31,934 30461 15,989 17,690
1,657 2,244 165 68
169 i52 169 152

131,400 114340 109,009 96,357

Interest recerved in 2010 was £28,631m {2009 £32 437m) and interest paid in 2010 was £20 759m (2009 £20.889m)

The Croup 15 required to maintain balances with central banks and other regulatory authonties and these amounted to £2,310m at 31st December 2010

(2009 £2,470m)

Note

a Other nen-cash maverments principally compnse movernants 1n exchange rates and the fair value of avalable for sale investments less subordnated debt hedging
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31st December 2010 continued

1 Sigruficant accounting policies

1 Reporting entity

These financial statements are prepared for the Barclays Bank PLC Group under Section 399 of the Companies Act 2006 The Croup 1s a major global
financial services provider engaged n retall and commercial banking, credit cards, investmernt banking wealth management and investment
management services In addition, individual financial statements have been prepared for the holding company, Barclays Bank PLC {the Bark) Barclays
Bank PLC 1s a public mited company mcorporated and domiciled in England and Wales having a registered office in Engfand and 1s the holding company
of the Group

2 Compliance with International Financial Reperting Standards

The consoldated financial statements of the Barclays Bank PLC Group and the individual financial statements of Barclays Bank PLC, have been prepared
in accordance with international Financiaf Reporting Standards (IFRS) and interpretations issued by the FRS Interpretations Commuttee {IFRIC) as
pubiished by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB} They are also in accordance with IFRS and IFRIC interpretations as adopted by the
European Union The pnncipal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the consolidated and indwvidual financial staterments are set out below
These policies have been consistently applied Changes in accounting policy are set out on page 9t

3 Basis of preparation

The conschdated and indmdual financial staterments have been prepared under the histoncal cost corwention modified to include the far valuation of
investrment property, certain financral Instruments and contracts to buy or sell non-financial tems and trading nventonies to the extent required or
permitted under accounting standards and as set out in the relevant accounting policies They are stated in millions of pounds Sterking (Em), the
functional currency of Barclays Bank PLC

Cnitical accounting estmates

The preparation of financial staternents m accordance with IFRS requires the use of estimates It also requires management to exercise judgement in
apphying the accounting policies Note 45 {Cntical accounting estimates) sets out the key areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity or
areas where assumptions are significant to the consolidated and dividual financial statements

4 Consolidation

Subsidianes

The consolidated financial statements combine the financial statements of Barclays Bank PLC and all its subsidianies, including certain special purpose
entities (SPEs} where appropriate made up to 31st December Entities qualify as subsidianes where the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of the entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities, generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting
rights

The existence and effect of potential voting nights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered in assessing whether the Group controls

another entity Detalls of the principal subsidianes are given in Note 32 SPEs are consolidated when the substance of the relationship between the

Croup and that entity tndicates control Potential indicators of control include, amongst others, an assessment of the Group's exposure ta the rnisks and

benefits of the SPE This assessment of risks and benefits 15 based on arrangements in place and the assessed nisk exposures at inception The mitial -
assessment 15 reconsidered at a later date «f !

a) the Group acquires additional interests in the entity

b) the contractual arrangements of the entity are amended such that the relative exposure to risks and benefits change or

¢) if the Group acquires control over the main operating and financial decisions of the entity

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control 1s transferred to the Group and cease to be consolidated from the date that control ceases

The acquisitton method of accounting 1s used to account for the purchase of subsidiaries The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary 1s measured at the farr value of the assets given equity instruments issued and labilities incurred or assumed

The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liabiiity resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement Acquisition related
costs are expensed as incurred

The excess of the consideration pard In an acquisition over the Group's share of the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired 1s recorded as
goodwill See accounting poficy 14 for the accounting policy for goodwill A gamn on acquisition s recogrised in profit or foss If there 1s an excess of the
Croups share of the fair value of the identifrable net assets acquired over the cost of the consideration paid Intra-group transactions and balances are :
ehrminated on consolidation and consistent accounting policies are used threughout the Group for the purposes of the consolidation Changes in

ownership interests In subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions if they occur after control has already been obtained and they do not result in

loss of control

As the consohdated financial statements include partnerships where the Group member i1s a partner, advantage has been taken of the exemption under
Regulation 7 of the Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 with regard to the preparaticn and filing of indwdual partnership financial statements

In the individual financial statements, investments in subsidianes are stated at cost less imparment, if any Cost also includes directly attributable costs
of the investment

When the Group ceaseas to have control, any retained interests in the subsidiary is remeasured to 1ts fair value, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss
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1 Significant accouniing policies continued

Associates and jont ventures

An associate 1s an entity in which the Group has significant mfluence but not control, over the operating and financial management palicy decisions
This 1s generally dermonstrated by the Group holding in excess of 20%, but no more than 50%, of the voting nghts

A joint venture exists where the Group has a contractual arrangerment with one or more parties to undertake activities typically, though not necessarily
through entities which are subject to joint controf

Unless designated as at fair value through profit and loss as set out in policy 7, the Group’s investmentsm agsaciates and gint ventures are initially recorded
at cost and increased (or decreased) each year by the Group's share of the post-acquisiion profit (or loss}), or other movemnents reflected divectly in the
other comprehensive mcome of the associated or jontly controlled entity Geodwall ansing on the acquisition of an associate or jomt venture s included
n the carrying amount of the mvestment {less any accumnulated impairment loss) When the Group's share of losses or other reductions in equity in an
assaciate or joint venture equals or exceeds the recorded interest, including any other unsecured recevables, the Croup does not recognise further
losses unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the entity

The Group's share of the results of associates and joint ventures 1s based on financial statements made up to a date not earler than 3 months before the
balance sheet date adjusted to conform with the accounting polices of the Group Unrealised gains on transactions are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in the investee Unrealised losses are also elminated unless the transaction provides evidence of imparment in the asset transferred

In the Individual financial staterments INvestrments i assoclates and joint ventures are stated at cost less impairment, if any

5 Foreign currency translation
The presentation currency of the Group financial statements is pounds sterfing (£), which s also the functional currency of Barclays PLC and Barclays
Bank PLC

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's foreign entities are measured using therr functional currency, being the currency of the
primary economic environment in which they operate

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the appropriate functional currency using the exchange rates prevaiing at the dates of the transactions
Manetary iterns denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate prevailing at the period end Foreign exchange gains and losses resultng
from the retranslation and settlernent of these tems are recognised in the income statement except for qualfying cash flow hedges or hedges of net
nvestments See policy 12 for the policies on hedge accounting Non-monetary assets that are measured at fair value are translated using the exchange
rate at the date that the far vatue was determined Exchange differences on equities and similar non-monetary iterms held at fawr value through profit or
loss, are reported as part of the far value gain or loss Translation differences on equities classified as available for sale financial assets and similar
non-monetary tems are included directly in equity For the purposes of translation into the presentational currency of the Group financial statements,
assets, habilities and equity of foreign operations are translated at the closing rate, and items of income and expense are translated into Sterling at the
rates prevailing on the dates of the transactions The exchange differences ansing on the translation of a foreign operation are included n cumulative
transiation reserves within shareholders’ equity and included in prafit or loss when the Group loses control of, joint control of or sigruficant irfluence over
or on partial disposal of the operation Goodwill and fair value adjustments ansing on the acguwsition of foreign subsidianes are masntaimed i the
functional currency of the foreign operation translated at the closing rate and are included in hedges of net Investments where appropnate

6 Interest, fees and commssions

Interest

Interest 1s recognised In interest income and interest expense n the income statement for all interest bearing financial instruments classified as held to
matunty avallable for sale or other loans and recewvables using the effective interest methed

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or iability {or group of assets and habilies} and of
allocating the interest tincome or interest expense aver the relevant period The effective interest rate 15 the rate that exactly discounts the expected
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrurment or, when appropniate, a shorter penod, to the net carrying amount
of the instrument The apphcation of the method has the effect of recogrising income (and expense) recervable {or payable) on the instrument evenly in
proportion to the amount outstanding over the penod to matunty or repayment

In calculating effective interest the Group estimates cash flows (using projections based on its expenence of customers’ behaviour) considening all
contractual terms of the finzncial instrurment but excluding future credit losses Fees, including those for early redemption, are included in the calculation
to the extent that they can be measured and are considered to be an integral part of the effective interest rate Cash flows ansing from the direct and
incremental costs of 1ssuing financial nstruments are also taken into account In the calculation Where 111s not passible to otherwase estimate reliably the
cash flows or the expected fe of a financial mstrument, effective interest 1s calculated by reference to the payments or receipts specrfied in the contract,
and the full contractual term




_—

82 l Barclays Bank PLC Annual Report 2010 www barclays com/annualreport10
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i Significant accounting policies continued

Fees and commussions

Uriless included in the effective interest calculation, fees and commissions are recogrused as the service s provided  Fees and commuissions not integral
to effective interest ansing from negotiating, or participating In the negotiation of a transaction from a third party such as the acquistion of loans, shares
or other secunties of the purchase or sale of businesses are recagnised on completion of the underlying transaction Portfolio and other management
adwvisory and service fees are recognised based on the applicable service contracts Asset management fees related to Investment funds are recagnised
over the penod the service 1s provided The same principle ss applied to the recogmition of income from wealth management, financial planning and
custady services that are continuously provided over an extended period of time

Commitment fees, together with related drrect costs, for loan facéities where draw down is probable are deferred and recogrised as an adjustment to
the effective interest on the loan once drawn Commmutment fees In relation to facilities where draw down 1s not probable are recognised over the term of
the commitment

Insurance prerniums
Insurance premiums are recegnised in the pencd earned

Net trading income

Income anses from both the sale and purchase of trading positions, margins, which are achieved through market-making and custorner business and
fram changes in fair value caused by movements in interest and exchange rates equity prices and other market vanables Trading positions are held at
faur value and the resulting gains and losses are included 1n the iIncome statement together with interest and dividends ansing from long and short
positions and funding costs relating to trading activities

Dmidends
Dividends are recognised when the right to receve payment is established In the individual financial statements of Barclays Bank PLC, this 1s when the
dividends are received or when the dividends are appropriately authorised by the subsidiary

7 Financial assets and liabidities
Financial assets
The classificatrons of financial assets and the accounting pelicies applicable to each classification, are as follows

Financial mstruments at fair value through profit or loss

Financial instruments are classified in this category If they are held for trading or if they are designated by management under the fair value option
Instruments are classified as held for trading i they are

a) acquired principally for the purposes of selling or repurchasing in the near term,

b) part of a portfolio of identifted financial nstruments that are managed tegether and for which there s evidence of a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit taking, or

c) adenvative except for a denvative that s a financial guarantee contract or a designated and effective hedging instrument

It1s not possible to transfer a financial Instrument aut of this category whilst it s hefd or issued with the exception, from 1st July 2008 of non-denvative
financial assets held for trading which may be transferred out of this category after initial classification where

a} n rare crcumstances, they are no longer held for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term, or

b) they are no tonger held for the purpose of trading, and they would have met the definition of loans and recevables on initial classification and the
Croup has the intention and ability to hold them for the foreseeable future or untl matunty

Financial mstruments included in this category are recognised mitially at fair value and transaction costs are taken directly to the income staterment
Cans and losses arising from changes in fair value are included directly in the income statement

The fair value option 1s used in the following circumstances

a) financial assets backing insurance contracts and financral assets backing investrment contracts are designated at fair value through profit or loss
because the related habilities have cash flows that are contractually based on the performance of the assets or the related habilities are insurance
contracts whose measurement incorporates curent information Fair valuing the assets threugh profit and loss significantly reduces the recognition
inconsistencies that would arise if the financial assets were classified as availlable for sale,

b} financial assets, loans to customers, financial liabilmes, financial guarantees and structured notes may be designated at fair value through profit or
loss i they contain substantive embedded dernvatives,

¢} financial assets, loans to customers, financial liabiities, financial guarantees and structured notes may be designated at fair value through profit or
loss where doing so significantly reduces measurement inconsistencies that would anse if the related dervatives were treated as held for trading and the
underlying financial instruments were carned at amortised cost, and

d) certain private equity and other investments that are managed, and evaluated on a farr value basis In accordance with a decumented nisk
management or Investment strategy and reported to key rnanagement personnel on that basis

Regular way purchases and sales of financial instruments held for trading or designated under the farr value option are recogrised on trade date, being
the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset
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1 Sgnificant accounting policies continued

Loans and recenables

Loans and recevables are non-denvatrve financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted In an active market and which are not
classified as available for sale Loans and recevables are initially recognised at fair value, including direct and incremental transaction costs They are
subsequently vatued at amortised cost, using the effective interest method (see accounting policy 6)

Regular way purchases and sales of loans and recervables are recognised on contractual settlement.

Held to matunty

Held to matunty investments are non-denvative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that the Groups management has the intention
and ability to hold to maturity They are initially recogrised at fair value ncluding direct and mcremental transaction costs They are subsequently valued
at amortised cast using the effectsve interest method (see accounting pokicy 6)

Regular way purchases of held to matunty financial assets are recognised on trade date being the date on which the Group commits to purchase the
asset

Available for sale

Avallable for sale assets are non-dervative financial assets that are designated as available for sale and are not categonsed into any of the ather
categones descnbed above They are initially recogrised at far value including direct and incremental transaction costs They are subsequently held at
far value Cains and losses arising from changes in fair value are included as a separate component of equity (the avalable for sale reserve) untit sale
when the cumulative gain or loss 1s transferred to the income statement Interest on debt instruments, determined using the effective interest method
(see accounting policy 6), dmdends on equity iInstruments, impairment losses and translation differences on monetary items are recognised in the
Income statement

Regular way purchases and sales of avallable for sale financial instruments are recognised on trade date being the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset

A financial asset classified as available for sale that would have met the definitron of loans and recenvables may oy be transferred from the avallable for
sale classification where the Group has the intention and the ability to hold the asset for the foreseeable future or untl matunty

Ernbedded denvatives

Some contracts {‘hybnd contracts ) contain both a denvative (the ‘embedded dervative’)and a non-dervative (the ‘*host contract’) Where the economic
charactenstics and nsks of the embedded dervatives are not closely related to those of the host contract and the host contract itself 1s not carned at far
value through profit or loss, the embedded denvative 1s bifurcated and reported at fair value and gains and losses are recognised in the income
statement

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset, or a portion of a financial asset, where the contractual nghts o that asset have expired, or where the nghts to
further cash flows from the asset have been transferred to a third party and, wath them, either

(1) substanually all the nsks and rewards of the asset, or

() srgnificant nsks and rewards, atong with the unconditional abibty to sell or pledge the asset

Where sigruficant nsks and rewards have been transferred, but the transferee does not have the unconditional ability to sell or pledge the asset, the
Group continues te account for the asset to the extent of its conttnuing involverment ( continuing rrvolvement accounting')

To assess the extent to which nsks and rewards have been transferred, it 1s often necessary o perform a quantitatve analysis Such an analysis will
compare the Group’s exposure to vanability in asset cash flows before the transfer wath its retained exposure after the transfer

Whete nesther derecogrition nor continuing nvolvement accounting 1s appropnate, the Group continues to recognise the asset in its entirety and
recognises any consideration received as a financial iabibty

Loan commutments
Loan commitrments, where the Group has a past practice of selling the resulting assets shartly after onginatton are held at fair value through profit or
loss Other loan commitments are accounted for in accordance with accounting policy 23

Financial labilities
Financial lrabdities are measured at amortised cost, except for trading llabidities and lisbilities designated at fair value which are held at fair value through
profitor loss Financial abilities are derecognised when extinguished

An exchange of an existing debt instrument for a new instrument with the lender on substantally different terms 1s accounted for as an extinguishment
of the original finanoal liability and the recognition of a new financial ability An assessment 1s made as to whether the terms are substantally different
considenng qualitatve and quantriive charactenstics For example, if the discounted present value calculated using the onginal effective interest rate of
the cash flows under the new terms, including fees, © at least 10 % different from the discounted present value of the remaiming cash flows of the
onginal financial lability or if the quahitatsve assessrment concludes that the nature and nsk profile of the onginal financial liability s matenally different
from that of the new financial kability based on the terms of the instrurnents including repayment terms, coupan terms and call options, the ongina!
financial lability 1s extnguished

When an exchange ts accounted for as an extinguishment, arty costs or fees incurred are recognised as part of the gain or loss on the extinguishrment
The difference between the carrying amount of a financial lability extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed 1s recogrised in profit or loss
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1 Sigmificant accounting policies continued

Determiming fair value

Where the classification of a financial nstrument requires 1t to be stated at farr value, farr value 1s determined by reference to a quoted market pnce for
that instrument or by using a vaiuation model Where the fair value is calculated using valuation models, the methodology is to calculate the expected
cash flows under the terms of each specific contract and then discount these values back to a present value These models use as their basis
independently sourced market parameters including, for example, interest rate yield curves, equities and commodities prices, option volatilites and
currency rates For financial habilities measured at farr value, the carrying amounit reflects the effect on fair value of changes in own credit spreads
denved from observable market data, such as spreads on Barclays issued bonds or credit default swaps Most market parameters are either directly
abservable or are impled from istrument pnces The model may perform numencal pracedures in the pricing such as interpolation when Input values
do not directly correspond to the most actively traded market trade parameters However, where valuations include significant unobservable inputs the
transaction price I1s deemed ta pravide the best evidence of initial fair value for accounting purposes As such profits or losses are recogrused upon trade
inception only when such profits can be measured solely by reference to observable market data For valuations that include significant unobservable
Inputs, the difference between the model valuation and the imitial transaction price 1s recognised in profit or loss, either

a) on a straight-hine basis over the term of the transaction or over the penod untit ali model nputs will becomne observable where appropriate, or,
b) released in full when previously unobservable inputs become gbservable

Various factors influence the avadabiity of observable inputs and these may vary from product to product and change over trme Factors include, for
example, the depth of actvity in the relevant market the type of product, whether the product is new and not widely traded i the marketplace, the
matunty of market modelling and the nature of the transaction (bespoke or genenc) To the extent that valuation is based on models or inputs that are
not observable in the market, the determination of farr value can be mare subjective, dependant on the significance of the unobservable input to the
overafl valuation Unobservabie inputs are determined based on the best informatton available for example by reference to stmilar assets, similar
matunties or other analytical techriques

8 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there 1s objective evidence that loans and recevables or avallable for sale financial nvestrments
are impawed These are considered to be imparred and impairment losses are recognised i, and only i, there 1s objectrve evidence of mpairment as a
result of one or more loss events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and pnor to the balance sheet date that have adversely impacted
the estwnated future cash flows of the financial asset or the portfoho The cnitena that the Group uses to determine that there 1s objective evidence of an
impairrment loss include

a) significart financial difficulty of the 1ssuer or obligor,

b) abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments,

c) the lender, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower's financial difficulty granting to the borrower a concession that the lender would not
otherwise consider,

d) 1t becomnes probabie that the barower will enter bankruptcy or other financral reorganisation,

e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financal difficulties or

f) observable data indicating that there 15 @ measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of financial assets since the inmial
recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with the iIndvidual financial assets in the portfolio, including

(1) adverse changes in the payment status of berrowers in the portfolio and
(n) national or local economic conditions that cotrelate with defaults on the assets in the portfolio

For loans and recevables the Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists indvidually for loans and recevables that are
individually sigrificant, and indnvidually or collectively for loans and recewvables that are not indvidually significant. If the Group determines that no
objectve evidence of impairment exists for an indnidually assessed loan and receivable, whether sigrificant or not, it then includes the asset n 2 group
of loans and recevables with similar credit nsk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment Loans and recevables that are indwicually
assessed for mpasrment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recogrused are not Included in a collective assessrment of Impairment
The amount of impairment loss 1s measured as the difference between the asset s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset’s onginal effective interest rate The amount of the loss s recognised using an allowance account and recognised In the income
statement

Where appropniate, the calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralised loan and recevable asset reflect the cash
flows that may result from foreclosure costs for abtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure 1s probable

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of imparment, loans and recevables are grouped en the basis of similar nsk charactenstics, taking into
account asset type, industry geographical location, collateral type, past due status and other relevant factors These charactenistics are relevant to the
estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being ind:cative of the counterparty s ability to pay ali amounts due according to the
contractual terms of the assets being evaluated

Future cash flows in a group of loans and recevables that are collectively evaluated for imparment are estmated on the basis of the contractual cash
flows of the assets in the group and historical loss expenence for assets with credit nsk charactenistics similar to those in the group Histoncal loss
expenence Is adjusted based on current observable data to reflect the effects of current condtions that did not affect the penod on which the histoncal
loss expenence is based and to remove the effects of condrions in the histoncal pered that do not currently exist
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1 Significant accounting policies continued
The methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss esttmates and
actual loss expenence

Following impairment, interest income 1s recognised using the effective rate of Interest which was used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measunng the imparrment loss

When a loan 1s uncollectable 1t 1s wntten off against the related allowance for loan imparment. Such loans are written off after all the necessary
procedures have been completed and the amount of the loss has been deterruned Subsequertt recoveries of amounts previously wntten off are credited
to the iIncome staterment

If, n a subsequent penod, the amount of the Impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related abjectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account The amount of the reversal is
recognised in the iIncome statement.

Equity secunities or properties acquired in exchange for loans n order to achieve an orderly realisation are accounted for as a disposal of the loan and an
acquisition of equity securities or investrnent properties Where controt 1s obtained over an entity as a result of the transaction, the entity I1s consohdated
Any further impairment of the assets or business acquired is treated as an impairment of the relevant asset or business and not as an impairment of the
ongnal instrument

In the case of avallable for sale equity secunties, a significant or prolonged dechne in the fair value of the security below 1ts cost 15 also considered in
deterrmining whether impairment exists Where such evidence exists, the cumulative net loss that has been previously recognised directly in equity 1s
removed from equity and recognised in the incorme statement In the case of debt instruments classified as avaitable for sale Imparrment 15 assessed
based on the same critena as all other financial assets

Reversals of impairment of debt instruments are recognised n the Income statement Reversals of impairment of equity shares are not recognised in the
Income statement, increases In the fair value of equity shares after iImparment are recognised directly In equity

9 Sale and repurchase agreements and other similar secured lending and borrowing ‘
Securities may be sold subject to a commitment to repurchase them (arepo) Such secunties are retained on the balance sheet when substantrally all ‘
the nsks and rewards of ownership remain with the Group  The transactions are treated as collateralised borrowing and the counterparty liability 15 |
presented separately on the balance sheet as repurchase agreements and other simitar secured borrowing  Similar secured borrowing transactions \
including secunities lending transactions and collateralized short-term notes are treated and presented in the same way 1

|

Similarly, the Group borrows or purchases securhies subject to a com mitrnent to resell them (a reverse repo)  Such securities are not inciuded on
balance sheet as the Group does not acquire the nsks and rewards of ownership The transactions are treated as collateralised loans and the
counterparty asset Is presented separately on the balance sheet as reverse repurchase agreements and other similar secured iending  Where the Group
enters snto similar secured lending transactions, such as securities borrowing, these are also treated and presented in the same way

These secured financing transaction are initsally recogrused at fair value, and subsequently valued at amortised cost, using the effective interest method
Secunties lent to counterparties are retamed in the financial statements Securities borrowed are not recogrised in the financial statements, unless these
are sold to third parties, at which point the obligation to repurchase the secunities is recorded as a trading liability at fair value

10 Secuntisation transactions
The Group enters into secuniisation transactions in respect of its own financial assets and to facilitate client transactions as described in Note 36 to the
accounts

Al financiat assets continue to be held on the Group balance sheet, and a hability recognised for the proceeds of the funding transaction, unless

a) substantally all the nsks and rewards asseciated with the financial nstrurnents have been transferred in which case, the assets are derecogrised in
full, or

b) ifa significant portion, but not ali, of the nsks and rewards have been transferred, the asset1s derecognised entwely If the transferee has the ability 1o
sell the financial asset, otherwise the asset continues to be recogmised only to the extent of the Groups contmuing iInvelvement

Where a) or b) above apphes to a fully proportionate share of all or specifically identified cash flows, the relevant accounting treatment 1s applied to that
proportion of the asset

11 Collateral and netting

The Group enters into master agreements with counterparties whenever possible and, when approprate, obtains collateral Master agreements provide
that, if an event of default occurs, all outstanding transactions with the counterparty will fall due and all amounts outstanding will be settled on a net
basis

Collateral
The Group obtains coltateral In respect of customer habilities where this is considered appropnate The collateral normally takes the form of a hen over
the customers assets and gves the Group a claim on these assets for both existing and future customer habilities
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1 Sigmficant accounting policies conunued

The Group also receves collateral in the form of cash or secunties in respect of other creditinstruments, such as stock borrowing contracts, and
denvative contracts in order to reduce credit nsk Collateral recerved in the form of secunties is not recorded on the balance sheet Cash collateral
recewved 15 recorded on the balance sheet with a corresponding lrabiity within deposits recewed from barks or customers Any interest payable or
receivable ansing 1s recorded as interest expense or interest Income respectively except for funding costs relating to trading activities which are recorded
In net trading income

Netting

Financial assets and habilities are offset and the net amount reported on the balance sheet if,and only if there 1s a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts and there 1s anintention to settle on a net basis or to realise an asset and settle the labilty simultaneously In many cases, even
though master netting agreements aren place the lack of an intention to settle on a net basis results In the related assets and habilities being presented
gross on the balance sheet

12 Hedge accounting

Denvatives are used to hedge mterest rate, exchange rate commodity, and equity exposures and exposures to certain indices such as house price
indiwees and retall price indices related to non-trading positions Where dervatives are held for nsk management purposes and when transactions meet
the required critena the Group applhes far value hedge accounting, cash flow hedge accounting or hedging of a net Investment in a foraign operation as
appropriate to the nsks being hedged When a financial instrument 1s designated as a hedge the Group formally documents the relationship between
the hedging instrument and hedged item as well as its risk management objectives and s strateqy for undertaking the varous hedging transactions
The Group afso documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongeing bass, of whether the dervatives that are used in hedging
transactions are hughly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items

The Group discontinugs hedge accounting when
a) 1t determined that a dervative 15 not or has ceased to be highly effective as a hedge,

b} the denvatve exprres, or 1s sold, terminated or exercised,
c) the hedged item matures or Is sold or repaid, or
d} a forecast transaction Is no longer deemed highly probable

[n certain crcumnstances the Group may decide to cease hedge accounting even though the hedge relatienshp continues to be highly effective by no
longer designating the financial instrurment as a hedging instrument To the extent that the changes in the fair value of the hedging dervative differ
from changes in the fair value of the hedged nisk in the hedged item, or the cumulative change in the fair value of the hedging denvative differs from the
cumulative change In the farr value of expected future cash flows of the hedged item, the hedge is deemed to include ineffectiveness The amount of
meffectiveness provided it does not disqualify the hedge for hedge accounting, 1s recorded i the Income staterment

Fair value hedge accounting
Changes in farr value of denvatives that qualfy and are designated as fair value hedges are recorded in the mcome statement, together with changes in
the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attnbutable to the hedged nsk

If the hedge relaticnship no longer meets the cnteria for hedge accounting, 1t 1s discontinued For fair value hedges of interest rate nisk, the farr value
adjustrment to the hedged item 15 amortised to the income statement over the penod to matunty of the previously designated hedge relationship using
the effective Interest method

If the hedged item 15 sold or repaid, the unamortised farr value adjustrent 15 recogrised smmediately in the Income statement

Cash flow hedges

For quahfying cash flow hedges, the fair value gain or loss assocsated with the effective partion of the cash flow hedge 1s recogrised imitially n
shareholders’ equity, and recycled to the income statement in the periods when the hedged item wil! affect profit or loss Any ineffective portion: of the
gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in the incorne statement immediately

When a hedging instrument expires or s sofd, or when a hedge na longer meets the critena for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in
equity at that tme remains in equity and is recogrused when the hedged item is ultirmately recogmised in the income staterment When a forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur the cumutative gain or loss that was recognised in equity 1s immediately transferred to the ncome statement

Hedges of net investments

Hedges of net mvestments in foreign operations, including monetary tems that are accounted for as part of the netinvestment, are accounted for
similarty to cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recogrised directly in equity and the ineffective
portion 1s recogmised immediately 1n the income statement The cumulative gain or loss previousty recognised in equity 1s recogrused in the income
staternent on the disposal or partial disposal of the foreign operaton, or other reductions in the Group’s Investrnent in the operation

Hedges of net nvestments may include non-dervative liabilities as well as denvative financial nstruments

Dernvatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting
Dervative contracts entered into as economic hedges that do not qualify for hedge accounting are held at fair vaiue through profit or loss
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1 Significant accounting policses continued

13 Property, pfant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment s stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and provisions for impairment, if required Cost includes the onginal
purchase price of the asset and the costs directly attnbutable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use Addions and
subsequent expenditures are capitalsed only to the extent that they enhance the future economic benefits expected to be denved from the assets

Depreciation 15 provided on the depreciable armount of ftems of property, plant and equipment on a straight-line basis over therr estmated useful
economic Iives The depreciable amount is the gross carrying amount less the estinated residual value at the end of its useful economic ife

The Group uses the follawing annual rates in calculating depreciation

Freehold buildings and long-leasehold property (more than 50 years to run} 2-33%
Computers and similar equipment 20-33%
Fixtures and fittings and other equipment 10-20%
Leased assets

Leasehold property over the remaining life of the fease (less than 50 years to run) Over the rematning Iife of the lease
Cost of adaptatron of freehold and leasehold property? 730%
Equipment installed 1in freehold and leasehold property 2 7-10%

Depreciation rates, methods and the residual values underlying the calculation of depreciation of items of property plant and equipment are kept under
review to take account of any change i1 cicumstances

When deciding on depreciation rates and methods the principal factors the Group takes into account are the expected rate of technological
developments and expected market requirements for and the expected pattern of usage of, the assets When reviewing residual values the Group
estimates the amount that it would currently obtan for the disposal of the asset after deducting the estimated cost of disposal if the asset were already
of the age and condition expected at the end of its useful economic life

No depreciation is prowided on freehold land although, 1n common with all fong-lived assets, it is subject to impairment testing, if deemed appropriate
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the praceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the income statement

Investment property is property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or for both rather than for sale or use n the business The Croup mitially
recognises investment properties at cast, and subsequently at ther far value at each balance sheet date reflecting market conditions at the reporting
date The far value of vestment property 1s determined by reference to current market prces for similar properties, adjusted as necessary for condion
and location, or by reference to recent transactions updated to reflect current economic conditions Discounted cash flow techriques may be emplayed
to calculate far value where there have been no recent transactions, using current external market inputs such as market rents and interest rates
Valuations are camed out by management with the support of appropnately qualified independent valuers

Movernents in fair value subsequent to initial recogmition are included in the income statement No depreciation Is provided m respect of investrment
properties

14 Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill anses on the acquisttion of subsidianes and associates and joint ventures, and represents the excess of the fair value of the purchase
consideratton over the far value of the Group's share of the assets acquired, and the liabilities and contingent kabilities assumed on the date of the
acquisition

For the purpose of calculating goodwill, fair values of acquired assets, habilives and cantingent habilities are deterrmined by reference to market values or
other valuation methodologies including discounted cash flow techreques using market rates or by using nsk-free rates and nsk-adjusted expected
future cash flows Goodwill 1s capitalised and reviewed annually for impairment, or more frequently when there are indications that imparment may
have occurred Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of imparment testing Goodwill on acquisitions of associates and joint
ventures 1s Included i the amount of the nvestment. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of the goodwll relating
to the entity sold

Computer software
Computer software Is stated at cost, less amoriisation and provisions for impairment, if required

The identifiable and directly assocrated external and internal costs of acquinng and developing software are caprtalised where the software ss controtled
by the Group, and where it 15 probable that future econormic benefits that exceed its cost will flow from its use over more than one year Costs associated
with maintaining software are recogrised as an expense when incurred

Capitalised compuier software 1s amortised over 3-5 years

Notes
a Where leasehold property has a remaining useful life of less than 15 years costs of
adaptation and nstalied eguprment are depreciated over the remaining life of the lease




a8 | Barclays Bank PLC Annual Report 2010 www barclays com/annualreport 10

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31st December 2010 continued

1 Significant accounting policies continued

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets consist of brands custormer bsts, hcences and other contracts, core deposit intangibles and mortgage servicing nghts Other
tangible assets are initially recognised when they are separable or anse from contractual or ather legal nghts the cost can be measured reliably and, in the
case of Intangible assets not acquired 1n a business combination, where it is probable that future economic benefits attnbutable to the assets will flow from
therr use The value of ntangible assets which are acquired in a business combination is generally deterrruned using iIncome approach methodologies such
as the discourtted cash flow method and the rehef from royalty method that estimate net cash flows attnbutable to anasset over its econornic hife and
discount to present value using an appropnate rate of return based on the cost of equity adjusted for nsk

Qther intangible assets are stated at cost less armortisation and prowisions for imparrment, if any and are amortised over their useful lives in a manner that
reflects the pattern to which they contnbute to future cash flows, generally over 4-25 years

15 Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangibfe assets

At each balance sheet date or more frequently where events or changes in circumstances dictate, property, plant and equipment and mtangble assets,
are assessed for indicattons of impairment If indications are present, these assets are subject to an impairment review Goodwill is subject to an
imparment review each year The impairment review comprises a campanson of the carrying amount of the asset with its recoverable amount the
higher of the asset’s or the cash-generating units fair value less costs te sell and its value inuse Fair value less costs to sell 1s calculated by reference 1o
the amount at which the asset could be disposed of In a binding sale agreement in an arm’s length transaction evidenced by an active market or recent
transactions for similar assets Value in use s calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows obtainable as a result of the assets continued
use, including those resulting from its ultimate disposal, at a market-based discount rate on a pre-tax basis

The carrying values of fixed assets and goodwill are written down by the amount of any imparment and this loss is recogrised in the income staterment
1in the period In which 1t occurs A previcusly recognised impairment loss relating to a fixed asset rmay be reversed i part or m full when a change 1in
circumstances leads to a change in the estimates used to determine the fixed asset’s recoverable amount The carrying amount of the fixed asset will
only be increased up to the amount that it would have been had the ongnal impairment not been recognised imparment losses on goodwill are not
reversed For the purpose of conducting impairment reviews, cash-generating units are the lowest level at which management monitors the return on
investment on assets

16 Financial guarantees
Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrurent

Financial guarantees are intially recogrised in the financial statements at fair value on the date that the guarantee was given Other than where the farr
value option Is apphed, subseguent to intial recogmtion the Group's habiities under such guarantees are measured at the higher of the rmitsal
measuremnent, less amortisation calculated to recogrise in the mcome statement any fee incorne eamed over the penad, and any financial obligation
ansing as a result of the guarantees at the balance sheet date, in accordance with policy 23

Any increase in the liability relating to guarantees 1s taken to the income statement wathin the Impairment charge Any hability rernaining 1s recognised m
the income statement when the guarantee 1s discharged cancelled or expires

17 Issued debt and equity securities

Issued financial Instruments or ther components are classified as habiities where the contractual arrangement resuits in the Group having a present
obligation to esther deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder to exchange financial Instruments on terms that are potentially unfavourable or
to satisfy the obligation otherwise than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of eguity shares Issued
financial Instruments or their components, are classified as equity where they meet the defimtion of equity and confer on the holder a residual interest
in the assets of the Group The components of issued inancial nstruments that contain both liability and equity elements are accounted for separately
with the equity component being assigned the residual amount after deducting from the instrurment as a whole the amount separately deterrnined as
the fair value of the liability component Financial habiliies, other than financial lab:hities designated at farr value, are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method as set cut In policy 6 Dernvatives embedded in financial llabihties that are not designated at fair value are accounted for as set
out in policy 7 Equity instruments including share capital, are imtially recognised at net proceeds, after deducting transaction costs and any related
mcome tax Divedend and other payments to eguity holders are deducted from equity, net of any related tax

18 Share capital

Share 1ssue costs

Incremental costs drrectly attributable to the 1ssue of new shares or options including those ssued on the acquisition of a business are shown in equity
as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds

Dmndends on ordmary shares
Dwvidends on ordinary shares are recogrised in equity i the period in which they are paid or f earlier, approved by the Barclays PLC (the Company)
shareholders
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1 Signrficant accounting policies continued

19 insurance contracts and investment contracts

The Group offers wealth management, term assurance, annuity, property and payment protection insurance products t customers that take the form
of lang- and short-term insurance contracts The Group classifies its wealth management and other products as msurance contracts where these
transfer significant insurance risk, generally where the benefits payable on the occurrence of an insured event are at least 5% more than the benefits
that would be payable If the insured event does not occur

Contracts that do not contain significant insurance nsk or discretionary participation features are classified as iInvestment contracts Financial assets and
Irabritses relating to investrent contracts and assets backing insurance contracts are classified and measured as appropriate under IAS 39, ‘Financial
Instruments Recogrition and Measurement as set out in policy 7

Premiums are recognised as revenue proportianally over the peniod of the coverage Claims and claims handling costs are charged to income as ncurred
based on the estimated liabéity for corpensation owed to policyholders ansing from events that have occurred up to the balance sheet date even if they
have not yet been reported to the Group, based on assessments of individual cases reported to the Group and statisticat anatyses for the claims incurred
but not reported

Liabiliies under unet-linked life insurance contracts (such as endowment policies) reflect the value of assets held wathin unitised Investment pools

Deferred acquisition costs {DAC)
Comrrussions and other costs that are refated to secunng new insurance and investment contracts are capitalised and amartised over the estimated
Ives of the relevant contracts

Liability adeguacy test

Liabiity adequacy tests are performed at each balance sheet date to ensure the adequacy of contract habilities net of deferred acquisition costs (DAC)
and vatue of business acquired assets (VOBA} Current best estimates of future contractuat cash flows, claims handing and administration costs, and
irvestment retums from the assets backing the iabilities are taken into account in the tests Where a deficiency 15 highlighted by the test, DAC and VOBA
assets are written off first and insurance liabilities are increased if required Any deficrency 1s immedsately recogrised in the income statement

Remsurance

Short and long-term insurance business s ceded to reinsurers under contracts to transfer part or all of arie or more of the following nisks mortality
investment and experses All such contracts are dealt with as insurance contracts The benefits to which the Group s entitled under its remnsurance
contracts are recognised as remnsurance assets The Group assesses rensurance assets at each balance sheet date [fthere 5 objectrve ewidence of
timparment the carrying amourt of the reinsurance asset 1s reduced accordingly, resulting In a charge to the income staternent

20 Leases

As Lessor

Assets leased to customers under agreements which transfer substanually all the nsks and rewards of ownership with or without ultimate legal title, are
classified as finance leases When assets are transferred under a finance lease, the present value of the lease payments discounted at the rate of interest
impkcit in the lease, 15 recognised as a recevable The difference between the total payments recevable under the lease and the present value of the
recetvable is recogrised as unearned finance iIncome, which 1s allocated to accounting pertods under the pre-tax net investment method to reflect a
constant perlodic rate of return

Assets leased 1o custorners under agreements which do not transfer substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownershup are classified as operating
leases The leased assets are included within property plant and equipment on the Groups balance sheet and depreciation 15 provided on the
depreciable amount of these assets on a systematic basis over their estimated useful Ives Lease income 1s recognised on a straight-line basis over the
penod of the lease unless another systematic basis is more appropriate

Aslessee
Leases entered into by the Group are pnmanly operating leases Operating lease rentals payable are recognised as an expense in the income statement
on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless another systematic basis 1s more appropriate

21 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits such as salanes, paid absences and other benefits nclude any estimated tax payable in respect of employee services
rendered dunng the penod and are accounted for on an accruals basis over the period i which the employees provide the related services Bonuses are
recognised to the extent that the Croup has a present obligation to its employees that can be measured reliably

The Group operates a number of pension schemes which may be funded or unfunded and of a defined contnbution or defined benefit nature in
addition, the Group contnbutes, according to focal law in the vanous countries in which it operates to Governmental and other plans which have the
charactenstics of defined contnbution plans

For defined benefit schemes, actuanal valuation of each of the schemes’ cbligations using the projected unit credit method and the fair valuation of each
of the schemes assets are performed annually, using the assumptions set out in Note 27 The difference between the fair value of the plan assets and
the present value of the defined benefit obligatron at the balance sheet date adpusted for any histonc unrecogrised actuanal gatns or losses and past
service COst, Is recogrised as an asset or a hability in the balance sheet




a0 | Barclays Bank PLC Annual Report 2010 www barclays com/annualreport10

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31st December 2010 continued

1 Significant accounting policies continued
An asset ansing, for example, as a result of past over funding or the performance of the plan investments, i1s recognised to the extent that st does not
exceed the present value of future contnbution holidays or refunds of coninbutrons

Cumulative actuanal gains and losses in excess of the greater of 10% of the assets or 10% of the obligations of the plan {the corrdor) are recognised In
the income statement over the remaining average service lives of the employees of the related plan, on a straight-lne basis

Gans and losses on curtallments are recognised when the curtailment occurs which 1s when there 1s a demonstrable commutment to make a significant
reduction in the number of employees covered by the plan or amendments have been made to the terms of the plan so that a significant elerment of
future service will no longer qualify for benefits or will qualify only for reduced benefits The gain or loss compnses any resulting change in the present
value of the defined benefit obligation any resulting change in the fair value of the plan assets and any related actuanal gan or loss that had nat
previously been recognised since they fell within the corridor

For defined contnbution schemes, the Group recogrises contnibutions due in respect of the accounting perlod n the Income statement Any
contrnbutions unpard at the balance sheet date are included as a hability

The Group also provides health care benefits to certain retired employees the cost of which s accrued as a Iiability in the financial statements over the
period of employment, using a methodology similar to that for defined benefit pensions plans

Al expenses related to employee benefits are recogrised in the iIncome statement in staff costs, which s included within operating expenses

22 Share-based payments to employees
The Group makes equity settled share-based payments in respect of services recerved fromits employees The fair value of the services 1s measured by
reference to the faur value of the shares or share options granted on the date of the grant

The cost of the employee services received in respect of the shares or share aptions granted 1s recognised In the Income staternent over the penod that
employees provide services, which is generally the vesting peniod

The fair value of the optrons granted is deterrmined using option pricing models, which take nto account the exeraise price of the option the current
share price, the risk-free interest rate the expected volatility of the share price over the life of the option and other relevant factors Vesting conditions,
service or performance conditions are not taken into account in estmating farr value, but may lead to adjustments to the number of shares or share
options included in the measurement of the cost of employee services so that ultimately, the amount recognised in the income statement reflects the
number of vested shares or options

Vesting conditions that are related to market conditions are reflected i the farr value of the awards granted and charges for the services recerved are
recogrised regardless of whether or not the rarket-related vesting condition 1s met, provided that the non-market vesting conditions are met Sirvufarty,
non-vesting conditions which are other conditions not being service conditions or performance conditions are taken into account in estimatng the
grant date fair value and share-based payment charges and are recognised when all non-market vesting conditions are satisfied irrespective of whether
the non-vesting conditions are satisfied If meeting a non-vesting condition is a2 matter of employee choice failure to meet the non-vesting condition 1s
treated as a cancellation, resulting m an acceleration of recogrition of the cost of the employee services

23 Provisions
Provisions are recogrused for present obligations anising as consequences of past events where it is more likely than not that a transfer of economic
benefit will be necessary to settle the obligation, wiich can be reliably estimated

When a leasehold property ceases to be used in the business or a demonstrable commitment has been made to cease to use a property, provision is
made where the unavirdable ¢osts of the future obligations relating to the lease are expected to exceed anticipated rental income and other benefits
The net costs are discounted using market rates of interest 1o reflect the long-term nature of the cash flows

Provision 1s made for the anticipated cost of restructunng, including redundancy costs when an obligation exists An obligation exists when the Group
has a detailed formal plan for restructuning a business and has raised valid expectations in those affected by the restructuring by starting to implement
the plan or announcing its main features The provision raised 1s normally utilised within ning months

Provision 1s made for undrawn loan corormtments and similar facuities if it 1s probable that the facility will be drawn and result in the recognition of an
asset at an amount less than the amount advanced

Contingent liabibittes are possible obhgations whose existence wall be confirmed only by uncertain future events or present obligations where the transfer
of economic benefit 1s uncertain or cannot be reliably measured Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed unless they are remote

24 Taxes, including deferred taxes

income tax payable on taxable profits ( Current Tax ) is recogrised as an expense In the penod in which the profits anse Withholding taxes are also
treated as Income taxes Incomme tax recoverable on tax allowable |osses is recogrised as a current tax asset only to the extent that Itis regarded as
recoverable by offset agamst taxable profits

Deferred income tax s provided in full, using the liability method on temporary differences ansing from the differences between the tax bases of assets
and habiities and therr carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements Deferred incorne tax 1s determined using tax rates and legislation
enacted or substanually enacted by the balance sheet date which are expected to apply when the deferred tax asset 1s realised or the deferred tax
hability 1s settled Deferred Tax assets and liabilities are only offset when they anse in the same tax reporting group and where there 15 both the legal
nght and the intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and seitle the labiity smultaneously
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1 Sigruficant accounting policies continued

25 Segrnent reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Executive Committee The Executive Committee,
which 15 responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the chief operating decision
maker All transactions between business segments are conducted on an arm’s length basis, with intra-segment revenue and costs being eliminated in
Head Office Income and expenses directly assaciated with each segment are inciuded in determining business segment performance

26 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits, and cash equivalents compnse highly quid
investments that are convertible into cash with an insignificant nsk of changes ik value with onginal matunties of three months or less Repurchase and
reverse repuichase agreements are not considered to be part of cash equivalents

27 Trust activities

The Group comemonly acts as trustees and in other fiduciary capacities that resutt in the helding or placing of assets on behalf of individuals, trusts
retremnent benefit plans and other institutions These assets and income ansing thereon are excluded fram these financial statements, as they are not
assets of the Group

Changes to Accounting Policy

The Group has continued to apply the accounting policies used for the 2009 Annual Report and has adopted the following standards from 15t January

2010 (prior periods are not affected by these revised standards)

— IFRS 3 Business Combinations For the Group, the main change ss that any costs directly related to the acquisition of a subsidiary are expensed as
incusred, and are not part of the cost of the business combination

— 1A5 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements Changes in ownership interests in subsidsanes are now accounted for as equity transactions if
they occur after control has already been obtaned and they do not result in foss of control In addition, when the Croup ceases to have control In a
substdiary, any retained interest in the subsidiary 1s re-measured to its fair value with the change 1n carrying amount recagrused in profit or loss

Future accounting developments

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments contams new requirernents for accounting for finangial assets and habdiies, which by 30th June 2017 will include new

requirernents for mpairment and hedge accounting, replacing the corresponding requirements in 1AS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition and

Measurement It will ntroduce significant changes in the way that the Group accounts for financial instruments The key changes issued and proposed

relate to

— Financial assets Finanoal assets will be held at etther farr valite or amortised cost except for equity mvestments not held for trading which may be
held at fair value through equity

Financial labiliies Cains and losses on awn credit ansing from financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or foss will be excluded from
the Income Statement and instead taken to Other Comprehensive Income

impairment Both expected losses and incurred losses will be reflected In imparment allowances for loans and advances

1

Hedge accounting Hedge accounting will be more closely aligned wath finanaial nsk management

Offsetting The conditions for offsetting financial assets and financal habilives in the balance sheet will be clarified

Adoption 15 not mandatory until accounting penods beginning on or after 1st January 2013 Earlier adoption 15 possible subject to E4J endorsement At
this stage 1t 1s not possible to determine the potential financral impacts of adoption on the Group

The International Accounting Standards Board 15 also undertaking a comprehensive review of other IFRSs which in June 2010, 1t prioritised mnto those

IFRSs that it expects o issue by 30th June 2011 In addition to IFRS 9, the 30th june 2011 standards which are expected ta be more significant for the

CGroup are as follows

- Leases Under the proposals, lessees are reguired to recognise assets and labilies ansing from both operating and finance teases on the balance
sheet

— Post employment benefits The amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits require net pension liabilities ansing from defined benefit pension schemes
to be recognised in full

In addition to the above the IASB plars to 1ssue new standards on Insurance Contracts, Consolidatian, Fair Value Measurement, the Presentation of
Other Comprehensve Income and Revenue recognition The Group wilt consider the financial impacts of these new standards as they are finalised

A number of other amendmenits and interpretations 1o IFRS have been issued that first apply from 15t january 2010 or later penods These have not
resulted in any matenal changes to the Group's accounting pohcies
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2 Net interest iIncome

2010 2009

£m ifm

Cash and balances with central banks ryal 131

Available for sale iInvestments 1,483 1,937

Loans and advances to banks 440 513

Loans and advances to customers 17,677 184556

Other interest income 164 199

interest income 20,035 21,236
Deposits from banks (370} (634)
Customer accounts {1,415) {2720}
Debt securities in 1ssue (3.632) (4134)
Subordinated habilities (1,778) {1,718)
Other interest expense (322) (361)
interest expense (7,517) {9567)

Net interest income 12,518 11669

Interest income inctudes £213m (2009 £185m) accrued on impaired loans

Other interest income principally includes interest income relating to reverse repurchase agreements Similarly, other interest expense pnncipally includes
interest expense relating to repurchase agreements and hedgmng activity

Included in net interest income 1s hedge ineffectsveness as detatled in Note 13

3 Net fee and comnmisston income

2010 2009

£m £m

Banking and credit related fees and commussions 10,063 9,578

Brokerage fees 77 88

Investment management fees 79 133

Foreign exchange comimission 149 147

Fee and comrmussion mcome 10,368 9946
Fee and commussion expense (1,497) (1,528)

Net fee and commussion income 8,871 8418

4 Net trading ncome

2010 208

£m £m

Trading iIncome 7,019 8132

Cain on foreign exchange dealings 670 682
Own credit gain/(charge) 391 (1,820)

Net trading income 8,080 6,994

Inciuded within net trading income were gains of £32m (2009 £2,349m loss) on financial assets designated at fair value and losses of £903m (2009
£3158m) on financial habilities designated at fair value

The own credit adjustment arose on £96bn of Barclays Capital's financial habities designated at fair value (2009 £86bn)

5 Net investment income

2000 2009

£m £m

Net gain from disposal of available for sale assets 1,027 576

Dividend incorme 129 6
Net gain/{loss) from financial instruments designated at fair value 274 (208)
Qther investment income/(losses) 60 (91)

Net investment income 1,490 283
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6 Impairment Charges
The Group 2210 2009
£m £m
Impairment charges on lgans and advances
New and increased impairment allowances 6,939 8
Releases (1.189) (631)
Recoveries (201) (150}
Imparment charges on loans and advances 5,549 7,330
Charges/{release) in respect of provision for undrawn contractually commuitted facilives
and guarantees provided 76 28
Impairment charges on loans and advances and other credit provisions 5625 7358
Impairment charges on reverse repurchase agreements (4) 43
Imparrment charges on available for sale assets 51 670
Impairment charges and other credit provisions 5,672 80N
7 Staff costs
2010 2009
£Em £m
Salanies and accrued performance costs 8,809 7,795
Share based payments {Note 39) 860 286
Social securrty costs 718 606
Bank payroll tax 96 225
Post retirernent benefits
- defined contnbution plans 297 224
- defined benefit plans (Note 27) 213 (33)
- other post-retirernent benefits (Note 27) 18 16
Qther 904 829
Staff costs 11,916 9948

The UK Govemiment appiied a bank payroll tax of 50% to all discretionary bonuses over £25,000 awarded to UK bank employees between 9th December

2009 and 5th Apnl 2010 The tota bank payroll tax pard was £437m, of which £225m was recognised 1n 2009 n respect of 2009 cash awards and
certan pror year deferrals distributed during the taxable penod  For 2010 a charge of £96m has been recogrused inrefation to prior year deferrais with

the remaining £116m recognised over the perod 201 to 2013

Staff costs above relate to continuing operations anly Staff costs ansing on discontmued operattans for 2009 totalled £735m, prnaipally compnsing
£514m of salanes and accrued performance costs, social secunty costs of £15m, post-retirement benefits of £29m and other staff costs of £177m

The average total number of persons employed by the Group ncluding both continuing and discontinued operations was 151 300 (2009 153,800)

8 Administratton and general expenses

2010 2003

£m £€m

Property and equipment 1,813 1641
Qutsouraing and professional services 1,704 1,495
Operating lease rentals 637 639
Marketing, advertising and sponsorship 631 492
Subscriptions, publications and stationery 584 51¢
Travel and accommaodation 358 273
Other admenistration and general expenses 729 437
Impawrment of property equipment and intangible assets 125 61
Adrminsstration and general expenses 6,581 5557

In June 2010, the UK Government announced its intention to introduce a bank levy which will apply to elements of the Group's consolidated habilities

and equity held as at 315t December 2011 The draft legistation 1s expected to be enacted by the UK Parliament later this year Based on the 31st

December 2010 balance sheet position and the draft requirernents, we estimate that the bank levy would result in an annual charge to the income

staternent of approximately £400m from 2011 onwards
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8 Administration and general expenses continued
Audrtors’ rermuneration
Auditor's remuneration 15 included within outsourcing and professional services costs above and compnses

Audit Taxation Other
Audit related services services Total

Notes £m £m fm £m £fm
2010
Audit of the Group's annual accounts 12 - - - 12
Other services
Fees payable for the Compary s assooates pursuant o legistation a) 26 - - - 26
Other services supplied pursuant to such legislation b) - 3 - - 3
Services relating to taxation
- cormnpliance services - - 7 - 7
— adwisory services ) - - 1 - 1
Services relating to corporate finance transactions entered into or proposed
10 be entered into by or on behatf of the Company or any of its associates o)} - - - 1 1
Other -~ 4 - 2 6
Total auditors' remuneration 38 7 8 3 56
2009
Audit of the Group's annual accounts 12 - - - 12
Other services
Fees payable for the Company's associates pursuant to legislation a) 23 - - - 23
Other services supplied pursuant to such legislation b) - 2 - - 2
Services relating to taxation
- compliance services - - <] - [
— adwvisory services c) - - t - 1
Services relating to corporate finance transactions entered into or proposed
to be entered into by or on behalf of the Company or any of its associates d) - - - 3 3
Other - 4 - 1 5
Total auditors’ remuneration 35 [ 7 4 52

The figures shown in the above table relate to fees paid to PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP and its associates for continuing operations of business Fees
paid to other auditors not associated with PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP in respect of the audit of the Cormpany s subsidianes were £4m (2009 £3m)

a} Fees payable for the audit of the Company s associates pursuant to legislation comprise the fees for the statutory audit of the subsidiznes and
associated pension schemes both inside and outside Great Britain and fees for the work performed by the associates of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
n respect of the consolidated financial statements of the Company The fees retating o the audit of the associated pension schemes were £0 4m
(2009 £0 5m)

ty) Other services supplied pursuant to such legislation comprse services in relation to statutory and regulatory filings These include audit services for
the review of the intenm financial imformation under the Listing Rules of the UK listing authonty

¢) Adwisory services relating to taxation include consultation on tax matters, tax advice relating to transactions and gther tax planning and advice

d) Services relating to corporate finance transactions comprise due diligence related to transactions and other work in connection with such
transactions

Excluded from the total auditers’ remuneration above are fees paid to PrnicewaterhouseCoopers LLP and associates reiating to Barctays Global Investors,
the Croups discontinued operations, of £nil (2009 £4m)}
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9 Tax
Tax charge
2010 2009
£m fm
Current tax charge/{credit)
Current year 1,413 1,235
Adjustment for prior years (20) {131)
1,393 1,104
Deferred tax charge/{credit)
Current year 118 45
Adjustment for prior years 5 {102)
123 (57)
Tax charge 1,516 1.047
Tax relating to each component of other comprehensive Income can be found in the consolidated statemenit of comprehensive Income on page 75,
including withun Gther, tax credits of £59m {2009 £218m) pnncipally relating 1o share based payments
Factors impacting income tax charge for the year
The table below shows the reconciliation between the tax charge that would result from appiying the standard UK corporation tax rate to the Group's
profit before tax and the actual tax charge
2010 2009
£im £€m
Profit before tax from continuing operations 6,079 4560
Tax charge based on the standard UK corporation tax rate of 28% (2009 28%) 1,702 1,277
Adjustments for prior years (15) {233)
Effect of overseas tax rates different from the standard UK tax rate? (135} (27)
Non-taxable gans and income® (156) {119)
Impact of share price movements on share-based payments 41 (38}
Deferred tax assets (previously not recogmised)/not recognised (160) 27
Change in tax rates® 34 (12}
Non-deductible expenses and other itemns 205 172
Tax charge 1,516 1047
Effective tax rate¢ 25% 23%
The introduction of the UK bank levy 1s expected to result in a charge to operating expenses in 2011 (see note 8}
Current tax assets and habilities
Movernents on current tax assets and habilities were as follows
2010 2009
£m fm
The Group
Assets 349 389
Liabihties (964) (1,215)
As at 1st fanuary (615) (826)
Incorme statermnent (1,393) (1,125}
Equity 180 (109)
Corporate income tax paid 1,430 1,282
Acguisittons and disposals {4) (33)
Exchange and other adjustments (48) 196
(450) (615)
Assets 196 349
Liabilities (646) (964)
As at 31st December (450) (615)
Notes

a Includes a deferred tax benefit of £205rm i 2010 ansing from the reorganisation of
Spanish secunitisation Anancing

b Non-taxable gains and income 1s net of £42m relabing ta £58m witholding tax an the
intra-graup return of capital Revenue of £58m has been recognised in relation to related
payments recerved

¢ The UK has passed legislabon to reduce the UK tax rate from 28% ta 27% from 1st Apnl
2017 This reduced the value of the net UK deferred tax asset at 31 st December 2010
resulting n a tax charge of £14m (2009 £nil} ncluded i the £34m for the impact of
change in tax rates

d The low effective tax rate of 9% in 2008 mainly resulted from the Lehman Brothers North
Armencan business acquisition
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9 Tax continued

2010

fm £m
The Bank

Assets 2 234
Liabhties (277) {651}
As at 1st January (56) {M7)

Income statement {161) 595
Equity 145 (89)

Corporate income tax paid 91 9

Acquisitions and disposals m -
Exchange and other adjustments 17 (244)
35 {56)

Assets 161 221
Liabiiities {126) {277)
As at 31st December 35 (58)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities
The deferred tax amounts disciosed on the balance sheet are as follows

2010 2003 2010 2009

£m £m £m fm

Deferred tax asset 2,517 2,303 1,228 773
Deferred tax habdity (514} {470) (3) (38)

Net deferred tax 2,003 1833 1,225 735
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9 Tax continued
Deferred taxes are calculated on all temporary differences under the liabiity method Movements on deferred tax assets and labiliies dunng the year,
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax junsdiction, were as faliows
The Group Penslons  Allowance
Fixed asset Avaitable and other for Tax losses Share
timing for sale Cash flow retiremert  Impairment COther carred based
differences  investments hedges benefits onloans  provisions forward®  payments Other Total
£fm £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m Em
Assets 117 28 139 219 379 294 1,038 336 472 3,022
Liabilities {660) (54) (278) - - - - - (197) {1,189)
As at 1st January
2010 (543) (26) (139} 219 379 294 1,038 336 275 1,833
Incorme statement 42 12 (3} (101) (46) (151) 5 25 (492) (123)
Equity - 53 38 - - - - 12 (44) 59
Acquisitions and
disposals 56 - - - - - - - 2 58
Exchange and other
adjustments 21 (6) (5) - 12 19 {71) (1) 207 176
(424) 33 {109) 118 345 162 1,558 372 (52) 2,003
Assets 134 76 - 118 345 162 1,558 372 668 3,433
Liabilities {558) (43) {109) - - - - - {720) {1.430)
Asat 31st
December 2010 (424) 33 {109) 118 345 162 1,558 372 (52) 2,003
Assets 87 57 246 403 356 532 1659 342 1116 4,798
Liabilities {945) (46) (368) - - - - - (1,075} {2,434}
As at st January
2009 {858) 1 (122) 403 356 532 1,659 342 4 2364
Income statement 340 (8) 44 {189) 39 15 {785} 50 293 (201}
Equity - (21) (59) - - - - 156 24 100
Acquisitions and
disposals 1 - - (5) (1} (8) 4 (41) (98) (148)
Exchange and other
adjustments (26) (8) (2} 10 (15) {245) 160 (171) 15 (282)
(543) (26) {139) 219 379 294 1,038 336 275 1,833
Assets 17 28 139 219 379 294 1,038 336 472 3,022
Liabilies (660) (54) {278) - - - - - (197} {1,189)
As at 31st
December 2009 {543) (26) (139) 219 379 294 1038 336 275 1833
|
\
|
Note

Refer to page 98 for notes
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9 Tax continued

The Bank Pensions Allowance
Fixed asset Available and cther for Tax lossas Share
timing for sale Cashflow  retirement Impairment Other carried based
differences  investments hedges benefias onloans  provisions forward®  paymerds Other Total
fm fm fm £m £m £m £m £m £m fm
Assets 36 - - 142 170 51 368 44 121 932
Liabilities - {19) {140) - - - - - _(38) {197)
As at 1st January
2010 36 (19) (140) 142 170 51 368 44 83 735
Income staterment {45) 5 - {88) {43) {100) 684 (2) 17 428
Equity - 15 77 - - - - 4 (7} 89
Acquisitions and
disposals (57} - - - - - - - 4 (53)
Exchange and other
adjustments 22 - ) - 11 2 (69) (22) 83 26
(44) 1 (64) 54 138 {47) 983 24 180 1,225
Assets - 1 - 54 138 - 983 24 215 1,415
Liabilities {44) - {64) - - (47) - - (35 (190)
As at 31st
December 2010 (44) 1 (64} 54 138 (47) 983 24 180 1,225
Assets - - - 335 85 12 410 23 207 1,072
Liabihties (10) (2) (213) - - - - - (225)
As at 1st January
2009 (10} (2) (213) 335 85 i2 410 23 207 847
Income statement 46 (12) 36 (193) 86 12 (257) 14 (111} (379)
Equity - (4) 36 - - - - 7 (4) 35
Acquisitions and
disposals - - - - - - - - (20) (20)
Exchange and other
adjustrments - (1) 1 - {1) 27 215 - 11 252
36 (19) {(140) 142 170 51 368 44 33 735
Assets 36 - - 142 170 51 368 44 121 932
Liabihties - (19 (140) - - - - - (38) (197)
As at 31st
December 2009 36 (19) (140} 142 170 51 368 44 83 735
Notes
2 The deferred tax asset ansng from: tax losses mainly relates to entities in the USA the UK (2009 £nil) exprres within 6-10 years and £4 262m (2009 £8 542m) expires within 11-20
and Spain years Deferred tax assets have not been recognised for the Bank i respect of deductible

b The net deferred tax asset at 31st December 2010 for the Group includes £1 715m (2009
£197m) n entities which have suffered a loss in either the current or pnor year
Recagnimon is based on profit forecasts which indicate that it 1s probable that the relevant
entities will have future taxable profits against which the temporary differences can be
utihsed

¢ The amount of deferred tax labiity expected to be settled after maore than 12 menths for
the Group 15 £511rn (2008 £955m) and for the Bank 15 £1 303m (2009 £167m) The
amount of deferrec tax asset expected to be recoverad after more than 12 menths for the
Group 1s £1 645m (2009 £2446m) and for the Bank is £165m (2009 £749m)

d Deferred tax assets have not been recagnised for the Croup in respect of deductible
temporary differences (gross) of E506m {2009 £4m) and unused tax losses (gross) of
£4 571 m (2005 £8 542m) of which E70m (2009 £nii) expires wittun 5 years £239m

termporary differences {gross) of £436rm (2009 £4m) and unused tax losses (gross) of
£4331m {2009 8 505m)} of which £70m (2009 £rul} expires within 6-10 vears and

£4 261m (2009 £8505m) expires within 11 20 years Deferred tax assets have not been
recogrused in respect of these items betause it 15 nat probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the Group can utilise benefits The unused tax losses
include armounts relating to the US branch of Barclays Bank PLC where the applicable tax
rate for deferred tax purposes would be the excess of the US tax rate over the UK tax rate

e Deferred tax s not recognised in respect of the Groups investments in subsidianes and

branches where remrittance is not conternplated and for those associates and interests in

joint ventures where it nas been determmined that no addiona! tax will anse The

aggregate ameunt of temporary differences for which deferred tax iabiiies have net been
recagrised in the Group 1s £530m (2009 £738m)
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10 Dividends
Dwvidends pard in the year were
2010 2009
£fm £
On ordinary shares
Final dnvidend N N
Intenm dividend 235 103
Dvidends 235 103

These dividends are pard to enable Barclays PLC to fund its dvidends to its shareholders and in 2009, to fund the repurchase by Barclays PLC ordinary
share capital

Dwvidends per ordinary share for 2010 were 10p (2009 4p) Dividends paid on the 4 75% €100 preference shares armounted to £433 27 per share {2009
£441 42) Dvidends paid on the 4 875% €100 preference shares amounted to £408 11 per share (2009 £439 34} Dwidends paid on the 6 0% £100
preference shares ameunted to £600 00 per share (2009 £600 00) Dividends paid on the 6 278% US$100 preference shares amounted to £413 25 per
share (2009 £385 58} Dnidends paid on the 6 625% US$0 25 preference shares amounted to £1 09 per share (2009 £1 06) Dividends paid on the
71% US30 25 preference shares amounted to £1 17 per share (2009 £113) Dividends paid on the 775% US$0 25 preference shares amounted to

£1 28 per share (2009 £1 24) Drvidends paid on the 8 125% US$0 25 preference shares amounted to £1 34 per share (2009 £1 30)

Dwdends paid on preference shares amounted to £485m (2009 £477m) Dwidends pard on other equity instrurnents amounted to £160m (2009
£122m)

11 Trading portfolio

The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m
Debt securities and other eligible bifls 139,240 126,520 86,328 83,680
Equity secunities 25,676 19,653 4,901 5552
Traded loans 2,170 2962 2,500 2,545
Commodities 1,844 2260 1,305 1629
Trading portfolio assets 168,930 151 395 95,034 93,806
Debt securities and other eligible bills (64,607) {44,708) (40,677) (30993
Equity Securities (7.568) (6468) (3.157) {2.465)
Commuodities (518) (76) (518) (76}
Tradmg portfolo labilities (72,693) (51,252) (44,352} (33,534)
12 Financial assets designated at fair value
The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 200%
£m £m fm fm
Loans and advances 22352 22390 25,093 21,636
Debt secuntres 1,918 4007 783 3,338
Equity securities 5,685 6,256 1 &6
Customers’ assets held under Investment contracts 1429 1,297 - -
Other financial assets 10,101 8658 3,294 2,605
Financial assets designated at fair vaiue 41,485 47 568 29,181 27,645

The total portfolio of assets held in respect of linked liabilities to customers under investment contracts also ncludes £518m (2009 £422m) of cash and
bank balances included wittun cash and balances at ceniral banks The carrying value of the total assets 1s always the same as the camying value of the
habilities to custorners under investment contracts as shown in note 20 Any change in the value of the assets results in an equal but opposite change In
the value of the amounts due to the policyholders Therefore, the Group 1s not exposed to the financial nsks inherent in the Investments




100 | Barclays Bank PLC Annual Report 2010 www barclays com/annualreport10

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31st December 2010 continued

12 Financial assets designated at fair value continued '
Credrt nsk of loans and advances held at fair value and related credit derivatives

The following table shows the maximum exposure to credit nsk, the changes in fair value due to credit nsk and the cumulative changes 10 farr value
since inubial recognition on loans and advances designated at fair value together with the amount by which retated credit derivatives mitigate this risk

The Group The Bank
Cumulatrve changes in Cumulatve changes in
Maamum Exposure Changes i far value farr value from Maximum Expesure Changes in far value fair value from
as at 3ist December  dunng the year ended Inception as at 31st December  during the year ended Inception
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2000 2009

Loans and advances

designated at far value,

attributable to credit risk 22,352 22,390 326 (2370) (4.995) (5321) 25093 21636 298  (1,298) (3,398) {3.696)
Farr value of related credit

derivatives 2,206 1,416 (481) 229 263 744 1,977 1224 {481) 229 246 727

13 Dervative financial instruments
The Group's objectives and palicies on managing the risks that arise in connection with dervatives, including the policies for hedging, are discussed In
the Risk Management section on pages 11 to 65

The use of dervatives and thetr sale to custorners as nsk management preducts are an Integral part of the Group's trading activities These instruments
are also used to manage the Group's own exposure to fluctuations I interest, exchange rates and commodity and equity prices as part of its asset and
hability management activities

Barclays Capital manages the trading derwatives book as part of the market risk book This includes foreign exchange, interest rate, equity, commodity
and credit derivatives

Dernvatrve instruments are contracts whose value 1s denved from one or more undertying financial snstruments or indices defined in the contract They
include swaps, forward rate agreements, futures, options and combinations of these instruments and pnmarily affect the Groups net interest income
net trading income, net fee and commussion income and denvative assets and labiittes Notional amounts of the contracts are not recorded on the
balance sheet

Foreign exchange derivatives

The Croup's principal exchange rate refated contracts are forward foreign exchange contracts, currency swaps and currency options Forward foraign |
exchange contracts are agreements to buy or sell a specified quantity of foreign currency, usually on a specified future date at an agreed rate A currency ‘
swap generally involves the exchange, or notional exchange, of equivalent amounts of two currencies and a commuitrment to exchange interest

penodically until the principal amounts are re-exchanged on a future date

Currency options provide the buyer with the night, but not the obligation, erther to purchase or sell a fixed amount of a cumency at a specified exchange
rate onor before a future date As compensation for assurming the option risk, the option water generally receives a prermium at the start of the option
period

Interest rate derivatives

The Croup's principal interest rate related contracts are interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements, basis swaps caps, floors and swaptions Included in
this product category are transactions that include combinations of these features An interest rate swap Is an agreement between two parties to
exchange fixed rate and floating rate interest by means of penodic payments based upon a notional principal amount and the interest rates defined in
the contract Certain agreements combine interest rate and foreign currency swap transactions, which may or may not include the exchange of pnncipal
amounts A basis swap 15 a form of interest rate swap, in which both parties exchange interest payments based on floating rates, where the floating rates
are based upon different underlying reference indices In a forward rate agreement two parties agree a future settlement of the difference between an
agreed rate and a future interest rate applied to a notional pnincipal amount The settlement which generally occurs at the start of the contract pened, 1s
the discounted present value of the payment that would otherwise be made at the end of that period

Credit derivatives
The Croup’s principal credit denvatwe-related contracts include credit default swaps and total return swaps A credit dernvative 1s an arrangement
whereby the credit nsk of an asset (the reference asset) 15 transferred to the seller of protection

A credit default swap Is a contract where the protection seller receves premiurn or interest-related payments in return for contracting to make payments
{o the protection buyer upon a defined credit event Credit events normalty include banksuptcy payment default on a reference asset or assets, o
downgrades by a rating agency
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13 Denvative financial instruments cortinued
A total return swap 15 an instrument whereby the seller of protection receves the full return of the asset, including both the income and ¢hange in the
capital value of the asset The buyer of the protection in return recerves a predetermined amount

Equity dervatives

The Groups principal equity-related contracts are equity and stock mdex swaps and eptions {(tncluding wamants which are equity options listed on an
exchange) An equity swap Is an agreement between two parties to exchange penodic payments based upon a notional principal amount, with ane side
paying fixed or floating mterest and the other side paying based on the actual return of the stock or stock Index An equity option provides the buyer
with the right, but not the obkgation, esther to purchase or sell a specified stock, basket of stocks or stock index at a specified price or level on of before a
specified date The Group also enters mto fund-linked derivatives, being swaps and opttons whose underlyings include mutual funds, hedge funds,
indices and multi-asset portfolios

Commodity derivatives
The Groups pnncipal commodity-related dervative contracts are swaps options, forwards and futures The main commodities transacted are base
metals, precious metals, oll and oil-related products, pawer and natural gas

The Group's total denvative and lrability position as reported on the balance sheet is as follows

The Group The Bank
Fair value Fair value

Notional Notional

contract tontract

amount Assets Liabilities amount Assets Liabilitles

fm £m im £m £m £m

Year ended 31st December 2010
Total denvative assets/(liabilities) held for trading 48,517,204 418,586  (403,163) 48,268,152 439,763  (423,938)
Total denvative assets/(liabilities) held for nsk management 240,353 1,733 {2,353) 222403 1,382 (2.305)
Derrvateve assets/{liabilities) 48,757,557 420,319 (405,516) 48,490,555 441,145  (426.243)
Year ended 31st December 2005
Total dervative assets/(liabilities) hefd for trading 39131979 415638  (402,019) 39,325860 428876 {417 055)
Total denvative assets/{liabiltties} held for nsk managernent 180018 1,177 (1,397) 149114 919 {1,299)
Dervative assets/({liabilihes) 39,311,897 416815  (403416) 39.474,574 429,895  (418,354)

Derwate movements on the balance sheet were broadly flat compared to prior year with assets of £420bn as at 31 December 2010 (2009 £417bn) and
labiitties of £406bn (2009 £403bn) Movements In denvatives during the year were mainly the result of decreases in forward mterest rates in major
currencies and new and increased business activity, partly offset by inttiatives to reduce balance sheet usage such as the placement of exsting dervative
postions with cleaning houses and the compression of OTC denvative contracts wia Tn-Optima, a third party intermediary

Derwvatve asset exposures would be £378bn (2009 £374bn} lower than reported under IFRS if netting were permitted for assets and liabilities with the
same counterparty or for which we hold cash collateral Denvative labilties would be £362bn (2009 £363bn) lower reflecting counterparty netting and
collateral placed
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13 Derwvative financial instruments continued

The fair values and notional amounts of denvatve instruments held for trading are set out in the following table

Derrvatives held for trading The Group The Bank
Fair value Farr value

Notional Notional

contract contract

amourt Assets Liabilities amount Assets Liabilitles

tm im fm £m £m £m

Year ended 31st December 2010
Foreign exchange derivatives
Forward foreign exchange 1,823,186 22,882 (22,674) 1,794,499 22,481 (22,248)
Currency swaps 935,420 29,802 (32,433) 913,494 28,040 (30,647)
OTC options bought and sold 739,949 7,736 (7,034) 738,583 7,681 (7,008)
QOTC denvatives 3,498,555 60,420 (62,141) 3,446,576 58,202 (59,903)
Exchange traded futures - bought and sold 8,149 - - 8,149 - -
Exchange traded options — bought and sold 7,207 - - 7,207 - -
Foreign exchange denvatives 3,513,911 60,420 (62,141} 3,461,932 58,202 (59,903)
Interest rate dervatives
Interest rate swaps 10,316,455 202,050  (183,665) 10,124,429 199,367  (181,432)
Forward rate agreements 4,711,960 2,625 (2,881) 4,393,227 1,596 {1,686)
OTC options bought and sold 4,551,516 66,055 (65,395} 4,535,975 66,008 {65,360)
OTC denvatives 19,579,931 270,730 (251,941} 19,053,631 266971  (248.478)
Exchange traded futures - bought and sold 706,678 - - 686,913 - -
Exchange traded options - bought and sold 268,855 - - 240,232 - -
Exchange traded swaps 21,209,173 - - 21,209,145 = -
Interest rate derivatives 41,764,637 270730 (251,941) 41,189,921 266971 (248 478)
Credit denivatives
OTC swaps 1,780,264 45977 (44,068) 1,778,812 46,054 {44,078)
Exchange traded credit default swaps 172,211 1,040 (976) 172,21% 1,040 {976)
Credit dervatives 1,952,475 47,017 {45,044) 1,951,023 47,094 {45,054)
Equity and stock index denvatives
OTC options bought and sold 118,363 9,340 (13,424) 106,796 9,137 (12,959)
Equity swaps and forwards 56,478 2,226 (2,359) 45,186 1,566 {1,519)
OTC derwatives 174,841 11,566 {15.783) 151,982 10,703 (14,478)
Exchange traded futures — bought and sold 96,582 1 {4) 87,239 - (4}
Exchange traded options — bought and sold 206,881 3,016 (2812) 34,731 - -
Equity and stock index derivatives 478,304 14,583 {18,599) 273,952 10,703 (14,482)
Commodity dervatives
OTC options bought and sold 93,937 3778 (3.751) 92,220 3,764 (3.746)
Commedity swaps and forwards 326,336 18,743 (19,133) 325,448 1B,567 (18,989)
OTC dernvatives 420,273 22521 (22,884) 417,668 22,331 {22,735)
Exchange traded futures — bought and sold 358,550 3,240 {2,326) 358,090 3,240 {2,326)
Exchange traded options — bpught and sold 29,054 75 (228) 29,054 75 {228)
Commodity denvatives 807,877 25836 (25.438) 804,812 25,646 (25,289)
Denvatives with subsidiarles 586,512 31,147 (30,732)
Derivative assets/{liabilities) held for trading 48,517,204 418,586 {403,163) 48,268,152 439,763 (423,938)
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13 Denvative financial instruments continued

The far values and notional amounts of denvative instruments held for trading are set out i the following table

Derrvatives held for trading The Group The Bank
Fair value Fair value

Notianal Motional

contract contract

amount Assets Liabiises amount Assets Liabities

£m fm £m £m £m £m

Year ended 31st December 2009
Foreign exchange dervatives
Forward foreign exchange 1457271 18,148 (18,619) 1435729 17581 (17407)
Currency swaps 810666 26008  (32357) 805113 25,372 {31,648)
OTC options bought and sold 539,976 7,332 (7,321} 537,623 7,292 {7321)
OTC dervatives 2807913 51488  (57,697) 2778470 50,245 (56,376)
Exchange traded futures - bought and sold 2035 - - 2,035 - -
Exchange traded options - bought and sold 28,220 - — 28,220 — —
Foreign exchange dervatives 2838,168 51488 (57,697) 2808725 50,245 (56,376)
Interest rate derivatives
Interest rate swaps 9,408 811 193133 (179,744) 9276,271 191,651 (178,300)
Forward rate agreements 4,436,628 3595 (3,289) 4270839 2,266 {2105)
OTC options bought and sold 5113613 63647  {61,304) 5090650 63 608 (61,272)
OTC denvatives 18959,052 260375 (244 337)i8637760 257525 (241,677
Exchange traded futures — bought and sold 547,685 - - 543428 - -
Exchange traded options — bought and sold 272 960 - - 272953 - -
Exchange traded swaps 13,424 261 - — 13,424,261 - -
Interest rate derivatives 33203958 260375 (244,337)32878402 257,525 (241 677)
Credit dervatives
OTC swaps 1,932,635 55302 {51,000 1931,919 55,247 {50291)
Exchange traded credit default swaps 84,161 993 (780) 84161 593 (730)
Credrt derivatives 2,016,796 56 295 (51,780) 2016,080 56,240 {51671)
Equity and stock index derlvatives
OTC options bought and sold 124 944 13,042 (15681) 117,431 12500 (14,797)
Equity swaps and forwards 45,922 2057 (1,718) 40877 1.372 (1059)
OTC derivatives 170,866 15,099 (17,399) 158,408 13.872 {15,856)
Exchange traded futures — bought and sold 57 565 - - 44,787 - -
Exchange traded options — bought and sold 130 885 2631 (2371) 32593 - -
Equity and stock sndex dervatives 359316 17,730 (19,770) 235788 13872 (153856)
Commodity denvatives
OTC options bought and sold G§2,508 4,262 (4215) 91,987 4,068 {4,162}
Commodity swaps and forwards 252621 22872  (22012) 251,803 22,832 (21,925)
OTC derivatives 345,129 27134 (26,227) 343,790 26,900 (26087)
Exchange traded futures — bought and sold 312883 2436 (2,008) 311,459 2436 {2,007)
Exchange traded options — bought and sold 55729 180 (200) 54,876 179 (200
Commniodity denvatives 713741 29,750  (28435) 710125 29515 (28,294)
Derrvatives with subsidiaries 676,740 21,579 (23181)
Denvatve assets/{habilites) held for trading 39131973 415638  (402019)39375860 428976 (417055
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13 Derrvatrve financial instruments continued

The farr values and notional amounts of dervative instruments held for nsk management are set out in the followang table

Derwvatrves held for risk management The Group The Bank
Fair value Fair value

Notional Notional

contract contract

amount Assets Liabilitles amount Assets Liabllitles

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Year ended 315t December 2010
Derwvatives designated as cash flow hedges
Interest rate swaps 126,904 760 (882) 102,655 393 (866)
Forward fareign exchange 581 - (43) 581 - (43)
Exchange traded interest rate swaps 22,278 - - 22,278 - -
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges 149,763 760 {925) 125514 393 (909)
Dervatives designated as fair value hedges
Currency swaps 679 - (54) - - -
Interest rate swaps 42,301 905 (872) 39324 826 (754)
Equity options - - - - - m
Forward foreign exchange 4,561 19 (86) 14,516 135 {225)
Exchange traded interest rate swaps 36427 - - 36,427 - -
Dervatives designated as fair value hedges 83,968 924 {1,012) 90,267 961 {980)
Derivatives designated as hedges of net investments
Forward foreign exchange 5,870 28 (199) 5870 28 {199)
Currency swaps 752 21 (217) 752 - (217)
Dervatives designated as hedges of net investment 6,622 49 {416) 6,622 28 {416)
Derwative assets/(liabihties) held for risk management 240353 1,733 (2,353) 222,403 1,382 (2,305)
Year ended 31st December 2009
Derrvatives designated as cash flow hedges
Interest rate swaps 79,241 478 (494) 56,675 324 (483)
OTC options bought and sold 673 2 - 673 2 -
Forward foreign exchange 2224 237 (51) 2215 236 (55)
Exchange traded interest rate swaps 33534 - - 33,534 - -
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges 115672 717 {545) 93,097 562 {538)
Derwatives designated as fair value hedges
Currency swaps 502 10 - - - -
Interest rate swaps 12199 357 (459) 11948 317 (423)
Equity options 7710 53 (56) 134 - m
Forward foreign exchange 5,386 18 (103) 5386 18 (103)
Exchange traded mterest rate swaps 32,257 = - 32,257 - -
Derivatives designated as falr value hedges 58,054 438 (618) 49725 335 {527)
Denvatives designated as hedges of net investments
Forward foreign exchange 5321 22 (97) 5321 22 (87)
Currency swaps 9N - (137) 971 - (137)
Dervatives designated as hedges of net investment 6,292 22 (234) 6,292 22 (234)
Derlvative assets/(liabilties) held for risk management 180018 1177 {1,397y 149114 918 {1,299)

Interest rate dervatives, designated as cash flow hedges primanly hedge the exposure to cash flow variability from interest rates of variable rate loans to

banks and customers, variable rate debt securities held and highly probable forecast finanaing transactions and reinvestments

Interest rate dervatives designated as fair value hedges primanty hedge the interest rate nisk of fixed rate borrowings insssue fixed rate loans to banks

and customers and investments in fixed rate debt secunties held

Currency dervatives are pnmanly designated as hedges of the foreign currency nsk of net investrrients in foreign operations
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13 Denvative financeal iInstruments continued

The Group has hedged the following forecast cash flows, which pnmanly vary with miterest rates These cash flows are expected to irnpact the income

staternertt in the following penods, exduding any hedge adjustments that may be applied

Uptoone Betweenone Betweentwo Betweenthree Between four More than five

Total year (o two years tothreeyears tofouryears tofiveyears years
£m £m fm £m £m fm im

2010
The Group
Forecast receivable cash flows 2,861 440 570 625 526 291 409
Forecast payable cash flows 307 69 52 76 82 22 6
The Bank
Forecast recenvable cash flows 2,530 289 469 574 505 285 408
Forecast payable cash flows 293 65 51 74 81 22 ~
2009
The Group
Forecast recervable cash flows 3,304 467 838 837 700 370 92
Forecast payable cash flows 558 51 96 122 145 116 28
The Bank
Forecast recevable cash flows 3,147 393 792 B11 691 368 92
Forecast payable cash flows 547 49 95 121 144 115 23

The maximum length of time over which the Group hedges exposure to the varniability i future cash flows for forecast transactions, excluding those
forecast transactions related to the payment of vaniable interest on existing finanaial instrurments, 15 fourteen years {2009 nine years), and for the Bank,

eight years {2009 mine years)

Amounts recogrused in net interest income The Gfb{ﬂ; The Bairrl:
Year ended 31st December 2010

Farr value hedging

Losses on the hedged items attnbutable to the hedged nsk {1.172) (1171}
Cans on the hedging instruments 1,286 1,310
Fair value meffectiveness 114 139
Cash flow hedging ineffectiveness 138 136
Met investment hedging ineffectiveness (10} (10)
Year ended 31st Decemnber 2009

Faur value hedging

Gains an the hedged items attributable to the hedged nisk 1,604 1624
Losses on the hedging instruments (1,478} {1,513)
Fair value ineffectiveness 126 11
Cash flow hedging ineffectiveness 21 22
Net imvestment hedging ineffectiveness (5) (5)

All gains or losses on hedging denvaives relating to forecast transactions which are no longer expected to oceur, have been recycied to the income

statement

Transfers from cash flow hedging reserve

Gains and losses transferred from the cash flow hedging reserve in the current year were to Interest income £88mgain (2009 £22m loss), interest
expense £515m gain (2009 £272m gain} net trading ncorme £148m loss (2009 £165m loss), adrmmstration and generat expenses £99m gain (2009
£7m gain), and for the Bank, interest income £ryl (2009 £nil), interest expense 518m gan (2009 £245m gain), net trading income £73m loss (2009

£11m loss) and administration and general expenses £99m gain (2009 £7m gan)

14 Loans and advances to banks and customers

The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m im
Cross loans and advances to banks 37,847 41,196 40,438 43024
Less Allowance for impairment (48) _(61) {48) {61}
Loans and advances to banks 37,799 41135 40,390 42963
Gross loans and advances to customers 440326 430959 531,012 519469
Less Allowance for imparrment (12,384) (10,735) {8.076) {7.341)
Loans and advances to customers 427942 420,224 522,936 512128
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15 Available for sale financial investments

The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m fm £m £m
Debt secunities and other eligible bulls 59,629 49807 45,076 35984
Equuity secunties 5811 6844 145 590
Available for sale financial investments 65,440 56 651 45,221 36574

16 Securities borrowng, securities lending, repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements
Amounts included in the balance sheet and reported on a net basis where the Group has the ntention and the legal ability to settle net or reafise
simultaneously were as follows

{a) Reverse repurchase agreements and other similar secured lending

Amounts advanced to counterparties under reverse repurchase agreements and cash collateral provided under stock borrowing agreements are treated
as collaterahsed loans recevable The related secunties purchased or borrowed subject to an agreement with the counterparty to repurchase them are
not recognised on-balance sheet where the nsks and rewards of ownership remain with the counterparty

The Group The Bank
2010 2009 010 2009
£m Em £m £m
Banks 104,233 67,872 72,997 47,108
Customers 101,539 75559 154,346 98 325
Reverse repurchase agreements and cash collateral held on securities borrowed 205,772 143431 227,343 145433

b} Repurchase agreements and other similar secured borrowing

Secunties that are not recorded on the balance sheet (for example secunties that have been obtained as a result of reverse repurchase and stock
borrowing transactions) may also be lent or sold subject to a commitment to repurchase ~ such secunties remain off-balance sheet In both instances
amounts received from counterparty are treated as liabilities, which at 31st December were as follows

The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2002
£m fm £ fm
Banks 99,997 93692 61,692 5379
Customers 125,537 105,083 152,515 111,404
Repurchase agreements and cash collateral on securities lent 225,534 198,781 214,707 165,195

17 Investments in associates and joint ventures

2010 2009
£ £m
Investrnent in assocates 261 250
Investment (n joint ventures 257 172
Total 518 422

Summarised financial information for the Groupss associates and joint ventures 1s set out below The amounts shown are assets, liabifities and net
incomne of the investees, not Just the Group’s share, as at and for the year ended 315t December 2030 with the exception of certain undertakings for
which the ameunts are based on accounts made up to dates not earlier than three months before the balance sheet date

2010 2009
Joint Jeint
Assoclates Yentures Assooates Ventures
fm £fm £m £m
Total assets 4,819 3,452 4939 3,521
Total habiities 4,089 3,024 4,236 3,238
(Loss)/Profit after tax (167) 93 {96) 30

The Group's share of commitments and contingencies of its associates and joint ventures is compnsed of insurance guarantees of £nil (2009 £5m} and
unutihsed credit faclities provided to customers of £1,237m (2009 £1,126m)
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18 Goodwll and intangible assets
Internally Core Mortgage
generated Other deposit Customer servicing Licences
Goodwill  software  software intangibles Brands lists rights  and other Total
£m £m £m fm £m £m £m £m £m
The Group
Cost
As at 1st January 2010 7,058 963 237 30 175 1.521 164 462 10,881
Acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries 12 - - - - 23 - 25 65
Additions and disposals - 88 3 - - - {168) 3) (80)
Exchange and other adjustrments 189 40 (6) 46 27 137 4 (1 426
As at 31st December 2010 7,259 1,091 234 347 202 1,686 - 473 11,292
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
As at 1st January 2010 (826) (465) {58) (82) (84) (318) (117) (136) (2,086)
Disposals - 100 - - - 2 144 11 257
Amortisation charge - (178) {(36) {19) (18) (141) @ (38) (437)
Impairment charge (243) (14) - (7 - (15) (19) (17) (315)
Exchange and other adjustments 29 5 8 (13} (7} {21) (1) (14) {14}
As at 31st December 2010 (1,040) (552) (86) {121} {109) {493) - (194)  (2,595)
Net book value 6,219 539 148 226 93 1,193 - 279 8,697
The Bank
Cost
As at 1st January 2010 4281 675 136 7 17 164 17 5401
Acquisitions and disposals of subsidianes - - - - - 28 - 2 30
Addrtions and disposals - 32 (18) - - - {168) - (154}
Exchange and ather adjustments (2) - - - (4) (29) 4 (2) (33)
As at 31st December 2010 4,279 707 118 7 - 16 - 117 5,244
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
As at 1st January 2010 (727) (320) {21) (3) (6) ) {115} 2 (1,220)
Disposals - 94 - - - - 144 1 249
Amortisation charge - (1) 13) n - (5) 7 (11) (148)
Impairment charge - {13) - - - {10} {19} 9 (33)
Exchange and other adjustments - 11 - - 14 (3) (10) 18
As at 31st December 2010 (727) (339) (34) (4) - {8) - (22) {1,134}
Net book value 3,552 368 84 3 - 8 - 95 4,110
The Group
Cost
As at 1stJanuary 2009 8,551 721 328 261 155 1,565 173 426 12,180
Acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries 63 - - - - 1 - 109 173
Disposal of discontinued operations (1587) (66) - - (2) - - (32} (1887
Additions and disposals - 264 (36) - - - - 11 239
Exchange and other adjustments 31 44 (55) 40 22 {45) (9} {52) (24)
As at 31st Decemnber 2009 7,058 963 237 301 175 1,521 164 462 10881
Accurmnulated amortisation and impairment
As at 15t January 2009 {926) (284) (69) (52) {55) am {116} 104y  (,778)
Disposal of discontinued operations 84 25 - - 2 - - 8 119
Disposals - 12 4 - - - - - 16
Amortisation charge - (190} (29) {22) (7) {136) (13) (54) (461)
Impairment charge {1) [4RD] - - (6) - - 1o {28)
Exchange and other adjustrments 17 an 36 (8) {8) (10) 12 24 46
As at 31st December 2009 (826} (465) (58) (82) (84) (318) (117) (136)  {2,086)
Net book value 6232 498 179 219 g1 1203 47 326 8,795
The Bank
Cost
As at 1st January 2009 4,303 560 110 7 4 16 173 38 5211
Acqussitions and disposals of subsidianes - - - - 2 - 75 77
Additions and disposals (17) 116 a8 - - - - 4 141
Exchange and other adjustments {5) (1) (12) - - (1) {9) - (28)
As at 31st December 2009 4,281 675 136 7 4 17 164 117 5401
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
As at 1st January 2009 (729) {204) (22} (3) - (5) (115) (13)  (1.091)
Disposals 2 9 - - - - - - "
Amartisation charge - (116) (11) - - (2) 13) 1 (141)
Impairment charge - (9} - - &) - - (10) {25)
Exchange and other adjustments - - 12 - - - 13 1 26
As at 31st December 2009 (727} (320} (210 (3) {6} 7 {115} (21) {1220}
Net book value 3,554 355 115 4 2 10 49 96 4,131
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18 Goodwill and intangible assets continued
Of the intangibles amortisation charge for 2009 £447m related to continuing operations

Goodwill
Goodwill 1s allocated to business operations according to business segments as follows
The Group The Bank
2010 2008 2010 200
£m £m £m £m
UK Retail Banking 3,148 3,146 3,130 3,130
Barclaycard 585 552 220 220
\Western Europe Retail Banking 505 520 108 110
Barclays Afnica 36 39 - -
Barclays Capital 133 105 - -
Barclays Corporate 150 389 - -
Barclays Wealth 391 39 94 94
Absa 1,271 1,090 - —
Total Goodwill 6,219 6,232 3,552 3,554

Coodwill has been allocated to the revised business segments in hine with the resegmentation communicated to the market n March 2010 This means
that the £243m of goodwill In Barclays Bank Russia was allocated to Barclays Corporate and goodwill In Spain of £565m was allocated between Western
Europe Retall Banking (£439m} and Barclays Corporate (£126m} The comparative figures for 2009 have been updated to reflect this resegmentation

Impairment testing of goodwill
Goodwill s reviewed annually for impairment or more frequently when there are indicators that impawrment may have occurred, by comparnng the
carrying value to its recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of each operation’s goodwill 1s based on value-in-use calculations The calculations are based upon discounting expected
pre-tax cash flows at a nsk-adjusted interest rate appropniate to the cash generating unit, the determination of both of which requires the exercise of
judgernent The estimation of pre-tax cash flows Is sensitive to the penods for which forecasts are avarlable and to assumptions regarding the long-term
sustainable cash flows While forecasts are compared with actual performance and external economic data, expected cash flows naturally reflect
rnanagement s view of future performance

Key assumptions
The key assumptions used for impairment testing are set out below for each significant goodwil! balance  Other goodwill of £1 253m {2009 £1 $86m)
was allocated to multiple cash-generating units which are not considered indwidually significant

UK Retail Banking

The recoverable amount of UK Retall Banking has been determined using cash flow predictons based on financial budgets approved by management
and covering a five-year period, with a terminal growth rate of 2% (2009 3%) applied thereafter The forecast cashflows have been discounted at a
pre-tax rate of 13% {2009 14%) Based on the above assumptions the recoverable amount exceeded the carrying amount including goodwill by £4 Obn
(2009 £1 2bn) Aone percentage point change in the discount rate or the terminal growth rate would reduce the recoverable amount by £1 Obn {2009
£0 7bn) and £0 8bn (2009 £0 5bn) respectively A reduction in the forecast cash flows of 10% per annum would reduce the recoverable amount by
£11bn (2009 £08bn)

Absa

The recoverable amount of Absa has been determined using cash fiow predictions based an finangial budgets approved by management and covering a
five year penod, with a terminal growth rate of 6% {2009 €%) appled thereafter The forecast cashflows have been discounted at a pre-tax rate of 14%
(2009 14%} The recoverable amount calculated based on value in use exceeded the carrymg amount including goodwaill by £5 Obn (2009 £4 7bn) The
result of the impairment test would not be matenally different if alternative reasonably possble changes in key assumptions were applied

Spain

The recoverable amount of the Sparush business has been determined using cash flow predictions based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year penod, with a terminal growth rate of 2% (2009 2%) applied thereafter The forecast cash flows have been
discounted at a pre-tax rate of 12% (2009 13%) The recoverable amount calcutated based on value in use exceeded the carrying amount including
goodwill by £383m  The cash flow projections include the estimated benefits from changes in preduct mix, tmproved product pricing and impairment
levels coming back into hine with histonc ioan loss rates There 1s no impact from any cost restructuring or any future planned mvestments included
within the forecasts  An increase in the discount rate to 15% a decrease in the terminal growth rate to negative 1 3% or a reduction in the forecast
cash flows of 26% per annum would reduce the headroom over the carrying amount to i

Barclays Corporate- Russia

At 31 December 2010 Barclays recognised an impairment charge of £243 milkon (2002 nd) in respect of all of the goodwilt held by Barclays Corporate in
Barclays Bank Russia {BBR), which arose from the Expo bank acquisition in 2008 The imparment principally reflects changes in expected future cash
flows ansing from BBR as our actwities there have been refocused The recoverable amounit of BBR was calculated based on the value in use approach
using a pre-tax rate of 17%
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19 Property, plant and equipment
The Group The Bank
investment Leased Investment
property Property  Equetpment assets Total property  Property  Equipment Total
£m £m £m fm £m £m Em £m £m
2070
Cost
As at 1st January 2010 1207 3,830 4,197 66 9,300 - 1.956 2,073 4,029
Acquisitions and disposals of subsicharies 46 2 4 - 52 - - 2 2
Additions and disposals 353 283 120 9 765 4 172 (22) 154
Change \n farr value of investment properties (54) - - - (54) - - - -
Fully depreciated assets written off - (2) (1) - (3} - {2) (1 (3)
Exchange and cther adjustments 18 116 429 - 563 - (11} 12 1
As at 31st December 2010 1,570 4,229 4,749 75 10623 4 2,115 2,064 4,183
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
As at 1st January 2010 - (1,128) (2.529) a7 (3674 - (881} (1,316) (2,197)
Acquisiions and disposals of subsidiaries - [ - - 6 - 5 - 5
Depreciation charge - (231) (555) (4) {790} - (129) (256} (385)
Impairment charge - (28) {25) - (53) - (10) {19) {29)
Disposals - 86 34 {3) 424 - 58 21 279
Fully deprectated assets watten off - 2 1 - 3 - 2 1 3
Exchange and other adjustments - (33) (366) - (399) - 20 1) 19
As at 31st December 2010 — (1.326) (3,133) (24)  (4483) - (935) (1,370) (2,305
Net book value 1,570 2,903 1,616 51 6,140 4 1,180 694 1,878
2009
Cost
As at 1st January 2009 - 3624 3,944 304 7872 - 1,840 1,915 3,75%
Acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries 978 171 5 - 1,154 - - - -
Disposal of discontinued operations - {120} (9%} - (219) - - - -
Additions and disposals 137 233 387 (37} 720 - 131 169 300
Change in far value of mvestment properties 6 - - - -] - - - -
Fully depreciated assets wntten off - (6} (17) - {23) - - - -
Exchange and other adjustments 86 {72) (23) {201) (210) - (15) (i1) (26)
As at 31st December 2009 1,207 3830 4197 66 9,300 - 1,956 2,073 4,029
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
As at 1st January 2009 - (,011)  (2744) (43) (3,198} - 830y {1135)  {1,965)
Acquisibions and disposals of subsidiaries - - 2 - 2 - - - -
Disposal of discontinued operatians - 33 64 - 97 - - - -
Depreciation charge - (201} (565) (20) (786) - (91) {253) {344)
Impairment charge - {32} {2) - {34) - (12) (1} (13)
Disposals - 46 g7 1 144 - 37 60 97
Fully depreciated assets written off - 6 17 - 23 - - - -
Exchange and other adjustments - 31 2 45 78 - 15 13 28
As at 315t December 2009 — (1128} (2.529) (17} (3674) - (881) _ (1,316) (2197
Net book value 1207 2,702 1,668 49 5626 - 1,075 757 1,832

Of the depreciation charge for 2009, £759m relates to continuing operations

The fair value of Barclays investment property is based on valuations supparted by appropnately qualfied independent valuers,

Property rentals of £48m (2009 £64m) have been included in other incorme and gawns on property disposals of £29m (2009 £29rm) have beenincluded

in adrministration and general expenses
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20 Financial habiities designated at far value

The Group The Bank The Group The Bank
2010 2009
Contractual Contractual Contractual Contractual
amount due ameunt due amount due amount due
FairvValue  on matunty Fair Value  onmaturity Farvalue  onmatunty Far Value  on matunty
£m £m £m £m £m fm £m £m
Debt secunties 76,907 81,589 80,227 83,139 72191 77,636 71303 76372
Deposits 10,243 10,950 8,607 8,784 6275 6544 4,581 4 849
Liabiliies to customers under investment

contracts 1,947 - - - 1,679 - - -
Other financial assets 8,632 9,533 8,208 8,897 7,736 8811 7662 8,692
Financial labilities designated at fair value 97,729 102,072 97,042 100,820 87,881 92,991 83546 89913

The own credit adjustment arose from on £96bn of Barclays Capitals financial habiities designated at farr value (2009 £86bn) The cumulative own
credit net gain that has been recogrised 1s £892m at 31st December 2010 {2009 £501m)

21 Accruals, deferred income and other Yiabilities

The Croup The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
fm fm £m £fm
Accruals and deferred income 5,539 6007 2,353 4,854
Other creditors 5,198 5972 15,217 1,565
Obligations under finance leases {Note 37) 87 122 - 4
Insurance contract liabilises, including unit-linked hiabilities 2,409 2,140 - —
Accruals, deferred income and other liabilities 13,233 14,241 17,570 6423

Insurance habilities relate principally to the Group's long-term business Insurance contract labilities associated with the Group's short-term non-life
business are £131m (2009 £132m)

The maximum amounts payable under all of the Group’s insurance products, ignoring the probability of insured events occurnng and the contabution
from investments backing the insurance policies were £71bn (2009 £63bn) or £67bn (2009 £57bn) after rensurance Of this insured nsk £56bn
(2009 £49bn) was concentrated in short-term insurance contracts and £65bn (2009 £55bn) was concentrated in Africa

The maximum impact to profit or loss and equity under any reasonably possible change in the assurnptions used to calculate the insurance liabilities
would be £12m {2009 £14m)

22 Subordinated liabilities
Subordinated labiities which are all issued by Barclays Bank PLC ('The Bank') or other subsidianes of the Group, Include accrued interest and comprise
dated and undated foan capital as follows

The Croup The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m fm £m
Undated loan capital 9,094 8,148 8,923 8207
Dated loan capital 19,405 17,668 18,071 16,686

28,499 25816 26,994 24,893
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22 Subordinated liabilies continued

Undated loan capital The Group The Bank
210 2009 2010 2009

Initial call date £m £m £m £m
Non-convertible
Barclays Bank PLC
Tier One Notes (TONs)
6% Callable Perpetual Core Tier One Notes 2032 453 424 453 424
6 86% Callable Perpetual Core Tier One Notes (US$1,000m) 2032 866 784 866 784

Reserve Capital Instruments (RCls)
5926% Step-up Callable Perpetual Reserve Capital Instruments

(1J5%1,350m) 2016 1,010 928 1,010 928
6 3688% Step-up Callable Perpetual Reserve Capital

Instruments 2019 608 567 608 567
7434% Step-up Callable Perpetual Reserve Capital Instrurments

{US$1,250m) 2017 950 866 950 866
14% Step-up Callable Perpetual Reserve Capital Instruments 2019 2,887 2,608 2,887 2,608
5 3304% Step-up Callable Perpetual Reserve Capital

Instruments 2036 599 560 599 560
Undated notes

6 875% Undated Subordinated Notes 2015 156 151 156 151
6 375% Undated Subordinated Notes 2017 150 147 150 147
7 7% Undated Subordinated Notes {US$39m) 2018 69 65 69 65
8 25% Undated Subordinated Notes 2ns 156 152 156 152
7125% Undated Subordinated Notes 2020 190 180 180 180
6 125% Undated Subordinated Notes 2027 234 220 234 220
Junior Undated Floating Rate Notes {US$121m) Any interest payment date 78 75 139 134
Undated Floating Rate Primary Capital Notes Series 3 Any interest payment date 145 145 145 145
Bonds

9 25% Perpetual Subordinated Bonds {ex-Woolwsch PLC) 2021 96 95 96 95
9% Permanent Interest Bearing Capital Bonds At any tme 41 43 41 43
Loans

5 03% Reverse Dual Currency Undated Subordinated Loan (Yen

8.000rm) 2028 70 55 70 55
5% Reverse Dual Currency Undated Subordinated Loan (Yen

12,000} 2028 104 83 104 83
Barclays SLCSM Funding B V guaranteed by the Bank

6 140% Fixed Rate Guaranteed Perpetual Subordinated Notes 2015 232 - — —
Undated loan capital — nen-convertible 9,094 8,148 8,923 8207

The principaj terms of the undated loan capital are descnbed below

Security
None af the undated loan capital 15 secured

Subordination

All undated foan capital ranks behind the claims against the bank of depositors and other unsecured unsubardinated creditors and holders of dated loan
capital n the following order Junior Undated Floating Rate Notes, other issues of Undated Notes, Bonds and Loans-ranking pan passu with each other,
followed by TONs and RCIs-ranking pan passu with each other

Interest
All undated loan capital bears a fixed rate of interest urttil the initial call date, with the exception of the 9% Bends which are fixed for the Iife of the issue
and the Junior and Senes 3 Undated Notes which are floating rate

After the initial call date, in the event that they are not redeemed, the 6 875%, 6 375%, 7125%, 6 125% Undated Notes the 9 25% Bonds and the

6 140% Perpetual Notes will bear interest at rates fixed penodically in advance for five year penods based on marketrates Al other undated loan capital
except the two floating rate Undated Notes will bear interest, and the two floatmg rate Undated Notes currently bear interest, at rates fixed penodically in
advance based on London interbank rates




112 | Barclays Bank PLC Annual Report 2010 www barclays com/annualreport10

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31st December 2010 continued

22 Subordinated liabiles continued

Payment of mterest

Barclays Bank PLC 1s not obliged to make a payment of interest on its Undated Notes Bonds and Loans excluding the 77% Undated Notes 8 25%
Undated Notes, G 25% Bonds and 6 140% Perpetual Notes 1f, In the preceding six months a dividend has not been declared or paid on any class of
shares of Barclays PLC or i certain cases, any class of preference shares of the Bank The Bark 1s not obliged to make a payment of interest on s 3 25%
Perpetual Subordinated Bonds i, in the immediately preceding 12 months’ interest period adwidend has not been paid on any class of its share capital
Interest not so paid becomes payable in each case if such a dividend 1s subsequently paid arin certain other circumstances During the year, the Bank
dectared and patd dividends on its ordinary shares and on all classes of preference shares

Mo payment of principal or any interest may be rmade unless the Bank satisfies a specified solvency test

The Bank may elect to defer any payment of interest on the 7 7% Undated Notes and 8 25% Undated Notes Lintil such ttme as any deferred interest has
been pad in full, neither the Bank nor Barclays PLC may declare or pay a dividend, subject to certain exceptions, on any of its ordinary shares, preference
shares, or other share capitat or satisfy any payments of interest or coupons on certain other untor obligations

The Issuer and the Bank may elect to defer any payment of interest on the 6 140% Perpetual Notes However any deferred interest wilt automatically
become immediately due and payable on the earlier of (1} the date onwhich any dvidend or other distnbution or interest or other payment 1s made in
respect of any pan passu or any Junior obligations or on which any pan passu ar any junior cbligations are purchased {n) the date of redemption or
purchase of the 6 140% Perpetual Notes and (i} certan other events including bankruptcy, lquidation or winding up of the Issuer or the Bank

The Bank may elect to defer any paymert of interest on the RCls Any such deferred payment of interest must be paid on the earlier of (1} the date of
redempuion of the RCIs () the coupon payment date falling on or nearest to the tenth annwersary of the date of deferrat of such payment, and (i} in
respect of the 14% RCls only substitution Whilst such deferral i1s continuing, neither the Bank nor Barglays PLC may declare or pay a dvidend subject 1o
certain exceptions on any of its ordinary shares or preference shares

The Bank may elect to defer any payment of interest on the TONs if it deterrmines that it is or such payment would result init being in non-compliance
with capital adeguacy requirements and policies of the FSA Any such deferred payment of nterest wall only be payable on a redemption of the TONs
Until such time as the Bank next makes a payment of interest on the TONS, neither the Bark nor Barclays PLC may (1) declare or pay a drnadend subject
to certain exceptions, on any of therr respective ordinary shares or Preference Shares, or make payments of interest in respect of the Bank's Reserve
Capital Instruments and (1) certain restnctions on the redemption, purchase or reduction of their respective share capital and certain other secunties
also apply

Repayment

All undated loan capital 1s repayable, at the option of the Bank generally n whale at the inital call date and on any subsequent coupon or interest
payment date or in the case of the 6 875%, 6 375% 7125% 6 125% Undated Notes, the 925% Bonds and the & 140% Perpetual Notes on any fifth
anniversary after the initial call date In addition, each issue of undated loan capital is repayable at the gption of the Bark, in whole for certain tax
reasons, either at any time or on an interest payment date There are no events of default except non-payment of principal or mandatory interest Any
repayments require the prior notification to the FSA,

All 1ssues of undated loan capital have been made in the euro currency market and/or under Rule 144A, and no issties have been registered under the US
Secunties Act of 1933
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22 Subordinated habiliites continued
Dated loan capital The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
Initial call date  Maturity date £m £m £m £m
Non-convertible
Barclays Bank PLC
12% Unsecured Capital Loan Stock 2610 - 27 - 27
5 75% Subordinated Notes (€1 000m) 201 836 853 8356 853
5 25% Subordinated Notes{€250m) (ex-Woolwich plc) 2011 221 246 221 245
5 015% Subordinated Notes (US$150rm) 2013 104 99 104 99
4 875% Subordinated Notes (€750m) 2013 670 693 670 693
Callable Floating Rate Subordinated Notes (US$1,500rm) 2010 2015 - 927 - 927
4 38% Fixed Rate Subordinated Notes {US$75m) 2015 55 51 55 5t
4 75% Fixed Rate Subordinated Notes (US$150m) 2015 1 103 m 103
Floating Rate Subordinated Step-up Callable Notes (US$750m) 2011 2016 484 463 484 463
Callable Floating Rate Subordinated Notes (€1,250m) 2011 2016 1,082 1,115 1,082 1115
Callable Floating Rate Subordinated Notes (US$500m} 2012 2017 323 309 323 309
10125% Subordinated Notes (ex-Woalwich plc) 2012 2017 105 107 105 107
Floating Rate Subordinated Step-up Callable Notes (US$1,500m) 2012 207 569 926 969 926
Floating Rate Subordinated Step-up Callable Notes (€1 500m) 202 2017 1,296 1,337 1,296 1337
& 05% Fixed Rate Subordinated Notes (US$2,250m) 2017 1,662 1,505 1,662 1,505
Floating Rate Subordinated Notes{€40m) 2018 35 36 35 36
6% Fixed Rate Subordinated Notes (€£1,750m) 2018 1,596 1641 1,596 1,641
CMS-Linked Subordinated Notes (€100m) 2018 90 92 90 92
CMS-Linked Subordinated Notes {€135m) 2018 121 124 121 124
Floating Rate Subordinated Notes (€50m) 2019 42 43 42 43
Callable Fixed/Floating Rate Subordinated Nates (€1,000m) 2014 2019 204 5 904 915
514% Lower Tier 2 Notes {US$1 250m) 2015 2020 N - rll -
6% Fxed Rate Subordinated Notes (€1 500m) 2021 1,316 - 1,316 -
9 5% Subordinated Bonds {ex-Woolwich pic} 2021 292 276 292 276
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes (€100m) 2021 85 87 85 87
10% Fixed Rate Subordinated Notes 2021 2,160 2022 2,160 2,022
10179% Fixed Rate Subordinated Notes (US$1,521m) 2021 1,040 942 1,040 942
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes (£50m) 2022 43 45 43 45
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes (€50m) 2023 43 45 43 45
Fixed/Floanng Rate Subordinated Callable Notes 2018 2023 590 568 590 568
5 75% Fixed Rate Subordinated Notes 2026 675 631 675 631
5 4% Reverse Dual Currency Subordinated Loan (Yen 15,000m) 2027 132 105 132 105
6 33% Subordinated Notes 2032 53 52 53 52
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes (€100m) 2040 B6 89 86 89
Other loans from subsidiaries - - 59 212
Absa
10 75% Subordinated Callable Notes (ZAR 1,100m}) 2010 2015 - 95 - -
Subordinated Callable Notes {(ZAR 400m) 2010 2015 - 36 - -
8 75% Subordinated Callable Notes (ZAR 1,500m) 2012 2017 154 129 - -
Subordinated Callable Notes (ZAR 1,886m) 2013 2018 210 173 - -
8 8% Subordinated Fixed Rate Callable Notes (ZAR 1 725m) 2014 2019 178 143 - -
Subordinated Callable Notes (ZAR 3,000m) 2014 2019 EED] 268 - -
8 1% Subordinated Callable Notes (ZAR 2,000m) 2015 2020 200 160 - -
10 28% Subordinated Callable Notes {ZAR 600my) 2017 2022 60 - - -
Subordinated Callable Notes {(ZAR 400rm) 2017 2022 41 - - -
Subordinated Callable Notes (ZAR 1,500m) 2023 2028 156 127 - -
Other capttal issued by Barclays Spain, Ghana, Kenya and Zambia 2011-2016 37 38 - -
Dated loan capital — non-convertible 19,379 17 643 18,071 16,686
Dated loan capital — convertible 1ssued by Barclays Botswana
and Zambia 2014-2015 26 25 - -
Total dated loan capstal 18,405 17 668 18,071 16 636
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22 Subordinated liabilities continued

Dated loan caprtal

Dated loan capital 1s issued by the Bank for the development and expansion of the Group's business and to strengthen its capital base, by Barclays Bank
Spain SA {Barclays Spain} Barclays Bank of Botswana Ltd {Barclays Botswana}, Barclays Bank Zarnbia PLC (Barclays Zambia) and Barclays Bank of Kenya
(Barclays Kenya) to enhance thewr respectve capital bases and by Absa and Barclays Bank of Chana Ltd (Barclays Chana} for general corporate purposes

The principal terms of the dated loan capital are described below

Security
None of the Groups dated loan capital 1s secured

Subordinaticn
All dated loan capital ranks behind the clams against the bank of depositors and other unsecured unsubordinated creditors but before the claims of the
undated loan capital and the holders of their equity The dated loan capital issued by subsidizrtes, are similarly subordinated

Interest
Interest on the floating rate Notes are fixed penodically in advance, based on the related interbank or local central bank rates

All other non-convertible Notes except the 10 125% Subordinated Notes 2017 are generally fixed interest for the hife of the 1ssue but some are reset to a
floating rate after a fixed period, with varying interest rate terms The 10 125% Subordinated Notes 2017, f not called in 2012, will bear interest at a rate
fixed in advanice for a further penod of 5 years

The 514% Lower Tier 2 Notes were registered under the US Securities Act of 1933 All other issues of dated loan capital have been made in the euro
currency market, local markets and/or under Rule 144A

Repayment terms

Those Notes with a call date are repayable at the option of the 1ssuer, on cenditions governing the respective debt obligations some in whole or in part
and some only In whole The remaining dated lean caputal outstanding at 31st December 2010 1s redeernable only on matunty, subject In particular
cases, to provisions allowing an early redemption in the event of certain changes in tax law or, n the case of Barclays Botswana and Barclays Zambia, to
certam changes in legislation or regulations

Any repayments prior to maturity require, in the case of the Bank the prior notification to the FSA, or In the case of the overseas 1ssues, the approval of
the local requlator for that punsdiction

There are no commuitted facihties in existence at the balance sheet date which permit the refinancing of debt beyond the date of matunty
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23 Provisions
Undrawn
cantractually
committed
Redundancy facilties and
Onergus andre-  guarantees Sundry
contracts  structuring provided provisions Total
. £fm fm £m £m £m
The Group
At 1st |January 2010 68 162 162 198 590
Acquisibons and disposals of subsidiaries - - 1 6 7
Exchange and other adjustments - - 6 12 18
Additions 36 139 118 533 826
Amounts utdised (28) (68} (8) (229) (333)
Unused amounts reversed 4 (56} (50) (53) (163)
Amortisation of discount 2 - - — 2
At 315t December 2010 74 177 229 467 947
The Bank
At 1st January 2010 58 148 196 62 464
Acquisitions and disposals of subsidianes - - 1 6 7
Exchange and other adjustments - - 9 m 8
Additons 36 132 34 391 593
Amourits utilised (24) (59) (8 {209) (300)
Unused amounts reversed (4) (55) (48) {16) (123)
Amartisation of discount 2 - - - 2
At 315t December 2010 68 166 184 233 651
The Group
At 1st January 2009 50 18 109 258 535
Acquisitions and disposals of subsidianes - (2) 1 {6} N
Exchange and other adjustments - 4 2 - <]
Additions 51 269 19 125 564
Amounts utiised {27) {201) {21) {142) (351)
Unused amounts reversed 8) (26} {48) (37) {119)
Amortisation of discount 2 - - - 2
At 31st December 2009 68 162 162 198 550
The Bank
At 1st January 2009 48 P10 100 132 390
Acquisitions and disposals of subsidianes 2 (1) - (€))] (2}
Exchange and other adjustrments - 3 2 2 7
Additiens 41 216 159 16 432
Amounts utiised {27) (155) (21) {76) (279)
Unused amounts reversed (8) (25) (44) )] (86)
Amortisation of discount 2 - — - 2
At 31st December 2009 58 148 196 62 464

Provisions expected to be recovered or settled within no more than 12 months after 31 st December 2070 for the Group were £658m (2009 £466m)

and for the Bank were £468m (2009 £408m)

Provisions in respect of liigation included in sundry provisions for the Group were £151m (2009 £27m} and for the Bank were £116m {2009 £ril}
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24 Contingent habilities and commitments
The following table summarises the norminal principal amount of contingent liabilities and commitments with off-balance sheet nsk

The Group The Bank
2010 2005 2010 2008
£m £m £m fm
Securities lending arrangements 27,672 27,406 27,672 27 406
Cuarantees and letters of credit pledged as coilateral secunty 13,783 15,406 11,823 13,150
Performance guarantees, acceptances and endorsements 9,175 9562 7,301 7752
Contingent babilties 50,630 52,774 46,796 48,308
Documentary credits and other short-term trade related transactions 1,194 762 924 535
Standby facilities, credrt ines and other commitments 222,963 206,513 173,795 159 281

In cornmon with other banks the Group conducts business involving acceptances performance bonds and indemnities The majonity of these facilities
are offset by corresponding obligations of third parties

Contingent ltabilies

Up to the disposal of Barclays Clobat Investors on st December 2003, the Group facilitated secunties lending arrangemens for its managed investment
funds wheraby secunties held by funds under management were lent to third parties Borrowers provided cash or investment grade assets as collateral
equal to 100% of the market value of the secunities lent plus a margin of 2%-10% The Group agreed with BlackRock Inc to continue to provide
indemnities to support these arrangements for three years following the sale of the business As at 31st December 2010, the farr value of the collateral
held was £28,465m (2009 £28,248m) and that of the stock lent was £27,672m (2009 £27406m)

Cuarantees and ietters of credit are given as securnty to support the performance of a customer to third parties As the Group will only be required to
meet these obligations tn the event of the customer's default, the cash requirements of these Instruments are expected to be considerably below their
norrunal amounts

Performance guarantees are generally, short-term commitments to third parties which are not directly dependent on the customers creditworthiness
An acceptance is an undertaking by a bank to pay a bill of exchange drawn on a customer The Group expects most acceptances to be presented but
reimbursement by the customer 1s ncrmally immediate £ndorsements are residual liabilities of the Group in respect of bills of exchange, which have
been paid and subsequently rediscounted

Documentary credits and other short-term trade related transactions
Documentary credits commit the Group to make payments to third parties on production of documents which are usually rembursed iImmediately by
customers

Standby facilities, credit lines and other commitments
Comrnitments to lend are agreements to lend to a customer in the future subject to certain conditions Such commitments are either made for a fixed
period, or have no specific matunity but are cancellable by the lender subject to notice requirements

Financial Services Compensation Scheme

The Finanaal Services Compensation Scheme (FSCS) s the UK's compensation fund for customers of authonsed financial services firms that are unable
to pay claims The FSCS raises levies on all UK deposit taking nstitutions  Previously compensation has been paid out by facilities provided by HM
Treasury to FSCS in support of FSCS's abligations to the depesitors of banks declared in default. The total of these faciliies ss understood to be
approximately £20bn While it 1s anticipated that the substantial majonity of these facilities will be repaid wholly from recovenies from the institutions
concerned, there 1s the risk of a shortfall such that the FSCS may place additional levies an all FSCS participants Barclays has included an accrual of
£63m in other liabilities as at 31st Decernber 2010 {2009 E£108m) in respect of levies raised by the FSCS

Barclays Capital US mortgage activities

Barclays activittes within the US mortgage sector during the penod 2005 through 2008 included sponsoning and underwnting of approxsmately $39bn
of private-label secuntisations underwniting of approximately $34bn of other private-label secunitisations sales of approximately $150m of loans to
government sponsored enterprises {GSEs), and sales of approximately $7bn of loans to athers - including loans sold in 2009 Some of the ioans sold
were onginated by a Barclays subsidiary Barclays also performed servicing actvities through its US residential mortgage servicing business which
Barclays acquired in Q4 2006 and subsequently sold in Q3 2010

In connection with certain Barclays whole loan sales and sponscred private-label secunitisations, Barclays made certain loan level representations and
wartanties (R&Ws) generally relating to the underlying borrower, property and/or mortgage decumentation Under certain arcumstances, Barclays may
be required to repurchase the related loans or make other payments related to such foans If the R&Ws were breached The $7bn of foans sold to others
were generally priced at significant discounts and contaned more Iimited R&WSs than loans sold to GSEs Third party oniginaters provided loan Jevel
R&Ws directly to the secuntisation trusts for approximately $34bn of the $39bn in Barclays sponsored secunitisations Barclays or a subsidiary provided
loar level R&WSs to the securitisation trusts for approximately $5bn of the Barclays sponsored secuntisations Total unresolved repurchase requests
associated with all loans sold to others and private-label activities were $21m at 37 st December 2010 Current provisions are adequate to cover
estimated losses associated with cutstanding repurchase clarms However, based upon the large number of defaults occurnng in US residential
mortgages, there is a potential for additionat claims for repurchases

Clams aganst Barclays as an undenwriter of RMBS cofferings have been brought in certain avil actions Additionally, Barclays has received inquiries from
various regulatory and governmental authorities regarding 1ts mortgage-related actvities and ts cooperating with such Inquines

1t 1s not possible to provide a meaningful estrmate of the financial iImpact of the potential expasure relating to all of the foregoing matters at this time
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24 Contingent habilities and commstments continued

Assets pledged

Assets are pledged as collateral to secure habilities under repurchase agreernents, secuntisations and stock lending agreernents or as security deposits
relating to dervatives The disclosure includes any asset transfers associated with liabilies under repurchase agreements and secunties lending
transactrons

The following table summanses the nature and carrying amount of the assets pledged as secunty against these labilties

The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
fm £m £fm £m
Trading portfolio assets 111,703 96,176 54,716 53,208
Loans and advances 30,584 48,846 27,550 46,433
Avallable for sale investments 22,941 24,264 18,907 17,452
Other 45 77 - 10
Assets pledged 165,273 169,363 101,173 117,103

Collateral held as security for assets
Under certain transactions, including reverse repurchase agreements and stock borrowing transactions, the Group 1s allowed to resell or repledge the
collateral held The fair value at the balance sheet date of collateral accepted and repledged to others was as follows

The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m fm
Fair value of secunties accepted as collateral 422 890 357,159 394,851 339,995
Of which fair value of secunties repledged/transferred to athers 347,557 783334 358,593 275387

25 Legal proceedings

Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc

On 15th September 2009, motions were filed m the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York (the Court) by Lehman
Brothers Holdings Inc {LBHI}, the SIPA Trustee for Lehman Brothers Inc (the Trustee) and the Official Committee of Unsecured Creditors of Lehman
Brothers Holdings Inc {the Commuttee) All three motions challenge certain aspects of the transaction pursuant to which Barclays Caprtal Inc (BCl) and
other companies n the Group acquired rnost of the assets of Lehman Brothers Inc {LBI) in Septernber 2008 and the court order approving such sale
The claimants seek an order vaiding the transfer of certain assets to BCl, requiring BCl o return to the LBl estate alleged excess value BCl receved, and
declanng that BClis not entitled to certain assets that it claims pursuant to the sale documents and order approving the sale On 16th November 2009,
LBHL, the Trustee and the Commuttee filed separate complaints in the Court asserting claims aganst BCI based on the same underlying allegations as
the pending moticns and seeking relief similar to that which 1s requested in the motions On 25th January 2018, BCl fled its response to the motions
Barclays considers that the motions and claims against BCI are without ment and BCl 1s vigorously defending its position On 29th January 2010, BC| also
filed a motion seeking delivery of certain assets that LBHI and LB! have falled to deliver as required by the sale documents and the court order approving
the sale Approximately £2 6bn of the assets acquired as part of the acquisition had not been receved by 31st December 2010, approximatefy £2 0bn of
which were recognised as part of the accounting for the acquisition and are included in the balance sheet as at 31st Decernber 2010 This results in an
effective provision of £0 6bn against the uncertainty nherent in the itigation

On 22nd February 2011, the Court issued its Opinion in refation to these matters The Opinion calls for the parties to submit proposed Orders that will
impiernent the Opimion, and anticipates a possible status conference to resolve any potential differences between the parties regarding the final Order
that should be entered Any such Order shouid clanfy the precise impact of the Opinior and may include specific guidance regarding the treatment of
spectfic types of assets Such an Order may be the subject of further proceedings ar appeals by one or mare of the parties

Barclays has considered the Opinion and the decisions contained therein and its possible actions with respect thereto If the Opinion were to be
unaffected by future proceedings, Barclays estimates that its maximum possible loss, based on its worst case reading of the Opinion, would be
approximately £2 6bn, after taking into account the effective provision of £0 6bn Any such loss, however 1s not considered probable and Barclays is
satisfied with the current level of provision

American Depositary Shares

Barclays Bank PLC, Barclays PLC and varous current and former members of Barclays PLC's Board of Directors have been named as defendants in five
proposed securities class actions {which have been consolidated) pending i the United States Distnict Court for the Southern District of New York The
consolidated amended complaint, dated 12th February 2010, alleges that the registration statements refating to Amencan Depositary Shares
representing Preferred Stock, Series 2, 3, 4 and 5 (ADS) offered by Barclays Bank PLC at vanous times between 2006 and 2008 contained misstaternents
and omissions concerning (amongst other things) Barclays portfolio of mortgage-related (inciuding US subpnme-relzted) secunties, Barclays exposure
to mortgage and credst market risk and Barclays financial condition The consehidated amended complaint asserts clams under Sections 11, 12(a)(2)
and 15 of the Securibies Act of 1933 On 5th January 2011, the Court 1ssued an order, and on 7th January 2011, judgment was entered, granting the
defendants’ motion to disrmiss the complaint in its entirety and closing the case On 4th February 2011 the plaintiffs filed a motion asking the Court to
reconsider in part its disrmissal order, and that motion is pending Barclays considers that these ADS-related claims against tt are without ment and 1s
defending them vigorously It s not possible to estimate any possible loss i relation to these claims or any effect that they might have upon operating
results m any particular financial period
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25 Legal proceedings continued

Other

Barclays 1s engaged in various other itigation proceedings both in the United Kingdom and a number of overseas jursdictions including the United
States, involving claims by and against it which arise in the ordinary course of business Barclays does not expect the ultmate resolution of any of the
proceedings to which Barclays 1s party to have a significant adverse effect on the financial staternents of the Group and Barctays has not disclosed the
contingent liabifities associated with these clams erther because they cannot reasonably be estimated or because such disclosure could be prejudicial to
the conduct of the claims

26 Competition and regulatory matters
This note highhights some of the key competiion and regulatery challenges facing Barclays many of which are beyond our control The extent of the
impact of these matters on Barclays cannot always be predicted but may materially impact our businesses and earnings

Regulatory change

The scale of regulatary change remains challenging with a significant tightening of regulation and changes to regulatory structures globally especially for
banks that are deemed to be of systemic importance Concurrently, there 1s continuing political and regulatory scrutiny of the operation of the banking
and consumer credit ndustnes which, in some cases, is leading to Increased or changing regulation which 15 hkely to have a sigificant effect on the
industry

tn the UK, the FSAS current responsibilities are to be reallocated between the Prudential Regulatory Authonty (2 subsidiary of the Bank of England) and a
new Consurner Protection and Markets Authority by the end of 2012 The Independent Commission on 8anking has been charged by the UK
Government with reviewing the UK banking system 1s remit ncludes fooking at reducing systemic nisk, mitigating moral hazard reducing the hkelhood
and impact of bank faifure and competition 1ssues Its findings and recommendations are expected by September 2011

In the Linrted States, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act contains far reaching regulatory reform although the full impact
will not be known untif mplementing rules are made by governmental authonities, a process which 15 currently ongoing

Payment Protection Insurance {PPI})

PPi has been under scrutiny by the UK competition authonties and financial services regulators The UK Competition Commussien (CC)Y has undertaken
an in-depth enguiry into the PPl market which has resulted i the CC introducing a number of remedies including a prohibition on sale of PP at the
point of sale

On 10th August 2010, the F5A 1ssued a Policy Staterment which amends the DISP (Dispute Resolution Complaints) rules in the FSA Sourcebook for the
handling of such complaints In October 2010 the Britishk Bankers Association launched a judicial review of the FSA on the basis that the Policy
Statement applies incorrect standards for the management of PPl sales complaints including retrospective application of rules with higher standards
than those that were In place at the time of sale These proceedings are also aganst the Financial Services Ombudsman Service (FOS) which seeks to
implement the same standards for the resolution of complaints referred to 1t The hearing took place in January 2011 There is currently no indication of
the timetable for judgment

The final conclusion of the Judiceal Review could resutt In a range of outcomes with the consequence that complaints refating to the sale of PPi fal to be
determined i different ways with varying financial mpacts far customers and Barclays These outcomes depend on the extent to which the Policy
Statement 1s upheid, whether the Court holds that the Policy Statement imposes requirements in additien to the DISP rules in force at the time of sale
and the tmpact of such matters on banks' complaints handling and remediation practices Itis therefore not practicable to provide a reliable estimate or
range of estimates of the potentiat finanaial impact of any Court decision on this matter

Interchange

The Office of Fair Trading (CFT) as well as other competition authorities elsewhere n Eurepe, continues to carry out investigations into Visa and
MasterCard credit and debit interchange rates These investigations may have an impact on the consumer credit industry as well as having the potennal
for the imposition of fines Tirmung of these cases Is uncertain but outcormes may be known within the next 2-4 years

Sanctions

US laws and regulations require comphiance with US economic sanctions, administered by the Office of Foreign Assets Control, against designated
foreign countries, naticnals and others HM Treasury regufations similarly require comphiance with sanctions adopted by the UK Covernment Barclays
conducted an internal review of its conduct with respect to US Collar payments involving countries, persons and entiies subject to US economic
sanctions and reperied the results of that review to various governmentat authontes, including the US Department of Justice the Manhattan Distnct
Attorney’s Office and the US Department Of Treasury s Office of Foreign Assets Control (together the US Authonties), which conducted mvestigations of
the matter

On 18th August 2010 Barclays announced that it had reached seitlements with the US Authonties in relation to the Investigation by those agencies into
compliance with US sanctions and US Dollar payment practices naddition, an Order to Cease and Desist was 1ssued upon consent by the Federal
Reserve Bank of New York and the New York State Banking Department Barclays agreed to pay a total penalty of $298m and entered into Deferred
Prosecution Agreements covering a period of 24 months Barclays fully briefed other relevant regulators on this settlement The Deferred Prosecution
Agreements mean that no further action will be taken against Barclays by the US Authorities f as 1s Barclays intention, for the duration of the defined
penod Barclays meets the condrrons set down in its agreements with the US Authonties Barclays does not anticipate any further regulatory actions
relating to these 1ssues

27 Retirement benefit cbligations
Pension schemes
The Croup has in place a number of defined benefit and defined contribution schemes in the UK and overseas
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27 Retirement benefit obligations continued
The UK Retrernerit Fund {UKRF) 1s the Groups main scheme representing 93% of the Croup's total retirement benefit obligations The UKRF compnses
ten sections, the most sigrificant of which are

— Afterwork combines a contributory cash balance element with a voluntary defined contribution element The majonty of new employees outside of
Barclays Capital since 1st October 2003 have been eligible to jon Afterwork In addition the large majonity of active members who joined the Group
between July 1997 and September 2003 were transferred to Afterwork in respect of future benefits accruing from 1st January 2004

— The 1964 Pension Scheme most employees recruted before July 1997 built up benefits in this nan-contributory defined benefit scheme in respect of
service up to 31st March 2010 Pensions were calculated by reference to service and pensicnable salary

~ The Penston Irwestment Plan {PIP) a defined contnbution plan created from 1st July 2007 to provide benefits for employees of Bardiays Capital
The costs of ill-health retirements and death in service benefits are generally borne by the UKRF

Governance

The UKRF operates under trust law and 1s managed and administered on behalf of the merrbers in accordance with the terms of the Trust Deed and
Rules and all relevant legislation The Corporate Trustee is Barclays Pension Funds Trustees Lirnited (BPFTL), a private rvited company incerporated on
20th December 1990 and a wholly owned subsidiary of Barclays Bank PLC The Trustee is the legal owner of the assets of the UKRF which are held
separately from the assets of the Group

The Trustee Board comprises six Management Directors selected by Barclays, of whom three are independent Directars with no relationship with
Barclays or the UKRF, plus three Member Norninated Directors Member Norminated Directors are selected from those eligible active staff and pensioner
members who apply to be considered for the role

The same principles of penston governance apply to the Groups other pension schemmes, although different legistation covers overseas schemes where
In most cases, the Croup has the power to determine the funding rate

The following tables present an analysis of defined benefit obligations the fair value of plan assets and the amounts recogrised in the income
staterment for all Group pension schemes and unfunded post-retirement benefits

2010 2009
Post-retirement Post-retirement

Penslons benefits Total Pensions benefits Total

UK Overseas UK Overseas UK Overseas UK Overseas
The Group £m £m fm £m £m £m £m Em £m Em
Benefit obligatron at beginming
of the year (19,209) (1.277) {65) {95} (20.646) (14395} (1,220) (43) {125} (15,783)
Current service cost (293) (50) - {6} (349) (254) {27) (1) {9) (291)
Interest cost (1.049) (88) (3) (6) (1,146} (941} (51} (3) (6) (1,001}
Past service cost 240 (2) - - 238 1 - - -~ m
Curtalments or settlements (16) 6 - - (10) 482 ) - 1 476
Actuanal (loss)/gain (522) (64) (2) (2) (590) (4,757} (33) 3) 7 (4,786)
Contributions by plan participants {2) {7) - - (9) (2) {9) - - (7)
Benefits paid 678 94 1 6 719 659 58 1 & 724
Business disposals - 2 - - 2 - 9 - & 15
Exchange and other adjustments - (84) 17 (3) (70} - [ {16} 25 8
Benefit cbhigation at end of
the year (20,173)  (1,470) {52} (106) (21,801) (19209) (1,277) {65} (95) ({20646)
Fair value of plan assets at
beginning of the year 15,675 1,025 - - 16,700 13537 959 - -  144%
Expected return on plan assets 1,031 fn - - 1,122 904 N - - 935
Emplayer contribution 666 55 1 [ 728 525 75 1 6 608
Settlernents - (2) - - {2) - (2) - - (2)
Contnbutions by pfan participants 2 7 - - 9 2 5 - - 7
Actuanal gain/{loss) 995 17 - - 1,012 1,424 (8) - - 1,416
Benefits paid (678) (94) (1) {6) (779) (659) (58} LD &) (724)
Business disposals - - - - - - {6) - - (B)
Exchange and other adjustments (70) 185 - - 115 (58) 28 - - (30)
Fair value of plan assets at the
end of the year 17621 1,284 - = - 189065 15675 1,025 - - 16700
Net deficst (2,552) {186} (52) (106) (2,896) (3,534) (252) {65) {95) (3.946)
Unrecognised actuanal losses/
{gains) 2,501 150 (6) 12 2,657 3.087 158 7] i0 3,248
Net recogrised hability (51) (36) {58} (94) (239) (447) (94} (72) (85) (698)
Recognised assets? - 126 - - 126 - 71 - - 71
Recognised liability {(51) {162) {58} (94) (365) (447} (165} (72) (85) (769)
Net recognised liability {51} {36) {58} (94) (239)  (#44a7 {94) (72) (85) {698)

Note
a Included wathin other assets




120

| Barclays Bank PLC Annual Report 2010

www barclays com/annualreport10

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31st December 2010 continued

27 Retirement benefit obligations continued

2010 2009
Post-retirement Post-retirement
Pensions benefits Total Pensions benefits Total
UK Overseas UK  Qverseas UK COwverseas UK Overseas
The Bank £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m im £m
Benefit obhgation at beginning
of the year {19,209) (245) (59) (11) (19,524) (14,395) {269) (54} (17) {14,735)
Current service cost (293) {11) - - (304) {254} (8) - - (260}
Interest cost (1,049) {16) {2) {1} (1,068) {941) (14) {2) (1) {958)
Past service cost 240 {2) - - 238 m - - - (1)
Curtailments or settlements (16) - - - {16} 482 —~ - 1 483
Actuanal {loss)/gain (522) (10) (2} - (534) (4757) (5) (3) 4 (4,761)
Contributions by plan participarits (2) (nm - -~ (3} (2) (1) - - (3)
Benefits paid 678 8 1 1 688 659 10 1 1 671
Business disposals - 2 - - 2 - - - - -
Exchange and other adjustrments - (19} 16 (11) (14) - 40 (1) 1 40
Benefit obligation at end of
the year {20,173) (294) (46) (22) (20535) (19209) (245) (59) (113 (19524)
Fair value of plan assets at
beginming of the year 15,675 135 - - 15810 13537 160 - - 13697
Expected return an plan assets 1,031 11 - - 1,042 904 6 - - 910
Employer contnbution 666 8 1 1 676 525 24 1 1 551
Contributions by plan participants 2 1 - - 3 2 1 - - 3
Actuanal gain/{foss} 995 4 - - 999 1,424 (13) - - 1411
Benefits paid (678) (8) nm Q) (688) (659) (10) (1) Mm 671)
Exchange and cother adjustments (70) 1 - - {59) {(58) (33) - - (5
Fair value of plan assets at the
end of the year 17,621 162 — - 17,783 15675 135 - - 1581¢
Net deficit {2,552) {132) {46) (22) (2,752) (3534) {110} (59) (11)  (3.714)
Unrecogrised actuartal losses/
(gains) 2,501 92 (5} 5 2,593 3087 71 {7) 2 3,153
Net recognised liability (51) (40) (51) (17) (159) (447) (39} (66) (9) {561)
Recognised assets? - 9 ~ - 9 - 15 - - 15
Recognised hiability (51) {49) (51) (17) (168) {447) {54) (66) (9) (576)
Net recognised habihty {51) {40) {51) (7 (159) {447) (39) (66) (9 (561}
2010 2008 2008
Other post- Other post- Other post-
retirement retirement ratirernent
Pensions benefits Total Pensions benefits® Tota) Pensians benefits Total
£m £m £m im £m fm im £m Em
Current service cost 343 6 349 28 10 29 299 2 301
Interest cost 1,137 9 1,146 992 g 1,001 991 8 999
Expected return on scheme assets {1,122} - {1,122) (935) - 935y (1.175) - 1,175)
Recognised actuaral (gain)/foss 72 3 75 96 - 96 (23) W) (24)
Past service cost (233) - {233) 6 - 6 2 &) (&)
Curtailment or settlements 16 - 16 (473) - (473} (3) - &)
Total income statement charge 213 18 p£y| {33) 19 4y 8s 1 90

The Group's JAS 19 pension deficit in respect of UKRF as at 315t December 2010 was £2,552m (2009 £3 534m) The reduchion in the deficit resulted
principally from better than expected asset performance, contributions paid In excess of the pension expense and a credit to past service costs following
amendments to the treatment of mirimum defined benefits

During 2009, the Trust Deed was amended such that with effect from 1st Apnl 2010, the defined benefit sections within the UKRF were closed to the
accrual of future pension benefits From that date members were eligible to accrue future service pension benefits in erther Afterwork or PIP This gave
nse to the recognstion in 2009 of a curtaiment gain of £487m, actuana! lesses of £79m and an additional cost of £37m included in other staff costs

Out of the benefit obligations of £21,801m {2009 £20646m), £258m (2009 £288m} were wholly unfunded Qut of the Bank’s benefit obligations of
£20 535m {2009 £19,524m), £88m (2009 £100m) were whotly unfunded

Notes
a Included withir other assets
b Includes £3m relating to discontinued operations
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27 Retirement benefit obligations continued
Assumptions
The benefit abligations ansing under the defined benefit schemes are actuanally valued using the projected unit credit method
Pnincipal assumptions UK schemes Overseas schemes
2010 2009 2010 2009
%pa %pa % p.a Y% pa
The Group
Biscount rate 531 561 694 753
Rate of Increase mn salanes 400 426 526 549
Inflation rate 350 376 363 378
Rate of increase for pensions In payment 335 356 308 327
Rate of increase for pensions in deferment 350 376 286 281
Afterwork revaluation rate 397 417 n/a n/a
Initial health care inflation 650 700 800 850
Lang-term health care inflation 500 500 500 500
Expected return on plan assets 630 670 679 . 744
The Bank
Discount rate 531 561 547 591
Rate of increase in salanes 400 426 400 407
Inflation rate 350 376 210 220
Rate of increase for pensions in payment 335 356 118 127
Rate of increase for pensions in deferment 350 376 200 127
Afterwork revaluation rate 397 417 n/a n/a
Initial heaith care inflation 650 700 8§00 850
Leng-term health care inflation 500 500 500 500
Expected return on plan assets 630 670 560 611

The expected return on plan assets assumption 1s werghted on the basis of the farr value of these assets Health careinflation assumptions are weighted
on the basis of the health care cost for the period All other assumptions are weighted on the basis of the defined bensfit obligation at the end of the

period

The UK scheme discount rate assumption is based on a llability-weighted rate derived from an AA corporate band yield curve The overseas health care

inflation assurmptions relate to the US

Mortality assumptions

The UKRF's post-retirement rmortality assumptions were based on the standard 2000 seres tables published by the Instrtute and Faculty of Actuanes as
they are considered to be most relevant These tables were adjusted i ine with the UKRF’s actual expenence and an allowance has been made for
future mortakty iImprovernents based on the medium cohort projections published by the Continuous Mortality Investigation Bureau subject to a floor of

1% pa on future iImprovements Cn this basis the post-retirement mortality assumptions for the UKRF are as follows

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Longevity at 60 for current pensioners (years}
- Males 276 275 274 267 258
— Females 287 287 285 279 295
Longevity at 60 for future pensioners currently aged 40 {years)
- Males 297 296 295 280 271
— Females 307 306 305 291 307
Sensitivity analysts on principal assumptions
Impact on UKRF benefit
UKRF sensitivity obligation
{Decrease)/  {Decrease)/
Increase Increase
% £bn
0 5% increase in
~ Discount rate {94) (19)
- Rate of inflation 84 17
1 year increase 1o longevity at 60 25 05
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27 Retiremerit benefit obligations continued

Assets

A long-term strategy has been set for the asset allocation of the UKRF which comprises a mixture of equittes, bonds, property and other appropriate
assets This recognises that different asset classes are likely to produce different long-term retusns and some asset classes may be more volatile than
others

The long-term strategy ensures that investments are adequately diversified Asset managers are permitted some flexibility to vary the asset allocation
from the long-term strategy within control ranges agreed with the Trustee from time to time

The UKRF alsc employs denvative instruments where appropriate, to achieve a desired exposure or return, or to match assets more closely to habilities
The value of assets shown reflects the actual physical assets held by the scheme, with any dervative holdings reflected on a mark to market basis The
expected return on asset assumptions overall have been based on the portfolio of assets created after allowing for the net impact of the dervatives on
the nsk and return profile of the heldings

The value of the assets of the schemes, their percentage m relation to total scheme assets, and their expected rate of return at 31st December 2630 and
31st December 2009 were as follows

The Group UK schemes Overseas schemes Total
% of total Expected % of total Expected % of total fxpected
fair value of rate of fairvalue of rate of fair value of rate of
Value scheme return Value scheme returmn Value schemsg return
Analysis of scheme assets £m assets % £m assets % £m assets %
2010
Equities 5,349 304 84 516 402 74 5,865 310 83
Bonds 9,164 520 46 477 371 6.0 9,641 510 47
Property 1,277 72 68 20 16 103 1,297 69 69
Denvatives 410 23 - - - - 410 22 -
Cash 1,057 60 05 158 123 5.8 1,215 64 12
Other 364 21 43 113 88 99 477 25 56
Fair value of plan assets® 17,621 100 63 1,284 100 7.0 18,905 100 63
2009
Equities 4,236 270 86 400 390 78 4,636 277 85
Bonds 8,787 560 49 387 377 60 9,174 549 49
Property 1,186 75 70 20 20 126 1206 72 71
Derivatives (37 - - - - - (37) - -
Cash 1,157 73 0S5 139 136 32 1,296 77 08
Other 346 22 50 79 77 81 425 25 56
Fair value of plan assets® 15675 100 67 1,025 100 66 16 700 100 &7
Note

a Excludes £1 004m (2009 £890m) representing the defined contnbution assets of the UKRF
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27 Retirernent benefit obligations continued

The Bank UK schemes Cwerseas schermnes Total
% of total Expected % of total Expected % of total Expected
farr value of rate of falr value of rate of fair vatue of rate of
Value scheme return Value scheme return Value schemne retum
Analysis of scheme assets £m assets % £m assets % £m assets %
2010
Equities 5,349 304 84 60 37.0 68 5,409 304 84
Bonds 9,164 520 46 73 451 43 9,237 519 46
Property 1,277 72 68 - - 5.5 1,277 72 68
Derivatives 410 23 - - - - 410 23 -
Cash 1,057 60 05 3 19 23 1,060 60 05
Other 364 21 43 26 16 0 9.9 390 22 47
farr value of plan assets® 17,621 100 63 162 100 6.1 17,783 100 6.3
2009
Equities 4,236 270 86 48 356 69 4,284 270 86
Bonds 8,787 560 49 59 437 50 8846 559 49
Property 1,186 75 70 - - 31 1,186 75 70
Derwvatives (37) - - - - - (37) - -
Cash 1,157 73 05 15 111 32 1172 74 05
Qther 346 22 50 13 96 100 359 22 52
Fair value of plan assets* 15,675 100 67 135 100 59 15810 100 67

The UKRF plan assets include £58m relating to UK private equity investments (2009 £58m} and £1 128m relating to overseas private equity investments
(2009 £921m) These are disclosed within Equities

Amounts included n the farr value of plan assets include £14m (2009 £4m) relatmg to shares in Barclays Croup, £13m (2009 £5m) relating to bonds
1ssued by the Barclays Group, and £10m (2009 E£10m) relating to property octupied by Group companies The UKRF also tvests in pocled investment
vehicles which may, or may not hold shares/bonds of Barclays Group

Amounts included in the Bank fair value of plan assets include £rul (2009 £1m) relating to property occupied by Bank comparves

The expected return on assets 1s determined by calculating a total return estimate based on weighted average estrnated returns for each asset class
Asset class retusns are estimated using current and projected economic and market factors such as inflation, credit spreads and equity nsk premiums

The Group actual return on plan assets was an increase of £2,134m (2009 £2,351m increase) The Bank actual return on plan assets was an increase of
£2041m (2009 £2,321mincrease)

Nate
a Excludes £1 004m (2009 £890rn) representing the defined contnbution assets of the UKRF




124 | Barclays Bank PLC Annual Report 2010 www barclays com/annualreport 10

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31st December 2010 continued

27 Retirement benefit obligations continued
Actuanal gains and losses
The actuanial gans and losses ansing on plan liabilines and plan assets are as follows

The Group 2010 2009 2008 2067 2006
£€rm £m £m Em £m

UK schemes

Present value of obligationis {20,225) {19274) (14438) (16623) (17353}

Fair value of plan assets 17,621 15675 13537 17,231 16,761

Net {deficit)/surplus in the plans (2,604} {3599) (901) 608 (592)

Expertence (losses) and gans on plan Labilities

— amount (207) 107 (81) (297) 48

— as percentage of plan habilities {1%) 1% (1%} {2%) -

Difference between actuat and expected return on plan assets

— amount 995 1424 (4,534} (332) 423

— as percentage of plan assets 6% 9% (33%) (2%) 3%

Overseas schemes

Present value of obligations (1,576) (1.372) (1,345) (1.011) (970)

Fair value of plan assets 1,284 1,025 959 796 745

Net deficit in the plans {292) {347) (386) (215) {225}

Experience losses on plan liabilities

—amount (9) {45) {(96) (79) {54)

— as percentage of plan liabilites {1%) (3%) (7%) (8%) (6%)

Difference between actual and expected return on plan assets

—amount 17 (8) {121) On 25

— as percentage of plan assets 1% {1%) {13%) - 3%

Total UK and Overseas schemes

Present vatue of obligations (21,.801)  (20646) (15783) (17.634) ({18,323)

Fair value of plan assets 18,905 16,700 14,496 18,027 17,506

Net (deficit)/surplus in the plans (2,896) (3,946) (1,287} 393 817

Expenience {losses) and gains on plan liabilities

—amount (216) &2 (77} (376) (6)

— as percentage of plan habilities {1%) - {1%} (29) ~

Difference between actua! and expected return on plan assets

—amount 1,012 1416 (4,655) (343) 448

— as percentage of plan assets 5% 8% (32%) {29) 3%
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27 Retirement benefit obligations continued

The Bank 00 2009 2008 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m Em

UK schemes

Present value of obligattons (20,219}  (19.268) (14,449) (16638) (17.000)

Fair value of plan assets 17,621 15,675 13537 17 231 16,460

Net {deficit)/surplus in the plans (2,598) (3,593) (912) 583 {540)

Expenence (losses) and gams on plan habilities

—amount {207) 107 {(81) (299) 47

—as percentage of plan labilities {1%) 1% (1%) {2%) —

Difference between actual and expected return cn plan assets

—amount 935 1424 {4,534) (332) 417

— as percentage of plan assets 6% 9% {33%) {2%) 3%

Overseas schemes

Present value of obligations {316) {256) (286} (213) (209)

Farr value of plan assets 162 135 160 141 135

Net defict i the plans (154) 0z (126 7 (74)

Expenence losses on plan liabilities

— amount (2) {5} (96) (3} 5

— as percentage of plan habilities {19%6) {2%) (34%) {4%) (7%)

Difference between actual and expected return on plan assets

—amount 4 (13} (65) {2) 4

— as percentage of plan assets 2% {10%) (41%:) (1% 3%

Total UK and Overseas schemes

Present vazlue of obhgations {20,535) (19524) (14735} (16851) (17.209)

Fair vatue of plan assets 17,783 15810 13,697 17372 16,595

Net (deficst)/surplus in the plans {2,752) (3714) {1.038) 521 {614)

Experience (losses) and gains on plan liabilities

— amount (209) 102 a7 (308} 32

— as percentage of plan liabilities (1%) 1% {1%) (2%} -

Difference between actual and expected return on plan assets

— amount 999 1,411 {4,599) {334) 421

— as percentage of plan assets 6% 9% (34%} (2%) 3%

Funding

The tnennial funding valuation of the UKRF 1s currently in progress with an effective date of 30th September 2010 The last tnenmial funding valuation of
the UKRF was performed with an effectrve date of 30th Septernber 2007 which showed a surplus of £0 2bn In compliance with the Pensions Act 2004
the Bank and Trustee agreed a scheme-specific funding target, statement of funding pnnciples, and a schedule of contnibutions This agreernent forms
the basis of the Group's commitrment that the UKRF has sufficient assets to make payments to members in respect of their accrued benefits as and
when they fall due This funding valuation used a discount rate that reflected a prudent expectation of long-term future investment returns from the
current and assumed future nvestment strategy

The Scheme Actuary prepares an annual update of the funding position as at 30th September The latest annual update was carrted out as at 30th
Septernber 2010 and showed a deficit of £4 8bn

The Group has agreed funding contributions which 1 aggregate, are no less than those which are sufficient to meet the Group's share of the cost of
benefits accruing over each year The Group has In the recent past, chosen to make funding contnbutions in excess of this, and in 2010 made an
addiional voluntary comtnbution of £300m (2009 £150m) Defined benefit contributions paid with respect to the UKRF were as follows

fm
Contnbutions paid
2010 666
2009 525
2008 336

Based on the current schedule of contnbutions, the Group 15 committed to makmng estirnated contnbutions to the UKRF in 2011 of £285m The 30th
September 2010 UKRF valuation is due to be finalised by the end of 2011 Excluding the UKRF, the Group Is expected to pay contributions of
approximately £1m to UK schemes and £60m to overseas schemes in 2011 and the Bank 1s expected to pay contrbutions of approximately £1m to UK
schermes and £10m to overseas schemes
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28 Called up share capnal

Ordinary Shares

The issued ordinary share capital of Barclays Bank PLC, as at 31st December 2010, comprised 2,342 million ordinary shares of £1 each (2009 2,342
million)

Preference Shares

The 1ssued preference share capital of Barclays Bank PLC as at 31st December 2010, comprised ,000 Steriing Preference Shares of £1 each (2009
1 800}, 240 000 Euro Preference Shares of €100 each (2009 240,000), 75,000 Sterling Preference Shares of £100 each (2009 75000) 100000 US
Dollar Preference Shares of US$100 each (2009 100,000) 237 milkon US Dollar Preference Shares of US$0 25 each (2009 237 million)

Share Capital 2010 2009
£m £m
Called up ordinaryshare capital, alloted and fully pa:d
As at st January 2,342 2,338
Issued for cash - 4
As at 31st Decemnber 2,342 2342
Called up preference share capital, allotted andi fully paid as at 1st January and 31st December 60 60
Calted up share caprtal 2,402 2402
Share premium 2010 2009
fm £m
As at 1st January 12,092 12060
Ordinary shares issued for cash - 21
Preference shares — other movement - 11
As at 31st December 12,092 12,092

Sterling £1 Preference Shares
1000 Sterling cumulative caflable preference shares of £1 each (the £1 Preference Shares} were issued on 31 st Decernber 2004 at nil prermium

The £1 Preference Shares entitfe the holders thereof to receive Sterling cumulative cash dividends out of distributable profits of Barclays Bank PLC,
sermi-annually at a rate reset sermi-annually egual to the Sterling interbank offered rate for sx-month Sterling deposits

Barclays Bank PLC shall be obhiged to pay such dwidends If (1)1t has profits available for the purpose of distrbution under the Companies Act 2006 as at
each dividend payment date, and (2) it 1s solvent on the relevant dividend payment date provided that a caprtal regulations condition 1s satisfied on such
dividend payment date The dividends shall not be due and payable on the relevant dividend payment date except to the extent that Barclays Bank PLC
could make such payment and still be solvent mmediately thereafter Barclays Bank PLC shalt be considered solvent on any date if (1)1t 15 able to pay its
debts to seror creditors as they falf due, and (2} its auditors have reported within the previous six months that its assets exceed ns fiabilities If Barclays
Bank PLC shall not pay, or shall pay only in part, a dvidend for a penod of seven days or mare after the due date for payment, the holders of the £1
Preference Shares may institute proceedings for the winding-up of Barclays Bank PLC No remedy aganst Barclays Bank PLC shall be avaifable to the
holder of any £1 Preference Shares for the recovery of amaunts owing in respect of £1 Preference Shares other than the nstitution of proceedings for
the winding-up of Barctays Bank PLC and/or proving in such winding-up

On a winding-up or other return of capital (other than a redemption or purchase by Barclays Bank PLC of any of its 1ssued shares, or a reduction of share
capital, perrmitted by the Articles of Barclays Bank PLC and under applicable faw), the assets of Barclays Bank PLC avallable to shareholders shali be
applied in prionty to any payment to the holders of ordinary shares and any other class of shares in the capital of Barclays Bank PLC then in ssue ranking
Jurior to the £1 Preference Shares on such a return of capital and pan passu on such a return of capital with the holders of any other class of shares in
the capital of Barclays Bank PLC then in issue (other than any class of shares in the capttal of Barclays Bank PLC then in 1ssue ranking in priority to the £1
Preference Shares on a winding-up or other such return of capital), in payment to the holders of the £1 Preferenice Shares of a sum equal to the
aggregate of (1}an amount equal to the dwvidends accrued thereon for the then current dmdend perod (and any accumulated arrears thereof) to the
date of the commencement of the winding-up or other such return of capital, and (2) an amount equal to £1 per £1 Preference Share After payment of
the full amount of the Iiquidating distnbutions to which they are entitled, the holders of the £1 Preference Shares wili have no nght or claim to any of the
remaining assets of Barclays Bank PLC and wall not be entitled to any further part:cipation insuch return of capital

The £1 Preference Shares are redeemable at the option of Barclays Bank PLC, in whole but not in part only, subject to the Companies Act 2006 and rts
Articles Holders of the £1 Preference Shares are not entitied to recerve notice of or to attend, or vote at any general meeting of Barclays Bank PLC

Euro Preference Shares

100,000 Euro 4 875% non-cumulative callable preference shares of €100 each (the 4 875% Preference Shares) were 1ssued on 8th Decernber 2004 for a
consideration of €993 6m (£688 4m), of which the nominal value was €10m and the balance was share prermium The 4 875% Preference Shares entitle
the holders thereof to receve Euro non-cumulative cash dividends out of distnbutable profits of Barclays Bank PLC, annually at a fixed rate of 4 875% per
annum on the amount of €10,000 per preference share until 15th Decernber 2014, and thereafter quarterly at a rate reset quarterly equal to 1 05% per
annum above the Euro interbank offered rate for three-month Euro deposits

The 4 875% Preference Shares are redeermnable at the option of Barclays Bank PLC, in whoe but not in part only on 15th December 2014 and on each
dividend payment date thereafter at €10 000 per share plus any dmvidends accrued for the then current dvidend period to the date fixed for redemption
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140,000 Euro 4 75% non-cumulative callable preference shares of €100 each (the 4 75% Preference Shares) were issued on 15th March 2005 for a
consideration of €1,383 3m (£966 7m), of which the nominal value was €14m and the balance was share premium. The 4 75% Preference Shares
entitle the holders thereof to receive Eurc non-cumulative cash dvidends out of distributable profits of Barclays Bank PLC, annually at a fixed rate of
4 75% per annum on the amount of €10,000 per preference share until 15th March 2020, and thereafter quarterly at a rate reset quarterly equal to
0 71% per annum above the Euro interbank offered rate for three-month Euro deposits

The 4 75% Preference Shares are redeemable at the option of Barclays Bank PLC, in whole but rot in part only, on 15th March 2020, and on each
dnidend payment date thereafter at £10,000 per share plus any dividends accrued for the then current dwvdend penod to the date fixed for redemption

Sterling Preference Shares

75,000 Stering & 0% non-cumulative callable preference shares of £100 each {the 6 0% Preference Shares) were sssued on 22nd June 2005 fora
consideration of £743 7m, of which the nominal value was £75m and the balance was share premium The 6 0% Preference Shares entitle the holders
thereof to receve Sterling non-cumutative cash dividends out of distnbutable profits of Barclays Bark PLC annually at a fixed rate of & 0% per annum on
the amount of £10,000 per preference share until 15th December 2017, and thereafter quarterly at a rate reset guarterly equal to 1 42% per annum
above the London interbank offered rate for three-month Sterling deposits

The 6 0% Preference Shares are redeemable at the option of Barclays Bank PLC, in whole but not in part only on 15thDecernber 2017, and on each
dividend payment date thereafter at £10,000 per share plus any dividends accrued for the then current dividend pened to the date fixed for redemption

US Dollar Preference Shares

100,000 US Dollar 6 278% nen-cumulative callable preference shares of US$100 each (the 6 278% Preference Shares), represented by 100,000
Amenican Depositary Shares, Series 1 were issued on 8th June 2005 for a consideration of US$995 4m (£548 1my), of which the nomunal value was
US$10m and the balance was share premium The 6 278% Preference Shares entitle the holders thereof to recerve US Dollar non-curmulative cash
dwidends out of distributable profits of Barclays Bank PLC semi-annually at a fixed rate of 6 278% per annurn on the amount of US$10,000 per
preference share until 15th December 2034 and thereafter quarterly at a rate reset quarterly equal to 1 55% per annum above the London interbank
offered rate for three-month US Doflar deposits

The & 278% Preference Shares are redeermable at the option of Bardlays Bank PLC, in whole but not in part only on 15th December 2034, and on each
dividend payment date thereafter at US$10,000 per share plus any dnvidends accrued for the then current dvadend period to the date fixed for
redemption

30 milkkon US Dollar 6 625% non-cumulative callable preference shares of US$Q 25 each (the & 625% Preference Shares), represented by 30 million
Amencan Depositary Shares Seres 2, were issued on 25th and 28th Apnl 2006 for a consideration of US$727m (£406my), of which the norminal value
was US$7 5m and the balance was share premium The 6 625% Preference Shares entitle the holders thereof to receve US Dollar non-cumulative cash
dvidends out of distnbutable profits of Barclays Bank PLC, quarterty at a fixed rate of 6 625% per annum on the amount of US$25 per preference share

The 6 625% Preference Shares are redeemable at the option of Barclays Bank PLC in whole but not in part only, on 15th September 2011, and on each
dmidend payment date thereafter at US$2S per share plus any dvidends accrued for the then current dividend perniod to the date fixed for redermption

55 million US Dollar 71% non-cumulative callable preference shares of US$0 25 each (the 71% Preference Shares), represented by 55 rmillion Amencan
Depositary Shares, Senes 3, were issued on 13th September 2007 for a consideration of US$1,335m (£657m) of which the norrunal value was

US$13 75m and the balance was share premium The 71% Preference Shares entitle the holders thereof to recenve US Dollar non-cumulative cash
dmdends out of distnbutable profits of Barclays Bank PLC, quarterly at a fixed rate of 71% per annum on the amount of US$25 per preference share

The 71% Preference Shares are redeemable at the option of Barclays Bank PLC, in whole or in part, on 15th Decermber 2012, and on each dividend
payment date thereafter at US$25 per share plus any dvdends accrued for the then cumrent dmdend period to the date fixed for redemption

46 million US Dollar 7 75% non-curmulative caflable preference shares of US$0 25 each (the 775% Preference Shares), represented by 46 million
American Depositary Shares, Senes 4, were issued on 7th Decernber 2007 for a consideration of U5$1,116m (£550m), of which the nominal value was
US$11 5m and the balance was share premum The 7 75% Preference Shares entitle the holders thereof to receve US Dallar non-cumulative cash
didends out of distnbutable profits of Barclays Bank PLC quarterly at a fixed rate of 775% per annum on the amount of US$25 per preference share

The 7 75% Preference Shares are redeemable at the option of Barclays Bank PLC, in whole or in part, on 15th December 2013, and on each dwidend
payment date thereafter at US$25 per share plus any dividends accrued for the then current dividend pencd to the date fixed for redernption

106 milhon US Dollar 8 125% non-cumulative callable preference shares of US$C 25 each (the 8 125% Preference Shares}, represented by 106 mihon
Amernican Depositary Shares, Senes 5, were ssued on 11th Apnl 2008 and 25th April 2008 for a total consideration of US$2,650m (£1,345m) of which
the nominal value was US$26 5m and the balance was share premium The 8 125% Preference Shares entitle the holders thereof to recewve US Dollar
non-cumulative cash dvidends out of distributable profits of Barclays Bank PLC, quarterly at a fixed rate of 8 125% per annum on the amount of US$25
per preference share

The 8 125% Preference Shares are redeemable at the option of Barclays Bank PLC, 1n whole or in part, on 15th June 2013, and on each dividend payment
date thereafter at US$25 per share pius any dwidends accrued for the then current dividend pencd to the date fixed for redemption

No redemption or purchase of any 4 875% Preference Shares, the 4 75% Preference Shares, the 6 0% Preference Shares, the 6 278% Preference Shares
the 6 625% Preference Shares, the 71% Preference Shares, the 7 75% Preference Shares and the 8 125% Preference Shares (together, the Preference
Shares) may be made by Barclays Bank PLC without the prior notification to the UK FSA and any such redemption will be subject to the Companies Act
2006 and the Articles of Barclays Bank PLC
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28 Called up share capital continued

On a winding-up of Barclays Bank PLC or other return of capial (other than a redemption or purchase of shares of Barclays Bank PLC, or a reduction of
share capital), a holder of Preference Shares will rank in the application of assets of Barclays Bank PLC avadable to shareholders (1) jurior to the holder of
any shares of Barclays Bank PLC in issue ranking in prionty to the Preference Shares, (2) equally n all respects wath holders of other preference shares
and any other shares of Barclays Bank PLC in1ssue ranking pan passu with the Preference Shares, and (3) in priority to the holders of ordinary shares and
any other shares of Barclays Bank PLC i 1ssue ranking junior to the Preference Shares

The holders of the £400m 6% Callable Perpetual Core Tier One Notes and the US$1,000m 6 86% Callable Perpetual Core Tier One Notes of Barclays
Bank PLC (together, the TONs}) and the holders of the US$1,250m 8 55% Step-up Callable Perpetual Reserve Capital Instrurnents, the US$750m 7375%
Step-up Callable Perpetual Reserve Capital Instruments the €850m 750% Step-up Callable Perpetual Reserve Capital Instruments, the £500m 5 3304%
Step-up Callable Perpetual Reserve Capital Instruments the US$1,350m 5 926% Step-up Callable Perpetual Reserve Capital Instruments, the £500m

6 3688% Step-up Callable Perpetual Reserve Capital Instruments, the US$1,250m 7434% Step-up Callable Perpetua! Reserve Capital Instruments and
the £3 000m 14% Step-up Callable Perpetual Reserve Capital Instruments of Barclays Bank PLC (together, the RCls) would, for the purposes only of
calculating the amounts payable in respect of such securities on a winding-up of Barclays Bank PLC subject to limited exceptions and to the extent that
the TONs and the RCls are then in ssue, rank pan passu with the holders of the most senior class or classes of preference shares then in 1ssue in the
capital of Barclays Bank PLC Accordingly, the holders of the preference shares would rank equally wath the holders of such TONs and RCis onsuch a
winding-up of Barclays Bank PLC (unless ane or mare classes of shares of Barclays Bank PLC ranking in priority to the preference shares are in issue at
the time of such winding-up, n which event the holders of such TONs and RCIs would rank equally with the holders of such shares and in prigrity to the
holders of the preference shares)

Subject to such ranking, in such event, holders of the preference shares will be entitled to receive out of assets of Barciays Bank PLC avallable for
distributions to shareholders, iguidating distributions in the amount of €10,000 per 4 875% Preference Share, €10,000 per 4 75% Preference Share,
£10,000 per & 0% Preference Share, US$10,000 per 6 278% Preference Share, US$25 per 6625% Preference Share, US$25 per 71% Preference Share,
US$25 per 7 75% Preference Share and US$0 25 per 8 125% Preference Share, plus, in each case, an amount equal to the accrued dividend for the then
current divdend periad to the date of the commencement of the winding-up or other suchreturn of capital If a dvidend is not pard in full on any
preference shares on any dividend payment date, then a dividend restriction shall apply

Thus dividend restriction wilt mean that neither Barclays Bank PLC nor Barclays PLC may (a) declare or pay 2 dwvidend {other than payment by Barclays
PLC of a final dandend declared by its shareholders prior to the relevant dvdend payment date, or a dvidend pard by Barciays Bank PLC to Barclays PLC
or to a whally owned subsidiary) on any of their respective ordinary shares, other preference shares or other share capital or (b) redeem, purchase,
reduce or otherwise acquire any of therr respective share capital, other than shares of Barctays Bank PLC held by Barclays PLC or a wholly owned
subsidiary, until the earler of (1) the date on wirch Barclays Bank PLC next declares and pays in full a preference dividend and {2) the date on or by
which all the preference shares are redeemed n full or purchased by Barclays Bank PLC

Holders of the preference shares are not entitled to receive notice of or to attend, or vote at, any general meeting of Barclays Bank PLC Barclays Bank
PLC1s not perrmitted to create a class of shares ranking as regards partiapation i the profits or assets of Barclays Bank PLC in prionty to the preference |
shares, save with the sanction of a special resolution of a separate general meeting of the holders of the preference shares (requinng a majonity of not

less than three-fourths of the holders of the preference shares voting at the separate general meeting) or with the consent in writing of the helders of

three-fourths of the preference shares

Except as descibed above, the holders of the preference shares have no nght to participate in the surplus assets of Barclays Bank PLC
29 Reserves
Available for Sale Reserve

The avarlable for sale reserve represents the unrealised change in the fair value of available for sale investments since nal recognition

The available for sale reserve mavement of £1,255m was driven by the decrease in the fair value of the Group’s iInvestment in BlackRock Inc of £764m
partially offset by increases in the faw value of other avalable for sale assets as markets recovered

The movemert also indudes the net gains transferred to net profit on disposal that arose on the disposal of the structural hedge portfolio, sovereign
positions that were no longer ehgible for iqurdity purpases and excess Eurg, US Dollar and Japanese Yen government secLinties

Cash Flow Hedge Reserve
The cash flow hedging reserve represents the cumulative gains and losses an effective cash flow hedging nstrurments that will be recycled to the
income statement when the hedged transactions affect profit or loss

Movements in the cash flow hedge reserve principally reflected increases m the fair value of interest rate swaps held for hedging purposes more than
offset by related gains transferred to net profit

Currency Translation Reserve

The currency translation reserve represents the cumulative gains and losses on the retranslation of the Group’s net investment In fareign operations, net
of the effects of hedging Currency translation differences of £1,1777m, including £435m associated with non-controlling interests s largely due to the
apprectation in the Rand and US Dollar, offset by the depreciation in the Euro

Dunng the year, £279m of the currency translation reserve was recognised in the Income statement principally as a result of the restructuning of group
entities based in the US and repatnation of capntal from overseas
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30 Other shareholders’ equity

The Group The Bank

£m £m
As at 1st January 2010 2,559 2,623
Tax Credits 45 45
Other Movements (48) (48)
Redemption (487) (487)
As at 31st December 2010 2,069 2,133
As at 1st January 2009 2564 2628
Tax Credits 47 47
Other Mavements (52) (52)
Redemption — —
As at 31st December 2559 2623

Included in other shareholders' equaty are

Issuances of reserve capital nstruments which bear a fixed rate of interest ranging between 7375%-8 55% until 20100r 2011 After these dates in the
event that the reserve capital Instruments are not redeemed, they will bear interest at rates fixed periodically n advance, based on London or European
nterbank rates These instruments are repayable, at the ophion of the Bank, in whole on any coupon payment date falling in or after june or December
2010 or 20011 The Bank miay elect to defer any payment of interest on the reserve capital instruments for any period of tme Whilst such deferral s
continuing neither the Bank nor Barclays PLC may declare or pay a dividend, subject to certain exceptions, on any of its ordinary shares or preference
shares The reserve capital instruments which matured during 2010 were redeemed in full, resutting i a reduction in other shareholders” equity of
£487m

Issuance of capital notes which bear interest at rates fixed periodically m advance, based on London interbank rates These notes are repayable m each
case, at the opticn of the Bank, s whole on any interest payment date The Bank is not obliged to make a payment of interest on its capital notes If, in
the preceding six months, a dividend has not been declared or paid on any class of shares of Barclays PLC,

31 Non-controlling witerests

Profit attributeble to Equity attributable to
Kon-controliing interests. Non-controlling interests
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m fm £m £mn
Absa Group Limited 362 272 3,208 2535
Cther 29 24 259 235
Total 391 296 3,467 2774

The increase in Absa Group lirkted non-controlling interest 1s attnbuted to £362m share of net profit and £436m upward foreign exchange movernent
partially offset by £138m dwidend payment
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32 nvestment in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries the prnincipal of which are engaged in banking related activities, are recorded on the balance sheet at histoncal cost less any
impairment At 31st December 2010 the histonical cost of investments in subsidiaries was £20 858m (2009 £20 178m) and allowances recogrised
agamst these investments was £1,825m (2008 £1,382m) of impaxment Details of the principat subsidianes are shown below

Country of Percentage of
registration or equity capital
incorporation Company name Nature of business held (%)
Botswana Barclays Bank of Botswana Limited Banking 678*
Egypt Barclays Bank Egypt SAE Banking 100*
England Barclays Mercantile Business Finance Limited Loans and advances ncluding leases to customers 100
England Barclays Bank Trust Company Limited Banking, securities ndustnes and trust services 100
England Barclays Stockbrokers Limited Stockbroking 160
England Barclays Capital Secunities Limited Securities dealing 100
England FIRSTPLUS Financial Group PLC Secured loan provider 100”
England Gerrard irvestment Management Limited Investment management 100
Chana Barclays Bank of Ghana Limited Banking 100*
ireland Barclays Insurance (Dublin} Limited Insurance provider 100
lreland Barclays Assurance (Dublin) Lirmited Insurance provider 100
Isle of Man Barclays Private Cients International Lirmited Banking 100*
lapan Barclays Caprtal Japan Limnited Secunties dealing 100
Jersey Barclays Private Bank & Trust Lirmited Banking, trust company 100
Kerya Barclays Bank of Kenya Limited Banking 68 5*
Russia Barclays Bank LLC Banking 100
South Africa Absa Group Limited Banking 555*
Spain Barclays Bank SA Banking 99 7*
Switzerland Barclays Bank {Suisse} S A Banking and trust services 100*
USA Barclays Capital Inc Secunties dealing 100
USA Barclays Delaware Holdings LLC Holding company for US credst card 1ssuer 100*
USA Barclays Group US Inc Helding company 100*
Zimbabwe Barclays Bank of Zimbabwe Limited Banking 677

In accordance with Section 410(2)(a) of the Companies Act 2006, the above infarmation is provided solely in relation to principal subsidiaries

The country of registration or incorporation 1s alse the principal area of operation of each of the above subsidiaries Investments in subsidiaries held
directly by Barclays Bank PLC are marked *

Following the restructunng of Group operations in the US during the year, Barclays Group US In¢ 15 no longer a US Bank Holding Company
Full nformation of all subsidianes will be included in the Annual Return to be fited at UK Comparies House

Entities in which the Group holds less thar half the voting rights

There are a number of entities in which the Croup holds less than half the voting nghts which are consehidated when the substance of the refationship
between the Group and the entity indicates that the entity 1s controlled by the Group Such entities are deemed to be controlled by the Group when
relationships with such entities give rise to benefits that are in substance no different from those that would anse were the enuty a subsidiary

The consolidation of such entities may be approprate in a number of situations, but pnimarily when

— the operating and financial policies of the entity are dosely defined from the outset (i e 1t operates on an ‘autopilot’ basis) with such policies being
largely deternmined by the Group

— the Group has nghts to obtain the majonty of the benefits of the entity and/or retains the majority of the restdual or ownership risks related to the
entity, or

- the activities of the entity are being conducted largely on behalf of the Group according toits specific business objectives

Such entities are created for a variety of purposes including secuntisation, structunng, asset realisation, Intermediation and management

Substdiaries with a different reporting date from that of the Parent of 31st December

Entiies may have a different reporting date from that of the Parent of 315t December Dates may differ for a variety of reasons induding local reporting
regulations or tax faws In accordance with our accounting policies, for the purpose of inclusion in the consohdated financial staterments of Barclays PLC
entities with different reporting dates are made up until 31st Cecember

Entities where the Group's interest exceeds 50% which are excluded from consolidation

Although the Groups interest in the eguity voting nghts in certain entiies exceeds 50%, or it may have the power to appoint a majonty of therr Boards of
Directors, they are excluded from consolidation because the Group esther does not direct the finanoial and operating policies of these entities, or on the
grounds that another entity has a controlling interest in them Consequently these entities are not deemed to be controlied by Barclays
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32 Investment in subsidianes continued
The table below mcludes irfarmation in relation to such entities as required by the Compantes Act 2006 Section 410(2)(b)

Percentage of Equlity

ordinary share shareholders’ Retained profit
Country of regrstration capltal held funds  forthe year
of incorporation Name % £m £m
UK Fitzroy Finance Limited 100 - -
Cayman Islands Palomino Limited 100 1 -

33 Profit on disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

Duning the year, profit on disposal of subsidianes, associates and joint ventures was £81m (2009 £188m), principally relating to the disposal of Barclays
Afnca custody business to Standard Chartered Bank for a consideration of £81m generating a gain on disposal before tax of £77m Dunng 2009 the
Group disposed of 50% of Barclays Vida y Pensiones Compafiia de Seguros and the 7% of Barclays Africa Botswana business for consideration of £276m
generating a gain on disposal before tax of £184m

34 Discontinued operattons
On 15t December 2009 the Group completed the sale of BCI to BlackRock, Inc {BlackRock) recogmising a profit on disposal before tax of £6,331m The
tax charge of £43m reflects the application of UK substantial shareholdings relief in accordance with UK tax law

The consideration at completion was $15 2bn (£9 5bn), including 37 567 million new BlackRock shares, gvng an economic interest of 19 9% of the
enlarged BlackRock group Barclays Group holds 4 9% of the voting mghts and under the terms of the transaction may not acquire additional voting
nghts and will vote in accordance with the recommendations of the BlackRock Board of Directors John Varley and Bob Diamond were appomnted to the
BlackRock Board, which comprises 18 Directors The Group 1s not deemed to exercise significant influence and the imvestment has been accounted for as
an available for sale equity investment

The Group has provided BlackRock with customary warranties and indemnities in connection wath the sale Barclays will also continue to indemnify
secunities lending arrangements untid 30th November 2012 {included within contingent liabilities in Note 24) and prowde support to certain BGt cash
funds until December 2013 in the form of credit dervatives (included within denvative lrabiities 1n Note 13} and finanaal guarantees (included withun
provisians in Note 23)

In addition Barclays BlackRock and therr respective affiliates also enter into agreements and transactions with one another in the ordinary course of therr
respective businesses and on an arms length commeroial basis subject to applicable regulation and agreements with relevant regulators

In connection with its financing of its acquisition of BGI BlackRock entered into a 364-day revolving credit faciity with a group of lenders including
Barclays, who 15 also acting as revolving agent Of the $2bn credit facility, $0 8bn was committed by other lenders and followsng completion BlackRock
had borrowed or notrfied to be borrowed $1 5bn under the faciity All amounts borrowed under this facility were repad and the facility was terminated
prior to 31st Decemnber 2009

The disposed BGI business has been treated as a discontinued operation the results of which are set out below For the year ended 31st December
2009 the results are for the 17 month penod up to the date of disposal (1 December 2009) There were no discontinued operations in 2010

2010 2002 2008
£m fm tm
Net interest income - 33 -
Net fee and commussion income - 1,759 1916
Net trading income/ (loss) - 67 {10}
Other income - 4 10
Total ncome - 1,862 1916
Operating expenses excluding amortisation of intangible assets - (1.123) {960)
Amortisation of intangible assets - (14) {15)
Operating expenses - (1,337 {975)
Profit before tax from discontinued operations - 726 941
Tax on discontinued operations - (237) (337)
Profit after tax from discontinued cperations - 489 604
Profit on disposal of discontinued operations - 6331 -
Tax on disposal - (43) —
Net profit on the disposal of the discontinued operation — 6288 _
Profit after tax from discontinued operations, including gain on disposal — 6,777 604
Other cormprehensive income relating to discontinued operations is as follows
2010 2009 2008
£m fm £m
Avallable for sale assets - 10 (9)
Currency translation reserve - (85) 133
Tax relating to components of other comprehensive income - 17 (10)

Other comprehensive income, net of tax from discontinued operations - (58) 114
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34 Dhiscontinued operations contnued
The cash flows attnbutable to the discontinued operations were as follows

2010 2009 2008
fm im £m
Cash Flows from discontinued operations
Net cash flows from operating activities - 333 524
Net cash flows from nvesting activities - (25) (93)
Net cash flows from financing activities - {550} {(362)
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equvalents - {134} 217
Net cash flows from discontinued operations - (376} 286
35 Acqussition of subsidiaries
Goodwill/
{Gain on sale)}
Acquusition % Acquired £m Date
Standard Life Bank PLC 100% (100) 1st fanuary 2010
Citibank International PLC - Italian credit card business 100% {29) 31st March 2010
Tricorona 86% 13 26th July 2010

None of these acquisitions were individually matenal Details of the net assets acquired and the consideration paid are set out i aggregate below The
operating results of these acquisitions have been included from the dates acquired and, since acquisition, have contributed £142m to consolidated

income and £86m to consolidated profit before tax

Carrying
Value pre- Fair Value
Acquistion Adjustments?  Fair vatues
£m fm £m
Assets
Cash and balances at centrat banks 1,358 - 1,358
Financral assets designated at fair value held on own account 195 - 195
Dervative financial nstruments 145 76 221
Loans and advances to banks 165 - 165
Loans and advances to customers 7.709 (96) 7,613
Other assets 33 10 93
Total assets 9,655 (10) 9,645
Liabilties
Deposits frorm banks (80) - (80)
Customer accounts (5,853) - (5,853)
Derivative financial iInstruments (104) (11) (115)
Debt secunties in 1ssue (2,782) 64 (2,718)
Subordinated habilities (279) 53 (226)
Other liabilities {16) (36) (52)
Total liabilities (9,114) 70 {9,044)
Met assets acquired 541 60 601
Group share of assets acquired 535 53 588
Total consideration paid in cash 472
Goodwill 13
Gain on acquisitions 179
Acquisition refated costs of £7m have been included In operating expenses
Cashfiows in respect of acquisitions
The aggregate net inflow of cash from the acquisition of the above Group entities was as follows
2010
£m
Cash consideration on acquisttions (472)
Cash and cash equivalent acquired 1,358
Cash inflow on acquisition 886

Note
a Fair value adjustments nciude revaluations and accounting policy re-alignments
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36 Secuntisations

The Group was party to secuntisation transactions ivelving its residential mortgage loans business loans and credit card balances In addrtion, the
Group acts as a conduit for commercial paper, whereby it acquires static poals of residential mortgage loans from other lending institutions for
secuntisation transactions

In these transactions the assets or mterests in the assets, or beneficial interests in the cash flows ansing from the assets are transferred to a special
purpose entity or to a trust which then transfers its beneficial imterests to a special purpose entity, which then issues floating rate debt secuntwes to
third-party irvestors

Securitisations may, depending on the ndwvidual arrangement, result in continued recogrition of the secuntised assets and the recognition of the debt
secunties issued in the transaction, lead to partial comtinued recognition of the assets to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvernent in those assets
or to derecognition of the assets and the separate recognition, as assets or habilities of any nghts and obligations created or retained m the transfer Full
derecogrution only occurs when the Group transfers both its contractual nght ta recerve cash flows from the financial assets, or retains the contractual
nghts to recerve the cash flows but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to another party without matenal delay or reinvestment, and
also transfers substantially all the nisks and rewards of ownership, including credit nsk prepayment risk and interest rate risk

The followtng table shows the carrying amount of secuntised assets, stated at the amount of the Group's continuing involvernent where appropnate
together with the associated habilities, for each category of asset on the balance sheet

2010 2009
Carrying Carrying
amount of  Assoclated amourtof  Assocated
assets liabilitles assets liabnlities
£m £m £m £m
The Group
Loans and advances to customers
Residential mortgage loans 9,709 (10,674} 10,374 (10738)
Credit card recevables 801 (723) 1288 {1,288)
Other personal iending - - 94 {124)
Wholesale and corporate loans and advances 2,560 (2,878) 4,835 {5.999)
Total 13,070 (14,275) 16,591 (18149}
Assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
Retained interest i residential morigage loans 5 26
The Bank
Loans and advances to customers
Restdential rmortgage loans 6,700 {7,789) 7128 {7,524)
Credit card recenvables 362 (315) 12589 (1.299)
wholesale and corporate loans and advances 2,974 (3,355) 5751 (7147)
Total 10,036  {11,459) 14178 {15.970)
Assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
Retalned interest in residential mortgage loans 5 26

Balances included within loans and advances to customers represent secuntisations where substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset have been
retained by the Croup

The excess of tota! associated habilities over the carrying amount of assets primarily reflects timing differences in the receipt and payment of cash flows,
and faresgn exchange movemnents where the assets and assocated habilities are denominated in different curencies Foreign exchange movements and
associated risks are hedged economically through the use of cross currency swap denvative contracts

Balances included within loans and advances to customers include securitisations where the Bank has repurchased habilities onginally issued by its
subsidiaries to third-party investors

Retaned interests In residential mortgage loans are securities which represent a continuing exposure to the prepayment and credit nsk in the undertying
secuntised assets The total amount of the loans was £15,458m (2009 £14,795m) for the Croup and £15 458m (2008 £14,795m) for the Bank The
retained interest 1s mtially recorded as an allocation of the onginal carrying amount based on the relative fair values of the portion derecognised and the
portion retained
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37 Leasing

The Croup and the Bank are both lessar and lessee under finance and operating leases, providing asset finanang for its customers and leasing assets for
its own use Inaddition assets leased by the Group may be sublet to other parties An analysis of the impact of these transactions on the Group and the
Bank balance sheet and income statement 1s as follows

a) As Lessor

Finance lease recevables

The Group and the Bank specialise in asset-based lending and works with a broad range of international technology industrial equipment and
commercial cornpanies to provide custormised finance programmes to assist manufacturers, dealers and distributors of assets Finance lease recevables
are Included within loans and advances to customers

2010 20608
Present Presernt
Gross value of Gross value of
investment minimum investment UMM
tn finance Future lease Unguaranteed infinance Future lease Unguaranteed
lease finance payments residual lease finance payrments residual
receivables income  recebvable values  recenvables incame recenable vallies
£m £m £m £m im £m Em £m
The Group
Not more than one year 3,440 (479) 2,961 60 3,513 (456) 3057 55
Over one year but not more than five years 7,200 {(1,058) 6,142 123 7,557 (1.117) 6,480 154
Over five years 1,591 {340) 1,251 560 2084 (427) 1,657 407
Total 12,231 (1.877) 10,354 743 13,154 (2 000) 11,194 616
The Bank
Not more than one year - - - - 7 - 7 -
Over one year but not more than five years 132 - 132 -~ n - 21 -
Over five years 92 - 92 - 144 ~ 144 -
Total 224 - 224 - 362 - 362 -

The allowance for uncollectable finance lease recevables included In the allowance for imparrment for the Group amounted to £351m at 31st December
2010 (2009 £321m)

Operating lease recervables

The Group and the Bank acts as lessor whereby items of plant and equipment are purchased and then leased to third parties under arrangements
qualifying as operating leases The items purchased to satisfy these leases are inciuded within leased assets (see Note 19) and are generatly disposed of
at the end of the lease term

The future mimmum lease payments expected to be received under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 st December 2010 was £43m (2009
£39m) for the Group and none (2009 £nil) for the Bank

b) As Lessee

Finance lease commiiments

The Group and the Bank lease items of property, plant and equipment en terms that meet the definition of finance leases Finance lease commitments
are included within Accruals deferred income and other habilities {see Note 21)

As at 31st December 2010, the total future rarumum payrments under finance teases for the Group were £87m (2009 £122m), of which £16m
(2009 16m) was due within one year and the total future minimum payments under finance leases for the Bank were £nif (2009 £4m}

As at 31st December 2010, the carrying amount of assets held under finance leases was £29m (2009 £43m) for the Group and £nul (2009 £nil} for the
Bank
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37 Leasing continued

Operating lease commitments

The Group and the Bank fease vanous offices branches and other premises under non-cancellable operating lease arrangements With such operating
lease arrangements, the asset is kept on the lessor’s balance sheet and the Group and the Bark report the future minimurn lease payments as an
expense over the lease term

The leases have vanous terms escalation and renewal rights There are no contingent rents payable The Group and the Bank also lease equipment
under non-cancellable lease arrangements

Operating lease rentals of £637m (2009 £639m} for the Group have been included in adrmnistration and general expenses

Where the Group and the Bank are the lessees the future ruinimum lease payment under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009

Property Equipment Property Equipment Property  Equipment Property Equipment

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Nat more than ane year 628 7 459 g 245 3 215 2
Over ong year but not more than five years 1.477 2 1,477 & 877 2 780 -
Over five years 3,146 - 2933 3 1,505 - 1,645 3
Total 5,251 9 4,869 18 2,627 5 2,640 5

The total of future minimum sublease payments to be recewed under non-cancellable subleases at the balance sheet date 1s £111m (2009 £147m) for
the Group and £108m (2009 £323m) for the Bank

38 Off-balance sheet arrangements

In the ordinary course of bustniess and primanily to faciitate drent transactions, the Group enters Into transactions which may involve the use of
off-balance sheet arrangements and special purpose entities (SPEs) These arrangements include the provision of guarantees, loan commitmerts,
retained mterests in assets which have been teansferced to an unconsolidated SPE or obhigations ansing from the Group's mvolvements with such SPEs

Guarantees

The Group 1ssues guarantees on behalf of its customers In the majority of cases the Croup will hold collateral against the exposure, have a nght of
recourse 1o the custormer or both In addition, the Group issues guarantees on 1ts own behalf The main types of guarantees provided are financial
guarantees given to banks and financial institutions on behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts, and other banking facilibes, including stock
borrowing indemnities and standby letters of credit Other guarantees provided include performance guarantees, advance payment guarantees, tender
guarantees, guarantees to Her Majesty s Revenue and Customs and retention guarantees The norminal principal amount of contingent liabilities with
off-balance sheet nisk Is set cut n Note 24

Loan commitrments
The Group enters Into comrmitments to lend to its customers subject to certain conditions Such loan commutments are made either for a fixed penod or
are cancellable by the Group subject to notice conditions Information on loan commitments and sirmilar facilities 1s set out in Note 24

Leasing

The Group leases vanous offices, branches, other premises and equipment under nan-cancellable operating lease arangements With such operating
lease arangements, the asset 1s kept on the lessor’s balance sheet and the Group reports the future minimum lease payments as an expense over the
lease term Information on leasing can be found in Note 37

Special purpose entities
SPEs are entities that are created to accomplish a narrow and well defined objective There are often specific restnctions or limits around their ongoing
activiies The Groups transactions with SPEs take a number of forms, including

— The prowsion of financing to fund asset purchases, or commitments to provide finance for future purchases

- Denvative transactions to provide investors in the SPE with a specified exposure

i

The proviston of iquidity or backstop faclities which may be drawn upan if the SPE expenences future funding difficutues
— Direct investment mn the notes ssued by SPEs

Depending on the nature of the Group's resulting expasure 1t may consclidate the SPE on to the Group's balance sheet The consolidation of SPEs is
considered at nception based on the arrangements in place and the assessed nsk exposures at that time In accordance with IFRS, SPEs are
consolidated when the substance of the relattonship between the Group and the entity ndicates control Potential ndicatars of contralinclude amengst
others an assessment of the Groups exposure to the risks and benefits of the SPE The intial consolidation analysis is revisited at a later date if

1) the Group acquires addrtional interests in the entity, 1y the contractual arrangements of the entity are amended such that the refative exposures to
nsks and rewards change, or ) the Group acquires control over the man operating and financial decisions of the entity
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38 Off-balance sheet arrangements continued
A number of the Greups transactions have recourse only to the assets of unconsolidated SPEs Typically, the majonty of the exposure to these assets is
borne by third parties and the Groups nsk 1s mitigated through over-collateralisation, unwind features and other protective measures

The bustness activities within the Group where SPEs are used inciude multi-seller condurt programmes asset secuntisations client intermediation, credit
structuring, asset realisations and fund management These activities are described below In addition, later sections provide quantitative mformation on
the Group’s involvements with CDOs, SIVs SiV-Lites and conduits

Multi-seller condurt programmes

Barclays creates, admmnisters and provides liquidity and credit enhancements to several commercial paper conduit programmes, prirantly in the Urited
States These conduits provide chents access to iquidity In the commercial paper rmarkets by aliowing them to sell consumer or trade recevables to the
condut which then issues commercial paper to investors to fund the purchase The conduits have sufficient collateral, credit enhancerments and
hquidity support to maintain an investment grade rating for the commercial paper

Asset securitisabions

The Group has assisted its custorners with the formation of asset securitisations, some of which are effected through the use of SPEs These entities
have mimmal equity and rely on funding in the form of notes to purchase the assets for securitisation As these SPEs are created for other compantes
the Group does not usually contral these entities and therefore does not consolidate them The Group may provide financing i the form of senior notes
or jJuntor notes and may atso provide derivatives to the SPE These transactions are included on the balance sheet

The Group has also used SPES to securitise part of its onginated and purchased retail and commercial lending portfolios and credit card recevables
These SPEs are usually consolidated and derecognition only occurs when the Group transfers its contractual nght to receive cash flows from the
financial assets, or retains the contractual nghts to recewve the cash flows, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to another party
withaut matenal delay or renwestment, and also transfers substantially all the nisks and rewards of ownership, including credit nsk prepayment nsk and
interest rate nsk The carrying amounit of securttised assets together with the associated habiities are set out in Note 36

Client intermediation

The Group has structured transactions as a financial intermediary to meet investor and client needs These transactions involve entities structured by
either the Group or the client and they are used to modify cash flows of third party assets to create investments with specific nsk or returmn profiles or to
assist clents in the efficient managernent of other nsks Such transactions will typicaliy result n a derwative being shown on the balance sheet,
representing the Croup’s exposure to the relevant asset The Group also invests I lessor entities specifically to acquire assets for teasing Chent
intermedation aise includes arrangemnents to fund the purchase or consiruction of specific assets {most commen in the property Industry’}

Credit structuring

The Croup structures investments ta provide specific nsk profiles to investors This may invaive the sale of credit exposures, often by way of denvatives,
to an entity which subsequently funds those exposures by 1ssuing securiies These securities may initially be held by Barclays prior to sale outside of the
Croup

Asset realisations
The Group establishes SPEs to facilitate the recovery of loans 1n crcumstances where the borrower has suffered financial loss

To the extent that there are guarantees and commutrments in relation to SPES the details are included in Note 24

Collaterahsed debt obligations {CDOs)

The Group has structured and underwritten CDOs At ncepiion, the Croup's exposure principally takes the form of a lquidity facility provided to support
future funding difficulties or cash shortfalls in the vehicles If required by the vehicle, the facilty 1s drawn with the amount advanced included within
loans and advances on the balance sheet Upon an event of default or cther tnggening event, the Group may acquire control of a CDO and, therefore, be
required to fully consolidate the vehicle for accounting purposes The potential for transactions to hut default triggers before the end of 2010 has been
assessed and 1s included n the determination of a £137m imparment release and ather credit provisions in relation to ABS CDO Super Sertior and other
credit market exposures for the year ended 31st December 2010

The Croups exposure to ABS CDO Super Senior positions before hedging was £1,992m as &t 31st Decermber 2010 equivalent to an aggregate 50 97%
dechne in value on average for all nvestors Thes represents the Groups exposure to High Grade CDOs, stated net of write-downs and charges These
faciities are fully drawn and included within loans and advances on the balance sheet

Collateral

The collateral underlying unconsolidated CDOs comprised 78% residential mortgage-backed secunties 3% nor-residential asset-backed secunities and
19% n other categories (a proportion of which wiil be backed by residential mortgage collateral)

The remaining Weighted Average Life (WAL) of all collateral 1s 6 3 years The combined Net Asset Value (NAV) for all of the CBOs was £1bn

Funding

The CDOs were funded with senior unrated notes and rated notes up to AAA The capital structure senior to the AAA notes on cash CDOs was
supparted by a iquidity facility provided by the Group The senior partion covered by liquidity faciiities ts on average 86% of the capital structure

The wutial WAL of the notes in 1ssue averaged 6 7 years The full contractual maturity 1s 38 2 years
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38 Off-balance sheet arrangements continued

Interests in third party CDOs

The Group has purchased secunties in and entered into dervative instruments with third party CDOs These interests are held as trading assets or
habilities on the Groups balance sheet and measured at fair value The Group has not provided hquidity facilities or smilar agreements to third party
CDOs

Structured irvestrent vehicles (SIvs)
The Group does not structure or manage SIVs Croup exposure 1o third party SIVs comprised

- £nil (2009 £16m) of senior iquidity facilities,
~ Dervative exposures included on the balance sheet at their net farr value of £46m (2009 £53m)

SIV-Lites

The Group has exposure to a SIV-Lite transaction The Group s not invelved in its ongoing management Exposures have decreased to £345m (2009
£461m) representing assets designated at farr value

Commercial paper and medium-term note conduits
The Group provided £17bn in undrawn backstop liquidity facilities to 1ts own sponsored CP condurts The Group fully consclidates these entities such
that the underlying assets are reflected on the Group balance sheet

These consolidated entities in turn provide facilities of £740m to third party conduits containing prime UK buy-to-let RMBS  As at 31st December 2010
the entire facility had been drawn and s included m available for sale financial investments

The Group prowided backstop facilities to support the paper 1ssued by one third party condwit This facility totalled £129m with undertying collateral
campnising 100% auto loans There were no drawings on this facility as at 31 st December 2010

The Group provided backstop facilities to six third party SPEs that fund themselves with medwm-term notes These notes are sold to investors as a
series of 12-month secunties and remarketed to rwestors annually If investors decling ta renew their holdings at a price below a pre-agreed spread, the
backstop facility requires the Group to purchase the cutstanding notes at scheduled matunty The Group has prowvided facilies of £1 2bn to SPEs
holding pame UK and Australian owner-occupsed RMBS assets As at the balance sheet date these facilihes had been drawn and were included in loans
and advances

39 Share-hased payments
The Group operates share schemes for employees throughout the world The share based payment charge represents 7 2% {2008 3 0%) of employee
costs and unvested share awards, including options, amount to 6 6% (2009 & 0%) of 1ssued share capital

The charge for the year ansing from share based payment schemes was as follows

Cherge for the year

2010 2009 2008

£m £m Em

Share Value Plan 361 - -
Performance share Plan 58 33 14
Incentive share Plan 50 18 7
Executive Share Award Scheme 304 178 216
Sharesave 20 29 (7
Cthers 44 20 (8}
Total Equrty Settled 837 278 222
Cash Settled 23 8 3
Total Continuing operation 860 286 225
Discontinued operations - 12 35
Total share based payments 860 298 260

The terms of the mamn current plans are as follows

Share value plan (SVP)

The Share Value Plan {(SVP) was introduced in March 2010 SVP awards are granted to participants in the form of a provisional 2llocation of Barclays
shares which vest over a penod of three years in equal annual tranches Particpants do not pay to receive an award or to receive a release of shares
Awards under the SVP qualify for dvidends

Performance Share Plan (PSP)

The Performance Share Plan (PSP) was approved by shareholders at the 2005 AGM to replace the ISOP scheme Performance shares are ‘free’ Barclays
shares for which no exercise price 15 payable and which qualify for dividends Performance share awards are communicated to participants as an initial
allocation Barclays performance over a three-year period determines the final number of shares that may be released to participants
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39 Share-based payments continued

Incentive Share Plan {ISP})

The Incentwve Share Plan (lncentive Shares) was introduced in March 2008 Incentive Shares are granted to participants in the form of a provisional
allocation of Barclays shares which vest upon achieving continued senvice after three years Participants da not pay to receive an award or fo receve a
release of shares Incentive Shares qualify for dvidends

Executive Share Award Scheme (ESAS)

For certain employees of the Group an element of their annual bonus 1s in the form of a deferred award of a provisional allocation of Barclays PLC sharas
under ESAS The total value of the bonus made to the employee, of which ESAS is an element, 1s dependent upon the business urit, Group and
indvidual employee performance The ESAS element of the annual bonus must normally be held for at least three years Additional bonus shares are
subseguently awarded to recipients of the provisional allocation and vest upon achieving continued service for three and five years from the date of
award ESAS awards are also made to eligible employees for recrutment purposes under JSAP (Joiners Share Award Plan} All awards are subject to
potential forferiture if the individual resigns and commences work with a competitor business LTIP plans are cash and equity perfermance plans which
after 3 years (dependant on performance) pay half in cash and the remaining half in shares which are placed into ESAS for a further 1 or 2 years

Sharesave

Elgible employees in the UK Spain and ireland may participate in the Barclays Sharesave scheme Under this scheme employees may enter into
contracts to save up to £250 per month (refand €300, Spain €225) and at the expiry of a fixed term of three, five or seven years (Spain three years)
have the cption to use these savings to acquire shares in the Company at a discount, calculated in accordance with the rules of the scheme The
discount 1s currently 209 of the market price at the date the options are granted Participants in the scherne have six months from the date of vest n
which the option can be exercised

UK Sharepurchase

Sharepurchase was introduced m January 2002 It1s an HM Revenue & Customns approved all-employee share plan The plan 1s open to all eligible UK
employees, including executive Directors Under the plan participants are able to purchase up to £1,500 worth of Barclays PLC ordinary shares per tax
year, which if kept in trust for five years can be wathdrawn from the pfan tax-free Matching shares were introduced to the scheme dusing 2005 where
the purchase of Barclays shares by the participant are matched equally by the Company up to a maximum value of £600 per tax year Shares in the plan
will earn dividends in the form of additional shares which must normally be held by the trustee for three years before being elgible for release

Other schemes
In addition to the above schemes the Group operates a number of ather schemes including schemes operated by and settled n the shares of subsidiary
undertakings, none of which are indivdually or in aggregate matenal In refation to the charge for the year or the numbers of 1ssued shares

Share option plans
As noted above, the Croups schermes include a number of share option scheres - including grants of ril cost options

The weighted average farr value per option granted dunng the year s as follows

2000 2009

£m £m

SVP 354 -
ESAS 288 108
PSP 355 281
ISP 355 258
Sharepurchase 307 182
Sharesave 129 143

Sharepurchase, ISP SVP and ESAS are il cost awards on which the performance conditions are substantially completed at the date of grant
Consequently the fair value of these awards Is based on the market value at that date

As described above the termss of the ESAS scheme require shares to be held for a set number of years from the date of vest The calculation of the vest
date far value of such awards includes a reduction for this post-vesting restnction This discount s determined by calcutating how much a willing market
participant would rationally pay to remove the restriction using a Black-Scholes optron priong model The total discount required in 2010 15 £22m (2009
£30m, 2008 £10m)

Fair values for Sharesave and PSP are calculated at the date of grant using either a Black-Scholes model or Monte Carlo simulation
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39 Share-based payments contmued

The significant werghted average assumptions used to estimate the far value of the optians granted from 2007 to 2010 under the Groups majer share
schernes are as follows

Weighted Weighted
average average Expected Expected
share price  exercise price volatility option life

2010
PSP 355 346 45% 2 years
Shargsave 321 267 45% 4 years
2009
PSP 234 177 45% 2 years
Sharesave 351 270 45% 4 years
2008
PSP 545 207 37% 3 years
Sharesave 31 251 37% 4 years
2007
PSP 707 - 25% 3 years
Sharesave 582 481 25% 4 years

Expected Volatility
Expected volatility and dvidend yield on the date of grant have been used as inputs into the respective valuation models for Sharesave and PSP

The assumed dividend yteld for Barclays PLC s the average annual dvidend yield on the date of grant of 2% (2009 2%)

Discount Rate

The yield on UK government bonds with a commensurate Iife has been used to deterrmine the nsk-free discount rate of 2% (2009 3%) for Sharesave
and PSP Option bfe 1s estimated based upon historical data for the holding period of options between grant and exerase dates

Expected option life and number expected to vest

For the purposes of determining the expected Iife and number of options to vest, fustorical exercise patterns have been used, together with an
assumption that a certain percentage of options will lapse due to leavers
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39 Share-based payments continued
Movements in options
Analysis of the movement In the number and weighted average exeraise price of options for the major schernes 1s set out below

ESASH PSP*
Nurnber Weighted average Number Weighted average
(000s}) ex price (f) (000s) ex price {£)
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2008
Outstanding at beginning of
year/acquisition date 464,511 267937 - - 31,262 50729 - -
Cranted in the year 85489 311977 - - 6,491 4,794 - -
Exercised/released in the year {139,220) (90,2596) - - (8,355) (6 496) - -
Less forferted in the year (27.297)  (25107) - - {10,749} (17,765) - -
Qutstanding at end of year 383483 464,511 - - 18,649 31,262 - -
Of which exercisable 5,220 12,714 - - 40 - - -
15P*2 VPP
Numbrer Weighted average Number Weighted average
(000s) ex price (£) (00Cs) ex pnce (£}
2010 2009 2000 2009 2010 2009 2010 2008
QOutstanding at beqinning of
year/acquisttion date 54,978 7,100 - - - - - -
Granted i the year 800 50652 - - 241,931 - - -
Exercised/released in the year (587) (19 - - (4,932) - - -
Less forfeited in the year (5,208) (2755} - - (10,157) - - -
Qutstanding at end of year 49,983 54,978 - - 226,842 - - -
Of which exercisable - - - - - - — -
Sharesave? Sharepurchase®?
Number Weghted average Number Weighted average
(000s) ex price (£) {000s} ex pace (E)
010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2008 2010 2009
Outstanding at beginming of
year/acquisition date 21,311 84131 30 183 12,320 6,961 - -
Granted in the year 21,296 28 005 Z46 270 4,176 6,832 - -
Exercised/released in the year (1,079) (153) 267 283 (1,190) (952) - -
Less forfeited in the year (19,368) (30672) 342 358 (845) {521) - -
Outstanding at end of year 92,160 91,311 280 301 14,461 12320 - -
Of which exercisable 5814 7537 435 419 2,529 1,621 - -

Notes

a Options/award granted over Barclays PLC shares

b Mil cost awand
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39 Share-based payments continued
The table below shows the weighted average share price at the date of exercise/release of shares

2010 2009

£ £

Sharesave? 317 321
Sharepurchase®® 302 264
Svpeb 310 -
ESAS2® 339 202
pPSpab 346 177
jSpab 310 343

Certain of the Groups share option plans enable certain directors and members of staff employees the option to subscabe for new ordinary shares of
Barclays PLC between 2010 and 2018

The exercise price range, the weighted average contractual remaining Iife and number of options outstanding (inciuding those exercisable) at the
balance sheet date are as follows

Exercise price raniqge 2010 2008
Weighted Weighted
average  Number of average Number of
remaiming options femaining apticns
contractual  Quistanding contractual  Quistanding
e In years (000s)  Ifen years (000s)
Sharesave®
£144-£249 4 22,345 2 1818
£250-£349 2 58,046 3 69,543
£350-£449 - 4,828 1 9,058
£450-£549 1 6,940 2 10,892
Sharepurchase®? 1 14,461 2 12,320
svpab 2 226,842 - -
ESAS*® 3 383483 3 46451
1Spsb 1 49,983 2 54978
pspae 1 18,649 1 31,262

There were no modifications to the share-based payment arrangements in the years 2010, 2009 and 2008
As at 31st Decemnber 2010, the total hability ansing from cash-settled share-based payment transactions was £23m (2009 £13m, 2008 £23m)

Treasury Shares
The Group, through various employee benefit trusts holds shares in Barclays PLC (“treasury shares ) to meet its obligattions under its share based

payment schemes

The total number of Barclays shares held in Group employee benefit trusts at 31st December 2010 was 259 0m (2009 1251m) No dwidend nghts have
been walved on these shares The total market value of the shares held in trust, based on the year-end share price of £2 61 (2009 £2 75), was £676m
(2009 £344m) As at 315t December 2010, options over 52 melion {2009 156 millen} of the total shares held in the trusts were exercisable Further
details on the treatment of treasury shares are provided on page 128

Notes
a Options/award granted over Barclays PLC shares
b Nil cest award
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40 Related party transacticns and Directors’ remuneration

a) Related party transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant nfluence over the ather party n making
finanaial or operation decisions, or one other party controls both The definition includes subsidiaries, associates jont ventures and the Group's pension
schemes, as welt as other persons

{1} The Group
Parent company
The parent company, which is also the ultmate parent company, 15 Barclays PLC which holds 100% of the 1ssued ordinary shares of Barclays Bank PLC

Subsidiaries
Transactions between Barcfays Bank PLC and subsidianes also meet the definition of related party transactions Where these are eliminated on
consohdation, they are not disclosed in the Group financial statements A st of the Group's principal subsidiaries 1s shown i Note 35

Assoclates, joint ventures and other entities

The Group provides banking services 1o Its assocrates, joint ventures, the Croup pension funds {principally the UK Retrement Fund) and to entities under
common directorships, providing loans, overdrafts, interest and non-interest bearing deposits and current accounts to these entiies as well as other
services Group companies also provide investrment management and custodian services to the Group pension schemes The Group also provides
banking services for urit trusts and investment furids managed by Croup companies and are not indmdually material All of these transactions are
conducted on the same terms as third-party transactions

Entities under common directorships

The Group enters into normal commercial relationships with entities for which members of the Groups Board also serve as Directors The amounts
included in the Croups financial statements relating to such entities that are not publicly hsted are shown in the table opposite under Entities under
common directerships

Amounts included in the accounts, in aggregate, by category of refated party entity are as folows

Penslon furids,
Entities under unn trusts and
common irvestment

Associates Jont ventures  directorships funds
m £m £m £m
For the year ended and as at 31st December 2010
Income 19 (15) L] -
Impairment (5) (9) - -
Total Assets 135 2,113 45 -
Total Liabihhies 28 477 110 19
For the year ended and as at 31st December 2009?
Income (57) {55) (64) 6
impairment (2) (5) - -
Total Assets 155 2080 43 -
Total Liabilities 4 503 27 46

No guarantees, pledges or commitrments have been given or received in respect of these transactions n 2010 or 2009
There were no denvatives transacted on behalf of the Pensions Funds Urut Trusts and Investment funds (2009 £192m)

(1) The Bank
Subsidianes
Details of pnincipal subsidianes are shown in Note 35

The Bank provides certain banking and financial services to subsidianes as well as a number of normal current and interest bearing cash accounts 1o the
Group pension funds (principally the UK Retirernent Fund) in order to faciltate the day to day financial adrministration of the funds

Group cormpanies also provide investment management and custodian services The Bank also provides normal banking services for unit trusts and
investment funds managed by Group companies These transactions are conducted on similar terms to thrd-party transactions and are not individually
material

Note
a Comparatives have been restated to reflect entities dentified as related partes
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40 Related party transactions and Directors’ remuneration continued
In aggregate, amounts inciuded 1n the accounts are as follows

Pension
Entities funds,
under unit trusts
Joint commaon and
Subsidiaries  Associates ventures directorships  imvestment
£m im £m £fm £m
For the year ended and as at 31st December 2010

Total Assets 377,797 135 2,113 45 -
Total Liabikties 392,770 28 477 110 19

For the year ended and as at 31st December 2009*
Total Assets 314,753 155 2080 43 -
Total Liabilties 333,585 4 503 27 46

It 1s the normal practice of the Bank to provide its subsidianes with support and assistance by way of guarantees, indemnities, letters of comfort and
commitrments, as may be appropriate, with a view to enabling them to meet their obligations and to maintain therr good standing, including
commitment of capital and facilities

For dvidends paid to Barclays PLC see Note 10

Key Management Personnel

The Group’s Key Management Personnel and persons connected with them, are also considered to be related parties for disclosure purposes Key
Management Personnel are defined as those persons having authanty and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of Barclays
Bank PLC {directly or indirectly) and compnise the Directors of Barclays Bank PLC and the Officers of the Group, certain direct reports of the Group Chief
Executive and the heads of major business units

There were no matenal related party transactions with Entities under common directorship where a Birector or other member of Key Management
Personnel {or any connected person) is also a Director or other member of Key Management Persannel {or any connected person) of Barclays

The Group provides banking services to Directors and other Key Management Personnel and persons connected to them Transactions during the year
and the balances outstanding at 31st December 2010 were as follows

Directors, other Key Management Personnel and connected persons

2010 2009

£m fm

Loans outstanding at 1st January 70 74
Loans ssued dunng the year 05 19

Loan repayments dunng the year (22} (16)
Loans outstanding at 31st December 53 77
Interest income earned - o1

No allowances for impaimment were recogrised in respect of loans to Directors or other members of Key Management Personnel (or any connected
person) in 2010 or 2009

2000 2009

£m fm

Deposits outstanding at 1st January 303 287
Deposits receved dunng the year 1049 1600
Deposits repaid dunng the year {99.3) {158 0)
Deposits outstanding at 31st December 359 307

Interest expense on deposits — -

Of the loans outstanding above £0 5m (2009 £0 1m; relates to Dwrectors and other Key Management Personnel {and persons connected to them) who
left dunng the year Of the deposits cutstanding above, £0 2m (2009 £3 7m) relates to Directors and other Key Management Parsonne! (and persons
connected to them) who left the Group dunng the year The amounts disclosed as at 1st January includes deposits cutstanding for those who became
Directors or Key Management Personnel dunng the year

Aliloans to Duectors and other Key Management Personnel (and persans connected to them) (a) were made in the ordinary course of business, (b}
were made on substantizlfy the same terms, Including nterest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the same time for comparable transactions with
other persans and {c) did not involve rmore than a normal risk of collectability or present other unfavourable features, with the exception of £2,120 (2009
£2130) provided on an interest free basis

Nate
a Cornparatives have been restated to reflect entibies idenufied as related parties
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40 Related party transactions and Directors’ remuneration continued

The loanof £2,120 (2009 £2130) provided an an interest free hasis was granted to a non-Drector member of Barclays key management to purchase
commuiter rail tickets The maxemunt loan outstanding during the year was £4,240 (2009 £4,260) Commuter rail ticket loans are provided to all Barclays
staff members upon request on the same terms

Remuneration of Directors and other Key Management Personnel

Directors, other Key Management Personnel and connected persons

2010 2005
£m £m
Salaries and other short-term benefits 283 88
Employer social security charges on emoluments 125 29
Pension costs 10 07
Other long-term benefits 419 26
Share-based payments 393 158
Costs recogmsed for accounting purposes 1230 308
Employer social security charges on emeluments {125) (29)
Other long term benefits - difference between awards granted and costs recognised (92) 151
Share-based payments - difference between awards granted and costs recognised {20 9) 327
Total remuneration awarded 804 757

The population of Directors and other Key Management Personnel increased as a result of the forrmatien of the Executive Commudtee in November 2009
Figures are provided for the period that Indiduals met the definition of Directors and other Key Management Personinel

Total remuneration awarded to Directors and other Key Managernent Personnel represents the awards made to indwiduals that have been approved by
the Board Remuneration Commuttee as part of the latest payround deasions  Costs recagnised In the income statement reflect the accounting charge
far the year ncluded within operating expenses  The difference between the values awarded and the recognised income staterment charge principally
relates to the recognition of deferred costs far prior year awards

b) Disclosure requrred by the Comparies Act 2006

The following informatton (s presented in accordance with the Comparies Act 2006

Directors’ remuneration

2010 2009

£m fm

Aggregate emoluments 158 88
Gains made on the exercise of share options - 89
Amounts paid under long-term incentive schemes 70 -
228 177

Actual pension contnbutions of £13,588 were paid 1o defined contnbution schernes on behalf of one Director (2009 £18,786, one Director) Notional
penston conirtbutions to defined contribution schemes were £ril (2009 £nil)

As at 315t December 2010, one Director was accruing retirerment benefits under a defined benefit scheme {2009 two Directors)

Of the figures in the table above, the amounts attnbutable to the fughest paid Director are as follows

2010 2003

£m £m

Aggregate emoluments 70 28
Amounts paid under leng-term incentive schemes 56 -
Accrued pension > B

Actual pension contributions of £13,588 were paid to defined contnbution schernes (2009 £nil) There were no notional pension contnbutions to
defined contribution schernes in 2010 or 2009

Advances and credit to Directors and guarantees on behalf of Directors

In accordance with Section 413 of the Companies Act 2006 and in relation to those who served as Directors of the Company at any time in the financial
year, the total amount of advances and credits at 31st Decernber 2010 was £nif (2009 £1 8m) The tatal amount of guarantees on behalf of Directors at
31st December 2070 was £nil (2009 £nl)
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41 Farr value of financial nstruments

The fair value of a financial iInstrument is the arnourt for which an asset could be exchanged, or a iability settled, mnan arm's length transaction between

knowledgeable willing parties
Comparison of carrying amounts and fair values

The following table summarnses the carnyng amounts of financial assets and liabilities presented on the Groups balance sheet, and therr fair values
differentiating between financial assets and habilities subsequently measured at farr value and those subsequently measured at amortised cost

The Group

Financial assets

Cash and balances at central banks

{tems 1n the course of collection frorm other banks
Trading portfolio assets

— Debt secunttes and other eligible bills

— Equity secunties

—Traded Loans

—Commodities

Financial assets designated at far value

~ Equity secunties

- Loans and advances

—Debt secunties

~ Qther financial assets designated at fair value

- Held in respect of linked habilities under investrment contracts
Dervative financial instruments

Loans and advances to banks

Loans and advances to customers

—Residential rortgage loans

— Credit card recevables

— Gther personal lending

—Wholesale and corporate loans and advances
—Finance lease recevables

Avallable for sale financial investments

— Debt secunties and other eligible bills

— Equity secunties

Reverse repurchase agreements and gther similar secured lending
Financial habiities,

Deposits from banks

Iterns In the course of collection due to other banks
Customer accournits

— Current and demand accounts

— Savings accounts

— Other time deposits

Trading portfolie habilies

— Debt securities and other eligible bills

2010 2009
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount Value amount Value
Naotes £m £m £m Em

a 97,630 97,630 81,483 81483

a 1,384 1,384 1,593 1593
b 139,240 139,240 126520 126520
b 25,676 25,676 19,653 19,653
b 2,170 2,170 2962 2,962
b 1,844 1,844 2260 2,260
b 5,685 5,685 6,256 6,256
b 22352 22352 22390 22,390
b 1,918 1,918 4007 4,007
b 10,101 10,101 8,658 8,658
b 1,429 1,429 1,257 1,257
b 420319 420319 416815 416815
b 37,799 37,768 41,135 41,135
¢ 168,055 161,439 149089 142726
c 22,658 22,658 21,889 21889
4 26,608 26,240 25435 25430
¢ 200,618 196,124 212928 207,648
c 10,002 10,046 10,873 10898
b 59,629 59,629 45,807 48 807

b 5811 5811 6,844 6,844
¢ 205,772 205,527 143431 142524

d 77,975 77,949 76,446 76,457
a 1,321 1,321 1,466 1,466

d 110443 110,443 100710 100,710
d 91,928 91,928 81,188 81,188
d 143,431 143,583 140,557 140570

b 64,607 64,607 44,708 44,708

- Equity secunties b 7,568 7,568 6,468 6468
- Commodities b 518 518 76 76
Financial habiities designated at fair value-

- Debt secunties b 76,907 76,907 7219 72,191

- Deposits b 10,243 10,243 6,275 6,275
— QOther financial assets designated at farr value b 8,632 8,632 7,736 7736
~ Liabilittes to customers under investment contracts b 1,947 1,947 1679 1,679
Dervative financial nstruments b 405516 405,516 403,416 403416
Debt securities 10 issue d 156,623 155,974 135502 135405
Repurchase agreements and cther similar secured lending d 225534 225,511 198,781 198,781

Subordinated habilities d 28,499 27,183 25816 25 299

Notes

2 Far value approamates carmang value due to the short-term nature of these financial

assets and habiities

b The carnang value of finanaal instruments measured at far value (Including those held
for trading designated at far value dervatives and avallable for sale) 15 determined in
accordance with the accounting policy noted on pages 82 and 83 Further description

and analysis of these far values are set out below

¢ The carfying value of finanaal assets measured at amortised cost (induding loans and
advances and other lending such as reverse repurchase agreements and cash collateral
on secuntes borrowed) s determined in accordance with the atcounting policy as noted
on page 83 In mary cases the far value disclosed approximates the camyng value
because the instruments are short term in nature o have nterest rates that repnice
frequently In other cases fair value Is determined usng discounted cash flows applying

market derved interest rates Altematvely fair value 1 determiined by applying an

average of aalable reguonal and industry segmental credit spreads to the loan portfoha
tzking the contractual matunty of the loan faclhities mto consideration

d The carrying value of financial llabilites measured at arnortised cost {including customer
accounts and ather deposits such as repurchase agreements and cash collateral on
securities lent debt secuntes in issue and subordinated habilities) is deterrmined in
accordance with the accounting policy as noted on page 83 Inmany cases the far value
drsclosed approwmates the carmying value because the instruments are shoet tenmin
nature or have interest rates that reprice frequently such as customer accounts and other
deposits and short-term debt securities faw vahtes of other debt secuntes w issue are
based on quoted prices where avadable, or where these are unavadable are estirnated
using a valuation model Farr values for dated and undated convertible and non
convertible loan capital are based on quoted market rates for the 1ssue concerned or
similar 1ssues with terms and conditions
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41 Farr value of financial instruments continued

The Bank 2010 2008
Carrying Fair Carrying Far
amount Value amount Value
Notes £m €m £m im
Financial assets.
Cash and balances at central banks a 92,686 92,686 78,447 78447
Items in the course of collection from other banks a 1,268 1,268 1,373 1373
Trading portfolio assets
— Debt secunties and other eligible bills b 86,328 86,328 83,680 83,680
— Equity securities b 4,901 4,901 5,552 5552
—Traded Loans b 2,500 2,500 2,945 2945
- Commodities b 1,305 1,305 1,629 1,629
Financial assets designated at far value
— Equity securities b 11 n 66 66
— Loans and advances b 25,093 25,093 21,636 21636
— Debt secunties b 783 783 3338 3338
— Other financial assets designated at fair value b 3,294 3,294 2,605 2,605
— Held it respect of linked liabilities under imvestment contracts b - - - -
Dervative financial instruments b 441,145 441,345 429895 429895
Loans and advances to banks c 40,390 40,216 42,963 42963
Loans and advances to customers
- Residential mortgage loans c 123995 117,361 110,605 104,227
~ Credit card recenvables c 12,184 12,184 11,523 11,523
— Other personal lending c 14,230 14,378 14,125 14125
— Wholesale and corporate loans and advances ¢ 372301 366632 375513 370,198
- Finance lease recevables c 226 226 362 362
Avallable for sale financial investments
- Debt secunties and other eligible bills b 45,076 45,076 35,984 35,984
~ Equity securities b 145 145 580 5580
Reverse repurchase agreements and other similar secured fending ¢ 227343 227,132 145,433 144,526
Financial liabilities.
Deposits from banks d 97,526 97,530 90,253 90,265
Items 1n the course of collection due to other banks a 1,270 1,270 1,384 1384
Customer accounts
— Current and demand accounts d 73,623 73,623 65734 65,734
- Savings accounts d 80,616 80,616 71,703 71,703
— Other time deposits d 299,758 299758 307,082 307,073
Trading portfolio habilities
— Debt secunties and other eligible bills b 40,677 40,677 30993 30,993
- Equity securities b 3,157 3,157 2465 2,465
- Commodities b 518 518 76 76
Financial iabihities designated at fair value
— Debt securnties b 80,227 80,227 71,303 71303
—Deposits b 8,607 8,607 4,581 4,581
- Other financial assets designated at fair value b 8,208 8,208 7,662 7,662
—Liabilities to customers under investment contracts b - - - -
Derivative financial instruments b 426,243 426,243 418354 418354
Debt securities in 1ssue d 106,267 105,839 82,141 82,569
Repurchase agreements and other similar secured lending d 214,207 214,207 165,195 165,195
Subordinated liabilies d 26,994 25,601 74,893 24120

Notes
a See page 145
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41 Farr value of financial instruments continued

Vatuation inputs

IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments Disclosures' requires an entity to classify its financial instruments held at farr value according to a hierarchy that reflects
the significance of observable market nputs

The classification of a financial Instrument 1s based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entrety The three
levels of the farr value hierarchy are defined below

Quoted market prices— Level |

Financial mstruments are classified as Level 1 1f their value s observable in an active market Such instruments are valued by reference to unadjusted
quoted prices foridentical assets or liabilities 1n active markets where the quoted price 15 readily available, and the prce represents actual and regularly
ogcurnng market transactions on an arm's length basis An active market is one in which transactions occur with sufficent volume and frequency to
provide pncing iInformation on an ongoing basis

This category includes exchange traded government bonds, actively traded listed equities and actively exchange-traded dervatives

Valugtion techrigue using observabie inputs — Level 2

Financial instruments classified as Level 2 have been valued using models whase inputs are abservable In an active market Valuations based on
observable inputs include financial Instruments such as swaps and forwards which are valued using market standard pricing technigues, and options
that are commonly traded in markets where all the inputs to the market standard pncing models are observable

This category includes most investment grade and hguid high yield bonds certan asset backed securties US agency secunties, government bonds, less
actively traded hsted equities, bank, corporate and municipal obligations certain OTC denvatives certain corwertible bonds, certificates of deposit,
commercial paper certan collaterabsed debt obligations (CDOs) (cash and synthetic underlyings) collateralised loan obligations (CLOs) most
commodities based denvatives, credit denvatives certain crecit default swaps {CDSs), most fund units, certain loans, foreign exchange spot and forward
transactrons and certain issued notes

Valuation techrique using significant unobservable inputs — Leve! 3

Financialinstrurnents are dassified as Level 3 1f therr valuation incorparates significant nputs that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
nputs) Such inputs are generally deterrmined based on observable inputs of a similar nature, histoncal observations on the tevel of the input or other
analytical techmigques

Thus category includes certain corporate debt securttes, distressed debt prvate equity investments commeraal real estate loans, certain OTC denvatives
{requinng complex and unobservable mputs such as corelations and long dated volatiities) certan convertible bonds, same CDOs (cash and synthetic
underiyings), credit default swaps, denvative exposures to Monoline insurers fund urits, certain asset backed secunties, certain ssued notes certain
collateralised loan obligations {CLOs) and certain loans
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41 Fair value of financial instruments contmued

The following table shows the Groups financial assets and habilities that are measured at far value analysed by level within the farr value hierarchy

Financial assets and liahilties measured at fair value

Valuation technique using

Quoted Significant
market  Observable unobservable
prices nputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3) Total
The Group £Em £m £m Em
31st December 2010
Trachng portfolic assets 48,466 114723 5,741 163930
Financial assets designated at fair value 3,406 25,175 10,904 41,485
Denvative financral assets 3,023 408,214 9,082 420319
Avallable for safe inancial investments 25,949 36,201 3,290 65,440
Total assets 82,844 584,313 29,017 696,174
Trading portfolio habilives {30,247) {42,345) {(101) (72,693)
Financial liabilities designated at fair value (4) (94,088) (3.637) (97.729)
Derivative financial labilities (2,567} (396,695) (6,254) (405,516)
Total Liabilities (32.818) (533,128)  (9,992) (575,938)
31st December 2009
Trading portfolio assets 76,256 69,061 6078 151395
Financial assets designated at fair value 6975 24893 10,700 42 568
Dervative financial assets 3,163 401451 12,201 416815
Available for sale inancial investments 20,087 35287 1,277 56,651
Total assets 106 481 530,692 30 256 667429
Trading portfolio habiities (42,238) (8,936) (78) (51252}
Financial kabilities designated at fair value (109) (83,944) (3823) (87881}
Derwvative financial habelities (2386) (391916) {5114) (403,416}
Total Liabilities (44,733) (484,796) (13,020) (542549)
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value Valuation technique using

Quoted Signrficant

market  Observable unobservable

prices Inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2} {Level 3) Total
The Bank £m £&m £m £m
31st December 2010
Trading portfolio assets 19,611 69,654 5,769 95,034
Financial assets designated at farr value 8 22,486 6,687 29,181
Dervative financial assets - 431643 9,502 441,145
Available for sale financial investments 12,567 30,306 2,348 45,221
Total assets 32,186 554,089 24306 610,581
Trading portfalio labiities {11,235} (33,115} (2) (44,352)
Financial habilities designated at fair value (3} (94,331} (2,708) (97.042)
Derwvative financial liabilities (8) (420,014} {6,221) {426,243)
Total Liabilibes {11,246} (547,460) (8,931) (567,637)
31st December 2009
Trading portfolio assets 46,803 42,559 4,444 93,806
Financial assets designated at fair vaiue 9 21656 5,980 27,645
Dervative financial assets 13 416016 13866 429895
Available for sale inancial investments 7739 27968 867 36,574
Total assets 54,564 508199 25,157 587920
Trading portfolio labilites (27.967) (5,558) {9)  (33,534)
Financial liabilities designated at farr vatue (80,924) (2622)  (B3546)
Dervative financial iabilities (13) (408487} (9.854) (418,354)
Total Liabifities {27,980) {494.969} (12,485) (535434)

Transfers between level 1 and level 2 pnmanly compnsed government bonds that had less observable market prices
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41 Farr value of financial instruments continued

The following table shows the Croups financial assets and lrabilties that are measured at fair value disaggregated by valuation technique and product

type

Financial assets and lizbildies measured at far value by product type

Assets

+ Valuation technique using

Liabilties

Valuation technique usng

Significant

Quoted  Observable unobservable

Quoted

Significant

Observable unobservable

market prices Inputs tnputs market prices inputs inputs
(Leve! 1) (Level 2} {Level3)  tevell) (Level 2) {Level 3)
The Group fm Em £m £m £m £m
31st December 2010
Commeroial real estate loans - - 5424 - - -
Asset backed products - 39,649 4,628 - (6.287) (1,912
Other credit products - 50,230 1,097 - (42,216) {1,318)
Dervative exposure to Monoline insurers - - 1,449 - - -
Non-asset backed debt instruments 47,108 99,688 2956 (23,008) (105,481} {2.719)
Equrty products 33,384 9,708 1,478 {9,292) (14,342) {1,895)
Private equity - 27 2,844 - - -
Funds and fund-linked products 591 3,674 1,084 - (1.827) -
Foreigh exchange products - 29,883 506 - {(30,349) (241)
Interest rate products - 3057235 2407 - {291,420) (1.079)
Commodity products 1,378 28,520 493 (518) (36,191) (629)
Other 383 17,699 4,651 - (5,015) (199)
Total 82,844 584,313 29,017 (32,818) (533.128) (5.992)
31st December 2009
Commercial real estate loans - - 7170 - - -
Asset backed products - 34779 5,840 - (6,165) (2334)
Other credst products 1 47202 2,020 - (47,904) (2.827)
Derwative exposure to Monoline insurers - - 2,027 - - -
Non-asset backed debt instruments 72578 66936 3,127 (35760} (73.371) (3.202)
Equity products 28221 1772 1,536 (8,788}) (13,737} (1922)
Private equity 73 176 1978 - - -
Funds and fund-linked products 3,856 5387 1,241 - (2049) -
Foreign exchange products - 24885 761 - (25,159) (379)
Interest rate products 176 288718 2,357 - (275,684) (1.775)
Commodity products 1,414 31 562 748 (76) (37,091) (581}
Qther 162 19275 1,451 {109) (3.636) -
Total 106,481 530,692 30,256 (44733) {484 796) (13,020
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4] Fair value of financial :nstruments continued
Level 3 classification
The following table shows leve! three inanciaf assets and labilities disaggregated by batance sheet classification and product type

Level 3 financial assets and liabilities by balance sheet classification

and product type Non-destvative assets Nen-deswative liabliities  Dernvatives
Financlal Financlal
Trading assets Trading ltabilities Net dernvative
portfolio desgnated st Avaflable for portfolio desighated at financial
assets fair value  sale assets lrabilties fairvalue  wstruments®
The Greup £m £m £m £m £m £m
31st December 2010
Commercral real estate loans - 5,424 - - - -
Asset backed products 1,720 364 312 (5) (7 342
Other credit products - 237 - 4) {716) 262
Derivative exposure to Monoline insurers - - - - - 1,449
Norn-asset backed debt instruments 2,460 325 168 (1) (2,690) (25)
Equity products 135 - 27 -~ - (579)
Private equity 50 1,995 799 - - -
Funds and fund-linked products 1,084 - - - - -
Foreign exchange products - - - - - 265
interest rate products - 61 - - (27) 1,294
Commeodity products - 14 4 - {161) 7
Other 292 2,484 1,980 (91) (26)  (18D)
Total 5741 10,904 3,290 (101) {3,637) 2,828
31st December 2009
Commercral real estate loans - 7170 - - - -
Asset backed products 1 840 423 205 (5) {63) 1,106
Other credit products - 92 - - (595) {304)
Dervative exposure to Manolne insurers - - - - - 2,027
Non-asset backed debt nstruments 2461 438 166 (73) {3,081) 14
Equity products 130 - 157 - - {733)
Private equrty 104 1237 637 - - -
Funds and fund-iinked products 1,128 8 105 - - -
Foreign exchange products - - - - - 382
Interest rate products - 64 - - (25) 543
Commodity products - 12 4 - (64) 215
Other 355 1256 3 - — (163)
Total 6,073 16,700 1,277 (78) {3.828) 3,087

Note

a The dervative financial instruments in the table above are represented on a net basis
of £2 828m (2002 £3 087m) Cn a gross basis denvative financial assets are £9 082m
(2009 £12207m) denvatwe financial Jabilities are £6 254 {2009 £9 114m)
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41 Fair value of financial instruments continued
Level 3 movement analysis

The followmg table summarises the movements in the level 3 balance during the year The table shows gains and losses and includes amourits for all
financial assets and abilities transferred to and from leve! 3 dunng the year Transfers have been reflected as If they had taken place at the beginning of

the year
Analysis of movements in level 3 financial assets and Financial Financtal
liabilities Trading assets Trading liabliities Net derivative
poitfolio designated at  Available for portfolio designated at financial
assets falrvalue  sale assets hazbilitles  fair value instruments®® Total
£m im £m £m £fm £m £m

The Group
As at 1st January 2010 6,078 10,700 1,277 (78) (3.828) 3,087 17,236
Purchases 2,830 890 234 (96) {12) 762 4,608
Sales (3.334) (1.117) (121 - 39 147 (4,386)
Issues - - - - {243) (555) (798)
Settlements (455) (924) (206) 63 601 (94) (1,015)
Total gains and losses in the penod recognised in the
Income statement.
- trading income 683 203 - - {730} (5) 151
- other income - 173 (94} - - - 79
Total gains or losses recognised i other comprehensive
income - - 208 - - - 208
Transfers in/{transfers out) (61) 979 1,992 10 536 {514) 2,942
As at 31st December 2010 5741 10,904 3,290 (101) (3,637} 2,828 19,025
The Bank
As at 1st January 2010 4,444 5,980 867 {(9) (2.622) 4,012 12,672
Purchases 1141 285 165 - {12) 738 2317
Sales (1.856) (157) - - 24 147 {1.842)
Issues - - - - {(176) {566) (742)
Settlements (345) {570} (126) 3 293 (135) (880)
Total gains and losses in the period recogrused in the
ncome staterment
- trading incorme 1,068 {23) - 2 (465) (421) 161
- other income - 19 {135) - - - (116)
Total gains or losses recognised in other comprehensive
Income - - a3 - - - 93
Transfers In/(transfers out} 1,317 1,153 1,484 2 250 (494} 3,712
As at 31st December 2010 5,769 6,687 2,348 (2) (2,708) 3,281 15,375

The significant movements in level 3 posimions during the year are explained below

~ purchases of £4 6bn were pnmarily composed of £2 3bn of asset backed products £0 6bn of equity products, £04bn of non-asset backed debt

instruments and £0 4bn of private equity assets,

— sales of £4 4bn included the sale of £2 4bn of asset backed products, £0 6bn of non-asset backed debt instruments, £0 6bn of private equity assets

and £0 4bn of commercial real estate loans,

— net Issuances and Settlements of £1 8br were primardy driven by £0 6bn of commercial real estate settlements, and £0 5bn of equity product

1ssuances, and

— transfers into Level 3 pnmarily reflected a £2 Obn recesvable ansing as part of the acquisition of the North Amencan businesses of Lehrnan Brothers
This resulted from a change i the accounting treatment from loans and advances to available for sale financial nstruments This classification is due
to the uncertainty inherent in any itigation, rather than uncertainty relating to the valuation of the assets themselves Inaddition a further £1 Gbn
was transferred from level 2 to level 3 due to unobservable valuation inputs becorring significant to the overall valuation of certain fixed rate loans

Note

a The Groups dervative financial instruments in the table above are represented on a net
basis of £2 828m (2009 £3 087m) On a gross basis denvative financial assets are
£9082m (2009 £32,201m) dervative inancial liabiles are £6 254 (2009 £9114m)

b The Barks dervative financial istnuments in the table above are represented on a net
basis of £3 281m {2009 £4012m}) On a gross basis denvative financial assets are
£9502m (2009 £13866m) denvatve financia! liablites are £6 221 (2009 £9 854m)
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41 Fair value of financial instruments continued

Analysis of movements in level 3 financial assets Financiat Financral
and hiabilities Trading assets Trading llabilities  Net dernvative
portfolio  designated at  Avallable for portfalio designated at financial
assets faw value sale assets Iizbtities far value  instruments Total
£€m £m £m £m £€m £m im
The Group
As at 1st January 2009 14,625 17,681 3137 {258} (3,779) 7493 38399
Purchases 2,021 760 459 (70} (313) 2,334 5131
Sales (7,018) (4.875) (%) 172 690 (3,548) (14,588}
|ssues - - - - (1343) (1718) (3,061}
Settlemnents (410) (804) (347} - 763 {100} (898}
Total gains and losses in the pernod recognised in the
Incorne statement
- trading Income (2,290) (3,356} - 27 1574 (3,516) (7.561)
- other income - (434) (131} - - - (565)
Total gamns or losses recognised In other comprehensive
income - - (103) - -~ - (103)
Transfers in/(transfers out) (850) 1788 {1,729) 51 (1,420} 2142 (18)
As at 31st Decernber 2009 6,078 10,700 1,277 (78) (3.828) 3,087 17,236
The Bank
As at 1st fanuary 2009 12,541 7.965 1162 (256) (2,817} 10386 28981
Purchases 751 414 251 (2) (110} 1,767 3,071
Sales (5,875) (1,207) - 171 79 (3,503) (10,335)
Issues - - - - (1,132} (1 074) (2,206)
Settlernents {159) {465) (114) - 352 (220) (606)
Total gains and losses in the peniod recognised in the
ncome statement
—trading iIncome (2.384) (1277) - 26 1,609 (5267) (7.293)
-other income - 21 {21 - - - -
Total gains or losses recognised in other comprehensive
Income - - 271) - - - 271}
Transfers n/{transfers out) (430) 529 (140) 52 (603} 1,923 1331
As at 31st December 2009 4,444 5,980 867 (9) {2,622) 4,012 12,672
Gains and losses on level 3 financial assets and habilities
The following table discloses the gains and losses recogrised in the year ansing on level 3 financial assets and habiities held at year end
Gains and losses recogmsed during the period on level 3 - ﬁnanc;:r'l Trad ?n;?:t:ilai et d
financial assets and liabilities held poﬁfo‘l:g desugna:sefﬂ at  Awailable for por;fc:zg desng:atedea: « E;::lctr:l
assets farrvalue  sale assets labilities fairvalue  instruments Total
fm £m £m £m £m £m £m
The Group
As at 31st December 2010
Recognised in the tncome statement
— trading mcome 345 215 - {1) (528) (66) (35)
— other income - 115 (166) - - - (51)
Total gains or losses recognised in other comprehensive
income - - 133 - - — 133
Total 345 330 (33) (1) (528) (66} 47
The Bank
As at 31st December 2010
Recognised in the income staterment
—trading ncome 339 142 - 2 (434) (449) (400)
- other income - 18 {301} - - - (283)
Total gains or losses recognised in ather comprehensive
ncome - - (3} - - - (3)
Total 339 160 (304) 2 (434) (449) (686)
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41 Fair value of financial Instruments continued

Gains and fosses reognised during the penod on level 3 Financal Financial
financial assets and liabilities held boning desqrawds  Aviablefor  portioty desgratedat . francal
assets fair value sale assets habibes far value  instruments Total
£m £m £ £m fm £m £m
The Group
As at 31st December 2009
Recognised in the income staternent
—trading ncorme (736) {(3,034) - 8 (269) (2.817) (6,848)
— other income - (452) (140) - - - (592}
Total gains or losses recognised in other comprehensve
income - — (65) — — - {65)
Total (736) (3.486) (205) 8 (269) (2817) (7,505)
The Bank
As at 31st December 2009
Recogrised in the ncome statement
- trading incorme {855) {3,026) - 8 (235) (2,725) (6,833)
~other income - (405) (16) - - - (421)
Total gams or losses recognised in other comprehensive
Income - - (279) - - - (279)
Total (855) {3431) {295) 8 {235) (2725) (7533)
Valuation techniques

Current year valuation methodologies were consistent with the prior year unless otherwise noted below These methodologies are commanly used by
rarket participants

The valuation techriques used for the main products that are not deterrmined by reference to unadjusted quoted pnces (Level 1) are descnbed below

Commercial real estate loans
Thus category includes lending on a range of commercial praperty types including retail, hotels, office and development properties

Far value 15 calculated using a nsk adjusted spread based methodology performed on a loan by loan basis with consideration of charactenstics such as
property type, geographic location yelds, credit quality and property performance reviews

The valuation inputs are reviewed with reference to published bond indices Initial spreads are sourced from market quoted ongination spreads by
property type and classiied into Loan-to-Value {LTV) buckets which are adjusted for internal credit rating and subordination of the loans The interral
credit ratings used in the valuation model are subject to a monthly review process The model 1s calibrated monthly based on external quotes of new
ongination property type spreads and the latest internal credit ratings

The valuations are considered unobservable due to the bespoke nature of the instruments

Asset backed products
These are debt and derwvative products that are brked to the cash flows of a pool of referenced assets This category ncludes asset backed loans CDOs
(cash underlyings), CLOs, asset backed credit denvatives asset and mortgage backed securties

Valuations are determined using mdustry standard cash flow models that calculate fair value based on loss projectons, prepayment, recovery and
discount rates These parameters are determined by reference to underlying collateral performance, independent research, ABX indices broker quotes
observable trades on similar secunties and therd party pricing sources

Within this popidation certain valuation inputs are unobservable for non-investment grade ABS, non-agency residential mortgage backed secunties
(RMBS) and asset backed credit denvatives Where unabservable, a parameter wilt be set with reference to an cbservable proxy The determination of
parameter levels takes account of a range of factors such as deal vintage, underlying asset composttion (histoncal losses, borrower charactenstics
vanous loan attnbutes such as loan-to-value and debt-to-income ratios and geographic concentration) credit ratings (onginal and current), home price
changes and interest rates

Qther credit products

These products are inked to the credit spread of a referenced entity index or basket of referenced entities This category includes synthetic CDOs, single
name and index CDS and Nth to default basket swaps Within this population, valuation inputs are unobservable for CDS wath iliqued reference assets
and certain synthetic CDOs

A market standard model is used in the valuation of CDS whereby the credit curve 1s the significant input in the overall valuation Credit spreads are
observed drrecily from broker data, third party vendors or priced to proxies Where credit spreads are unobservable they are determined with reference
10 recent transactions or bond spreads from observable issuances of the same issuer or other similar entrties as a proxy
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41 Fair value of financial instruments continued

Synthetic CDOs are valued using a model that calculates far value based on observable and urobservable parameters including credit spreads, recovery
rates, correlations and interest rates and 1s calbrated dally For index and bespoke synthetic COOs with unabservable inputs correlation I1s set with
reference to index tranche market

Denvative exposure to Monoline insurers
These products are dervatives through which default protection has been purchased as secunties, pnmarily CLCs

The credit spreads of the counterparty providing protection are unobservable at the required matunty The denvative positions are vatued with reference
to the pnce of the underlying secunty As the secunty and dervative are hedged, the net present value of the denvative Increases as the net present
value of the secunty decreases The denivaiive valuation 1s then adjusted to reflect the credit quality of the counterparty

Nori-asset backed debt instruments
These are government bonds, US agency bonds, corporate bonds, commercial paper, certificates of deposit, convertible bands, notes and other
non-asset backed bonds Within this population, valuation inputs are unobservable for certan convertible bonds corporate bonds and issued rotes

Exchanged traded government bonds are classified as Level 1 Less iquid, government bonds, US agency bonds corporate bonds, commetcial paper
and certificates of deposit are valued using observable market prices which are sourced from broker quotes inter-dealer prices or other reliable pricing
services Where there are not observable market prices farr value 1s determined by reference to erther issuances or CDS spreads of the same Issuer as
proxy inputs to obtain discounted cash flows to value the bond In the absence of observable bond or CDS spreads for the respective 1ssuer similar
reference assets or sector averages are applred as a proxy

Convertible bonds are valued using prices observed through broker sources market data services and trading actvity Prices are validated against liquid
external sources Where hquid external sources are not available, fair value 1s determined using a spread to the equity conversion value or the value of the
bond without the additional equity conversion The spread level 1s determined with reference to similar proxy assets

Most fixed and floating rate notes 1ssued are valued using models that discount expected futwre cash flows These models calculate far value based on
observable interest rates and funding or credit spreads The miterest rates are denved from broker and bank notes rates In certain emerging markets,
funding spreads may be unobservable Funding spreads up to five years are sourced from negotiable commercial deposit rates in the market as a proxy
Funding spreads greater than five years are determined by applying extrapolation technigues

Equity Linked Notes valuations are determined using industry standard medels The models calculate fair value based on input parameters such as stock
prices, dividends, volatiities interest rates, equity repo curves and, for multi-asset products, correfations In general, input parameters are cbservable
with unobservable inputs having an nsignificant impact on the valuation

The valuation for fund Inked notes is consistent with the valuation of the undertying (see the Funds and fund-linked products’ section below)

Equity products
This category includes tisted equities, exchange traded denvatves, OTC equity dervatives preference shares and contracts for difference

OTC equity denvatives valuations are deterrmined using industry standard models The models calculate far value based on input parameters such as
stock prices dividends, volatilities, interest rates, equity repo curves and, for multi-asset products, correlations In general input parameters are deemed
observable up to liquid maturities which are deterrined separately for each parameter and undertying instrument Unobservable model inputs are set by
reference to liquid market instruments and applying extrapolation technigues to match the nisk profile of the trading portfolio These are vahdated
against consensus market data services for the same or similar underlying instrument

Private equity

Private equity Investments are valued 1N accordance with the International Private Equity and Venture Capital Valuation Cuidelings’ This requires the use
of a number of individual pncing benchmarks such as the prices of recent transactions in the same or similar instruments, discounted cashflow analysis,
and comparison with the earnings multiples of listed comparative companies Unobservable inputs include earnings estimates multiptes of comparative
companies, marketability discounts and discount rates Model inputs are based on market conditions at the reporting date The valuation of unquoted
equity Instruments 1s subjective by nature However the relevant methodologies are commonly applied by other market participants and have been
consistently applied aver time Full valuations are performed bi-annuafly, with the portfolio reviewed on a monthly basis for matena! events that might
impact upon fair value

Fund and fund-finked products

This category includes holdings m hedge funds, funds of funds, and fund denvatives Fund denvatives are denvatives whose underlyings include mutual
funds, hedge funds fund indices and multi-asset portfolios They are valued using underlying fund prices, yield curves and other available market
information

tn general fund holdings are valued based on the latest available valuation received from the fund adrministrator Funds are deemed unobservable where
the fund s either suspended, in wind-down, has a redemption restriction that severely affects iquidity or where the latest net asset value from the fund
admynistrators 1s more than three months old In the case of ihqud fund holdings the valuation wilt take account of alt available information in relation to
the underlying fund or collection of funds and maybe adjusted refative to the performance of relevant index benchmarks

Foreign exchange products
These products are denvatives inked to the foreign exchange market This category includes forward contracts, FX swaps and FX options Exotic
dervatives are valued using industry standard and bespoke models
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41 Farr value of financiat instruments continued

Farr value 1s based on input parameters that include FX rates, interest rates, FX volatilities, interest rate volatilities FXinterest rate correlations and other
model parameters Certamn correlations and long dated forward and volatilities are unobservable Unobservable model inputs are set by referencing hquid
market nstrurnents and applying extrapalation technigues to match the nsk profile of the trading portiolic These are vahidated against consensus
market data services

Interest rate products

These are products linked to interest rates or inflation Indices This category includes interest rate and inflation swaps, swaptions, caps, floors, mfiation
options, balance guaranteed swaps and other exotic nterest rate denvatives Interest rate products are valued using standard discounted cash flow
techniques

Interest rate dervative cash flows are valued using mterest rates yield curves whereby observable market data 1s used to construct the term structure of
forward rates This is then used to project and discount future cash flows based on the parameters of the trade An instrument with optionahty 1s valued
using a volatity surface constructed from market observable inputs Exotic interest rate dervatives are valued using ndustry standard and bespoke
madels based on observable market parameters which are determined separately for each parameter and underlying instrument Where unobservable, a
pararneter will be set with reference to an observable proxy

For inflation swaps the inflation adjusted yield curve 1s the most sigmificant input in the overall valuation In an inflation swap, an inflation based cash
flow 15 swapped for erther a fixed or floating interest rate cash flow Flows on the inflation leg of the trades are projectad using the relevant inflation
forward curve and discounted Any floating rates will be projected using the relevant interest rate yield curve and discounted Inflation forward curves and
interest rate yield curves are extrapolated beyond observable tenors and vertfied against any available market data

Balance guaranteed swaps are valued using industry standard cash flow models that calculate farr value based on loss projections, prepayment, recovery
and ciscount rates These parameters are determined by reference to underlying asset performance, Independent research, ABX indices broker quotes,
observable trades on similar secunhies and third party pricing sources Prepayrment is prajected based on observing historic prepayment

During 2070, in kne with changes in market practice, the methodology for valuing certain collateralised interest rate products was updated to make use
of more relevant interest rate yield curves to discount cash flows For certan collaterahised vanilla swaps, inflation denvatives and other inear fixed
income dernvatives Overnight Indexed Swap (O1S) rates were used rather than other market reference rates such as LIBOR

Commodity products
These praducts are exchange traded and OTC dervatives based on an underkying commodity such as metals, o and ail related, agnculturals, power and
natural gas

Valuation inputs of certain commodity swaps and options are determined using models incorporating discounting of cash flows and other industry
standard modeling techniques Fair value is calculated using inputs such as forward curves volatility surfaces and tenor correlation Unobservable inputs
are set with reference to similar observable products or by applying extrapolation techrugues from the observable market

Other

This category 1s primanty made up of fixed rate loans which are valued using models that discount expected future cash flows These models calculate
the fair value based on observable interest rates and unobservable funding or credit spreads Unabservable funding or credit spreads are determined by
applying extrapolation of observable spreads

The recevables resutting from the acquisition of the North Amencan businesses of Lehman Brothers is inckuded witin *Other’ For more details, refer to
Note 25 Legal Proceedings

Fair value adjustments
The main adjustments t¢ model or system balances to ammive at a fair value are described below

Bid-Offer valuation adjustments

Portfolios are valued to reflect the most advantageous market price to which Barclays has immediate access For assets and labilities where the firm s
not a market maker, mid prices are adjusted to bid and offer pnices respectively The bid-offer adjustment factors reflect the expected close out strategy
and, for dervatives, that they are managed on a portfolio basis The methodology for determining the bid-offer adjustment for a dervative portfolio will
generally involve netting betweent long and short positions and the bucketing of nisk by strike and term i accordance with hedging strategy Bid-offer
tevels are derved from market sources, such as broker data, and are reviewed pernodically For those assets and habiines where the firm i1s a market
miaker {which 1s the case for certain equity, bond and vandla dervative markets), since the bid-offer spread does not represent a transaction cost, rud
prices are used

Uncertainty adjustments

Market data input for exotic denvatives may not have a directly observable bid offer spread In such instances, an uncertainty adjustment is applhed as a
proxy for the bid offer adjustment An example of this 1s correlaton nsk where an adjustment 1s requured to reflect the possible range of values that
market participants apply The uncertainty adjustment may be deterrmined by calibrating to denvative prices, or by scenano analysis or histoncal anatysis

Model valuation adiustments

New valuation models are reviewed under the firm's Trade Approvat Procedures and Model Validation Policy This process identifies the assumptions
used and any mode! imitations (for example, f the mode! does not incorporate volatihity skew) Where necessary fai value adjustments will be apphed
to take these factors into account Model valuation adjustments are dependant on the size of partfokio, complexity of the model, whether the model is
market standard and to what extent 1t incorporates all known risk factors All models and model valuation adjustments are subject to review on at least
an annual basis
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41 Fair value of financial instruments continued

Credit and debit valuation adjustments

Credit valuation adjustments (CVAs) and Debit valuation adjustments (DVAs} are incorparated into derivatve valuations to reflect the impact on the far
value of counterparty nsk and Barclays own credit quality respectively These adjustments are modeled for OTC denvatives across all asset classes

Probability of Default (PD) and toss Given Default {LGD) are applied to expected exposures at a counterparty level to arrve at a CVA and DVA
adjustment

Monahine credit valuationr adjustments
Barclays determines 1ts internal credt ratings for Monalines based upan its Independent fundamental credit analysis In corjunction with a cross
reference to external ratings where available These internal credit rabings can, and at times do differ from the publicly avaitable ratings

For Monolines where a default has either cccurred s imminent or there 1s a possibility of regulatory intervention, an adjustment may be made to the
internal credit rating This will be based on the estimated recovery from a range of potential scenarios

The PD used to calculate the CVA 1s derved from the relevant internal credit rating and 1s based on internal simulations of credit factor indices by region
and industry designations, calibrated to historical time-senes and forecast on the basis of current values The LGD used s a function of available
histenical data, the Monoline s credit quality and risk cancentration, and recovery values observed in executed commutation settlerments

The CVA for all Monolines 1s based upon an expected exposure methodology Expected exposure 1s calculated by stmulating default losses on the
underlying assets calibrated to market observable parameters and forward looking market research This exposure s then further adjusted for any
spread between pnces denved from observable proxies Barclays will then apply the PD of the Monoline to this expected exposure and multiply the
result by the LGD to determine the CVA for each Monaline

Other credit and debit valuation adiustments

Dervative CVAs and DVAs for non Monoline exposures are calculated using Monte-Carlo simulation to generate an expected exposure profile The
expected exposure 1s calculated at a counterparty level after netting and collateral are applied The PD and LGD are denved from a combination of single
name credit default swap pnces where observable industry curves, indices and loan/note prang taking inte account geographic factors, mternal credit
ratings foss assumptions and ratings agency data

For counterparties with an cbservable credit market, the PD and LCD are denived from single name credit defavit swap pnices For counterparties with no
observable credit market the PD and LGD are derved from either a genenc or a specific curve The PD and LGD s desived from internal credit ratings
and the appropriate geographic index Specific curves will incorporate any relevant additional factors into the genenc curve

Where the curve is unobservable and the CVA s significant to the overall value of the underlying dervative the full value of the denvative and sts
assoclated credit valuation adjustment 1s deemed unobservable

CVAs are not incorporated into the fair value of certain counterparties where 1t has been observed that the market does not apply a credit charge The
categories of counterparties excluded are as follows

— Strongly coliateralised counterparties — this 1s any counterparty with a collateral agreement with minimurn weekly calls and the collateral threshold
plus mirimurm transfer armount below a defined level,

- Certain highly-rated sovereigns supra-nationals and government agencies, and

— Liguidity providers — when trading on the interbank market with certain colfaterafised market making counterparties no counterparty spreads are
applied

Where counterparty credit quality and exposure to that counterparty are finked wrong way nsk may anse In these instances wrong way nisk suggests
that exposure to the counterparty is hkely to increase as counterparty credit quaiity detercrates Exposure to wrong way tisk 15 liented via mternal
governance processes and deal pricing

Barciays Capital uses credit default swap spreads to determine the impact of Barclays own credit guality on the farr value of denvative labilities At 31st
December 2010, cumulative adjustrments of £352m (31st December 2009 £307m) were recorded against dervative liabilities The impact of these
adjustments in both penods was more than offset by the impact of the credit valuation adjustments to reflect counterparty creditworthiness that were
netted against denvative assets

Own crednt adiustments
The carrying amount of issued fniotes that are designated under the 1AS 39 farr value option s adjusted to reflect the effect of changas in own credit
spreads The resulting gain or loss is recognised in the income staterment

For funded instruments such as issued notes credit spreads on Barclays issued bonds represent the most appropriate basis for this adjustment
At 31st December 2010 the own credit adjustment arose from the fair valuation of £96 Obn (31st Decermber 2008 £86 Obn) of Barclays Capital's

financial habiities designated at fair vaiue Barclays credit spreads widened during 2010, leading to a profit of £391m (2009 loss £1 820m) from the farr
value of changes primanily in own credit but also from the effects of foreign exchange rates, tme decay and trade activity
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41 Fair value of financial Instruments continued

Unrecogmsed gains as a result of the use of valuation smodels using unobservable inputs
The amount that has yet to be recognised inincome that relates to the difference between the transaction price (the fair value at initial recognition) and
the amount that would have ansen had valuauon models using unobservable Inputs been used on initial recogrition, less amounts subsequently

recognised, was as follows

The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £ £m fm
Opening balance 99 128 70 113
Addrtions 56 39 1 19
Amortisation and releases (18) (68) {12) (62}
Clostng balance 137 99 99 70
Sensitrvity analysis of valuations using unobservable inputs
Falr value Favourable ch Unfavourable ch
Total Profit and Profit and
The Group Totalassets  diabilitles loss Equity loss Equity
Product type fm £m £m £m £m £m
At 31st Decernber 2010
Commeraial real estate loans 5,424 - 183 - (167) -
Asset backed products 4,628 (1,912) N7 n (289) (11}
Other credit products 1,097 (1.318) a8 - (66) -
Dervative exposure to Monoline insurers 1,449 - 78 - (230) -
Non-asset backed debt instruments 2,956 (2,n9) 56 - (55) -
Equity products 1,478 {1,895) 156 8 (154) (8)
Private equity 2,844 - 279 111 (280) {69)
Funds and fund-tinked products 1,084 - 275 - (275) -
Foreign exchange products 506 (241} 51 - (52) -
Interest rate products 2,407 (1,079) 38 - {52) -
Commodity products 493 (629) 30 - {55) -
Other 4,651 _(199) 51 - {55) -
Total 29,017 {9.992) 1,552 130 {4.730) (88)
At 31st Decemnber 2009
Cornmercial real estate loans 7170 - 429 - {437) -
Asset backed products 5,840 (2.334) 175 4 (175) (4}
Other credit products 2,020 {2,827) 171 - (152) -
Dervative exposure to Mongline insurers 2027 - 336 - (532) -
Non-asset backed debt instruments 3127 (3.202) 145 2 {147) (2)
Equity products 1536 {1,922} 28 15 {28) (15)
Private equity 1978 - 267 73 {339) {95)
Funds and fund-tinked products 1,241 - 100 - {100) -
Foreign exchange products 761 (379} 33 - (33) -
Interest rate products 2357 {1,775} 78 - (78) -
Commeodity products 748 (581} 36 - {36) -~
Other 1,451 — 52 - {52} -
Total 30,256 (13020} 1,850 94 {2,103) {116)

As part of nsk management processes, an analysis 15 performed on products with sigrificant unebservable parameters {Leve! 3) to generate a range of

reasonably possible alternative valuations

The effect of stressing unobservable inputs to a range of reascnably possible alternatives would be to Increase farr values by up to £1 7bn (2009 £1 Sbn)
or to decrease fair values by up to £1 8bn (2009 £2 2bn} with substantially all the potential effect impacting profit and loss rather than equity

The stresses applied take account of the nature of valuation techniques used, as well as the availability and reliability of observable proxy and histonc

data

Sensitmty methodologies are based on a range, standard deviation or spread data of a reliable reference source or ascenano based on alternative
market views The level of shift or scenanios applied 1s considered for each product and vaned according to the quality of the data and vanability of
underlying market The approach adopted n determining these sensitvities has continued to evolve dunng the year,in the context of changing market

conditions

Commercial regl estate Joans

Unobservable inputs, include but are not brmited to, market quoted ongination spreads, internal credit rabings and loan subordination The sensitivity 1s
determined by applying a +/- 3% shift for each underlying position based on the largest upward and downward price movernent of abservable

publshed ndices of a symilar nature i the preceding 12-month period
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41 Fair value of financial iInstruments continued

Asset backed products

For non-agency RMBS, non-investment grade MBS, mortgage related asset backed crecht dervatives and other ABS the price movemnents on
appropriate indices are used Sensitivity 13 based on the average of the largest upward and downward price movernent in the preceding 12-month
period

Other credit products
The sensitivity of valuations of the iliquid CDS portfolio 1s determmed by applying a +/- 0 2% stress to the DVO1 for each underlying reference asset The
stress is based upon the average bid offer spreads cbserved n the market for similar CDS

Denvative exposure to Monoline insurers

The main unobservable nput for these exposures is the credit quality of the relevant Monclne insurers The approach to determine sensitivity 1s
dependent on the credit quality of the Monoline insurer Sensitwity iIs computed by shifting the internal credt rating of the Monoline insurer based on
scenario analysis determined by evaluating estimated courterparty ratings in the event of adecline in the market environment

Non-asset backed debt instruments
The sensitivity for convertible bonds, 15 determined by applying a +/- 1% stuft to each underlying position The shift is based upon the bid offer spreads
observed in the market for similar bonds

The sensitivity on corporate bonds portfolio 15 determined by applying a +/- 1% shift for each underlying positior: The shift 1s based upon the bid offer
spreads observed in the market for similar bends

The sensitity for fixed and floating rate notes 15 calculated using a +/- 1% shift n credit spreads

Equity products
The sensitivity 15 estimated based on the disperston of consensus data senvices erther directly or thraugh proxies

Private equity

The relevant valuation models are sensitive to each of a number of key assumptions such as projected future earnings comparator multiples,
marketability discounts and discount rates Valuation sensitivity 1s estimated by flexing such assurmptions to reasonable alternative levels and
determining the impact on the resulting valuation

Fund and fund-hnked products
The sensitivity 15 calculated on an indwidual fund basts using a loss based scenario approach which factors in the underlying assets of the specific fund
and assumed recovery rates

Foreign exchange products
The sensitvity 1s based on the statistical spread of consensus data services, calculated using 2 standard deviations of the rmud correlation dispersion

Interest rate products
Uncertainty refating to the valuation of the products 1s mainly dnven from the range and the standard deviation of the consensus data used for price
testing

For base rate derivatives the sensitivity 15 based on bid offer spreads of base rates swaps The sensitivity was determined by applying a +/-012% shift on
the net PV01

Cornmodity products

Sensitivity 18 determmed pnmarily by measuring historical vanability over two years The estmate has been calculated using data for short dated
pararmeter curves to generate best and warst case scenanios Where histonical data 1s unavalable or uncertainty 15 due to volumetric sk, sensitivity s
measured by applying appropriate stress scenartos or using proxy bid-offer spread levels

Cther
The sensitivity for fixed rate loans 1s calculated using a +/- 1% shift In credit spreads, except for certain loans within Barclays Corporate where the
sensitivity 1s calculated using a shift in credit spreads of +/- 0 02% -011%

No stress has been applied to the recevables relating to the Lehman acquisition As outlined in Note 25 1t (s possible to identify a maximum loss
However, due to the uncertainty mherent in such legal proceedings, 1t 1s not possible to identfy reasonable upside and downside stresses or: a basis
comparable with the other assets analysed

Valuation control framework
The Independent Valuation Controf function is responsible for independent price verfication, oversight of fair value adjustments and escalation of
valuation 1ssues This process covers all fair value positions and Is a key control in ensuring the matenal accuracy of valuations

Pnce venfication uses independently sourced data that 1s deemed most representative of the market The rehability of the data source s assessed in
determining the mdependent valuation The charactenstics against which the data source 1s assessed are iIndependence, reliability consistency with
other sources and evidence that the data represents an executable price The most current data available at balance sheet date 1s used Where
significant vanances are noted in the independent price verification process, an adjustrnent is taken to the fair value position Additional fair value
adjustments may be taken to reflect such factors as bid-offer spreads, market data uncertamty, model imitations and counterparty risk
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41 Fair value of financial instruments continued
Independent price venfication results and farr value adjustments are reported on a marthly basis to the Valuation Comrmittee This committee 1s
responsible for overseeing valuation and fair value adjustrment policy within Barclays Caprtal and this 1 the forum to which valuation 1ssues are escalated

The Valuation Committee delegates more detalled review to the following five Sub-Commuttees Independent Valuations, Pnmary Commercial Real
Estate, Avallable for Sale and Other Assets Models and Governance

The Independent Valuations sub-comrmittee reviews the results of the independent price venficatron and fair value adjustment process on a monthly
basis This includes, but 1s not hmited to, reviewing fair value adjustments and methodologtes, iIndependent price verficatton results, imits and valuation
uncertainty The Pnmary Commercial Real Estate and Available for Sale and Other Assets sub-committees focus on independent price venfication results
specific to the asset classes The Available for Sale and Other Assets sub-committee also assesses contingent nisks and exarmines counterparty related
155U

The Models sub-committee 15 responsible for everseeing policies and controls related to the use of valuation models This includes but is not imited to
reviewing (i) global model nsk reports and defining associated procedures and controls (i1} outpu? from pipeline meetings and approximate booking
meetings, and the trade approval process () issues ansing from model review {v) population of valuatien adjsstments {v) defining policies and
procedures relating to valuation models and (vi} instances of independent price venfication vanances or collateral disputes relating to model usage

The Covernance sub-committee is responsible for the governance of valuation processes, policies and procedures This sub-comnuttee oversees each
sub-committee to ensure that the objectives set out n each commuttee’s terms of reference are being achieved Regulatory and accounting issues
related to far value are also assessed by the Governance sub-committee

42 Reclassification of financial assets held for trading

Prior to 2010, the Group reclassified certain financizl assets onginally classified as held for trading that were deerned to be not held for trading purposes,
and thus considered as loans and recevables

There were no additional reclassifications of financial assets during 2010

The carrying value of the securities previously reclassified into loans and recevables has decreased from £9,378m to £8,625m as a result of sales
paydowns and maturities of the underlying secunties, offset by foreign exchange movements and increases due to reversal of the discount on
reclassification

Sales of secunties from the 16th December 2008 reclassification totalled £390m (2009 £1 280m) and sales of secunties from the 25th Novernber 2009
reclassification totalted £178m (2009 £nil})

The following table provides a2 summary of the assets reclassified from held for trading to loans and recevables

As at 31st December 2010 As at 315t Decermber 2009

Carrying Falr Carrying Far
value value value value
£m £m £m £m

Trading assets reclassified to loans and recevables
Reclassification 25th November 2009 8,081 7,842 8099 7.994
Redassification 16th December 2008 544 545 1279 1335
Total financial assets reclassified to loans and recervables 8,625 8,387 9,378 9329

The reclassified financal assets contnbuted £359m (2009 £192m) to interest incomne [f the reclassifications had not been made, the Groups ncome
staternent for 2010 would have additional losses on the reclassiied trading assets of £189m (2009 loss of £49m)
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43 Segmental reporting
Since 1stjanuary 2010 for management reporting purposes, we have reosganised our activities under the following business structure

UK Retail Bariking i1s a leading UK high street bank prowiging current account and savings products and Woolwich branded mortgages UK Retail
Banking also provides unsecured loans protection products and general insurance as well as banking and money transmission services to small and
medium enterpnses

Barclaycard s an international payments services provider for consumer and business custormers including credit cards and consumer lending
Western Europe Retall Banking provides retail banking and credit card services in Spain Italy, Portugal and France

Barclays Afnica provides retat, corporate and credit card services across Afnica and the Indian Ocean as well as tailored banking services (including
mobtle banking and Shana-compliant products)

Absa provides a full range of retall banking senices and insurance products through a vanety of distribution chaninels It alsc offers customised
business sclutions for commercial and large corporate custormers

Barclays Capital is the imvestment banking divssion of Barclays tt provides large corporate, government and institutional clients wath a full spectrum of
solutions to meet therr strategic adwisory, financing and nsk management needs

Barclays Corporate provides intergrated banking solutions to large corporates, financial institutions and muitinationals in the UK & Ireland, Continental
Europe and New Markets

Barclays Wealth s the wealth management dwision of Barclays It focuses on private and intermediary clients worldwade, providing international and
private banking, investment managerent, fiduciary services and brokerage

Investmert Management manages the Group’s 19 9% economic interest in BlackRock, Inc and the residual elements refating 1o Barclays Global
Investors which was sold on 1st December 2009

Head Office Functions and Other Operations comprise head office and central suppart functions businesses in transition and consalidation
adjustments

Comparatives have been restated to reflect this new Croup structure, as detailed in our arnouncement on 22nd March 2010

Products and services offered to customers are organised by business segment as described above

This segmental presentation 1s consistent with the infarmation provided to Barclays chief operating decision-maker to make decisions about aflocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of operating segments and 1s measured In accordance with IFRSs The financial infermation shown belaw
includes the effects of mtra-Barclays transactions between operating segrments which are conducted on an arm’s length basis and elminated in a
separate row Shared costs are included in operating segments on the basis of the actual recharges made
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43 Segmental reporting continued
As at 31st December Western Head Office
2010 ux Europe Investment  Functions Totat
Retail Retait Barclays Barclays Barclays Barclays Manage- and Cther Continuing
Banking Barclaycard Banking Africa Absa Capital  Corporate Wealth tnent Operations Operations
£m £m £m £m fm £&m £m £m £m £m im
Interest ncome from
external custormers 2,949 2,653 591 534 1,554 684 1,749 668 {56) 1,192 12,518
Other Income from
external customers 1,617 1337 573 265 1,366 12414 1,276 947 134 (997) 18,932
Income from
external customers,
net of Insurance
claims 4,566 3,990 1,164 799 2,920 13,098 3,025 1,615 78 195 31,450
Inter-segment income (48) 34 - 2 {21) 502 {51} {55) - (363) -
Total income net of
Insurance claims 4,518 4,024 1,164 801 2,899 13,600 2,974 1,560 78 (168) 31,450
tmpairment charges
and other credit
provisions {819) (1,688) (314) (82) (480) (543) (1,696) (48) - {2) (5,672)
Segment expenses —
external (2,682) (1,609) (1,265) (718) (1,902) (8330) (1,560) (1,160) - (741) (19,967)
Inter-segment
expenses (127) 39 232 110 92 35 {347) {189) {11) 166 -
Total expenses (2,809) (1,570} (1,033) (608} (1.810) (8295) (1,907) (1,349) (11) (575) (19,967)
Share of post-tax
results of associates
and joint ventures (t) 25 15 - 3 18 (2) - - - 58
Profit on disposal of
subsidianes,
associates and joint
ventures - - - 77 4 - - - - - 81
Gain on acquisttions 100 - 29 - - - - - - - 129
Business segment
profit before tax 989 791 {139) 188 616 4,780 (631} 163 67 (745) 6,079
Addstional
informatton
Depreciation and
amartisation 176 171 98 70 145 415 87 52 - i3 1,227
imparrment
loss — mtangible
assets 7 5 1 - - 21 39 - - - 73
impairment of
goodwill - - - - - - 243 - - - 243
Investments in
associates and joint
ventures 3 58 88 1 56 199 {6) - - 119 518
Total assets 121,661 30,368 53,626 7,908 52,380 1,094,887 85762 17,878 4611 20,957 1,490,038
Total habilities 118,799 5960 31,078 7,551 29938 1,032,758 79,558 48,743 263 72,749 1,427,397
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43 Segmental reporting continued

As at 31st December
2009

Interest incarne from
external custormers
Other iIncome from
external customers

UK
Retail
Banking
£tm

2,623

1,638

Barclaycard
£m

2573

1455

Western
Europe
Retall
Banking
fm

800

N8

Barclays
Africa
£m

523

216

Absa
£m

1,385

1170

Barclays
Captal
£m

1,002

10097

Barclays
Corporate
£m

1,891

1,219

Barclays
Wealth
£m

470

955

Investment
Manage

ment

£m

(37)

7%

Head Office
Functions
and Cther
Operations
fm

439

81

Total
Continuing
Operations

£m

11669

17425

Income from
external customers,
net of insurance
claims

[nter-segment income

4261

4,028
13

1318

739

2,555
(2)

11,099
526

3110
71

1,425
(103}

520
(521)

25,094

Total income net of
insurance claims
Impairment charges
and other credit
provisions

Segment expenses —
external
inter-segment
expenses

4,276

(1,031)
(2.324)

(214)

4,041

(1,798)
(1522)

(5)

1,318

(338)
(1 2249

337

739

a21)
(775)

237

2,553

(567)
{1,520)

69

11625

(2,591)
(6 559)

{33)

3181

(1,558)
(1 094)

(372)

1,322

(51)
11.016)

(113)

{9

m

(16)
{680)

113

25,094

(8.071)

(16712)

Total expenses
Share of post-tax
results of associates
and joint ventures
Profit on disposal of
subsidianes,
associates and jont
ventures

Gain on acquisitions

(2,538)

{1.527)

[837)

157
26

(538)

24

(1,451)

(4)

(G 597)

22

{1,466)

1 129)

-

)

{1

{567)

(16715)

34

188
26

Business segment
profit before tax

710

727

280

104

2464

157

143

22

(576)

4559

Additional
information
Deprecration and
amortisation
Impairment

loss — intangible
assets
Impairment of
goodwill
Investments in
associates and joint
ventures

157

2

143

(5)

95

92

7

34

452

170

90

(5)

51

25

134

1,206

27

422

Total assets
Total habilities

109443
107,351

30 340
5573

51.042
42426

7908
7,476

45,787 1,019,259
25698 951192

88856
78245

14,940
41458

5404
416

6,169 1,379,148
60,614 1320449
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43 Segmental reporting continued
Geographical information
{1) A geographical analysis of revenues from external customers 1s presented below
2010 2009
£m £m
Continuing operations
UK and Ireland 12,817 12917
Eurcpe region 4735 4,359
Amencas 7,742 6,531
Africa 4,697 4016
Asta 1,459 1,271
Total 31,450 29094
Indnadual countnies which represent more than 5% of income from external customers are as follows
2010 2009
£m £m
UK 12,724 12,821
us 7,172 5547
South Africa 3,684 2,980

In 2009, discontnued operations of the Barclays Global Investors business included £432m (2008 £319m) refating to UK and Ireland, £1,084m (2008

£1,181m) relating to Amencas and £347m (2008 £416m) relating to Rest of the World

44 Financial risks, hquidity and capstal management

The disclosures required under IFRS relating to financial nsks and capital resources have been included within the Risk management and governance
section on pages 11 to 65

This move has been 1o Improve transparency and ease of reference, by concentrating related information in one place, and to reduce duphication The
relevant disclosures have been marked as audited and can be found as follows

credit nsk, on pages 21 to 46,
market nsk on pages 47 to 52,
Iiquidity nsk pages 54 to 62, and
capital resources on page 53




164 l Barclays Bank PLC Annual Report 2010 www barclays com/annualreport10

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31st December 2010 continued

45 Critical accounting estimates

The Croup's accounting policies are set out on pages 80 to 91 Certain of these policies, as well as estimates made by management, are considered to
be important to an understanding of the Group’s financial condition since they require management to make difficult complex or subjective judgements
and estimates some of which may relate to matters that are nherently uncertain The following accountng polices include estimates which are
particularly sensitive in terms of judgements and the extent to which estimates are used Cther accounting policies involve significant amounts of
judgements and estimates but the total amounts involved are not sigruficant to the financial statemenis Management has discussed the accounting
policies and critical accounting estimates with the Board Audit Comimuttee

Fair value of financial instruments
Some of the Group's financal instrurments are carried at fair value through profit or loss, such as those held for trading, designated by management
under the fair value option and non-cash flow hedging derwatives

Other non-denvative financial assets may be designated as avallable for sale Available for sale financial investments are inibally recognised at farr value
and are subsequently held at fair value Gains and losses ansing from changes in fair value of such assets are included as a separate component of

equity

An analysis of financial Instruments carried at fair vatue by valuation hierarchy, particulars of the valuation techniques used and a sensitivity analysis of
valuattons using unobservable inputs 1s included in Note 41 This note also includes a discussion of the more judgemental aspects of valuation in the
penod, including credit valuation adjustments on monoline expasures, commercial real estate loans, private equity irvestments, and farr vatue loans to
government and business and other services

Approximately £2 6bn of the assets acquired as part of a 2008 aguisition of the North Amengan business of Lehman Brothers had not been recerved by
315t December 2010 Approximately £2 Obn of this amount was recognised as part of the acquisition accounting and 1s included as an available for sale
asset i the balance sheet As discussed in Note 25, on 22nd February 2011 the court issued its Opinion in relation to the related legal proceedings This
Opinion holds that Barclays s not entitled to receive approximately £1 3bn and is only conditionally entitled o receive approximately £0 Sbn, of the
undelivered assets Inaddition the Opinion holds that Barclays 1s not entitied to appraximately £1 3bn of assets it has already recerved

The anticipated final Order, referred ta in Note 25 should clarify the precise impact of the deasion set forth in the Opinion, and may be the subject of
further proceedings or appeal by one or more of the parties concerned Barclays has considered the Opwnion, the decisions contained therein and its
possible actions with respect thereto As a result there s significant judgement involved in the valuation of this asset There I1s uncertainty relating to the
nterpretation of the Opinion and also the potential for further proceedings or appeals by the parties involved The Croup takes the view that the effective
allowance of £0 6bn that is reflected in its estimate of farr value 1s appropnate If the Optnion were to be unaffected by future proceedings and appeals,
Barclays esumates that its maxamum possible loss, based on its worst case reading of the Opinion, would be approximately £2 6bn - after taking into
account the £0 6bn effective provision The appropnate valuation of this asset will be kept under review as legal proceedings progress

Allowances for impairment

Allowances for loan impairment represent management’s estimate of the losses incurred in the loan pertfolios as at the balance sheet date Changes to
the allowances for loan imparment and changes to the provisions for undrawn contractually commuitted faclities and guarantees provided are reported
n the consolidated income statement as part of the iImpatrment charge Provision is made for undrawn loan commitrments and similar facilibes if it 1s
prabable that the facility will be drawn and result in recognition of an asset at an amount less than the amount advanced

within the retail and smalk businesses portfohios, which comprise large numbers of small homogeneous assets with similar nsk characteristics where
credit sconng techniques are generally used, statistal techniques are used to cafculate mparrment allowances on a portfolio basis, based on histoncal
recovery rates and assumed emergence penods These statistical analyses use as pnmary inputs the extent to which accounts in the portfolio are in
arrears and histornical information on the eventual losses encountered from such delinguent portfolios There are many such models in use each tailored
to a product, ine of business or customer category Judgement and knowledge 1s needed in selecting the statistical methads to use when the models
are developed or revised The impairment allowance reflected in the financial statements for these portfolios is therefore considered to be reasonable
and supportable The mparment charge reflected in the income statement for these retall portfolios 1s £3 256m (2009 £3 919m) and amounts to 5%
(2009 53%) of the total impairment charge on loans and advances in 2010

For individually significant assets, impairment allowances are calculated on an individual basis and all relevant considerations that have a beaning on

the expected future cash flows are taken into account, for example the business prospects for the custorner, the realisable value of collateral,

the Groups position relative to other claimants, the reiabiity of customer information and the Ikely cost and duration of the work-out process The level
of the impairment atlowance s the difference between the value of the discounted expected future cash flows (discounted at the loan's onginal effective
interest rate}, and its carrying amount Subjective judgements are made in the calculation of future cash flows Furthermore, judgements change with
tirme as new information becomes avallable or as work-out strategies evolve resulting in frequent revisions to the iImpairment alflowance as indiidual
decisions are taken Changes in these estimates would result n a change in the allowances and have a direct impact on the (mpairment charge The
impairment charge reflected in the financial statements in refation to whole sale portfolios 1s £2 329m (2009 £3.439m) and amounts to 41% (2009
47%} of the total impairment charge on loans and advances Further infermation on imparrment allowances and retated credit information 1s set out
within the credit nisk rmanagement section on page 38

The fair vatue of the Group’s 19 9% holding in BlackRock Inc was £4 6bn as at 31 Decemnber 2010, as compared to £54bn as at 31 December 2009 and
£51bn at onginal acquisition date {1 Decemmber 2009) For an available-for-sale equity instrument, impairmant should be recogrused if any decline in far
value 1s s:gnificant or prolonged The abserved decline 1s not considered erther signrfiicant or prolonged, in light of an increase in share price through the
second half of the year and ongomg price volatility

The Group's foan to Protium Finance LP, as detalled on pages 43 to 45 15 coliateralised by undertying financial assets of the borrower The cash flow
expected to be generated by Pratium’s assets over their contractual term would be sufficient to enable loan repayment However, following a
reassessment of the period over which the loan is expected to be realised, it 1s considered appropriate to record an impairment calculated by reference to
the fair value of these assets This has resulted in the recognition of an impairment charge of £532m as at 3t December 2010
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45 Critscal accounting estimates continued

Goodwill

Management have to consider at least annually whether the current carrying value of goodwll 1s impaired The first step of the process reguires the
identrfication of independent cash generating units and the allacation of goodwilk to these units This allocation is based on the areas of the business
expected to benefit from the synergres denved from the acquisitron The allocation is reviewed following business reorganisation The carrying value of
the unit, incluching the aflocated goodwall, 1s compared to its fair value to determune whether any impairment exists If the fair value of a unit 1s less than
its carrying value, goodwill will be impared Detalled calculations may need to be carred out taking into consideration changes in the market i which a
business operates (e g competitrve actmty, requlatory change) In the absence of readily available market price data this calculation 1s based upon
discounting expected pre-tax cash flows at a nsk adjusted interest rate appropriate 1o the operating unit, the determination of both of which requires the
exercise of jJudgement The estimation of pre-tax cash flows 1s sensitive to the periods for which detalled forecasts are available and to assumptions
regarding the long-term sustainable cash flows While forecasts are compared with actual perfarmance and external econormc data, expected cash
flows naturally reflect management’s view of future performance The most significant armounts of goodwill relate to UK Retall Banking and Absa, where
goodwill impatrment testing performed i 2010 indicated that this goodwall was not impaired An analysis of goodwill by cluster, together with key
assumptions undertying the impatrment testing 15 ncluded i Note 18 on page 108

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that dernve therr value from contractual customer relationships or that can be separated and sold and have a finite useful life are
amorused over ther esumated useful ife Determining the estimated useful life of these finrte #ife Intangible assets requires an analysis of circumstances,
and judgement by the Groups management. At each balance sheet date, or more frequently when evertts or changes in arcumstances dictate, intangible
assets are assessed for indications of impairment If indications are present, these assets are subject to an impairment review The Imparment review
compnses a companson of the carrying amount of the asset with its recoverable amount the tugher of the asset’s or the cash-generating unit’s net seling
price and its value nuse Net selling pnce 1s calculated by reference to the amount at which the asset could be dispused of in a binding sale agreement in
anarms length transaction evidenced by an active market or recent transactions for simular assets Value in use 1s calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows ebtainable as a result of the asset’s continued use, Including those resulting from its ultimate disposal, at a market-based discount rate
on a pre-tax basis The most significant amounts of intangible assets refate to Absa and Lehman Brothers North American businesses

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group provides penston plans for employees in most parts of the world Arrangements for staff retirement benefits vary from country ta country and
are made in accordance with local regulations and customs For defined contribution schemes, the pension cost recognised in the income statement
represents the contnbutions payable to the scheme For defined benefit schemes, actuanal valuation of each of the scherme’s obligations using the
projected unit credit method and the fair valuation of each of the schemes assets are performed annually In accordance with the requirements of IAS 19

The actuanal valuation is dependent upon a senes of assurmptions, the key ones being interest rates, mortality, investment returns and inflation

Mortality estimates are based on standard industry and national mortality tables, adjusted where appropriate to reflect the Group’s own expenience

The returns on fixed interest mvestments are set to market yields at the valuation date (less an allowance for nsk) to ensure consistency with the asset
valuaton The returns on UK and overseas equities are based on the long-term outiook for global equities at the calculation date having regard to current
market yields and dvidend growth expectations The inflation assumption reflects long-term expectation of retail price inflation

The Group’s 1AS 19 penston deficit across alf schemes as at 31st Decernber 2010 was £2 836m (2009 £3,946m) There are net recognised liabiitses of
£239r0 (2009 £698m) and unrecogrised actuanal losses of £2,657m (2009 £3 248m) The net recognised liabilties comprised retirement benefit
liabilities of £365m {2009 £769m} and assets of £126m (2009 £71m)

The Group's IAS 19 pension deficit in respect of the main UK scheme as at 31 st December 2010 was £2 552m {2009 £3 534m) The reduction In the
deficit resulted principally from better than expected asset performance contnbutions paid i excess of the pension expense and a credit to past service
costs following amendments to the treatment of ruimimum defined benefits

Further information on retiremment benefit obligations, Including the sensitivity of principal assumptrons, 1s nciuded i Note 27 on pages 118 to 125

Derecognition of financial assets
The Group derecognises a financial asset or a portion of a financial asset, where the contractual nghts to that asset have exprred Derecognition is also
appropnate where the nghts to further cash flows from the asset have been transferred to a third party and with them, either

{1} substantally all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
{n) significant nsks and rewards, along with the urconditional ability to sell or pledge the asset

Where significant nsks and rewards have been transferred but the transferee does not have the unconditional abtliiy to sell or pledge the asset, the
Group continues to account for the asset to the extent of its continuing nvolvernent (‘continuing velvement accounting }

To assess the extent to which nisks and rewards have been transferred,
it is often necessary o perform a quantitative analysis Such an analyss will compare the Croups exposure to vanabiity in asset cash flows before the
transfer with 1ts retained exposure after the transfar

A cash flow analysis of this nature typically involves significant judgement. In particular, it is necessary to estimate the asset s expected future cash flows
as well as potential vanability around this expectation The method of estmating expected future cash flows depends on the nature of the asset, with
market and market-mplied data used to the greatest extent possible The potential vanability around this expectation s typically determined by
stressing undertying parameters to create reasonable alternative upside and downside scenanos Probabiliies are then assigned to each scenano
Stressed parameters may include default rates, loss seventy or prepayment rates

Where neither derecogrution nor continuing involvement accounting 1s appropriate, the Group continues to recognise the asset In 1ts entirety and
recognises any consideration received as a financiat liability
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45 Crtical accounting estimates continued

Income taxes

The Group 15 subject to income taxes in numerous junsdictions and the calculation of the Group's tax charge and worldwide provisions for income taxes
necessarily involves a degree of estirmation and judgement There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax treatment is
uncertamn and cannot be determined untik resclution has been reached with the relevant tax authonty The Group recognises hiabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due after taking into account external advice where appropnate Where the final tax
outcomne of these matters is different from the amounts that were initally recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred income tax
assets and hatilities in the penod in which such determination 1s made These nisks are managed n accordance with the Groups Tax Principal Risk
Framewaork

46 Events after the balance sheet date
On 22 February 2011, the US Bankruptcy Court for the Southern Distnict of New York issued its opinion in relation to Lehman Brothers Holdings tnc
Further information 1s provided on page 117

On 1 March 2011, Barclays agreed to acquire Egg's UK credit card assets Under the terms of the transaction, Barclays will purchase Eqg's UK credit card
accounts, consisting of approximately 1 15 milion credit card accounts with apprexirnatety £2 3bn of gross recevables Completion is subject to
competition clearance, and 1s expected to occur during the first half of 2011




